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ME.\1BERS OF THE COMMITTEE 

Assemblyman Richard .A. Zimmer. Chairperson 

Committee Meeting - April 13, 1987 

(Address comments and questions to Donald S. Margeson, Committee Aide) 

The Assembly State Government Committee will hold a committee 
meeting on Mondav, April 13. 1987 at 10:00 . ..\ .. \f. in Room 33-1 of the State 
House Annex in Trenton, concerning the following legislation: 

ACR-54 
Zimmer 

Calls for a convention to propose an amendment 
to the U.S. Constitution requiring a balanced 
federal budget and a limit on federal spending 
increase. 

To accommodate those individuals and organizations which have expressed 
interest in this resolution, the Committee ·will open the meeting by receiving 
testimony from the public; a transcript of this testimony will be taken. Anyone 
wishing to address the Committee concerning the legislation at the committee 
meeting may contact Donald S. Margeson. Aide to the Committee, at (609) 
292-9106. 
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ASSEMBLY CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. 54 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 
PRE-FILED FOR INTRODUCTIOX IN THE 1986 SESSIOK 

By Assemblyman ZIMMER 

A CoNCURRENT RESOLUTIOX appl)ing to the Congress of the United 
States for the calling of a convention for the purpose of propos-
ing an amendment to the Constitution of the United States. 

1 BE IT RESOLVED by the General Assembly of the State of New 
2 Jersey (the Senate concurring): 
1 1. The State of Ke\\· Jersey applies to the Congress of the United 
2 States of America under Article V of the United States Co11Stitu-
3 tion to call a co1wention for proposing au amendment to the 
4 United States Constitution to require a balanced federal budget 
5 and a limitation on the rate of increase of federal spending, such 
6 as Senate Joint Resolution 13/ House Joint Resolution 27 (99th 
7 Congress, 1st session). 
1 2. This application by the Legislature of the State of Xe\\· Jersey 
2 constitutes a continuing application in accordance with Article V 
3 of the Constitution of the Vnited States until at least two-thirds 
4 of the legislatures of the seYeral states have made similar applica-
5 tions pursuant to Article Y, but if Co11gress proposes an amend-
6 ment to the Constitution to achieYe sulistantially the sarne purpose 
7 with that described in section 1 of this co11cmTeut resolution before 
8 January 1, 1989, this application for a state application shall no 
9 longer be of any force or effect. 
1 3. Copies of this concurrent resolution shall be sent to the legis-
2 latures of all the states, to the Clerk of the United States House . 
3 of Representatives and to the Secretary of the Senate in \Yashing-
4 ton, D. C., requesting each of the several states to pass a substan-
5 tially identical application to the "Cnited States Co11gres:: so as 
6 to meet the constitutional requirements f?r application for such a 
7 convention by two-third:: of the states. 
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STATEMEKT 
The purpose of this resolution is to apply to Congress to call 

a convention to propose an amendment to the Constitution of the 
United States to mandate a balanced federal budget and a limita-
tion on the rate of increase of federal spending, such as Senate 
Joint Resolution 13/ House Joint Resolution 27 (99th Congress, 
1st session). 
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After 

line 
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After 
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Assembly COMMITTEE Amendments 

to 

Assembly Concurrent Res. No._§j_ 

After "for" insert "the specific and exclusive purpose 

of'" 

After "require" insert ", with certain exceptions." 

Omit "and a limitation on the rate of increase of 

federal spending" 

After "as" insert "the amendment proposed by"; omit 

"13/House Joint Resolution 27" insert ·•11": omit 

"99th" insert "100th" 

After "until" insert "and after the date on which" 

After "states·· insert ''shall" 

After "if" insert "¼ithin 60 days after that date" 

Omit "before " in line 7 and "January 1, 1989" in line 8 

Omit "state application" insert "convention" 

Insert new paragraph as follows: 

"This application shall be deemed null 

and void, rescinded and of no effect in the event th2t 

any amendment to the Constitution which the 

convention may propose for submission to the states 

shall not be limited to the specific and exclusi, e 

purpose of requiring. with appropriate exceptions. a 

balanced federal budget." 

Insert synopsis as follows: 

line FEDERAL. INTERSTATE. INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS 

7 Applies to Congress to call convention to propose 

amendment to United States Constitution requiring 

balanced federal budget. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN RICHARD A. ZIMMER (Chairman): Good 
morning. This is a continuation of our consideration of 
Assembly Concurrent Resolution Number 54. We . had a hearing 
which ran most of the day on this resolution on October 21, 
1986 . Today's hearing will take testimony from those who did 
not have the opportunity to testify at the October hearing, as 
well as others who have signed up since that time. 

It's been brought to my attention that because the 
I 

holiday of Passover begins this evening, there are some who 
wanted to testify who were not able to attend. I've also had 
it brought to my attention just this morning that some who had 
been on the list for testifying at the October meeting were not 
notified of the meeting today and may not have been able to 
attend because they didn't know it was going to take place. 

For these reasons, I intend to hear out everybody who 
has signed up to speak and everybody who we have time to listen 
to today . But we will defer a vote on ACR-54 until everyone 
who has expressed an interest and even those who could not be 
here today, will have an opportunity to speak. 

The first witness I'd like to call is the Honorable 
Ri chard J . Hughe s . 
FORMER G O V E R N O R R I C H A R D J. H U G H E S : 
Thank you very much Mr. Chairman. I'm going to try to be brief 
because I see there are a great many witnesses. Mr. Chairman, 
membe r s of the Committee, first of all, I ' m privileged and 
thankful in having your courtesy in hearing me . I 've come to 
discuss a subject which is quite depressing, at least to me. 
I ' m concerned today about the fate of the United States 
Constitution . 

First I would 1 ike to say that I am not a 
constitutional scholar far from it. I should like to 
acknowledge my belated love and respect for the Cons ti tut ion. 
I knew about it, of course, in grammar school, in civic 
c l asses; but -- I usually don't tell · people this -- but in 
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college and in my first year and a half in law school I was a 
very casual student. It was not until midway of my second year 
of law school that I had the opportunity to hear a course given 
by Judge Richard Hartsharne, a common pleas judge in Essex 
County under the old system -- later -he was a Federal judge. 

This miracle changed me' fr?m a haphazard student to a 
straight A fanatic, particular l y ab9ut the Constitution. Judge 
Hartsharne made the Constitution come alive for me. I imagined 
that I could see Americans fight and fall on the battlefields 
of the resolutions. I dreamed that I was in Trenton when 
Washington crossed the Delaware and changed the course of the 
war, and I suffered with the forebearers during that hot and 
quarrelsome summer in Philadelphia. 

In 1787 our Constitution was drafted by noble and 
self-effacing men. In my lifetime, upon entering the bar -- as 
you have on accepting judicial and other public office -- I 
have sworn many times to support and defend the Constitution of 
the United States. I consider that promise binding unto 
death. That is why I am here today. 

I know I should be happy and content by realizing that 
Americans all over the country are giving thanks for our 
magnificent Constitution and the government which it has guided 
and protected for two centur i es now, longer than the written 
cons ti tut ion of any other nation . It has seen us through much 
travail: the hardship of the early years, the conquering of 
the wilderness, and the Civil War between the States; hard 
times including the Great Depression of the 1930s; slavery, 
discrimination; the emerging of millions of our fellow citizens 
into the melting pot of America; and two terrible World Wars. 

11ost recently during the Watergate tragedy the 
Constitution stood on the brink in my opinion. It was 
prese rvoed.'~'Wbens\,,caurag,&0 \lS'-~-6 ~Eed:e-r-a.l·--:-rco.uT.t :S'. ;:r. ·· .. up.•;,_•:t'o.'.} ·.th-e· :·;·Unite c. -~-' · :, : -
States Supreme Court, had to tell the President himself that 
even he was not above the law. And when the House Judiciary 
Committee was guided by its Chairman, our own Pete Rodino from 
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New Jersey, through the impeachment proceedings with such 
bipartisan fairness and restraint as to exemplify the highest 
ideal of judicial purity -- such as to capture the trust and 
gratitude of the nation, so was the strength of the 

. constitution vindicated through an unprecedented and 
frightening crisis. 

My early conversion rip~ned into a love and reverence 
for the Constitution coincidentally because my whole 
professional life threw me into intimate contact with it. As a 
young Assistant United States Attorney I heard many an 
impatient defense of the Fourth Amendment from Federal judges 
to whom I had timidly proffered a bit of suspect evidence. 
Then as a trial and appellate judge for 10 years, hardly a case 
I decided was without some constitutional quirk or question. 

Later as Governor I lived for eight years at Morven 
the Executive residence built in 1701 by the early Stocktons. 
As I went to work each day, I dreamed that I trodded the same 
porch as had Richard Stockton as he left to sign the 
Declaration of Independence. As Governor I seemed to confront 
the Constitution daily in signing or vetoing 
considering extradition or executive clemency, 
of other constitutional questions. 

legislation, in 
or a multitude 

Once in 1965 in the middle of my campaign for 
reelection I got into deep political trouble. My defending on 
con st i tut ion al grounds the right of free speech by a Rutgers 
professor who had stated what I considered to be a ridiculous 
sympathy for the war aims of the Vietcong against our own 
forces in Vietnam. There was a storm of criticism against me, 
and although I thought I would lose the election, I opted for 
the Constitution and took the issue to the people. I was 
happily surprised when they decided in my favor by reelecting 
me by an unprecedented majority. 
reasons why I trust the people. 
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And later on, Mr. Chairman, by a very strange quirk of 
fate, I was appointed Chief Justice of our Supreme Court. My 
odyssey with the Constitution continued. It lead us into some 
strange waters including our closing of the schools in New 
Jersey to force the Legislature to comply with the New Jersey 
Constitution, affirming the ri~ht to die, to vindicate a 
personal right of privacy onto the Federal Constitution, and 
the i like. 

So in these later 
Constitution impels me to warn, 

· the euphoria of gratitude for 

years, my reverence for the 
to not rest too confidently in 
our form of government. The 
inc 1 uding the wel 1-meaning who Constitution has many 

do not understand it. 
less than 30 bills to 

enemies, 
There are pending in Congress today not 
curtail the authority of Federal judges 

to rule on constitutional issues such as school prayer and the 
like. 

The United States Department of Justice is said to be 
applying a litmus test of conservative loyalty to proposed 
Federal judges instead of devotion to the Constitution and 
law. Even in our own State there is pending in our Senate 
legislation to amend our Constitution in ways which would 
destroy our independent judicial system. I do not think it 
would gain much support, for as was said long ago, "the price 
of freedom is eternal vigilance." 

The fact is, Mr. Chairman, I fear for our 
Constitution. I fear for the country that it has protected and 
guided for 200 years. Now let me tell you why. 

Thirty-two states of the required 34 under Article V 
of the Constitution have already petitioned Congress through 
their legislatures to call for a constitutional convention to 
amend the~ .Cons.t itution.; ., . repqr.tedJ,.y., .. ,,,. to .. ,,rn.anda:te, ,_,a .,.,.halance.d . ,, 
Federal -budqet-',.· attd ·--t:·hos •·'redttce· Fedet·a'l·•·spendrng. 

This is a most attractive come-on which has already 
beguiled 32 states, 16 of them without a legislative hearing 
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such as this or any other evidence of thoughtful deliberation . . 
It is such an attractive purpose, however false in its 
promise. For no precedent exists that a constitutional 
convention can be confined to that one subject. All of our 
amendments in 200 years have been made by the alternative 
method of Article V -- careful· deliberation by Congress and 
recommendation to the states for ratification. 

Our only constitutional convention, in 1787, was 
authorized by the Continental Congress to convene for the sole 
and expressed purpose of revising the Articles of 
Confederation. Yet providentially, it expanded its commission 
to found a republic, later including our Bill of Rights. 

One wonders why the legislatures of 32 states have 
sought a convention, which would lay bare this revered 
constitution to be attacked by every lunatic and radical group 
in the country. I think the answer is quite simple: The 
gullibility of the American people, all of them, to slogans: 
"balance the budget, reduce Federal spending," etc. We've 
always been that way since P.T. Barnum voiced his famous 
aphorism, "there's one born every minute." 

So, it was that what with many mountebanks in our 
history prospered mightily Billy Sunday, Aimee Semple 
McPherson, Dr. Townsend, Father Coughlin, Prophet Jones in 
Detroit, Father Devine in Philadelphia, and so forth. And to 
examine the present crop of feverish religious fund raisers, 
one need only to look at tonight's television. 

Assembly Concurrent Resolution Number 54, it seems to 
me, would range New Jersey on the side of these states which 
are imperiling our Constitution -- taking a chance with it. 
Think of it. New Jersey, the progressive state which was the 
home of so many revolutionary heros, the home of signers of our 
Declaration of Independence, with great Governors from Woodrow 
Wilson to Thomas Kean, joining in this jingoistic, knee jerk 
attack on our Constitution. God forbid. 
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So if you agree with the British Statesman, William E. 
Gladstone, or with me, that: "The American Constitution is, so 
far as I can see, is the most wonderful work ever struck off at 
a given time by the brain and purpose of man." I ask you to 
join in this fight against its subversion: to abandon or 
perhaps to table ACR-54. 

Former Governor Brendan Byrne has read this 
presentation of mine, and has authorized me to tell you and the 
Committee that he agrees with my arguments against ACR-54. He 
states respectfully to the Committee that he strenuously 
opposes a constitutional convention. The State•~ Senior 
Congressman, Peter Rodino, has authorized me to state the same 
on his behalf. 

Mr. Chairman, I am very grateful of the courtesy of 
your Committee in hearing me today. I have no political or 
personal purpose, no ax to gr ind, because now I'm in the slow 
lane of life. But the Constitution of the United States is 
very close to my heart, as I know it is to yours. 

I hope that you will reject ACR-54. Please don't 
tinker with our Constitution. It means too much to every 
American. Thank you Mr. Chairman. (applause) I didn't have 
anything to do with that, Mr. Chairman (referring to the 
applause). 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: You still have the crowd appeal, 
Governor. You declare that you are not a constitutional 
scholar, but I think there are those here who would disagree 
with you. I do respect you as a scholar and as a public 
servant. The questions I as k you are asked with considerable 
respect. 

As Governor for eight years, you were charged with 
seeing that the laws in the State Constitution were executed, 
and that1.·· i-ncln'ded::1"'"t'h'e --pro½.r,i-s r.on "'·'o'fx ·o,,1r,·· 'Stat-e·-.;;cansti-:tution ;•·;tha·-: ·••'<, :.- :,/; .\ 
requires a balanced State budget. Do you believe that that is 
a useful and salubrious provision to have in the State 
Constitution? 
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GOVERNOR HUGHES: I know that it troubled me once in a 
while because of the delays in the Appropriations Committee and 
things like that. But for a state I could see its usefulness. 
Many other states have such provisions in their constitutions. 
I don't think it would : work in this country. I think we ought 
to look, rather than _ depend ori the representative political 
system. 

For instance, I know there are exceptions in this plan 
to protect in times of war. Had we had such an unconditional 
provision in the Constitution, we would have lost both World 
Wars and we might be talking a different language now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Well, assuming that a Federal 
constitutional amendment could be drafted to deal with this 
issue such as war and depression, and assuming that a deficit 
could be authorized with a super majority vote of 60% which is 
what most of the proposals pending in Congress provide, do you 
feel that that would be sufficiently flexibility to be workable? 

GOVENOR HUGHES: I know about these assumptions, Mr. 
Chairman. But I, frankly, don't have much confidence in them 
because you have not only action by the Congress in an 
unconditional way to be playing about the requirement and a 
measure for the selection of delegates to the con st i tut ional 
convention proposed, then you've got court tests, and you might 
have years of uncertainty. But in my humble opinion, this 
situation could divide the country, as I think as one of my 
friends might testify here today, more so than any incident 
s i nce the Civil War. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Wel 1, I'm trying to focus in on 
the amendment rather than the convention. Is it the amendment 
itself , you say, that could divide the country? Because the 
amendment as you know, has passed the Senate by two-thirds vote 
at one point, has achieved a majority vote short of two-thirds 
in the House. Do you believe the balanced budget amendment 
would have that divisive effect or just the prospect of the 
convention? 

\ 
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GOVERNOR HUGHES: I'm puzzled about the amendment. 
But in my thinking I haven't thought deeply about it because I 
put it into second place against the fearful prospect of a 
runaway convention which could happen. And if there are these 
uncertainties and th_e kinds of disputes between decent people 
that you'll hear ex~ibited to you during this hearing and your 
previous hearing where you had such deep disputes and 
questions, I don't think we should tinker with the American 
Constitution. It pleases me very wel 1. It has protected me 
all my life. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Why, Governor, do you feel that 
the founding fathers included in the Constitution the provision 
for a constitution convention, giving it equal dignity to the 
provision in Article V for proposal of amendments by Congress? 

GOVERNOR HUGHES: Well, for many reasons. It may have 
been a populist thrust in their minds. A lot of the motives of 
the drafters of the Constitution are kind of obscure, 
historically. But hearing the voice of the people is important 
and that's, no doubt why they put in the alternative method. 
But I think it is greatly significant that it has never been 
used in 200 years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: 

instances when it has almost 
Are you familiar with the 

been used and has prompted 
Congressional action because of that? 

GOVERNOR HUGHES: That's called the bludgeon effect in 
which, I think, it is the 11th Amendment -- the election of 
Senators. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Do you feel that that was a 
legitimate use of Article V? 

GOVERNOR HUGHES: I think so. I would think so, but 
it's chancy. How chancy it is is indicated by the fact that 
there aTe·· .ti-a:x-eacty:~ 3,2, ~-o-~ ·the·~,ln'eces.;s:a-ry· ... 3,4· •,::st:.a:tes · -~·Li:ned·,•, up/, __ · : :·" • -: · · 

some most casually without a semblance of consideration just on 
account of the slogan. No legislative hearing such as this--
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Now thanks to you, Mr. Chairman, this Committee is giving 
careful consideration for this problem and that's to its 
credit. But that hasn't happened in 16 of those 32 states. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much Governor. 
Are there any other questions? (negative response) Well, it 
was an honor to ~ave you here this morning. Thank you very 
much. 

GOVERNOR HUGHES: Thank you very much. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I understand that one of our 

witnesses has to catch a train. The gentleman representing 
B ' Nai B ' Rith, Seymour Reich? 
SEYMOUR RE IC H: Yes. Thank you Mr. Chairman. My 
name is Seymour Reich and I'm the International President of 
B ' Nai B ' Rith. I'm grateful to appear before this Committee to 
testify on an issue of great moment, not only in our State of 
New Jersey but across 
hundreds of thousands 
States including 14,000 

this country. I am here representing 
of B'Nai B'Rith members in the United 
members in New Jersey who are concerned 

that the convening of a new national constitutional convention 
poses a potential threat to our pluralistic democracy and, 
indeed, to our American way of life. 

The measure before your Comrni ttee would cal 1 on the 
United States Congress to sanction a cons ti tut ional convention 
for the purpose of considering an amendment requiring a 
balanced Federal budget. Our members in New Jersey and 
elsewhere are of more than one mind about the need and 
desirability of mandating a balanced budget in the United 
States Constitution. 

But our membership is single-minded that opening the 
Constitution to change through the extraordinary method of 
convention the first since 1787 carries unacceptable 
risks because it invites tampering with our basic freedoms. 
Many constitutional experts fear that even the Bill of Rights, 
the cornerstone of American democracy, would not be secure. 

Con tributing to our concern is the nature and agenda 
of the groups pressing for a new convention . Many of these 
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groups are seeking more than a balanced budget amendment. Some 
of them have made no secret that they are looking for a 
fundamental change in the document that has served our nation 
so well for nearly 200 years, including revisions of Articles I 
and IV of the Bill of Rights and the entire first 10 Amendments 
to the Constitution. A great ma~y legal scholars are convinced 
that once a convention begins there are no restraints on what 
it can consider, even if the reason for convening was as 
specific as a balanced budget amendment. 

In theory, the delegates to the convention could 
rewrite the Constitution altogether just as the first 
convention mandated to rewrite the Articles of Confederation . 
Even if a convention could be limited to one general subject --
fiscal matters -- practically any manner of amendment could be 
introduced because ultimately everything is relatable and 
reducible to budget . Nevertheless, B'Nai B ' Rith has been 
working with members of Congress to strengthen the 
constitutional convention procedures bill in an effort to limit 
the convention to the specific subject for which it was called. 

But despite our efforts and the efforts of other 
groups like the American Bar Association, the principal 
sponsors of that legislation have resisted stronger language. 
However, a tough procedures bill would still be no guarantee 
that a convention would operate within certain parameters. 
Despite the attempt by the Continental Congress and the states 
to bind the original 1787 convention, that convention 
recognized and operated under no limitations. It did so 
because it saw itself -- as a new convention is likely to see 
itself as the highest and ultimate expression of the 
peoples' will. 

It is true, of course, that a convention can do 
nothing:: ... ma-t:.:eili;;~th'anr•i/:re :c.cmmend1: · ··nd:t··=change:.:,/'"; '!t'S~ '!:: recommendatio:n <- <::' ·:-•.·.:,\ .: . ·;.•; 

must go back to the states for their approval. But that 
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ratifying process could easily be dominated by those states and 
individuals with the least experience in pluralism. They may 
accept changes that strengthen the majority and its interests 
at the expense of the minority. 

A healthy democracy is one that keeps in balance 
majority and minority interests and rights. The safer and more 
traditional way of amending the Constitution is for Congress to 
consider constitutional amendments. This is the way the 
Constitution has been amended all 26 times. To call a 
constitutional convention for the ostensible purpose of 
considering one proposed amendment is to abuse a process which 
the framers of our Constitution had clearly intended as a last 
resort. 

I urge this Committee to reject the call for a 
national constitutional convention. Such a convent ion would 
put our freedoms at risk when a far more conservative process 
-- initiating and amending in Congress -- is available and time 
tested. If New Jersey and the rest of the country wants a 
balanced budget amentment to the Constitution, let it be done 
by that tradition a 1 method. Only in this way can we protect 
our American Constitution. Only in this way can we be assured 
that no extreme and willful segment of our body politic would 
be in position to undermine our fundamental liberties as a free 
and tolerant people. 

We the people, the members of B 'Nai B 'Ri th and many 
millions of others in this country, do not want a 
constitutional convention. The political opportunists, 
however, do. Since this still is a nation of the people, I 
would hope that the peoples' wi 11 would prevai 1. 
Committee could help see that this happens. 

Your 

Mr. Chairman, thank you for allowing me to present the 
views of B'Nai B'Rith. If I may, 1 I would just like to add two 
other subjects. 
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I think it's clear, and I don't think that anyone who 
supports a balanced budget or an amendment which would require 
a balanced budget can guarantee a process that would take place 
in the constitutional convention that's being suggested. I 
think that's a critical criteria. 

Even in the New Jersey Constitution which the Chairman 
formerly alluded to, there is a specific amendment within the 
Constitution of the State of New Jersey. 
the proposal before this Committee. 

That's not what is in 
It's to call for a 

constitutional convention and as stated, no one can guarantee 
· what would be the limits of that constitutional convention. 

Lastly, New Jersey is just one of two states-- New 
Jersey which has a tradition of pluralism, a tradition of 
democracy, and a tradition of freedom, I think would make a 
mistake if it was the next to the last state to engage in this 
process. So, I would ask you to protect and to preserve the 
traditions of this great State and reject the bill that's 
before you. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Mr. Reich, you referred to groups 
who are favoring this resolution who want to use a convention 
to revise the Bills of Rights and undermine other provisions of 
the Constitution. We've had one lengthy hearing on this. I've 
been contacted by witnesses for and against the resolution who 
wanted to speak today and others who have gotten in touch with 
my offices. Not one organization or individual who has 
contacted me says that they want this constitutional convention 
to deal with more than the balanced budget amendment. Could 
you, please, identify those groups and those individuals who 
you've alluded to? 

MR. REICH: No. I 'm not prepared to identify them 
now, but I' 11 be happy to submit a separate letter to the 
Chairmaw•-,:t-o ··· ·i"den'tii±f-Y,:('tru:1.s·e·t•·g:t"-0np-s:.:•,,";,·".I::-•':wt>J.llrl..,·.1s-a"?-~ t.n.ar~z-.-yot1"''·•:a~ :. , '"" •. · ' ·· 
correct in the testimony that has been given to you. Most 
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people in testifying in favor of the proposal will link their 
approval to the balanced budget amendment, That is the main 
~hrust of the suggestions calling for a constitution convention. 

But none of those people including, I think the people 
in this room who may testify in favor of the proposal, can 
guarantee, despite the strongest protestations, despite the 
statements that they wi} 1 be making, that that is their only 
interest. None of them can 
convention can do or will do. 
that we face. 

guarantee what a constitutional 
That's the danger, Mr. Chairman, 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMM.ER: The list that you are going to 
provide me with are people or organization that support a 
balanced budget convention and who want to open up the--

MR. REICH: Who would favor the changes in the 
Constitution other than the balanced budget and would favor 
alteration of the Bill of Rights. Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMM.ER: You discussed your negotiations 
in Congress to refine legislation that would establish the 
ground rules of the constitution convention . Could you explain 
to me the language that you've been seeking that has been 
resisted by the proponents of the constitutional amendments? 

MR. REICH: Yes. The procedural guidelines for a 
constitutional convention are not clear. The convention itself 
can ' t, theoretically, as anybody in politics -- can't set up 
its own rules. The suggest ion has been made to soften the 
impact of a con st i tut ion al convent ion and to soften those who 
oppose the constitutional convention process -- if guidelines 
were to be proposed by the Congress, that would insure and 
eliminate the fear that some of us have as to a runaway 
convention . 

I regret to say that even though we' re not sure that 
that kind of legislation would control the convention, 
nevertheless there has been resistance by Senator Jesse Helms 
and others in the Congress to having ·that kind of legislation 
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enacted which would put restrictions on the procedures that the 
constitution convention would follow. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Are 
legislation that was reported out 

you 
the 

familiar 
Senate 

with the 
Judiciary 

Committee in the last -session of Congress that was reported out 
unanimously? 

MR. REICH: .Which bil l are you referring to? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: It was S-40 which was the 

Constitutional Convention Implementation Act of 1985. 
MR. REICH: Yes. That's not gone beyond the 

Committee though, has it? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Are you familiar with that? 
MR. REICH: Vaguely, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Do you believe that this was 

reported out of Committee by an unanimous vote and runs from 
Jesse Helms' former colleague from the right, John East, all 
the way over to Ted Kennedy and Howard Metzenbaum? Do you 
believe that that was an inadequate piece of legislation? 

MR. REICH: I think it ' s inadequate because there's 
no guarantee that that kind of resolution, which is all that it 
would be, is binding on the constitutional convention. Just as 
the State Assembly can adopt its own rules of procedure, the 
constitutional convention, it's believed, can adopt its rules. 
Therefore, that legislation would not be sufficient to 
guarantee the concerns that we have that the constitution 
convention would go beyond the balanced budget amendment 
concern. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: But the focus of my question was 
on the legislation. Where you said that Jesse Helms has been 
resisting specific language that you want in legislation such 
as this, my question is, is the language in the Constitutional 
Conven t1on •.; ·"tirrtpJ.·errtent ,a-t.-i'on:•3,A.ct -,~~f :,:··:r9;as;,:;i•.'.S-at':rsftaetcrry"',:::"to'.'; ·you _··\:, ...• 
organization? 

MR. REICH: Not ful l y. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: What would like to see? 
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MR. REICH: Because it 
legislation that's being recommended 
beyond the Committee structure it 

cannot guarantee 
which has not 

cannot guarantee 
constitutional convention processes. I cannot--

the 
gone 
the 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Well, is there any language that 
can? 

MR. REICH: No, there isn't. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: 

resisting? 
Well, then what is Jesse Helms 

MR. REICH: Jesse Helms was against this kind of 
proposal . It was, despite his approval, his resistance and his 
strong influence on the Judiciary Committee and in the Senate, 
which is why this has not gone beyond the Senate Committee 
procedure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: So, you support legislation of 
this sort, al though you have your doubts as to whether it's 
going to be effective? 

MR. REICH: Correct. The problem of your asking me 
if I support legislation of this sort is a question that would 
lend itself to support of the process that is encompassed in 
this bi 11. I don't want to get caught in that Catch-22 by 
suggesting that there's a way of softening the impact of the 
constitutional convention by this kind of Senate resolution. 

Those people, Senator Metzenbaum and others, that you 
ref erred to, are concerned about the constitutional convent ion 
process and none of them, including the proponents of this bill 
can guarantee what the constitutional bill will do. The 
concern is, Mr. Chairman is that it will be a runaway 
convention despite that bill. 

So, my support of that bill is not sufficient to 
warrant support of the constitutional amendment resolution 
that ' s before this Committee, unless the Chairman can gu~rantee 
that that resolution, if enacted by the Senate and the House, 
can control the convention. I don't think you can. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: The only way that could happen is 
if the Constitution itself had an amendment which dealt more 
fully with the procedures. 

MR. REICH: Which is not before us . 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: 

guarantee it. 
That's the only way you could 

MR. REICH: Correct . 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: This calls for an amendment 

prior the amendment for the convention. 
MR. REICH: Correct. And even then, respectfully, 

there's no guarantee again that a convent ion in assembly which 
is privileged to enact its own rules, can disregard the 
mandate. That's basic to the concern that I ' ve expressed. 
While the resolution talks about a balanced budget amendment, 
the sense is that it can go beyond that. Just as even if you 
enacted within the confines of your resolution, procedural 
requirements with regard to the convention, they could, 
presumably, ignore that because that ' s a procedural question 
which anybody can delegate to himself. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Mr. Reich, really the only thing 
that could give you peace of mind is if we amended the 
Constitution to abo 1 i sh the rights of the states to cal 1 a 
constitutional convention. 

MR. REICH: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI : That ' s unfair. I think that's 

an unfair statement. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Would not any constitution 

convention worry you and threaten--
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I ' m glad you ' re going to the 

Senate, Assemblyman. You're getting crazy. {laughter) 
MR. RE1CH: Would not any constitutional convention 

worry me ?·,.:~Y'e-s; ,:i_,,·1my··;•-conist'ituti:•om·1. "Co11ventiun,·"Wou i d~.- wo·rry-~ 'mEi'·. ' · · · 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Can you conceive of a 

constitutional convention being justified then for any purpose? 
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MR. REICH: Not today I can't. No, because the 
Constitution has been tested 26 times, amendments have been 
enacted through a procedure that has withstood the test of 
time. Democracy has flourished with the bastion of democracy 
in the free world, and the concern is that that could be 
destroyed by the proposal that's before you. That's why it 
would be so tragic if New Jersey lent itself to that process. 
This is one of the last strongholds where we can possibly 
survive that test. That test is before this Committee and this 
process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Any further questions, Marion or 
Joe? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: I have a question. By resisting 
this method of amending that the Constitution-- I guess most 
of those who resist it take the view that the founders of the 
Constitution did not adequately consider that the horribles or 
the possibilities that now 
you have about this type 
anything in the record of 

give the rise to the concern that 
of amendment process. Is there 
the framework of the Constitution 

that addressed that question? Are the minutes of the record 
completely silent on what their views were about this method of 
amendment as opposed to Congress adopting and then sending it 
to the states for ratification? 

MR. REICH: Well, like Governor Hughes, I'm not a 
constitutional scholar except I would reflect on this: In 1787 
we had a different form of society, a different kind of United 
States. We had 13 states or colonies, if you will, just 
preceding the 1787 convention. It was not as broad and diverse 
a society and it's conceivable that what was being enacted was 
not fully tested in terms of what could come about 200 years 
later . I would suggest that it's an unnecessary aspect of us 
today to utilize in terms of amending the Constitution when we 
have other procedures that can be utilized. 

Anyone who wants a balanced budget I think that's a 
fair right to suggest in terms of our processes. Gramm-Rudman 
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was, supposedly, a piece of legislation which would have given 
the Congress an obligation to have a balanced budget. Whether 
that's working or not remains to be seen. If some suggest that 
it's not working and a constitutional amendment is necessary to 
accomplish that, fine -- but not through the processes of _a 
constitutional convention. Let that same energy be directed ~o 
the manner in which 26 other amendments were adopted. There'.d 
be nothing wrong with that, and I would not complain of that in 
terms of the constitutional process. 

But the concern is that none of those could guarantee 
what a cons ti tut ional convention would do. That's the danger 
and that's why it's so important for the members of the 
Committee to meet the test that's really before you. The whole 
country is looking at you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: I agree. I mean, I happen to be 
one of those who opposes this resolution and a convention 
called for this purpose for many of the reasons that you have 
said. I would 1 ike to know though -- and I think my posit ion 
and a lot of other people ' s position would be even strengthened 
in their own minds -- if somebody could point to something in 
the history of the original convention that speaks to the 
framers' thoughts about this method of amending the 
Constitution. 

Because, frankly, the argument that the society has 
changed over 200 years, bears on every single amendment to the 
Constitution and every part of the Constitution. We've given 
varying interpretations of the First Amendment, Fourth 
Amendment, Fifth, Fourteenth, and everything else as time has 
evolved, as our society has become more complex. And as rights 
in the peoples' minds have changed, the societal values have 
changed. 

s::~~'.';t,.'thf!',},;,f act'~-1t'.t:hat.':t( :·i:t t ;S:,'c . !ctraage.d:•·· mow ~:-A- ::.'. :that:~,; ... tt··' 's·, .. ',; . ; o·-' ', 

different now than it was 200 years ago -- bears not only on 
this issue, but everything else. If that was the only reason 
that we could raise, that may be a reason for resisting every 
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single interpretation that is new and modern of a 
constitutional provision. Is there anything anywhere where 
_it's said or are the Constitution minutes just silent on this? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Joe, we had testimony at our 
first hearing -- Professor John Armor of the University- of 
Baltimore, who's an expert on the deliberations that lead to 
the adoption of the language of Article V as well as . its 
imp'.l.ementation, and I refer you to the tr,anscript. Perhaps 
some of our witnesses later on today could give you some 
further elucidation on that. There has been some a great deal 
of research done on it. 

It's convinced me that the founding fathers, although 
they did not have, precisely, a balanced budget in mind, . saw 
the prospect of Congress itself being part of the problem in 
certain situation, that Congress itself would be reluctant to 
initiate a needed amendment, and so an alternative, that is, 
actioned by the states, would be necessary to initiate an 
amendment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES : But what do they say about the 
nature of that 
dereliction? Is 
convention should 

convention that's to resolve Congress' 
there anything that speaks to what that 
consist of and what the scope of the 

commitment should be? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes there is, and I can also 

refer you to the work that's been done by the American Bar 
Association on the subject. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: What does it say? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Let me look it up here. The ABA 

Cornmi ttee cone 1 uded in reviewing the 1 anguage and the hi story 
of the adoption of Article V that a constitutional convention--

It says: "It is our conclusion that Congress has the 
power to establish procedures governing the calling of a 
national constitutional convention limited to a subject matter 
on which the legislatures of two-thirds of the states request a 
convention . 
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"In establishing procedures from making available to 
the states a limited convention when they petitioned for . such a 
convention, Congress must not prohibit the state legislatures 
from requesting a general convention since a review of Article 
V permits both types of conventions." 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: so', the Congress can say to have 
a limited one and the states can say the heck with you, we want 
it wide open. Is that it? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: No. If 34 states 
resolutions to have a general convention, there will 

pass 
be a 

general convention. 
MR. REICH: But I don't think that ' s answering Mr. 

Charles which may not be answered in that text. He's asking 
what was the motivation in terms of this alternate procedure in 
1787 when the Cons ti tut ion was enacted? Apparently, there ' s 
been no testimony on that. I will--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes there has. 
MR. REICH: There has been. Excuse me. 
ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: So you're saying, if I 

understand you correctly, Mr. Chairman , that according to the 
ABA's opinion, if you pass ACR-54 and it's specifically limited 
to balancing the Federal budget, then the constitutional 
convention can't go beyond that? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : That ' s correct. That was 
testified to by Adrian Foley, who is a member of this ABA 
Committee and former President of the New Jersey Bar 
Association, and incidentally, former chairman of New Jersey's 
most recent constitutional convention. That was his conclusion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Mr. Chairman, one of the problems 
I have with that and if this witness or other witnesses have 
some comments--:- He .r.ai.se,d .. an .iss.ue . befo.re . that I £..ind _ so.m.ewhat 
trouble-some·;"" anct ··-that'° '' Hr· t he,..··1--angucrge• •l i n: ·wh•:i: c'h "We· ·say~-· '1"imr cs ·· 
the budget and calls for a balanced budget, but also a limit on 
increased spending. 
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A concern that I have is under some pretext, if you 
will, can you host a multitude of issues and put them in the 
form of a limitation on increased spending? I know the witness 
made some reference to it. That's one of the concerns that I 
have if you could, under the umbrella so to speak, put in a lot 
of different areas. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I'm glad you asked me that 
question . Even if you didn't ask me that question, the fact is 
that I've asked staff to prepare amendments among which is an 
amendment to eliminate that limitation on the right of 
increased Federal ·spending. Although I personally believe that 
that ' s a desirable provision to be included in the Constitution 
for a number of reasons including the fact that most other 
state resolutions have not had that clause in it, I've asked to 
have it deleted from the text of ACR-54. Let me distribute the 
draft of the proposed amendment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: You mean to amend ACR-54? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes, before we release it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: What, I guess, the foundation 

question is, is this resolution identical to the resolution 
that was passed in the 32 other states or are there variations 
in th i s one? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: It is not identical. There is a 
study that was done by the Association of the Bar of City of 
New York examining them each, one by one. There's probably no 
two that are precisely the same. The legal authorities who 
have testified before us, with whom I am familiar, point out, 
as I think, any common sense interpretation would hold, that 
you don't have to have precisely identical resolutions to have 
legal effects. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Whose ruling is that? I mean is 
there some judicial precedent that says that identical 
language-- I mean we have, for example, a compact between the 
States of New York and New Jersey Port Authority. We have had 
to pass identical language. And some things that take place 
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between states have to have identical language. Is there a 
legal ruling anywhere which says that resolutions are different? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Of course there aren't because as 
has been said before, this is an issue without precedent. 
However, Congress is given the responsibility to review the 
substance of the text of each resolution under Article V and to 
make . the determination as to whether the two-thirds have been 
met:. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES : It just seems to me that for 
those who are-- When we're talking about something as serious 
as this is with al 1 of the dangers that it inheres and that 
we've heard expressed by those who oppose it and where the real 
danger is the fear about how wide-open and how unlimited this 
thing would be, would seem to me that just in the interest of 
caution and in the interest of at least giving as much as you 
can with that issue that we ought to have identical resolutions 
coming out of all of the states, otherwise you do have people 
arguing on what this state wants and what the other wants. If 
you had the same language, then they couldn't be--

But to me, that raises even a further question as to 
the argument that we don't know what the scope or what the 
dimensions of such a convention would be. Apparently, the 
states don't even agree on it in the resolutions that they are 
passing. Is there some way or can some effort can be made to 
get some? I guess it can't be, but--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : The way you can get some 
certainties is to pass legislation of the sort that Mr. Reich 
and I were discussing , I think it ' s something that we agree 
on. Also to have good legal ,minds examine the issue as the 
American Bar Association has done. But I think that detracts 
from the issue of hand which is how we' re going to get a 
bal anced.-.'t:~tidge ,_.;-·; rt.mnendmert t r.--: ··"'t"O:,.·· •'.tt2h:e.,,..,·;.;F.ea~r-:a.i'·::::"""· eonsti tuti~or:~ .. ,i :" · • · . , · ·.•; 
indeed--
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Well, I think the issue at hand 
may be that, but the issue also at hand may be more 
importantly: what kind of dangers do we encounter in trying to 
deal with the issue that you addressed? That may be more 
paramount to just this single issue that you're talking about. 
I have no further questions or commen~s. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: The ABA opinion that you 
ref~rred to, has that been made available to each of the 
Committee members? I'd like a copy of that. Not to say that 
you' re taking anything out of context, I understand that, but 
do you think that you could arrange for each of us t6 be able 
to have a copy of it? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I'll see if I can. It's 
available from the American Bar Association and the National 
Taxpayers Union which is represented here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Would you be kind of enough to 
see if you can obtain that for us? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: We ' ll get copies to you. 
MR . REICH: Mr. Zimmer, respectfully, with regard to 

the ABA language that you read, that's an opinion of the ABA 
and that certainly, again, would not be binding upon the 
constitutional convention who in my opinion can enact their own 
rules . But even the ABA is opposed to the concept of this 
constitutional convention. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Could you tell me in what 
statement, what pronouncement that appeared? 

MR. REICH: I'm sorry I don't have the text. I 
believe they are party to a group who've expressed opposition 
to the calling to a constitutional convention . Is the Chair 
suggesting I'm wrong? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: The Chair has never heard of that 
before . . 

MR. REICH : Well, I will have to supply the Chairman 
or correct my testimony in that regard. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Will you please? 
MR. REICH: Yes. With regard to spending which Mr. 

Martin alluded to in my testimony. The concern is that 
theoretically you can tighten up the procedures or change the 
procedures with regard to the ju~iciary and eliminate from a 
judicial consideration, aspects of_spending proposals under the 
guise of budgetary consideration~. That's another danger in 
ter~s of a constitutional convention running amuck in terms of 
what they can do under the guise of limited spending. 

So I would ask that with all of these problems, some 
of which we, obviously cannot answer, I would ask the Committee 
to reject the proposal and even -- I understand there may be 
some amendment to the proposal before -- but I don't really 
believe, respectfully that any language can modify the basic 
concern that a constitutional convention will have no controls 
on it and may endanger the kind of government and pillar of 
pluralism that we now have in America. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: 'Any further questions? 
response) Thank you 

MR. REICH: 
ASSEMBLYMAN 

very much Mr. 
Thank you . 

BOCCHINI: 

Reich . 

Mr. Chairman, 

(negative 

Assemb lyman 
Charles raised an issue that .I would just like to discuss for a 
moment. If the Congress we r e to receive 34 separate 
resolutions that, in effect by the Chairman ' s statement, cou ld 
be 34 separate statements, even though you ' re inferring tha t 
the intent of each of the resolutions is essentially the same, 
then there is an extremely wide-open area for debate as to what 
each state meant by cal 1 ing for the convent ion. That really 
and truly concerns me, and really and truly scares me. I don ' t 
know if there is some mechanism whereby even this Committee 
could request that our Attorney General to go in for a 
declar 1:r:t?;<:1r·y, ,<ft~.udgms::tt- ..: a-s..,;:-:to .-,,wnat ·-t·iWOlfl.d ·•:.he,·,"~-egui:r::.e.d ;•,.., Y.,c>-U-.,knov.: ., . 
the Federal courts would eventually determine the right of that 
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issue if it got to the Supreme Court. But what would be 
required by each of the states to have a uniformed thought in 
order for Congress to move? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I not sure that an opinion of the 
State Attorney General would be dispositive, but it has been an 
issue that's been examined by constitutional authorities. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I didn't say an opinion just 
from the AG, I'm referring to the possibility for declaratory 
judgment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Oh, for declaratory judgment. I 
would doubt whether the Federal courts would give a declaratory 
judgment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: But the only way to find out 
is if somebody takes the issue to the court and the court comes 
back and either says that yes that they will proceed or no that 
they don't believe the issue is yet ripe enough for them to 
handle it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I agree with you. I think 
there's some scope question-- If you had one state pass an 
amendment that dealt strictly with the balanced budget, you had 
another state that dealt with the balanced budget and a 
limitation on increased spending, and you put those two state 
delegates together in a convention, I don't know exactly how it 
would be resolved. It seems to me that you would probably go 
in the area more rather than less inclusive. But I think it 
raises some questions. 

'Ihe problem that we have now is that if New Jersey 
were to support this measure, it seems to me, the 
practicalities of going back and asking 33 or 31 other states . 
to adopt New Jersey's considered opinion as to what the exact 
languages are, is probably an impossibility. But it would 
certainly be a comfort if each state was dealing with the same 
deck of cards -- the exact same language. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I'd like to now call Lance 
Lamberton, President of New Jerseyans for a Balanced Budget. 
LANCE LAMBERTON: Mr. Chairman and members of the 
State Government Committee, I appreciate · having this 
opportunity to testify on behalf of the members of New 
Jerseyans for a Balanced Budget, an organization incorporated . 
in December of last year to mobilize grass roots support for a 
convention call in New Jersey to draft a balanced budget 
amendment to the Constitution. 

The critical need for this legislation cannot be 
overestimated . We are a nation swimming in a sea of red ink. 
In just five years, we have gone from the world ' s largest 
creditor nation to the largest debtor . In those five years, 
the national debt has grown from $1 trillion to over $2 
trillion. Financing the national debt consumes 25¢ of every 
tax dollar sent to Washington. 

If current trends continue, the debt will rise to $3 
trillion in less than four years, will consume 50% of Federal 
revenues in less that ten years, and will requ i re Federal 
expenditures approaching 40% of the Gross National Product by 
the late 1990s just to keep up with the spend i ng explosion that 
is creating this debt. 

Our mounting national debt also portends dire economic 
consequences in the very near term . The only reason interes t 
and inflation rates have remained -relatively low during this 
period when deficit spending has reached unprecedented levels 
is due to extensive foreign investment in the American economy, 
mostly by Japan. 

However, now the American dollar is hanging by a 
thread, having fallen to its lowest level against the Japanese 
yen in post-war history . Like a drunken sailor too drunk to 
know or.' c "1aar.:e:1~:,<)1WB.,;-:;.,.;a~.e .,1~· .f.ac:ing -•:•,.$'an •:,,:::'e conomic,'•.:-: rh·ang-over~ ·. _c;; ,.,. · · • - •.• ; 
unprecedented proportions if we continue to allow our Federal 
legislators to drink this nation under the table. 
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But what I'm saying here is nothing new. Common sense 
dictates that a high standard of living and economic growth 
cannot be sustained if the Federal government continues its 
deficit spending binge indefinitely. The question is not, 
"Will economic disaster result?" The question is, "When?" So 
we need to see what can be done about it. 

The broad consensus which has emerged to answer and 
remedy that $2 trillion question, is a balanced budget 
amendment to the Constitution. Congress needs to be 
constitutionally required to spend no more than it takes in. 
Nothing less will do. Yet Congress has not acted. 

Despite the best efforts of fiscally responsible 
members of Congress, spending interests have prevented 
enactment of a balanced budget amendment. We have reached a 
point where it is not enough to say that Congress should pass a 
balanced budget amendment. The sad truth is that it won't 
unless it is forced to, through the threat of a constitutional 
convention. Ten years of committed effort, combined with the 
support by the overwhelming majority of Americans, have failed 
to produce the desired result. We cannot wait any longer for 
something which wi 11 never materialize without the convent ion 
prod . 

Yet if New Jersey become the next state to call for a 
convention, we will be only one state away from a convention 
being called, The last time a convenion was that close to 
being called, Congress relented and enacted the seventeen 
Amendment which allowed for the direct election of U.S. 
Senators. The same happy result could be anticipated if New 
Jersey joined the 32 states whq have already made the call. 

However, in the unlikely event that Congress does not 
enact a balanced budget if the necessary 34 states made the 
call, what would be the chance of a convention "running away" 
and considering amendments not germane to a balanced budget 
amendment? The answe:: is, "None whatsoever," and I submit that 
the notion it could somehow run away is a pure red herring, 

27 



conjured up by spending interests in order to deflect attention 
away from the very real runaway national debt. 

First of all, if 34 states made the call, Congress 
would be faced with the Hobson ' s choice of either convening a 
convention or short-circuiting that process by enacting an 
amendment on its own. There is virtually no chance that 
Congress: would do anything but enact an amendment under those 
circµrnstances. To do otherwise would allow the possibility of 
a convention drafting an amendment which could, for example, 
prohibit members who vote for deficit spending from standing 
for reelection. It is inconceivable that Congress would put 
itself at that kind of unnecessary risk. 

Second, assuming Congress st i 11 did not act, it would 
then be required to pass legislation setting the parameters for 
how a convention will be convened, how delegates will be 
elected, and what the convention may consider. This would be 
necessary because the Constitution does not specify these 
procedures. Rocogniz ing this, the Senate Judiciary Cornrni ttee 
in 1985 unanimously approved a bill -- S-40 -- which requires 
that, "No convention may propose any amendment or amendments of 
a subject matter different from that stated in the concurrent 
resolution calling the convention. " 

Furthermore, the bill states that, " if any proposed 
amendment drafted by a convention relates to or include s 
subject matter different from or not included in the subject 
matter specified by Congress when the convention was convened , 
that Congress may not submit the amendment to the states for 
ratification." The bill also provides express opportunity for 
judicial review if Congress f~ils to limit the convention to 
the states' request. Since it would be directly contrary to 
Congress' interest and prerogatives, it would likewise be 
inc once i ¼ah-l:er--:0.f ll>z.,,"i:.:i:.t t.,:·t 0: :~leaa.c,t-,,,'·,any...t'.h ing,~--~a e.s.&4:.r.es:t.r;i;ct-i v..e ,;;, o·n., .:-? , . -. , • . , • ··, •• • • 

convention's activities than legislation S-40. In fact, 
legislation almost identical to S-40 pass the ful 1 Senate in 
both 1970 and '71. 
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The third major constraint on a so-called runaway 
convention is that the voters themselves would demand that 
elected delegates to a convention limit themselves to a 
balanced budget amendment. There is no organized group or 
legislator who advocates opening a convention to other topics. 
Even if voters in some areas favored openi1:g a convention to 
other topics or some candidates lied to get ~lected, what would 
the . chance be that a majority of the delegates would favor . , 

opening a convention to another issue when the overwhelming 
majority of voters do not? 

In this regard, S-40 has a provision that delegates 
would be required to take an oath swearing to limit the 
convention to the topic for which it was called. I, for one, 
would not want to face the voters after breaking that oath, and 
I can't imagine very many others delegates would want to either. 

Moreover, it is important to realize in this context 
that Congress itself is an open convention, a body of 
individuals elected from the people at large, that is free, at 
any given time to propose any amendment on any subject it so 
chooses. A convent ion, on the other hand, would be strictly 
limited by Congress and the 34 state legislatures making a 
convention cal 1, to the topic for which it was cal led in the 
first place. 

Are we Americans so cynical and distrustful of the 
very democracy which has made this .nation great to assume that 
only members of Congress are wise and prudent enough to enact 
amendments in the public interest? On the contrary, members of 
Congress are drawn from the same pool of Americans that 
delegates to a convention would be, and to assume they would 
recklessly endanger our constitutional freedoms any more than 
Congress would, is a slap in the face to all of us as Americans 
who cherish our liberty. 

Finally, 38 states must ratify anything that comes out 
of a convention. If we look at the fate of the ERA, we are 
reminded of what a difficult task that is. It is absurd to 
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think, as convention opponents have maintained, that other, far 
more divisive and less popular issues could likewise pass this 
final test. 

Before I conclude my testimony, I'd like to respond to 
some of the emotionally laden charges tha-t a convention would 
somehow lay waste to the remarkable docum~nt which our founding 
fathers authored. Let us not forget that :the same genius which 
inspired our forefathers to write the Constitution, also 
inspired them to include Article V which permits it to be 
amended through a convention. If we revere the Constitution 
and the freedom and opportunity it provides us, then let us ,- try 
to understand their reasoning for allowing this method of 
amending the Constitution. 

Our forefathers recognized there would be times when 
Congress would not act in the best interest of the nation if it 
threatened their prerogatives. This was true when the threat 
of a convention forced them to yield to the people and allow 
for the direct election of Senators . It is even more true 
today when Congress is willing to let the nation face economi c 
calamity rather than religuish their ability to secure 
reelection through unbridled defici t spending. 

While I have painted a gloomy picture of the economic 
disaster which wi 11 come to pass if Congress is not pressured 
to act on a balanced budget amendment, we can likewis e 
anticipate a very positive scenario if Congress is pressured t o 
act. With enactment of a balanced budget amendment, renewed 
confidence overseas in America as a place to invest will 
occur. In so doing, we can prevent the economic hemorrhage 
that will otherwise result, a~d continue our onward and upward 
progress as a country of unsurpassed economic freedom and 
opportunity . 

. I ndeed:'1 ;,~ ew:-'i"ea'. ·:s r:..':best-'•~d~ ~,,: ~a r:e~::~.he£.:.o.r-<e -:. ., ·u s;,,tif,,., ·we~, ~-ac-: ,,., , ·,. 
' " ~• ·t 1· • I,~. 

courageously to end this unconscionable transfer of debt from 
one generation to the next, whereas the converse is true if we 
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do not. This 
resolution, which 
of beginning a 

Committee has before its consideration a 
if acted upon favorably, holds the potential 
chain of events which will restore fiscal 

responsibility once and for all. 
In a recent symposium on the Constitution, former New 

Jersey Governor Hughes pointed out t~at New Jersey holds a 
hallowed place in our nation's historr where Americans fought 
during the Revolutionary War to "hand down a country to us." 
By the same token, you as members of this Committee, have a 
golden opportunity to help in handing down a country better 
than what existed before. I beseech you to seize that 
opportunity, and continue a tradition of which we as New 
Jerseyans have a right to be proud. Thank you very much for 
giving me this opportunity. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. Any questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Mr . Lamberton, I noticed the 

emphasis of the thrust of your statement from its inception is 
a balanced budget. Now, if we could achieve the balanced 
budget amendment without the convention, I'm sure you wouldn't 
be opposed to that. 

MR . LAMBERTON: Absolutely not. I don't necessary 
f aver a convention cal 1 over it being amended through 
Congress. I think both are very valid and viable ways to amend 
the Constitution when it becomes necessary such as I believe it 
is necessary today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Do you have any confidence at all 
with Gramm-Rudman? 

MR. LAMBERTON: Well, consider that a clean water act 
of about $18 billion was enac~ed under Gramm-Rudman restraints, 
consider that highway bill, which is going to cost about $88 
billion, both which go beyond the Gramm-Rudman-Hollings deficit 
act have been passed, I see no confidence in-- And I think 

1 

that perhaps Senators Gramm and Rudman would agree with me that 
that legislation has not worked. 
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Also I might add that former Senator Harry Byrd had a 
balanced budget law enacted in 1978 which was suppose to go 
into place in 1981. You can see the result of that. Cl~arly, 
only a constitutional amendment will restrict Congress from 
spending more that it takes in. 

There are perverse incentives in our system which 
reward Congressmen for . spending and ~enalizes them for taxing, 
so therefore, you have a widening deficit occurring. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN : Dealing with a practical world, 
how do you see Congress, which can ' t under Gramm-Rudman which 
does allow deficit spending-- How are they ever going ·to draft 
a budget, when you have a balanced budget amendment where they 
are going to be forced to make even tougher choices than under 
Gramm-Rudman? I mean I know there is a big black letter law 
that says that you wi 11 not be able to pass that budget, but 
I'm just trying to see our Congress in action trying to 
actually come up with a budget that they have to pass. 

MR. LAMBERTON: Actually, the reason why it would 
work, is because the balanced budget amendment would give 
Congressmen an easy out, because when constituents and spending 
interests come to them and say, "Please , we want more money for 
this project," or, "preserve money for this project," they can 
say, "Okay, if I'm going to do that, I ' m going to have to cut 
from somebody else. 
That's the beauty of 

Now, 
this 

who do yo u suggest 
thing . It does 

I do that to? " 
give members of 

Congress the opportunity-- And the force of the Constitution 
itself, which seems to have been pretty successful in every 
other area, like defending our First Amendment rights , etc.--
And it also would be upheld ~y the Supreme Court itself . It 
would have the authority of the Constitution, and the Supreme 
Court would be the balance that would make Congress do what the 
Const i tutiion:-... "-re..g:ui'lres- ~i ":r : , '.- . ,, ... 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : Bob, are you implying that 
members of Congress are less wi 11 ing or able to abide by the 
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Federal Constitution that the State legislators are to abide by 
the State Constitution? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I'm just trying to see how this 
would work out. 
budget month 

In recent years Congress has put off passing a 
by month because they can't operate now by -

Gramm-Rudman which allows some measure of overspending, if you 
will. I'm just wondering what would happen? I'm not so sure . 
it's going to be as easy as Mr. Lamberton would suggest. I 
think the choices and the pressures made would at least be 
equally as difficult, because what's going to happen is that 
groups are going to try to make a more compelling argument that 
we should continue spending in a given area. 

I mean, I wouldn't want to have to make a difficult 
choice in the area of cutting between transportation, clean 
water, and-- Let's say they are the two choices--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Wel 1, Bob, we do, and we do it 
every June in the Assembly. It isn't easy, as you know. It's 
very difficult, and it's my personal conviction that if New 
Jersey didn't have a balanced budget requirement in our State 
Constitution, we'd run deficits all the time too. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Mr. Chairman? You've heard a 
lot of people talk about the fear 
convention 
Constitution, 

just runaway covering 
subjecting them to a 

elimination. You just don't even think 
-- that it cannot happen at all? 

they have of an open 
of other areas of the 

change, attack, and 
that that's conceivable 

MR. LAMBERTON: Well, from the basis of the testimony 
that I made here, for one thing I don't think it would ever get 
to a convention point if 34 states made the call. I think . 
logic dictates that that would be the case. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: What logic? I've tried to 
follow you and I tried to follow this logic that you're talking 
about. You said that Congress hasn't done anything; Congress 
would act to save itself. That's basically the keystone of 
your logic, right? 
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MR. LAMBERTON: Can I put yourself in the position of 
a Congressman? How would you act and how would you feel? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: No, I'm asking you. What do you 
think will happen at that convention, whether it's probable or 
it's definite that the convention itself will be limited to 
just the balanced_budget thing? What assures you that that's 
going to happen? 

MR. LAMBERTON: Because legislation would be passed 
in Congress and it's required that it would have to be passed 
to provide enabling legislation to determine how the convention 
would be convened and what it may consider. That would be the 
guarantee that people seem not to be understanding. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Well, we've already had 
constitutional people say that they don't even know whether or 
not this legislation is operative; whether it would control 
that convent ion. How do you deal with that? You say that 
legislation is going to control this convention from being a 
runaway one. I've heard con st i tut ional people after thinking 
about this dispute say that they don't know whether Congress 
has the power under the Constitution to limit it, to control it 
at all. If that's true, what else do we have to assure us and 
what assures you that there won't be a runaway convention? Are 
you just confident irrespective of the ethicasy (sic) and the 
effectiveness of that S-40? You say whether we have a S-40 or 
not, you're still certain that the delegates would limit 
themselves to just that--? 

MR. LAMBERTON: Well definitely if we had S-40, that 
would limit the convention by an act of Congress to the purpose 
for which it was called. S-40 also provides for judicial 
review. Congress would be' prohibited under S-4 o from 
submitting anything drafted from a convention to the 38 states 
for r a ti£ii,ca:ti.'Cr.'l;;~··,~ . .I :,.:,,dc:;m.;_::-.t.:.1/ know~":~-h.o~'t. 1U.uch ,,..c:-,mor·e ;.;. tof: ·,a:. ,.gua'r-.antee, '; :· . ,,, ._. 
you want than that? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: I haven't heard anybody say that 
S-40 would be considered constitutional and binding. Has 
anybody said that? 

MR. LAMBERTON: Okay, I'd like to point you how it 
would be--

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: I'm asking the Chairman. If 
somebody answez;s that question, maybe I can abandon this line 
-- if somebody would just answer my question .. , Has anybody said 
that S-40 we know would limit and would be effective at 
controlling the scope of this convention? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes: 
ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Somebody said that would? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes. 
MR. LAMBERTON: I'd like to address that. Under 

Section 18 of Article I of the Constitution which expressly 
empowers Congress "to make all laws which shall be necessary 
and proper to carry into execution the foregoing powers, 
' foregoing powers meaning the Articles before that,' and all 
other powers vested by this Constitution in the government of 
the United States, or in any department or officer thereof." 

Now, if we would be a r the Constitution, if we respect 
it, then we have to believe in its force. What S-40 would be 
doing would be protected by constitutional 
legal scholar . There are other people who 
more succinctly on this. But I submit 
explanation. 

law. I'm not a 
could maybe talk 

that that is the 

ASSEMBLYMAN 
ASSEMBLYMAN 

BOCCHINI: 
CHARLES: 

Mr. Chairman, may I--
I'm not finished yet. Suppose 

we don't have a S-40; suppose there ' s no S-40 enacted. Suppose 
there ' s nothing in the law that is known as S-40, then what is 
the scope? 

MR. LAMBERTON: You cannot convene a convention 
without enabling legislation which sets the parameters. Since 
no constituency wants an open convention, it is logical to 
assume--
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Wait a minute. 
say no constituency wants an open convention. 
statement, isn't that so? 

Hold it. You 
That's your 

MR. LAMBERTON: If you can name one for me, I'd love 
to learn about it, because there is none. The witness who was 
here before claimed that there are but he was not able to giv~ 
any names of them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES : But what you ' re saying is that 
nobody has declared publicly that they want an open convention 
and that satisfies you that there won't be an effort to open 
the convention. That's basically your position. Is that it? 

MR. LAMBERTON : I'm not saying that there won't be 
any effort, but if any effort is made, it will be a totally 
futile effort that will be unsuccessful, because laws would 
specify that anything that goes beyond the cal 1 of the 34 
states, would not be able to be ratified by the 38. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Let me ask you this question 
then. Suppose contrary to what your honest belief is, which is 
that the convention wil l be closed and be narrowed to just that 
one issue, suppose if by some accident or by some other 
intervention it becomes broader, and suppose that in this 
broadened convent ion other parts of the Constitution becomes 
subjected to the tag of aberration and elimination. Would you 
think then that that risk of undermining and rewriting the 
Constitution is worth going ahead with trying to move a 
convention on this narrow budget balancing? 

MR. LAMBERTON: It's hard for me to answer a bunch of 
suppositions that I don ' t believe could ever occur. So I 
really can't answer that ques~ion . I don't suppose that we do 
have a runaway national debt. We' re not even talking about a 
minor threat., an outside possibi 1 i ty, or a one in a thousand 
chance . ft''''s ·1ttrere\ .""·}i 't•i · ·:s ·,,;1•t -v~:i.:n ~ -; · -~'i"'t' '-s. "0r e"a ·1 , ··.i :t •1-s ,~n o·.,, ·· : 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES : Do you suppose or agree that 
there are elements within this country presently who would like 
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to rewrite the Constitution as it empowers and gives basic 
freedoms to people now? Do you deny that there is an element 
~n the country that would do something with First Amendment 
rights, that will do something with Fourth Amendment rights, 
and will do things with other kinds of freedom that we've had 
for 200 years? Do you deny the existence of such elements in 
this society? 

MR. LAMBERTON: I don't deny the e~istence that there 
might be such a thing, but I will deny the fact that I would 
find it hard to believe that these elements, wherever they 
might be, would succeed in getting their idea through 38 state 
legislatures for ratification. I mean that's just not going to 
happen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Joe? 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: No, never mind. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Any further questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: No, I have none. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You made it obvious that you feel 

that Congress will never go this route by themselves and go 
under the traditional way of proposing an amendment. Do you 
see any other way short of this national convention of putting 
leverage on Congress to control spending? 

MR. LAMBERTON: Well, let me just address a little of 
my experience. Since 1979, I have been off and on working 
full-time on this issue. I am a former policy analyst in the 
White House and I worked vigorously with and on Congress to try 
to do everything possible to convince Congress to act in both 
houses. The Senate passed it back in 1982. It f el 1 4 7 votes 
short in the House of Representatives in 1982 and it could only 
come to a vote as a result of a discharge petition. The 
problem we have, Assemblyman, is that the current House 
leadership is obstinate and will not allow a palanced· budget 
amendment to come to a vote for reasons that I've stated in my 
testimony. Unless we have the prod of a convention, even just 
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one more state, then I think logic dictates that we would in 
fact have Congress act. That would put Congress over the top. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Let me see. Help me understand 
the budgetary process in the Federal government . . The President 
proposes--

MR. LAMBERTON: I don't know if you're talking to the 
right person about that, Assemblyman, but I'll do my best. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Well you're talking about a 
balanced budget. So, I guess you know a little bit more about 
it than some of us. I confess I don't know too much about the 
process. . You said that you worked down there and that you've 
been involved since 1979. So, you know a little bit more than 
the rest of us, probably. Now, the President puts forth the 
budget and then what -- Congress takes it and works it over? 
(laughter) Is that what you're saying? 

MR. LAMBERTON: There are 13 appropriation bills that 
have to be passed. According to the budgetary laws, they have 
to be passed before the next fiscal year begins, and of course, 
that never happens. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Has the President put forth a 
balanced budget? Has any President in the last 15 - 20 years 
or so, put forth balanced budgets? 

MR. LAMBERTON: President Reagan has lobbied hard for 
a balanced budget amendment . 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Has he put forth a balanced 
budget? 

MR. LAMBERTON: He has put forth budgets 
reduce the deficit. (laughter) 

which would 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: The answer to my question is no, . 
then. Let's talk about the last six years. In the last six 
years no President has put forth a balanced budget. Is that 
correc t- · · 

MR. LAMBERTON: Yes that's right. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: And no Congress has passed the 
balanced budget. And these are the people that we elect as 
President, Senators, and Congress people, right? Are you 
suggesting by the horribles that you project about the deficit 
that we're in, that all of these people _~- our President, our 
Senators, our Congress people, and all of these who are 
responsible for the budget just are somehow forgetting about 
all ' the rest of us who they were elected to govern, and that 
they are doing these things and the rest of us know better than 
them what should happen in regard to the budget? Is that what 
you're saying? Oh no, let me put it this way. Are you saying 
that they are so interested in their own reelection and all of 
these things that they are subordinating the interest of the 
people and therefore have not put forth this balanced budget? 

MR. LAMBERTON: Obviously the majority of Congress is 
in favor of a balanced budget amendment. It is the majority in 
both houses -- a necessary two-thirds in the Senate but not in 
the House. The problem is that you have parochial interests 
who are pushing for spending. 

Let me give you an analogy. I'm stealing this from 
Jim Davidson. I hate to steal this but if you had 535 people 
and you cal led them members of Congress and _ you give them an 
open credit card where they can spend as much as they want and 
there is no limit on it, then what is to prevent -- or what is 
the interest of the each individual 535 people putting a limit 
on their spending? Because if they put a limit on their 
spending for their district, then you realize that somebody 
else is going to get more for their district. 

So the obvious perve~se incentive is to spend as much 
as you can and for get about tomorrow. That's exactly what's 
happening, Mr. Assemblyman. 

ASSEMBLYMA...~ CHARLES: Unfortunately, I can't agree 
with you. I can't agree that al 1 the people who represent us 
in Washington in the national government put their own 
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district, put their own reelection, and put all of those 
perverse incentives that you are talking about ahead of the 
future good and well-being of the country. Because that seems 
to be the heart of what you' re saying. If that's what you' re 
saying, I think that I have a great deal of difficulty agreeing 
with you. That's the predicate of all that you' re saying --
that these people don't have the will, don't have the 
conviction, just don't have the interest of preserving this 
country economically and rather they protect their own 
interest. For that reason, they can't do what you consider to 
be t~e right thing. I can't agree with that thesis. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: It's a little more complicated 
than that. I think much of that probably is what he is 
saying. It goes back to what I was saying about how Congress 
would operate the budget, I think, even with a balanced 
budget. New Jersey, even though we have different interests, 
is not that far different. It's relatively a smal 1 area, but 
when you have a country as broad as the United States, you have 
these 435 Congressional seats, somebody from Maine may truly 
vote what he or she thinks is best for their district and it's 
not the same as somebody from California . I think that's part 
of the built-in problem . Their choices of spending are 
different. So the only way that they both are going to get 
their objectives is to allow both of them to spend. This is 
part of the problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Nobody says it's going to be 
easy, Bob. Nobody said that their job is easy and that they 
don't have a self-interest to look at too, but I think that if 
you are considering them in ,the context of a constitutional 
amendment, that takes out the specific interest of this 
particular appropriations bill and so on. Like we ' re talking 
about , n~Y'-'aT"e·',s;you-:""SifYn-Ig ~'ttra't ~eve.n-:'.'.ln.''tt h a t. ~e:ont-ex .<' tnese r·:g try .· · 
are unable to do what is the right thing? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: In fairness to Mr. Lamberton, I 
think he's got history on his side, Joe, to support his 
argument. If you look since World War II or even prior to 
that, I mean in point of fact, we've continued to increase 
deficit spending. Everybody agrees that we're reaching a level 
where it's a crisis if not a potentially absolute catastrophe. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Even on that question, Bob, I'm 
wondering whether how much of an agreement there is about 
deficit spending or whatever? I mean, how near are we to 
reaching this precipice over which all of us will sink into the 
sea? I mean, I'm not an economist, but I think there are 
different views on how far you can go into deficit, effectively. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: When you talk about a balanced 
budget do you envision the President is going to ask you for 
the billion line-item veto? I can see that being a part of 
that issue which I'm not necessarily opposed to myself. But at 
the same time--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I think we're getting out of 
focus here. Joe, you' re suggesting that in fact because al 1 
the elected Senators and Congressmen and Presidents who have 
generated these enormous deficits over the years, and because 
you 're not going to conclude that they've been doing it in 
their own self-interest, that they are in fact embodying the 
national interest and that the public wants $200 million 
deficits year after year? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: I think that they are 
representing the public's interest. I think as they see · the 
public's interest, they are representing it. That's my 
belief. I'm not so cynical as to believe that they are all . 
down there serving their own purposes. Is that what you 
believe, that they're down there serving their purposes? 

ASSEMBLYM..n.N ZIMMER: I believe that any elected 
official has to serve the public's interest, but is also 
interested in coming back to serve the next term. The fact is, 
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as Professor Buchanon, winner of the most recent Nobel Prize in 
Economics pointed out, that there is a divergence and a growing 
divergence between the personal political interest of a 
Congressman who wants to get reelected and the public interest 
which is expressed in every poll that I've seen by an 
overwhelming majority in favor of a balanced budget. 

This is not a system that has been endemically unable 
to · 1balance the budget in the first 150 years of the 
Constitution. It's only with the growth of the special 
interest groups and the change in the method of Congressional 

.- election campaigns that we've had this problem, in my opinion. 
I do agree with Professor Buchanon that what you proposed and 
what you disagreed with is, in fact, the case. Because of a 
flaw in the system, individual Congressmen are subverting and 
subordinating the public interest to their own political 
involvement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Are all economists agreed that 
the deficit spending, that balanced budgets, and the way to run 
the national government-- Is there 100% unanimity on that 
among economists -- that we should have a balanced budget in 
operation with the Federal government? 

MR. LAMBERTON: The Keynesian theory is that it's 
okay to run deficits during bad time--

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Can you just answer that as yes 
or no? Are all economists agreed that we should have balanced 
budgets? 

MR. LAMBERTON: There is a small minority that 
doesn't think so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: I have no further questions . . 
MR. LAMBERTON: I don't think there's one economist 

that thinks that $200 billion a year, year after year that's 
heading. ·tow.ar.dsi!$~..-1at1.d1:·t 1~~-tr:.il:lion.:.:J:;s~Aa::. qoo:d'· ide.?.·····'·· ·~ . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: 'Any further questions? 
very much. 

MR. LAMBERTON: Thank you. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I think the only person who would 
an endorsement of continuing substantially disagree with 

deficits might be Jack Kemp. 
campaign, if you'd like. 

I'll sign you on for his 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: No, I'm already on. (laughter) 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I'd like to call the State 

Representative, David Halbrook ~rom Mississippi. 
REPRESENTATIVE DAV ID HALBROOK: 
Thank you Mr. Chairman. I am flattered to be invited here to 
testify. I want to start out-- I have a sketch of some 
remarks that I wanted to make, but I'm going · to skip them 
initially here at the beginning to attempt to address a couple 
of issues that have arisen. 

There has been a good bit of discussion about the 
guarantees of what a convention will do. I can guarantee you 
what the convention cannot do. The convention cannot amend the 
Constitution. There are two ways that amendments can be 
proposed to the Constitution. One is the Congressional method 
and this is the one that has usually been used or always been 
used . But Congress does not amend the Constitution. 

The othe r method is the constitutional convention. 
But the convention cannot amend the Constitution and I 
guarantee that to you . The only way that the Constitution can 
be amended is by ratification of a proposed amendment, and that 
ratification by three-forths of the States. 

It was interesting to me to get handed on the way in, 
an article here I do not know who ' s putting it out or 
anything else -- "Plotting to Rewrite the U.S. Constitution" by 
Phyllis Schafly. Considering the fate of the ERA amendment, I . 
would think that the lady would know that there is only 
that the Constitution can be amended, and that 
ratification by three-forths of the States. 

one way 
is by 

Let me go back to my prepared remarks a 1 i ttle bit 
now. There were two or three things-- You know it doesn ' t 
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make any difference where you go or what the activity is, there 
are three things that people always want to know. One of them 
is who you are, where you're from, and what you do. Well, I am 
David Halbrook. I am from the heart of the Yazoo Mississippi 
Delta and the metropolis of M~ssissippi, the garden spot of the 
South, the pride of the nati_on, and the culture center of the 
world, the shining light of tpe universe, and the golden buckle 
on the cotton belt. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: We missed a town here. (laughter) 
REPRESENTATIVE HALBROOK: It Is just north of midnight 

and just beats the daybreak. It spells home. - You've heard of 
it many times before, I know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Our Bob is well-traveled. 
REPRESENTATIVE HALBROOK: What do I do? I am a 

farmer. I raise cotton, corn, soybeans, rice, and catfish. I 
am in the real estate business. My real estate business is 
somewhat different from what most people think of as real 
estate. I do not sell on commission . I am a commercial 
property developer and I buy and sell for my own account. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: You make real money then. 
(laughter) 

REPRESENTATIVE HALBROOK: The people have been good to 
me. Just incidentally, I serve in the Legislature. I have 
been in the Mississipp i Legislature for 20 years now. The 
people have been very kind to me and I greatly appreciate it. 

In that 20 years, I guess I could be classif i ed as a 
conservative, because I still live in the same house that I 
$tarted in, I still sleep in the same bedroom that I started in 
and, and I still sleep with t~e same wife that I started with. 
{laughter) I think I have set some sort of record in that in 
the five terms that I have been elected, I have served four 
different ~::, •di's."t:r.,,i-et,~. 7 :- ~· ",i-'They,~-·~-na:-... ~ ·"::a::e'di 'Str~i.·-c:ted \,r"mF ': '\,~ , ·,~'.,eve-r:; ,., '. ·< ·.'.<" ·-.:: 

opportunity it seems, but so far I've fooled them . 
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On the question of a constitutional amendment, we ,have 
become, as quite often happens, bogged down in some details and 
items that are thrown in the way of looking at the principles 
involved. I want to ask you two or three questions now. Can 
you name me any country in recorded history which has become 
great because of the amount of money it owes? Can you name me 
a single one? Can you name me any country, not just in 
recorded history but today, which is in trouble because of the 
amount of money it owes? I think that everyone, not only 
seated at this table but in this room, could name several. 

There is one thing that is necessary for economic 
success. That one thing or that one item is production. 
Regardless of how you approach it, government is essentially a 
non-productive enterprise. Now, I've been in the Legislature 
for 20 years and a lot of times people ask me what I do. I 
quite often am tempted to tell them that I am a manufacturer, 
and roy principal product is waste paper. (laughter) This is 
the product of government. Now government is necessary. I'm 
not saying no government. But it has to be a reasonable 
government . It cannot dominate every aspect of 1 ife, unless 
you believe in communism. 

One problem that has bothered me for a number of years 
is the principal source of income in Mississippi. This has 
begun to bother me even more lately because I find that the 
same source is the principal income in other states. The 
principal source of income in a number of states now is 
transfer payments. What are transfer payments? Those are 
payments where 
another account 

There 

money is taken from one account and taken to 
without any goop or service being exchanged. 
are a number of farms and types of transfer 

payme::ts. 
get back 

The reason that I bring this up is because I want to 
to a principle; the principle that I'ye just 

reite:ated: Production 1s necessary. If you do not have 
produ.:t ion, then your economy will fail. Transfer payments 
qu i te often inhib i t or are the antithesis of production . 
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We have been down this road attempting to get a 
balanced budget for some time now. You know, I am reminded in 
this discussion this morning -- the debate that is going on 
of a conversation I had with a man about four years ago. This 
was in my last election. I was running in a new district again 
:- about a complete and total stranger. I told him, I said, 
~•one real problem you have in government, is that no one ever 
:brings you a bad cause." And this is true. If any of you have 
been- in government for any period of time, or know anything 
about it, then you know this is true. They all bring you good 
causes. Al 1 causes which are brought to government are good 
causes. 

I have to compare all forms of government, other than 
the Federal government, at least though, to my own financial 
process. I would like to support all good causes. I cannot do 
it. I would like to support the Boy Scouts, the Girl Scouts, 
the Brownie Scouts, the Cub Scouts, the Sea Scouts; the United 
Way, the Salvation Army, the Red Cross, the St. Thomas 
Episcopal Church, the First Baptist Church, the Presbyterian 
Church. I would like to support all of those, but I cannot do 
it. I do the best I can. 

The same thing is true of state government, at least. 
State government cannot support, unfortunately, all good 
causes, and no one ever brings a bad cause. You do have to set 
priorities. The setting of priorities does not mean that you 
are against any particular cause; it just means that there is 
some other cause which you th i nk deserves more attention . 

The reason this comes to mind, is because of the man I 
met. I didn't know him; he introduced himself. He said, "The 
remarks you made reminded me yery much of my position in my 
church. " "How's that?" " I am Treasurer of my church . We have 
just gone through the budget process at our church, and we 
found tha~. :i.n."!'.f.o.ut ::-~ctn.tt.th•'1J,we i ._J::?Ou.il.:d"-:::n:ot ;t·isupport/·;a I ·E. ·of ·•">:.trre· ·.• gcro C:. ··•. · · ;:,. -
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causes we would 1 ike to support. There were some i terns and 
some things which we had been supporting and contributing to in • 
the past, that we had to either decrease or eliminate." This 
is true also, unfortunately, in government. 

Now, the Federal government has been operating in a 
somewhat different fashion. I gave you one guarantee a little 
earlier. I am going to give you another guarantee. I 
guarantee that if the Federal government continues to operate 
in the fashion in which it is currently operating, some of you 
younger people here will pay for it. All of your children, and 
your grandchildren, and their children will pay for it -- all 
of them . Now, do you want your children, your grandchildren --
and, you younger people -- do you want to pay for what I am 
going to enjoy? I hope not. Quite frankly, I would rather pay 
my own way . 

Money , as such, is not worth anything. You can't wear 
it ; you can't eat it; and money, unless you have a bundle of 
billion dollars -- a billion dollars in bills -- won ' t keep you 
warm in the wintertime. If you had enough to burn, it might. 
There is no use saying "This won ' t happen here; this type of 
thing won't happen here. " You can look at many cases where--
We have had a lot of jingoism here this morning, you know, 
adjectives which really paint a picture for you. We have had a 
lot of jingoism here this morning. We've had runaway 
conventions. Well, I think the possibilities of runaway 
inflation are a whole lot better. 

I can give you several examples of runaway inflation 
that have led to absolute disaster: Germany -- immediately 
after the First World War . Right now, in Brazil, right now, in 
Mexico . There is no use saying, "It won't happen here. " When . 
I was young, my mother and father took me and my brothers to 
Mexico . In Mexico, I was quite fascinated, quite entranced by 
the centavo -- a great big thing, about that big, about as big 
as a 50-cent piece. If there is anyone here from south of the 
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Mason-Dixon line, about as big as a four-bit piece. I took my 
children back to Mexico when my oldest daughter was a senior in 
high school. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Mr. Representative, I've just got 
to tel 1 you: New Jersey, from Ocean County down -- about the 
lower third of it -- is south-of the Mason-Dixon line. So, we 
are open to all different poin~s of view. 

REPRESENTATIVE HALBROOK: That's great. The lower 
third of New Jersey has just gone up in my esteem. (laughter) 

I took my children to Mexico, and one thing I really 
wanted to show them because it had impressed itself so much on 
me, was the centavo -- this great big penny -- ,- this penny that 
was as big or bigger than a 50-cent piece. We got down there, 
and I looked and looked and looked, and I couldn't find one 
anywhere. So, finally I asked someone, a native down there, 
"What happened to the centavo? I wanted to show my children a 
centavo." He said, "Oh, they' re al 1 gone." "But, what 
happened to them?" He said, "People took them and made buttons 
out of them. They weren't good for anything anyway." 

Now, that is what happened to the money. If there is 
anyone in this room who thinks that can't happen here, then I 
would like to point you to the policy of the Federal 
government, the inflation we have had. As an absolute proof of 
it, since this is April 13 and income taxes are due on April 
15--

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Damn, I knew I had something to 
do. 

REPRESENTATIVE HALBROOK: The IRS-- If you will look 
on the form furnished by the IRS, you no longer have to enter 
cents. You don't have to enter pennies, nickels, dimes, or 
quarters, because they aren't worth anything anyway. 

We must get some fiscal restraint on the part of the 
Feder a 1 . g.ove.r:nmen~ .... -J ··we1i:.ha~-*-t1:,i'erl!rcf:or.-1"'yeai::s:-, ... --and "·t-be1:t=';.,·' i:s.- :-n~'··· ... '- .. :· · · 
other way to do it other than a constitutional amendment. We 
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had· the Congressional Budgetary Reform Act. Birch Bayh assured 
us that it has worked. It has served no purpose. You ask 
about Gramm-Rudman-Hollings. That was done with very thin 
smoke, and very warped mirrors. I see absolutely no hope in 
Congress and/or the Executive in doing it. Right now, because 
of the process we have, one gives butter, and the other gets 
guns. 

And, that's it. I appreciate very much your being 
here my being here -- someone calling ,this meeting. If 
anyone has any questions, I would be more than glad to attempt 
to answer them. I think the things I have told you are 
absolute truths, absolute principles, and can be proven by a 
look at either ancient or recent history. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. Questions, Marion, 

Bob, Joe? (negative response) Thank you very much. 
REPRESENTATIVE HALBROOK: No questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Representative, you pretty well 

covered it. Thank you very much. It was a very enjoyable 
presentation. 

REPRESENTATIVE HALBROOK: I would like it if I could 
get a result of the hearings. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: All right. Thank you. We wi 11 
send you a copy of the transcript. 

Senator Byrd has arrived, so 
Honorable Harry F. Byrd, Jr. 
S E N A T O R H A R R Y F. 

I would like to call the 

B Y R D, J R.: Good 
morning. Thank you, ladies and gentlemen of the Committee. I 
appreciate being permitted to say a few words at this hearing 
today. Being in the State Leg,islature causes me to say that, 
while I roamed the United States Senate as an institution 
where I spent 18 years-- I enjoyed much more my 18 years of 
service in the Virginia Legislature. 
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When I went to the United States Senate in 1965, I was 
very reluctant, and indeed refused, to join with those who, at 
that time, were pressing for a constitutional amendment to 
mandate a balanced Federal budget. Having come from the 
Legislature, and having realized that virtually all of the 
states had a mandatory requirement, I had hoped that we would 
not need to go that far with the Federal government, realizing 
that the Federal government has what states do not have, a 
matter of foreign policy to deal with, and the matter of 
national defense to deal with. 

So, I had hoped that this matter could be handled by 
the Congress itself, and that the Congress itself would be 
willing to handle the question of balancing outgoing and 
income. But, we could not get the votes to do that in the 
Congress until 1978. In the summer of 1978, I got through the 
Senate, legislation which would mandate a balanced budget by 
statute. It passed the Senate; it passed the House of 
Representatives. It was signed by President Carter in October, 
1978. Now, this was only 17 words. The statute was : 
"Beginning with Fiscal Year 1981, total outlays of the Federal 
government shall not exceed total income. " 

Now, that amendment had a great deal of acclaim, until 
the time came to implement it . (laughter) When the budget was 
being drawn and the votes were being taken -- beginning early 
in 1980 then, at that point, the Congress and the 
Administration, too, for that matter decided it wasn't 
necessary to comply with the statute. That statute is still on 
the books. It is the forerunner of Gramm-Rudman. Gramm-Rudman 
was only enacted last year, and there is every indication that, 
as a practical matter, it will be scuttled this year, in 
essence -- in effect. 

Now, if we agree there is a major problem -- over the 
country e~y,one .. ·:.it'ioesrr-'.1t !~ ~-ag~~· ""-'rl·t 'h'.•:,.:ttl'a"t:~-;I ·,: •: T 1. ' •h'.appen--•·-co.r'i:t ·e1:; _ '· 

that there is a very serious problem facing our nation, when we 
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consider that we have had only one balanced budget in almost 20 
years; we have only had three balanced budgets in almost 40 
years; when we consider that in the last five years -- just the 
last five years -- the magnitude of our deficits has been such 
that our national debt has doubled from $1 trillion to $2 
trillion in that short period of time; when we consider also 

· that in the current budget_, the interest cost on the national 
debt in the current budget -- is greater than was the total 
cost· of government only 22 years ago. 

So, it seems to me that it is essential that something 
be done to bring our Federal finances into better shape. 
Having seen the Congress go the statutory route twice with my 
proposal in 1978, and with the Gramm-Rudman proposal last year, 
we know that they refused to obey the earlier law, and they are 
getting prepared to scuttle last year's law. So, frankly, I 
don't know what other course we can take, other than to mandate 
the Federal government to live within its means by a 
constitutional amendment. 

As I said at the outset, I much prefer that we not 
have to go the constitutional route, but I don't know of any 
other course that can logically be taken, other than to have a 
constitutional amendment mandating a balanced budget. 

I wanted to come here today to express my deep concern 
to this Cornrni ttee and to the New Jersey Legislature, because 
what we have been doing, particularly my generation-- We have 
been mortgaging the future of the young people of this 
country. 
operating 
deficits 

We have been mortgaging their future; 
on a totally unsound basis, with 

we have been 
$200 billion 

five years in a row; a trillion dollars in five 
years . Having been a politicipn all of my life, having served 
in elective off ice for two-thirds of my adult life-- I am a 
politician, and I know, from my service in the Congresss, that 
I can guarantee this: Most politicians ,will say -- as many of 
my col leagues have said to me over the years -- "Don't worry 
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about the deficit. All we have to do is ask for the debt . " 
Now, it just seems to me that sooner or later, the debt's got 
to stop. Admittedly, the Federal government can go much longer 
on the deficit route than an individual family can -- obviously 

or a company can, but even a great country such as we have, 
cannot, in the long run, totally disregard the need to _- have a 
sound financial structure. In the long run, I don ' t think we 
can have a strong national defense unless we have a strong 
econpmy and a sound financial structure. 

So, I am appealing to each of you this morning -- this 
afternoon it is now to give careful consideration to 
supporting this call for a convention to bring about a balanced 
budget proposal. Today, incidentally as the previous 
witness mentioned -- is April 13. This is Thomas Jefferson ' s 
birthday. Being a Virginian, I am somewhat partial to Thomas 
Jefferson, and I am partial to almost everything he said, being 
a Jeffersonian, but what particularly comes to mind today is a 
statement he made: "Put not your faith in man, but bind him 
down from mischief by the chains of the Constitution." This 
Constitution, of course, provides two ways by which the 
Constitution can be amended. The historic way, and the 
probable way, is for the Congress to initiate an amendment and 
submit it to the states. The other way-- Those who drafted 
the Constitutions James Madison, another Virginian was 
foremost in that drafting process -- provided another way ; that 
is, if the Congress refuses to act, then the states, acting 
through their own legislatures, can petition the Congress for a 
convention to bring about whatever desired constitutional 
change the states might conclude would be needed. 

I don't want to take ~ny more of your time . I sat on 
that side of the table for 36 years, and I know how boring 
these hearings can be, particularly on a subject where there is 
no po 1 i ti:ea l ~ i,seX! /,~ppe:a'l · .'?\ ,;,;i<&.r;1..:,i>'.,.I;,··,tj.ust ~1.~.'th-ank-t-.:;you x~~ a i:n: .. :·"fc·-:--. · •. ·. · ,\ 
permitting me to join with you this morning. (applause) 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you for joining us, and 
thank you for reminding us that it is the birthday of that 
famous Virginian, Thomas Jefferson. As you know, Thomas 
Jefferson was not a member of the Constitutional Convention 
because he was ambassador to France. 

SENATOR BYRD: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: He wrote a letter back to the 

United States commending the Constitution, but pointing out 
that in his mind it had one flaw, which was that it allowed the 
Congress to run a deficit. I am hopeful that perhaps we are on 
our way to correcting that flaw that Jefferson perceived in the 
Constitution. 

SENATOR BYRD: I think that showed his wisdom. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: It certainly did. 
SENATOR BYRD: May I make one comment at this point? 

You had a great Governor of this State, who was born in my 
state -- Woodrow Wilson. I want to pay tribute to Woodrow 
Wilson today also. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay. Are there any questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: May I just ask one question? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Assemblyman Martin? 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: We speculated, I think, before 

you came in, Senator, as to why it is so difficult for 
Congress, even with the recognition of most members of Congress 
that this course of action -- this huge annual deficit 
continues to go on-- Most of them would probably agree that 
they have to tidy up their ship. Yet, it is never done on a 
yearly basis, including the Administration, regardless of 
whether Republican or Democrat. Why do you think it is so 
terribly difficult for Congres.s members to do it themselves 
to keep their own house in order? 

SENATOR BYRD: Wel 1, I have found that it is much 
easier for us to vote the appropriations knowing we don't have 
to balance a budget. We just say, "Well, if we appropriate 
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more money than comes into the coffers, all we'll do is just 
add it to the debt." That is a prevailing-- It has changed 
somewhat in the- last few years, but for a long time -- and it 
is still a majority I think -- this was the way they felt. We 
can go ahead and spend what we want to spend, and just add it 
to the debt, and we will worry about that at some . later date. 

It gets back to politics. The difference between the 
Virginia Senate, for example, and the United St~tes Senate, is 
the .. difference between a topnotch college football team --
which would be the Virginia Senate -- and the Redskins or the 
Cowboys, which would be the United States Senate. We are 
so-called professionals when we get there, and the deEire, for 
most of us -- for most politicians -- is to continue in office 
and to vote the way most likely to get you continued in 
office. Voting against appropriations, voting against this 
pressure group, or against that pressure group, or against some 
other pressure group, does not appeal to most of my colleagues 
as being a good way to get yourself reelected. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: That is a safe commentary, but 
I think, Joe, that answers your question from before. You 
asked about the Representatives, would they -- or are they only 
going in their own interest, the int erest of their own district? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: See, you interpreted his answe r 
as saying that they all--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: As I say, that is a 
commentary. I don't know. That sort of answers some of your 
questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES : I think it is a response, but I 
am trying to figure out if he is saying that they all vote just 
to be reelected, without regaFd to other things . I mean, is 
that what he said? 

SENATOR BYRD: No, I would not want to be interpreted 
as s a y-i-n-g ·· :-;~;,na."!- · '~, '-<;{,.1 a:ugh't:e r } --'>~-); '·Wtrat:\· '.-,.;r ~ ;: · -am0 ;;.. 'Sugge·s t ;ing · ,., TS. · ·,, ;,• : , .. , 

naturally, people want to be reelected. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: To the detriment of the national 
interest? I mean, without regard to the people, or the 
mortgaging of the grandchildren, and all the rest of it? They 
just want to be reelected; the hell with future generations; 
the hell with the stability of the country; the hell with all 
of that . All they want to be is returned to office. I mean, 
is that the proposition that is being--

SENATOR BYRD: No, Mr. Charles, that is not what-- I 
would not want you to interpret my view as being that. The 
majority of the people in the Congress are ~ery conscientious, 
but they have also seen, over a period of time-- Now, this is 
an accumulation. It happened only a few years at a time, arid 
then another stretch, and so forth. But this is an 
accumulation. The Congress has seen, over a long period of 
time now, that the budget has not been balanced, the national 
debt has greatly increased, and they don't see the need -- the 
majority of them don't see the need-- I am not trying to say 
bad motives at all; I want to try to make that clear. They do 
not see the need to take undue risks, should I say, in their 
voting habits, in order to get this country back on a sound 
financial basis. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: One question : 
country back to a so-called sound financial 
talking about dealing with the deficit, right? 

Bringing the 
basis-- We are 

And, in dealing 
with that deficit, and those who we are talking about bringing 
it back to some better position, . are we talking about just 
reducing spending -- the appropriations part of it -- or are we 
also talking about raising revenues, too? 

SENATOR BYRD: Well, a constitutional amendment, of 
course, would have to-- Number one, it would have to be . 
drafted. It hasn't been drafted yet. I would assume it would 
not deal with either taxing or spending. It would bring into 
f OCUS -- or put into f OCUS 

balance of outgo with income. 

\ 

the need, the mandate for a 
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though? 
ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: What is the general 
In dealing with this trillion-dollar debt 

feeling, 
and the 

other yearly deficit we have, are we talking about just cutting 
back in Federal budgets, such as lowering things, or are we 
talking about raising the revenue side of it? Let me explain 
what I am talking about. 

Everybody is saying, "People w_ant this." You know, 
they want a balanced budget. Someone ran for President a 
couple of years ago, and said, "What we have to do is raise the 
taxes." I mean, there may be other reasons why he lost, but a 
lot of people said, "That is the mistake you made, telling 
people you want to bring the budget into balance by raising the 
taxes," and the people said, "No--" Everybody said, "No, don't 
tell me that. I don't want my taxes raised." 

I think people cou l d argue that that is one sentiment 
people have. So, I think it is important to the discussion to 
figure out whether we are talking about cutting back 
appropriations, or whether we are also talking about raising 
revenues. The proposal I heard about raising taxes-- I mean, 
politicians don't want to hear that . They don't ever want to 
talk about passing bi 11 s that would impose taxes on people, 
because that gets them unelected. The people don ' t want to 
hear it. They won't elect people who talk about raising 
taxes. So, you 
reconciling this 
budget, with the 

know, I am 
proposition 
fact that 

discussion about raising taxes. 

try i ng to find some 
that people want a 
people never want to 

way of 
balanced 
hear a 

SENATOR BYRD: We l l, the individual to whom you 
ref er-- We went to the Senate together the same year, and I 
watched his campaign very care.fully. I don't believe he ever 
used the words "balanced budget." 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: No, he didn't, 
.. SE?!itmf'O.R,7:BYRD.f'!r.:" ~H€:r-sai'd ;· "t1.ra1:-·se ·--t axe :: 
ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Right . 
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SENATOR BYRD : But I don't think he ever used the 
words "balanced budget," because he never voted for a balanced 
budget when we were in the Senate together. 

To get to your question, this amendment this 
proposed amendment-- As I say, it hasn't been drawn, but I 
would assume that any amendments drawn would not deal with the 
question of raising taxes or reducing spending. They wou~d 
deal with the question of balancing the budget. There are . a 
number of ways you can do that. Personally to put my 
personal view in it -- once you set a level of spending 
which we now have at $2 trillion -- I don't see where there is 
much likelihood of that figure being reduced. It is a question 
as to how much you increase it. 
very substantially. One year 

As I say, we have increased it 
of course, that goes back 

seven or eight years ago -- we increased it 17% -- in one year, 
the spending. We have moderated that increase in more recent 
years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: What is the common thinking on 
reaching this balanced budget and bringing things back into 
1 ine, if there is any common thinking? Are we really talking 
about raising taxes to make it up, or what are we talking 
about? How is it going to be made up? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Just say no. (laughter) 
SENATOR BYRD: This is probably not a very good thing 

for me to say, but in an effort to try to encourage you to look 
at this balanced budget amendment, it seems to me to get back 
-- for this country to get back on what I conceive to be-- I 
must admit, most of my congressional colleagues don't agree 
with me, but to get back on what I conceive to be a sound 
financial basis, it is goipg to take a combination of 
restraining spending and some additional revenue. It is going 
to take a combination of both. 

I do not see, from a practical point of view -- or 
from any other point of view for that matter -- how you are 
going to reduce spending below what you are spending now. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Just one final comment: We all 
hope that one day we will be able to come before a state 
legislative committee and say that we have been in the United 
States Senate, and we have been in state legislatures, and we 
are happy to be back. Our Chairman is going across the hal 1 
from us soon. He is going over to the Senate . Bob and I, and 
Marion and Joe, are going to stay here on the Assembly side. 
He is leaving us, so he may beat us down to Washington. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I won't forget my friends, Joe . 
Are there any further questions? (no response) Thank 

you very much for joining us, Senator . (applause) 
SE~ATOR BYRD: Thank you . 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : Representative Halbrook has 

informed the staff that he has about one minute more to add to 
his earlier commentary. 

REPRESENTATIVE HALBROOK : Thank you ve r y much, Mr . 
Chairman. It is not often in this life that you get a second 
chance, and I do appreciate it. I think Assemblyman Charles 
may have answered his own question here a little earlier . He 
was talking about why Congress did what they did. Wel 1, they 
don't talk about raising taxes, because it gets them 
unelected. They don't talk about cutting appropriations , 
because that, also, gets them unelected . 

Assemblyman Martin asked a question here as to how the 
constitutional amendment might affect the operation of Congres s 
and why it would make things different from the way they are 
now. Congress can amend laws, change laws, ignore laws, 
suspend laws. We see this done. One of the real problems we 
have had in recent years, is the fact that Congress wi 11 not 
pass a budget and operate und~r a continuing resolution . The 
reason they are able to do this is because they can amend, 
suspend, ignore the laws. 

r ~t'do:i.~-~n ot°t"fthinki1,."18ongl!es..i:,,,,.;· .i~ <:;. t~:~,:f--a"Ct ':;·· ...... 1 :~i~ w-1/-:tn c;-:: ,.: '• '-'·.' . .'.. . 
Congress does not have the power to do with the Constitution 
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what they can do with laws. If you had a constitutional 
mandate for a balanced budget, then that would do away with the 
continuing resolution form of operation. They would have to 
operate within the monetary constraints that were there. 

I thank you very much for allowing me to do this. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I call Wayne Dibofsky, New Jersey 

Education Association. 
W A Y N E D I B O F S K Y: Thank you, Mr . Chairman and 
members of the Committee. I am Wayne Dibofsky, Associate 
Director of the 123,000-member New Jersey Education 
Association. We appreciate the opportunity to speak today on a 
critical -issue of central importance to the future of the 
United States of America. 

Recently, a young man walked into the National 
Archives and smashed the case containing the original United 
states Constitution. None of us can conceive of his motives 
for this shocking act, and yet the move to cal 1 for a second 
constitutional convention at this point in history may be as 
reckless and unconscionable an act. 

As a basic document granting powers to the national 
government and protecting the rights of its citizens, the 
United States Constitution has stood the test of time. It has 
served our nation well as the framework for a governmental 
system that has had to deal with many varied events and crises 
in our history . So sound was the work of the framers, that the 
,Constitution has been amended only 26 times in its 200-year 
history. 

The amendment process has also served us well. All 26 
amendments thus far adopted have been proposed by a vote of 
two-thirds of both houses of, Congress and ratified by the 
legislatures of three-quarters of the states. 

The alternative procedure for proposing amendments --
a constitutional convention called by Congress· on application 
o: two-thirds of the states -- has never been used. Since the 
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Constitutional Convention in 1787, no subject has been deemed 
so grave a threat as to warrant a constitutional convention 
call. 

Our founding fathers had the wisdom to establish a 
system of government flexible enough to survive 200 years of 
history and, during that time, ~he enormous commercial, 
technological, and cultural changes ~four society. Of the 16 
amendments since the Bill of Rights,: seven have dealt with the 
structure of government, five expanded voting rights, and two 
expanded civil rights. All previous constitutional amendments, 
with the disastrous but instructive exception of Prohibition, 
have been enacted to achieve goals which could not n;,ive been 
accomplished by simple statute. 

The present call for a constitutional convention --
driven by the effort to pass an amendment requiring a balanced 
Federal budget does not fit within the scheme of the 
Constitution. As Justice Oliver Wendell Holmes said, "A 

Constitution is not intended to embody a particular theory . " 
What, then, are the dangers of the constitutional 

convention? The prospect of a runaway constitutional 
convention cannot be taken lightly. Previous speakers have 
spoken to that degree. The framers of the current Constitution 
met in 1787 for the sole and express purpose of revising the 
Articles of Confederation . They had no mandate or authority to 
restructure the government , and yet they did . They even 
established an extra legal procedure for ratifying their 
actions. In a quiet, second revolution, the Constitutional 
Convention of 1787 overthrew an existing form of government. 

Former Justice Arthur Goldberg stated, "History has 
established that the Philadelp~ia Convention was a success, but 
it cannot be denied that it broke the restraints intended to 
limit its power and agenda . " Logic, therefore, compels one 
con c 1 us 1.n:o.::~'-'l• ~,;.:l7my·:N·: G·ft'-ai:rr-> .. ::tha::'.ti ;,,tthe1t ,' ··a cm~.r-.e.ss~~::;:erou.l'd ,_ :,•.b-y;-., sta tut f".'. . · 
limit a convention's agenda is pure speculation." 
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If, by precedent, Congress cannot limit the 
convention's agenda, can the states? The framers of the 
Cons ti tut ion considered and rejected language that would have 
allowed the state legislatures to propose specific 
constitutional amendments. In its place, as a protection in 
extraordinary circumstances, the framers of the Constitution 

· provided for a constitutional convention, free of the control 
of both Congress and the state leg~slatures. 

Do not doubt that they were well a,ware of the grave 
consequences of such a provision. As James Madison wrote 200 
years ago: "Having witnessed the difficulties and dangers 
experienced by the first Convention which assembled - under very 
propitious circumstances, I should tremble for the result of a 
second." 

A constitutional convention would be nothing less than 
a fourth branch of government. What then are the dangers of 
this balanced budget amendment we speak of today? Can those 
who support this movement to call for 
and express purpose of considering a 
be assured that such an amendment 

a convention for the sole 
balanced budget amendment 
would be passed? They 

cannot. The worst possible forum for deliberating on critical, 
sensitive, technical, economic policy matters is the kind of 
constitutional convention being proposed, one which could be 
uncontrollable and subject to emotional and demagogic appeals. 

Consider that a proposed constitutional amendment 
requiring a balanced budget has been brought before Congress 
several times; most recently in the 99th Congress, where it was 
defeated in the United States Senate. In recent years, 
proposals to call for a constitutional convention for this 
purpose have been defeated b~ Republican and Democratically 
controlled state legislatures in Connecticut, Michigan, Hawaii, 
Illinois, Maine, Minnesota, Montana, Washington, Missouri, and 
Kentucky. 
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Federal budget amendment desirable? 
When 

Is a balanced 
the first state legislative 

constitutional convention 
passed, 

that the 

to pass 
resolution calling for a 
a balanced Federal .budget 

amendment was conventional wisdom stated, 
unequivocally, only way to lower the devastating 
inf lat ion rate was to balance the Federal .budget. Ten years 
later, what do we see? The Federal deficit for Fiscal Year 
1986 was estimated at some $240 billion --:- the highest ever . 
And ·:yet, · the annual inf lat ion rate for Fiscal Year 1986 was 
estimated at just over 3% . 

Annual Federal deficits have been at or above $200 
billion for five of the last six years . The national debt 
doubled during the last five years. And yet, the inflation 
rate throughout this period continued to decline. This fatal 
flaw in the economic theory which drove this movement -- mo r e 
than anything else -- points up the folly of attempting t o 
establish a simplistic, rigid, unrealistic , 
constitutional amendment which cannot possibly 
specific and immediate economic flotations that occur . 

arbitrary 
meet the 

This is not to underestimate the crisis of the 
national debt, which you have also addressed in your comments. 
The problems of fiscal and monetary policy can , and should, be 
addressed through the leg i slative process provided by the 
Constitution . In fact, there is in effect now , a law requiring 
Congress to establish just that -- a balanced budget by 1991 --
called "The Balanced Budget and Emergency Deficit Control Act 
of 1985." 

If, however, states demand a balanced budget 
amendment, they could impose a fiscal strait jacket upon our 
Congress that would handcuff ,the ability of the Legislative 
Branch to use its taxing and spending powers to address the 
true national needs in time of economic crisis. 

~ 1"us··~,tm:.!ft:tn1.~,~··m at :' du~i·nq:i'f.:a ·-,,,rec.es1;·nm.:~ ,,, .. a ·.···ba l ancec. ' 
budget requirement would make such downturns far more severe . 
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Unemployment Compensation and social welfare problems would be 
choked off. It would be virtually impossible to secure the 
legislation needed to create jobs and stimulate the economy, or 
to fund new defense needs. Incomes would erode and investment 
would be discouraged, resulting in deeper recessions, deeper 
budget cuts, lower revenues, and _higher unemployment. 
Ultimately, this balanced budget strait _jacket could possibly 
destroy the very fabric of the Federal J?rograms in education, 
housing, health, transportation, job creation and training, 
unemployment assistance, and public works; prevent adequate 
enforcement of labor, antitrust, civil rights, and other laws; 
undermine regulatory programs protecting heal th, . · the 
environment, and consumers; and, wipe out Federal research and 
development funds for health, science, energy, and agriculture. 

The necessity of maintaining fiscal flexibility is 
best judged against the worst economic disaster of this century 
-- the Great Depression. President Roosevelt used the Federal 
budget and deficit spending to create p~ograms to help put the 
country back to work. In 1937, when the economy began to show 
signs of recovery, Roosevelt and the Congress cut expenditures 
to eliminate the deficit. An economic relapse resulted. 
Unemployment went from 14% to 19% by 1938. When Congress 
reversed the gears and widened the deficit, economic recovery 
began again. 

A study done by the Council of Economic Advisors in 
1979 showed that if the Federal budget had been balanced during 
the 1974-1975 recession, the real GNP would have plunged by 
12%, rather than 2. 5%, and unemployment would have shot up to 
12%, rather than 8.5%. 

A more recent study s,howed that if a balanced Federal 
budget were required for Fiscal Year 1985, unemployment would 
have increased by nearly five million, the GNP would have 
declined by approximately $700 billion, Federal expenditures 
would have had to be cut by $400 billion, and state and local 
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tax revenues would have dropped by $80 billion -- due to a drop 
in employment and output. 

Federal budgeting is, in fact, a complex, subtle, and 
evolving process that cannot, and should not, be constrained 
within the strait jacket of several immutable paragraphs in the 
United States Constitution. 

The Declaration of Independence states, "Prudence, 
indeed, will dictate that governments long established should 
not ·. ,be changed for light and transient causes." Let us heed 
this advice. 

In 1787, New Jersey was the third State to ratify the 
present United States Constitution. This is a source of great 
pride for the citizens of our State. In 1987, let us preserve 
that tradition and abandon the proposition of its dissolution. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much. You sort of 

took us on a tour through the 20th century economy in your 
descriptions of the situation at the depth of the recession, 
the recovery of the recession, going into World War II, and the 
late '70s and the mid '80s. In each case, you argued that the 
data -- or experience -- dictated that it was an inauspicious 
time to balance the budget. Is there any time that is the 
appropriate time to balance the budget? The latest date you 
focused on was 1985, which is well into an economic recovery . 
If you can't balance the budget during a recession, and you 
can't balance the budget during a recovery, when are you going 
to do it? 

MR. DIBOFSKY: I think the sense is, Assemblyman, that 
under the economic constraints of the government-- I think the 
earlier answer by Senator Byrd is probably on target, that the . 
time needed to extend ourselves to balancing the budget has to 
be looked at, and programmatic cuts as well. I think that if 
we are wuli.ingt'..tt:Q'4'.:unoe.rta.ke--#,.-~ ,and '.~'t):it.e.o~.the:t1..bul'i·8.t ~ t •o:;!,fD'I:"8-'S.E'e~·th2': •' ·~ , · ·, ' · 
program changes that we have to make in the socially changing 
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times of this country, then perhaps the time, over an extended 
period of time, is here now. But I think we have, in essence, 
on the Gramm-Rudman-Hollings, at least a tool to begin that. I 
think we ought to let that scenario play itself out before we 
undertake constitutional changes at this time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: NJEA does not endorse 
Gramm-Rudman-Hollings, does it? 

MR. DIBOFSKY: No, we do not. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: You violently opposed it. 
MR. DIBOFSKY: The NEA has a policy opposing it, yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: But, you' re saying we should--

What are you saying about Gramm-Rudman then? 
MR. DIBOFSKY: The mechanism is in place. We would 

prefer, as a policy-making body, to see that governmental 
structure and that law and statute continue through the process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Do you believe that Gramm-Rudman 
is working? 

MR. DIBOFSKY: It is providing, at this point, 
somewhat of a breakage on the economy. To that degree, it is 
working; to a greater extent that we believe a constitutional 
amendment would, with all of its pitfalls. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Are you familiar with what has 
been happening in the House of Representatives and the budget 
that the House passed? 

MR. DIBOFSKY: Yes, to a degree. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Do you believe that that has 

complied with Gramm-Rudman? 
MR. DIBOFSKY: Well, in the House-appropriated budget, 

a direct answer would be, "No, it has not. " However, it has 
also requested cutbacks in other areas . So, there is a 
balancing mechanism needed here, and I think if the political 
structuring to be in Washington would take a hard-earned look 
at the balancing mechanism, I think it could be accomplished, 
just as it is in the State of New Jersey, even though we comply 
with a constitutional amendment here. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: More specifically, 
fiscal year's budget is supposed to have a 
deficit, according to the Gramm-Rudman timetable, 

this coming 
$108 billion 
a 1 though the 

House Budget Committee claims that that budget deficit figure 
will be achieved-- The Congressional Budget Office the 
nonpartisan arm of Congress itself -- will not certify to that 
and, in fact, says that the deficit will_ be $25 billion more 
than that. Do you have any response to th:at situation? 

MR. DIBOFSKY: I have not looked at those figures, so 
I would not want to make a statement on that . I will, in fact, 
look at them, though. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Is it the view of NJEA that .- if, 
indeed, the budget is balanced by a workable mechanism, that 
education programs will suffer disproportionately? 

MR. DIBOFSKY: I think historically over the last five 
years in the Federal budget, that has already been a proven 
fact, that the budgets have struck harder at socialized 
programs, including aid to education. It has had a specific 
impact here in the State of New Jersey . 

If the current administrative budget were put into 
effect here in the State of New Jersey, the educational 
programs in the State would lose approximately $58.9 million in 
current Federal aid. The State of New Jersey could not absorb 
that, so programs would again be cut . We are talking Chapte r 
I, Chapter II, and reauthorization programs for adult 
education, specifically. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : Thank you. Are there any 
questions? Marion, Bob? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CRECCO: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: 'J.. have a question. Maybe Wayne 

can comment on it . You are more familiar than all of us ; I 
think we all concede that. How much discussion has there been 
in terms;::::..0~3:.:~ .L wit~;_:!a:- ·.b.a·:h~ ·e:d :?tru:dg e-.5· ;...:_::,." -an--~:~e sna-pe6 h.atth -~· f 'C:.. ·. ·; · :,~, · ·· 

so-called emergencies, such as the depression and war? I know 
that is one of the items on the table . 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: The amendment that has gotten 
two-thirds support in the Senate and majority support in the 
House, and is pending in a similar form, would, first of all, 
allow a deficit for any reason if 60% of each house and the 
President agree to run that deficit. It would be inoperative 
in wartime. It seems to me that in the event of a national 
catastrophe, short of war, that certainly 60% of the Congress 
would recognize that need, and would vote for it. It is 
considerably more flexible, obviously, than state 
constitutions, including our own. 

Are there any further questions? {no response) Thank 
you very much, Mr. Dibofsky. 

I would like to call now Pat Witmer, New Jersey State 
Chamber of Commerce. 
P A T R I C K 
Chairman . My name 

W I T M E R: Thank you very much, 
is Patrick Witmer; I am Director 

Mr. 
of 

Legislative Affairs for the New Jersey State Chamber of 
Commerce. 

The State Chamber fully supports ACR-54, legislation 
calling for a convention to propose a balanced budget amendment 
to the Constitution of the United States. The State Chamber ' s 
Legis l ative Program of 1987 has endorsed this initiative as one 
of the Chamber ' s top legislative priorities of the year. 

We have heard repeated promises from Congress 
hollow promises -- about how one year soon, the Federal budget 
will be balanced . Congress is quick to make promises, but it 
seems that its members no longer share a moral commitment to 
balance the budget. 

A decade ago, the budget deficit averaged about $35 
billion per year. Today, our _nation is facing a $200 billion 
deficit, and a $2 trillion debt that could cripple our economy 
in a recession. More money than ever before -- money that 
could be used to create jobs anq, stimulate. lasting · economic 
growth -- is being used to fina~ce ~ur na ti onal debt . We are 
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the world's largest debtor nation, and there is no end in sight 
to the amount Congress is willing to mortgage our future. 

New Jersey has the opportunity to join 32 other states 
in saying, "Enough is enough." By supporting the call for a 
balanced budget amendment, we are taking a responsible and 
calculated step toward forcing Congress to adopt and enforc~ a 
balanced Federal budget. If we do not act now, neither will 
Congress. 

Article V of the Constitution of the United States 
makes it possible for the American people, working through 
their state legislatures, to invoke necessary constitutional 
changes balked at by Congress. The State Chamber of Commerce 
is hopeful that a constitutional convention will never be 
needed. But, we believe the threat of one may be necessary, if 
we ever hope to control the spending spree in Washington. Just 
as Congress preempted the need for a convention nearly 75 years 
ago by approving an amendment to the Constitution calling for 
the direct election of Senators, the 99th Congress can also be 
prodded into taking responsible action to solve our budget 
problems. 

The State Chamber recognizes those groups and 
individuals who are still concerned about a runaway 
convention. We believe, however, that in the extremely 
unlikely event a convention should be convened, enough 
safeguards exist to prevent any issue other than a balanced 
budget amendment from being considered. Consider that: 

The convention calls of the 32 state legislatures, and 
the language of ACR-54, set specific limits which would prevent 
other issues from being considered; 

It is the official ,position of the American Bar 
Association that Congress can establish procedures limiting a 
convention to the subject matter stated in the applications 
rece i ved;-,:f;rt,rri;;tth'e1.:.;.,lieg.l"Ei'l.ratur~ ---... ·'.-. ·. · .. · ,. · · ·.. ,. ·· , . ·'° 
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The United States Supreme Court, in the event of other 
issues being considered, could declare that the delegates 
exceeded their constitutional and statutory authority, and 
could stop the amendment from being submitted for ratification; 
and, 

Finally, it would take just 13 states to refuse to 
ratify what the delegates to the convention proposed, thereby 
blocking it. 

Clearly, it would require an overwhelming amount of 
support from all sectors of our nation to ratify what may be 
proposed by a convention. If it takes 34 states to call for a 
convention to consider a balanced budget amendment -- or any 
other amendment if New Jersey becomes one of those 34 
states, then it seems reasonable to assume that New Jersey must 
also be among the 38 states needed to ratify that amendment. 
Now, if absurd amendments to our Constitution are called for by 
this convention, it also seems 1 ikely that New Jersey would 
have to be in a position to ratify those absurd amendments, 
such as gutting our Bill of Rights. I don ' t think that anyone 
here could realistically assume, or believe, that the 
Legislature of New Jersey would take such an absurd action as 
to gut the Bill of Rights or, for that matter, approve any 
other absurd constitutional change. 

In fact, the only real risk that exists in the 
consideration of this issue is that Congress will not be forced 
to put an end to our nation ' s runaway debt. Thomas Jefferson 
said, "We should consider ourselves unauthorized to saddle 
posterity with our debts, and morally bound to pay them 
ourselves. " The New Jersey Legislature can play a key role in 
restoring this moral commitment. the framers of our Constitution 
sought to provide. 

The New Jersey State Chamber of Commerce appreciates 
this opportunity to speak in support of such a crucial issue, 
and we urge the members of this Committee to vote yes on ACR-54 . 
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Thank you for your attention. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much. It is a 

delight to have the Chamber of Commerce supporting a bill of 
mine. 

MR. WITMER: Very often. Senator-elect, we hope to do 
that in the future, . also. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. Are there any 
questions? (no re~ponse) Thank you very much, Pat. 

MR. WITMER: Thank you very much . 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I would like to call Gregg 

Rackin, Coordinator, New Jersey Citizens to Protect the 
Constitution. 
G R E G G R A C K I N: Mr, Chairman, members of the 
Committee, thank you for extending me this time to address 
you. I am Coordinator of the New Jersey Citizens to Protect 
the Constitution, which includes the American Jewish Congress, 
of which I am the Coordinator for the State of New Jersey. 

I would 1 ike to share with you today the remarks of 
Governor Thomas Kean at our National Domestic Policy 
Conference, which was held in Washington a month ago. Governor 
Kean had the following remarks concerning the issue of the 
deficit, and how we should go about res o l v ing it . I quote from 
a speech presented by the Governor: 

"The issue of the Federal deficit includes the enti r e 
domestic pol icy agenda. It must get resolved, but we have t o 
watch how we do it. We cannot just resort to some arbitra r y 
and mandatory scheme like Gramm-Rudman. That doesn ' t work; it 
hasn't worked; and it won't work. 

"Some are suggesting a constitutional convention. I 
have my doubts about that. I do not believe that the way t o . 
solve the problem of the deficit is to open up for amendment 
the entire Constitution of the United States. If anything, we 
must noW''*J::>e:~.\'.~ .:'.:.;-ftli;g.i.l:ant :,t·ab.out\.:.the'"~;·cons:titut i on ·:, .. than ··::ever: 
before, because the pressure from the deficit may lead to the 
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legislation of political expedience which may threaten our 
individual freedom. 

"I am particularly concerned about any possible 
amendments to the Bill of Rights. The Domestic Policy agenda 
is about protecting individual freedom. The Constitution 
remains our only defense. No, we don't solve this problem with 
a constitutional convention." 

Respectfully, I submit Governor Kean's remarks to this 
Committee -- and I have copies to distribute ' -- noting that he 
is not only the leader of our State, but a strong leader of the 
Republican party. 

I also took the liberty of contacting the,- New Jersey 
Senators in Washington, and I would 1 ike to share with you a 
perspective from Senator Frank Lautenberg, concerning the issue 
of a constitutional convention and the possibility that that 
may lead to. I also have a letter from Senator Bi 11 Bradley, 
which I wi 11 distribute after my statement. 
Senator Lautenberg is addressed to me: 

This letter from 

"Thank you for contacting me about my perspective on a 
constitutional amendment requiring a balanced budget. 

"As a member of the Senate Budget and Appropriations 
Committees, I have worked to reduce the deficit and to restore 
a sound fiscal policy. Over the last five years, government 
spending on domestic programs has actually dropped as a share 
of the total economy. However, defense spending and the 
interest on the Federal debt have increased. 

"During Senate Budget Cammi ttee consideration of the 
Fiscal Year 1988 Budget Resolution, I supported Senator Chiles' 
budget proposal, which would result in a balanced budget by the 
end of Fiscal Year 1991, through the careful setting of 
priorities. This budget wuld reduce Federal borrowing by $100 
billion below the President's budget. Total deficit reduction 
through 1991 would equal $282 billion, a product of evenly 
distributed savings derived from domestic cuts, mi 1 i tary 
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spending restraint, and revenues earmarked solely for deficit 
elimination. 

"Dealing successfully and fairly with the deficit also 
demands that we look at new approaches. I have supported 
legislation to raise revenue through the establishment of a 
Federal tax amnesty. In addition, I have proposed that revenue 
be raised through the sale , to the private sector, of loan 
assets held by the Federal government. 

"While I remain committed to reducing the deficit, I 
have several reservations about a constitutional amendment 
requiring a balanced budget. It is not necessarily an 
effectiv-e substitute for dealing with our budgetary problems. 
The Constitution consists of a fundamental set of democratic 
principles. It should not include procedures for fiscal or 
economic policy. As a practical matter, such an amendment 
could limit flexibility to deal with prevailing economi c 
conditions, national security needs, and other emergencies. 

"I am also concerned about the risks of attempting to 
adopt a balanced budget amendment through a constitutional 
convention. It is far from clear that a convention could be 
limited to the matter of a balanced budget amendment, as its 
advocates maintain. Our Constitution has served us well, 
embodying our democratic values and shielding individual 
liberties and rights from the periodic extremes of public 
opinion. A convention is fraught with the danger that the 
delicate balance incorporated in our Constitution would come 
unravelled. That is a risk too great for the American people 
to bear. 

"Our nation's economic future depends upon reducing 
the Federal budget defici\ and reordering our fiscal 
priorities. Ultimately, we must do that, not by tinkering with 
the nation ' s Constitution, but by making the difficult 
dee is ions-, th'a:t .1<-must .··ba:,.-mad e'·.... · · , ·,,. 
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11 Instead of incorporating a balanced budget 
requirement into the Constitution, Congress and the 
Administration should legislate policies to reduce the 
deficit. Recent congressional actions to bring revenues and 
spending closer into balance are long overdue steps in the 
right direction. 

11 I will continue to work in the Senate Budget and 
Appropriations Committees to reduce the deficit and to put our 
economy on the footing that will ensure prosperity in the 

I 

future. Sincerely, Frank R. Lautenberg 11 

I have no testimony to offer, other than to share with 
the Committee the remarks of Governor Kean and the sentiments 
of Senator Lautenberg. I am prepared to give you these 
statements from the Governor and the Senators. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Just to clarify the situation, it 
is clear that Senator Lautenberg is opposed to a constitutional 
amendment to require a balanced budget. What is your 
understanding of the Governor's position on that? 

MR. RACK IN: I cannot speak for the Governor. In his 
speech to the National Domestic Policy Conference of the 
American Jewish Congress, he raised a very high concern over 
our fiscal problems. I cannot speak for him, so I do not know 
what his feelings on that would be . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: He did speak favorably in his 
speech about a constitutional amendment calling for a balanced 
budget. In fact, it is two paragraphs after you stopped 
reading the excerpt. So, in fact, as I read the Governor's 
speech, he endorses a balanced budget amendment, and wants 
Congress to enact it, but the member of the Senate who has 
responded to you says that he will not. 

Does your organization have a position in favor or 
against such an amendment? 

MR. RACKIN: The &mendment or the convention? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: The amendment. 

\ 
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MR. RACK IN: I cannot answer that. 
where the organization would stand on that. 

I am not sure 
I believe the 

organization and I am not sure is opposed to the 
amendment. I cannot verify that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : I will not press ·the point, 
because you evidently don ' t hav~ the information . 

We have heard-- Let_me just check. Did we hear from 
your organization in our Octob~r hearing? 

MR. RACK IN: Yes, you did. Marilyn Rosenbaum 
(phonetic spelling) gave testimony to this Committee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I have no further questions . Joe? 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: The Governor favors the 

amendment? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Conversely, it appears from his 

statement that he is fearful, and I would suggest opposes the 
convention. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Well, I have just been discussing 
with the Governor's Counsel's off ice and, in that question 

fact, it is question. 
am told there 

a It is under review in Counsel's 
definitive office. I 

statement coming later. 
is going to be a 

I am certainly 
characterize his position, if his office won't . 

more 
not going to 

MR. RACKIN: Well, may I interject? I think--
EDWARD McCOOL (speaking from audience): I have met 
with Governor ' s Counsel Mr. MtGlynn specifically to 
congratulate the Governor for opposing the convention . Mr. 
McGlynn thanked me for sending congratulations, and confirmed, 
in fact, that the Governor was opposed . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: ,Mr . McCool, first of all, you 
were not recognized; secondly, Mr . McGlynn is not in the 
Counsel's office. He is not the Counsel . 

. ASSEMB.tfYM1CNf:MAR1'.'J:l~.:!\',;• 'J .tiS"t:<,t-s·o·"wlf "''t-e :'..'bi.:ea0r .:;/ ::·t-he~ !Go"if'erno:: ; . ,. · ·· ., 
does not participate in this decision . Unlike the law in New 
Jersey, the Governor will not act on this . 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: That is correct. 
MR. RACKIN: I would offer this: After the Governor 

presented his remarks to us at the National Domestic Policy 
Conference, we sent thanks to him .for directly opposing a 
constitutional convention. This was within three days after he 
presented these remarks. We have not received any information 
or indication from him to _the contrary. As I said, from his 
speech, "No, we don't solv~ this problem with a constitutional 
convention--" He was thanked for that. He never responded in 
any way, in writing or over the telephone, saying that he 
disagreed with that . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I think it is fruitless for us to 
argue among ourselves what the Governor's position is, when the 
Governor can clarify it in--

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: 
speaks for itself . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: 
for him this morning to me. 
clarify the situation. 

I think the Governor's position 

Well, the Governor's staff spoke 
We will let the fullness of time 

Do you have any questions, Joe? 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: No, thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay, thank you very much . Rabbi 

David Gelford . 
RABB I DAV ID GELFAND: I would like to begin 
by clarifying that my name is Rabbi David Gelfand -- F-A-N-D. 

ASSEMBLYM&l\J ZIMMER: Oh, sorry, it's a typo on the 
l ist . 

RABBI GELFAND: I am a member and supporter -- an 
ardent supporter -- of an organization cal led People for the 
American Way , representing appr,oximately a quarter of a million 
people across the country, well over 10,000 of them in the 
State of New Jersey. I have also been asked to speak this 
morning on behalf of the Union of American Hebrew 
Congregations ,,.. its Commission on Social Action, the National 
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Federation of Temple Sisterhoods, and the Central Conference of 
American Rabbis. Thus, as a rabbi, I am here to speak on 
behalf of Reform Judaism, representing the largest segment of 
the American Jewish cornrnuni ty and, as well, my congregation 
here in Trenton -- Har Sinai Temple. 

As a rabbi, my role is to be a teacher and, therefore, 
to relay facts. In that vein, I am very~ very pleased and 
honored to be able to be here this morning, : particularly since 
in over one-half of the petitioning states, my colleagues, and 
people who think like myself -- or, as well, even those who 
support ACR-54 in like-minded measures never had the 
opportunity to attend public hearings, never had the 
opportunity to hear floor debates, nor did they have the 
opportunity to hear their legislators called before a roll call 
vote on convention requests. Therefore, I am extremely pleased 
to be able to be here to share my thoughts with you, as well as 
to represent the organizations -- each of them that I have so 
stated that I represent today. 

I recently had the opportunity, in Washington, to hear 
people in our Federal government discuss this and numerous 
other issues. At that time, one prominent Senator used an 
illustration of a story, which I would share briefly with you, 
that being the fisherman who, on the first day of the fishing 
season, returned to town with the equivalent of all that a 
license would allow him to catch through a season. Someone 
quickly ran and got the game warden, the fish warden, or what 
have you. The man was so astounded that he requested that he 
go fishing with him the next morning to see how he did it. He 
went out in a rowboat with him to the middle of the lake. The 
man didn't even have a fishin~ rod with him. He appropriately 
then reached into his fishing tackle box, took a stick of 
dynamite, and threw it into the water . Lo and behold, hundreds 
of f ish'..-.,'St1Tf1ac.ec..A· ' ,·1• . • 
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The game warden was astounded, and quite disturbed, so 
much so that he began yelling at the fisherman. Finally, the 
fisherman, not willing to sit there any more and be chastised, 
t .ook another stick of dynamite out, handed it to the game 
warden , and said, "Are you going to keep talking, or are you 
going to start fishing?" 

It seems to me that many people support a variety of 
issues and, in this case, the issue of a balanced budget, but, 
like the fisherman, who goes out and attempts to fish with 
dynamite-- The opportunity is there to do as much as one wants 
-- an elected service -- as well as those who seek to lobby in 
our system. At the same time, one has the opportunity, 
unfortunately at times, to destroy the very system which has 
been created by our history. 

To begin with, I would state this morning, though not 
an attorney-- I was disturbed this morning to hear the use of 
the American Bar Association ' s position or non-position . 
Therefore, I chose to make a phone call at my own expense this 
morning, to seek out exactly that position or non-position . 
While it is true that a committee has taken a stand, which 
would thereby presume-- The presumption would be approval of a 
constitutional convention. I have been informed -- and I have 
been informed that members in this room have likewise received 
a letter -- that if Congress were to pass procedures that are 
now pending before the Congress, it would create a 
constituti onal convention which would not be viable. As well, 
on the issue of a balanced budget, I have been informed by the 
American Bar Association that they have no position on a 
balanced budget . There is acknowledgement, of course, that a 
committee has taken a position .. 

In particular response to 
is clear that Congress must cal 1 

the assertion that Article V 
a convention if 34 petitions 
on the application of the are received, the congregation 

legislatures of two-thirds of several states shall call a 
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convention for proposing amendments. Moreover, in "The 
Federalist 85," Alexander Hamilton, an author of our 
Constitution, wrote: "The words of this article are 
preemptory . The Congress shall call a convention. Nothing in 
this particular is left to the discretion of that body." In 
other ~ords, once Congress has received 34 petitions, it cannot 
ignore_ them and avoid calling a constitutional convention by 
passi~g an amendment. It is factual what would happen . 

'., Faced with this, convention proponents have sometimes 
shifted their position in various states, including information 
that I received, stating that, in fact, only one more state is 
needed -- the 33rd -- to force Congress to pass an amendment. 
Though I have not heard this stated here this morning, I have 
received information that states that there are those who feel 
so. They cite the 17th Amendment direct election of 
Senators -- which has been referred to here, as an example of 
effective use of the convention threat. Not on l y are they 
historically inaccurate as to the events surrounding the 
adoption of the 17th Amendment, but they absolutely ignore the 
refusal by Congress to produce an amendment overriding the 
Supreme Court's dee is ion on one man/one vote, even though 33 
states petitioned for a convention at that time . 

Convention supporters also assure the public that even 
if a convention is convened, there is no danger that it would 
consider any issues other than the particular amendment for 
which it was cal led, and so we have been informed here aga i n. 
It seems to me that this bold assertion ignores the 
considerable historic precedent, for it would be impossible to 
find a more persuasive precedent for an opening convention's 
agenda than the founding fat~ers' actions in 1787 and the 
actual language of Article V, where the reference is made to 
amendments -- in the plural. 

W±:~,.,,1:,irespectc::..'1t.0-... H'1u:re;;~.c11,r r .zen t ~.'2:c-on~ entton..,. •,::c.ampai.gn,, . .. :..:.. · ,-. · ·. ·, . 
should be noted that while offering assurances of a limited 

78 



convention as we have had today supporters of a 
convention have unabashedly suggested other issues the 
convention might want to consider. Therefore, I follow on the 
heels of the report given by the International President of 
B'Nai B'Rith International, Seymour Reich, who discussed these 
issues with me upon his exiting. I informed him I would be 
gla~ to share these thoughts with him, as I did then, and as I 
do . with you now. Jim Davidson, Chairman of the National 
Taxpayers' Union, has not only declared himself a candidate for 
delegate if a convention should be called, but in a LA Times 
interview, stated: 11 A convention could introduce other 
mechanisms for balancing budgets and for exceptions to balanced 
budgets. 11 According to the article, Davidson said, "These 
mechanisms might include a provision for vetoes of parts of 
bills, and for national referendums on whether a specific 
budget should include a deficit." He also said he favors a 
return to the gold standard. 

In his recent book, "Presidential Economics, 11 former 
Nixon adviser, Herbert Stein, recalled that Milton Friedman, a 
founder and sponsor of the National Tax Limitation Committee, 
which also advocates a convention, has a catalog of seven 
constitutional amendments that would impose their brand of 
economics on the Constitution -- this is a quote -- 11 in areas 
including international trade, wage and price controls, taxes, 
the money supply, and inf lat ion protection." In modern 
parlance, 
offering 
engaging 

they are participating in a bait and switch game, 
assurances of the convention's limitability, while 
in the preparation of a secondary agenda for 

convention consideration. 
In addition -- and Pepple for the American Way would 

be glad to document each one of these statements other 
alternative agendas already known to exist in the event the 
convention is convened, include: abortion, school prayer, 
tuition tax credits, busing, return to the gold standard, 
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parliamentary system versus our current system of government, 
State autonomy, expatriation of all citizens not of Western 
European or1g1n, abolition of labor unions, and direction 
election of the President. Again, People for the American Way 
will be glad to document each one of these. The possibility 
that the convention would adopt a set of amendments as a 
package is a matter of serious concern, for much like the Bill 
of Rights, a package of take-it-or-leave-it amendments, under 
the ··aegis of a balanced budget, might well be the product of a 
convention. Such a package could include not only a balanced 
budget amendment, but also any of the above-mentioned issues, 
certainly under the aegis of Federal funds for each and every 
one of those items, or others. 

Finally, assurances are given that if by some chance 
the convention strays from its authorized agenda, the Congress 
and the courts will step in to rein the runaway "convention" 
back to its proper jurisdiction. However, there are numerous 
scholars who warn that even if Congress passed limiting 
legislation, a convention, once assembled, could reject any, or 
all restrictions on its activity, and assert its supreme 
authority by virtue of its direct authority from the people. 
In other words, a reenactment of the actions of 1787 ' s 
convention. 

With respect to court interjection, former Supreme 
Court Justice Arthur Goldberg has said, "If convention issues 
are not reviewable, then the convention would take place 
outside our system of checks and balances, and the dangers of a 
runaway convention increase. If convention issues are 
reviewable by the courts, then serious enforcement problems 
would arise." 

Professor Lawrence Trive (phonetic spelling), of 
Harvard Law School, believes that even if the myriad legal 
question'S' '~-r-.mmti-mq::.~c1irrconv.,en't;d'l)n,,~e~ ultimate.J.yc.'tr.es.oi ved.;~,!'•a :.: •- · -·.•. 
the very least they would involve domestic political 
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confrontations of nightmarish dimensions between Congress and 
the convention, between Congress and the Supreme Court, and 
between the Supreme Court and the states. 

Convention advocates also offer the ratification 
process by state legislatures as a safe harbor mechanism which 
would guarantee the rejection of any constitutional mischief --
as we have heard again today 
precedent refutes the assurance; 

by such !! convention. Again, 
that i.s, Article V and the 

results of the 1787 convention make it particularly clear that 
in practical terms, Congress may have an extremely 1 imi ted 
watchdog capability over any product of a constitutional 
convention. In 1787, the founding fathers understood ,that 
Congress could avoid sending the new Constitution to the states 
for ratification, because the convention had acted outside its 
1 imi ted authority. They al so understood that the new 
Constitution was unlikely to be ratified by the requisite 
number of state legislatures, by virtue of the new powers 
vested with the Federal government, lessening state autonomy. 

As a result, they by-passed the entire system and 
changed the rules for ratification. At that time, you may 
remember, they excluded Congress and the sending of the 
Constitution to state ratifying conventions, rather than state 
legislatures. Of course, they made sure that the delegates 
were sympathetic to the new charter of government. 

So, too, could the product of a new convention be sent 
to state ratifying conventions, rather than state 
legislatures. Delegates, unlike state legislators, would not 
be selected for their stand on a single issue, and would not be 
answerable to any constituency or campaign finance laws, By 
way of illustration, it shoul? be pointed out that the 21st 
Amendment repealing Prohibition was sent to state ratifying 
conventions, rather than state legislatures, by virtue of the 
controversial nature of the issue and the strong influence of 
special interests on state legislators. 
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Therefore, it might be that the animal that is created 
by us and others could not only run around us, but, as wel 1, 
could in the long run even devour us . 

There are others who would also comment, within the 
realm of those who object to this issue, as! heard before the 

_- statement of approval of this concept by a Nobel laureate in 
economics. We must note that there is another Nobel laureate 
of economics, James Tobin, of Yale, who sees all of this as 
tot~lly problematic, so much so that he is deeply concerned, as 
are Walter Heller and others, -that al 1 of these events could 
destabilize our domestic financial markets and, as well, have a 
major impact on · our Federal and international relations with 
other countries because of domestic economic markets and world 
economic markets impacted by the very existence of a convention. 

My concern overall, fundamentally, is not alone the 
issue, as you can obviously see, of the balanced budget, but 
rather, more significantly, like Governor Hughes, who spoke 
earlier. It cannot be separated from the issue of a 
constitutional convention. This evening I, as a rabbi, like 
many Jews across New Jersey, begin the celebration of the most 
significant of Jewish holidays, a holiday which recalls the 
issue of freedom, well-known by all through the Exodus from 
Egypt. It was a statement for freedom that has been reenacted 
across the years -- reenacted again and again, even here in 
American history. Of course, no one elected the Pharaoh , and 
no one elected Moses, but let us remember as well, that it was 
not much more than 50 years ago, when an individual, in one of 
the most celebrated countries of the world, was able to use the 
system, and then manipulate it to his own concerns, in the hope 
of saving the economic status of his country, Germany . . 

Tonight, approximately 13 million Jews around the 
world will state that we were slaves in Egypt, but are proud 
now t en ... be,;:df;;ree,.,., i.:.-:'.the;1i~.:.Ccns,ti.t u t ion , ~,.o..f._, .. ,-1,the, .. Uni ,ted .Sc~at e.s .. ha s, , , 
ensured that those who 1 i ve here do have freed om. It is an 
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insurance policy of the ultimate kind. I would hope, with 
ultimate concern, that the freedom we have wi 11 be ensured 
again and again through the retention of the Constitution as it 
now exists and, as well, protecting the Constitution as we have 
lived with it for 200 years. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. I hope you will leave 

a copy of your testimony with us. 
RABBI GELFAND: I wi 11 have it retyp~d and resubmitted 

to you tomorrow. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: The reason I would 1 ike to have 

it now is because Mr. Davidson to whom you alluded ·- was 
here before, and he is going to be coming back. I would like 
to have him respond. 

RABBI GELFAND: Will he be here today? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes. He is out to lunch at the 

moment. 
RABBI GELFAND: I will leave this with you, if you 

want. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Or maybe we can have it Xeroxed, 

and you can take it with you. 
I would like to have some clarification about exactly 

who has this hidden agenda, and exactly how they are going to 
manifest it. 

RABBI GELFAND: I think there are a variety of agendas 
which have been stated. Obviously, the two that I alluded to 
in particular were not only that of Mr. Davidson, but, as well, 
another--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I think Mr. Davidson can speak 
for himself, but on your desc~iption of the position of Milton 
Friedman--

RABBI GELFAND: I didn't mention Milton Friedman today. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Yes, you did. 
RABBI GELFAND: No, I mentioned Walter Heller. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: You said Milton Friedman had--
You mentioned him after you mentioned Mr. Davidson. 

RABBI GELFAND: No, after Mr. Davidson I mentioned the 
Presidential Adviser to President Nixon, Herbert Stein. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Well, who was it who wanted the 
gold standard and wage and price controls? 

RABBI GELFAND: That was Stein. I'm sorry, no, excuse 
me. I will have to go back through--

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You did mention Milton Friedman . 
RABBI GELFAND: I would be glad to go through this 

more carefully {referring to his written statement). I'm 
sorry. I did- not state that he -- Milton Friedman-- Rather, 
that Herbert Stein recalled that Milton Friedman was a founder 
of the National Tax Limitation Committee, and was also an 
advocate of the convention. But, I did not speak quoting Mr. 
Friedman; I quoted Mr. Stein. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: What Mr. Reich told us this 
morning, was that many of those who wanted to call a 
convention, have also stated publicly that they want to use the 
convention to achieve ends to achieve constitutional amendments 
other than a proposed budget amendment. 

RABBI GELFAND: I heard him say that, yes. I did not 
say that. I said that there are those who have alternative 
agendas. I did not say it was a majority of those who have--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: No, I am just asking you for any 
of them -- the names of any of them -- who want to have the 
constitutional convention -- this balanced budget convention --
in order to achieve amendments other than a balanced budget 
amendment. 

RABBI GELFAND: I wou,ld be glad to return with that 
information; I would be glad to have it submitted to you 
through People for the American Way. I would be glad to do 
that . Z';,:OJO_ ·, rw':'f.trh:ave,">}.. that :- ; liis t vi n ,'. .. '·£.r:-on t .:-·, ·o f\7me¼'\l'8.nd ;\ \I, '"WO u ltin ·' .-:.: --: ,: ' .-. . · ,. 
want, in any way, to identify anyone with each of those issues 
which I so stated. 
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I only really used that reference -- thought I had it 
in my notes -- by virtue of the fact that Mr. Reich had made 
reference to it, thereby adding an additional paragraph to my 
testimony this morning -- this afternoon. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: You can see why this is such an 
important point. 

RABBI GELFAND: Well, I have so stated that I would be 
more than willing to see that each of those is submitted to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Please do. 
RABBI GELFAND: As I said, it was not a part of my 

presentation until I heard questioning of the fact, as though 
such people had not made such comments. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Dick? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes, Joe. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: There is continual questioning 

by the Chairman and by people who speak in favor of the 
proposal-- There is a suggestion that names should be produced 
-- and I believe that they probably will be in the course of 
time -- as to those persons, or groups, who would have ulterior 
motives in setting up a runaway convention. 

Now, the way I view the Constitution, the Bill of 
Rights, and everything that we basically stand for in this 
country-- Whether it is real or perceived, the document itself 
-- the Constitution itself -- is there to protect. The mere 
fact that the perception is there by certain people that this 
would happen -- the fear of that -- I think is sufficient 
grounds for us to take into consideration the possibility. You 
know, the suggestion that unless you show it to me it can't 
exist-- You know, I don't car~ how long we debate this one, I 
will never buy it. You know, you've got to prove it to me in 
cold black and white. Well, sometimes things do not get proven 
until it is a little too late. I don't think we can take the 
chance, in this day and age, with our country, to allow 
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something like that to happen, based on, well, you know, nobody 
has shown me directly with cold, black and white proof that 
this exists. 

The fact that there are people who sit in homes and in 
forums across this country who believe that the possibility 
exists-- We have the same right to protect them, . as we do to 
protect the people who want the balan~ed budget. Personally, I 
see merit in a balanced budget, but ~hen you have to weigh the 
two 'factors, you know, looking into that colloquy and debate--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay. I respect your views. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I respect the speaker's views, 

too, and I don't think we need to intimidate the people who 
come in front of our Committee, by saying, "Give me the names; 
give me the names; give me the names." 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I am not asking him--
RABBI GELFAND: I thank you. I don't feel in any way 

intimidated. As I stated when I spoke--
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I didn't suggest it was you 

necessarily. 
RABBI No, but I am just saying, I stated 

when I spoke that People for the American Way would be more 
than happy to submit that information to you. 

GELFAND: 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: As someone who has been pursuing 
this issue for years, I have a particular interest in learning 
this information because, al though I have heard over and over 
again from the opponents of those who would use the convention 
to subvert our system, to me, I think we have to act more on 
the basis of fact, than on inchoate fears. To the extent that 
you can clarify this and provide me with facts-- All of us can 
be guided by that. Thank you. 

RABBI GELFAND: Would you like this information sent 
directly to you? 

ASSEMB-L~ .:.,t ,.Zl·MMER ; ,,:· 'f~ :1send.-.• :/.it,.;-;:~~~tO-/.;;.,~.t,he t.,, .. ,';_COmrni:.t:t ·e s...; ·, .,:-,·.;. · 
please. It will be included in the transcript. 
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copy 

RABBI GELFAND: Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: And, 

of the page that refers 
if you could get 

to Mr. Davidson, 
a Xerox 
I would 

appreciate it. Thank you. 
Mr. Daniel Mitchell, Citizens for a Sound Economy. 

D A N I E L J. M I T C H E L L: Ladies and gentlemen of 
the Committee, I would like to t~ank you very much . for the 
opportunity to speak before you on :an issue of such importance 
to t,he future of this country. My name is Daniel Mitchell. I 
am speaking on behalf of Citizens for a Sound Economy, a 
250,000-member public policy organization dedicated to policies 
promoting economic growth. 

I am especially happy to be here since Dr. Buchanon 
has been mentioned several times, and this testimony-- I am a 
student of Dr. Buchanan's in the Doctoral Program in Economics 
at George Mason University, and I know he has a special concern 
with issues like this. He wants to put constraints on Congress 
for the betterment of this country. 

I am also glad to be here to offer some alternative 
economic opinions, especially since at times in this testimony 
we have gotten a special interest reinterpretation of economic 
history that is, frankly, far from the facts. 

I think we all share a concern that Federal government 
deficits are a threat to the long-term stability of the 
American economy. The issue here is not whether government 
spending is too high or too low. Such normative issues are 
debated in Washington, D.C ., all the time. What is at issue is 
the unconstrained abi 1 i ty of pol icyrnakers to shift the burden 
of today's government spending onto future generations, for 
this is what deficit spending does. The national debt, which . 
is the accumulation of all past deficits, is not just money we 
owe ourselves. It is debt we incur that our children must pay. 

The national debt currently approaches $2. 3 tr i 11 ion. 
This figure is nearly, and will soon surpass, $10,000 for every 
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man, woman, and child in the country. Only 10 years ago, in 
1977, the national debt was $709 billion. In just one decade, 
politicians of both parties have tripled the burden we place on 
the backs of generations yet to come. 

This is not to say there are not hi~h present costs to 
.deficit spending. Interest payments - on the national debt this 
fiscal year are projected to be nea;ly $140 billion. This is 
the third largest i tern in the bud9et, after welfare spending 
and '-,defense. Indeed, if it were not for the past deficits 
which necessitate $140 billion in interest payments, the 
deficit would almost be balanced this year. 

America has been fortunate, at least - in the 
short-term, because so much of our government debt is being 
purchased by foreigners for investment purposes . In effect, 
the trade deficit has saved us by giving foreigners dollars, 
which they have been using for investment in the United 
States. Table 1 in the testimony indicates how foreign 
investments have offset government deficits. 

Another immediate cost of deficit spending is that 
funds which could be used for capital investment are being 
soaked up by the Federal government. Naturally, the impact 
this has on our competitiveness should not be understated. 
With so much government borrowing, interest rates are certainly 
higher than they would otherwise be, and private investors are 
driven out of the market. Whether they cause a factory to 
close, prevent a family from purchasing a home, or preclude a 
consumer from buying a car, high interest rates caused by 
Federal government borrowing impose costs on the economy. 

An analytic investigation of historical figures 
indicates deficits are the re~ul t of an unparalleled increase 
in government spending. Since Fiscal Year 1980, Federal 
government spending has increased by $425 billion, more than 
daub 1 e the:1., .. ,,inc.ma..se;..St i.ni,.,,,_ (i 13:£.ra.tion,. .. , .. ,.''i•;:~·Eu.rth.er.,mar~:e'"i"•' '0~E.edera.1 i, 
government spending as a percent of GNP has reached 24%, 
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considerably higher than the 20% postwar average. If Federal 
government spending had only kept pace with inflation since 
1980, the budget would be in surplus today. 

Contrary to popular perception, the deficit cannot be 
attributed to tax cuts. Federal government tax collections 
have jumped by $325 billion since Fiscal Year 1980. Tax 
revenues have grown by almost double the inflation rate, and 
are running higher than their po~twar average as a percentage 
of ·GNP. It is theoretically possible tha,t additional tax 
increases could solve the deficit, but it certainly would not 
do the economy any good. 

I would like to note at this time that the fact that 
Congress makes economic choices which harm the nation does not 
necessarily imply that they consciously put their own electoral 
interests ahead of the interests of the country. Another Nobel 
Prize winner in economics has written a great deal on the 
unintended consequences of human action. I think the deficit 
spending by Congress is certainly evidence of legislators, who 
might otherwise be well-intentioned, making choices that are 
not in the best interests of the country. 

My remarks so far have been directed at the need for a 
balanced budget amendment. Some people claim they are for a 
balanced budget amendment, but against a constitutional . 
convention . My point is that if you agree with my previous 
comments, that restraints have to be placed on Washington 
policymakers if this country is to experience long-term 
economic health, then any route which would do so, including a 
constitutional convent ion, is both proper and necessary. 
Finally, fears raised by convention opponents on both the right 
and left should be exposed to tpe unfavorable light of reality. 

Reflexive opposition to a constitutional convention 
indicates a distrust for the founding fathers, who, in their 
wisdom, recognized that there would be times when the people . 
would need to by-pass an unresponsive Congress to make 
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necessary changes. Opponents should recognize that Congress is 
the group that gave us the deficit crisis; they are hardly 
likely to solve it. They resist anything which would rein in 
their powers. Indeed -- as has been expressed already today --
Congress only passed the 17th Amendment, al lowing the direct 
election of Senators, when the individual states were on the 
brink of calling a const~tutional convention for that purpose. 

It might very :well be the case that New Jersey, by 
becoming the 33rd state to call for a constitutional 
convention, couid force Congress to take action. Many 
political observers are confident that this would be the case. 
However, even if Congress refused, and a convention were 
necessary, this is not a cause for alarm . 

First of all, most opponents of the convention are 
simply against it because they oppose a balanced budget 
amendment. They feel the special interests they support would 
somehow suffer if fewer Federal dollars were distributed . This 
may be true, but this decision should be made on the basis of 
what is best for the nation. Some opponents of the convention, 
particularly professed supporters of balanced budgets, simply 
fear the unknown. Their attitude is, if we don't know what 
will happen, it must be bad. 

This know-nothing attitude is often mixed in with talk 
of conspiracy. Supposedly, eastern liberals will secretly take 
control of a convention and pass a host of proposed amendments 
with terrible results . I don't believe we need to waste the 
Committee's time discussing such nonsense. 

Furthermore, the endless debate on whether a--
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: How about the southern 

conservatives -- what would they do? . 
MR. MITCHELL: If they were at a convention? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Joe, Joe , let him finish his 

testimony. ·< .. ' ' 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: 
reflection on eastern liberals. 

I take umbrage with the 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Joe, let him--
ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: I worry about southern 

conservatives. I'll be back after he is finished talking. 
MR. MITCHELL: I was deriding those who were accusing 

eastern liberals of somehow having a conspiracy. 
Furthermore, the endless debate on whether a 

convention can be limited is also a poor use of time. Let us 
examine the worst case scenario. Assume radicals of whatever 
persuasion got control of a convention somehow. Also assume 
they passed out amendments on their pet issues. Is this 
something to be feared? Absolutely not. Any and every 
amendment passed by a constitutional convention must still be 
ratified by 38 states. The claim that radical amendments will 
somehow leap this hurdle is preposterous. 

Even an amendment with as much support as the ERA was 
unable to muster 38 states. The D. C. Voting Rights Amendment 
did not even get approved by 20 states. Proposed amendments 
dealing with school prayer and abortion have never even made it 
out of one house of Congress. Notwithstanding the relative 
mer i ts or demer its of all these possible amendments, the 
process has stopped them al 1. No realistic appraisal of the 
ratification process indicates a "bad" amendment could make it 
through. 

Ironica l ly, those who would threaten us with the 
specter of an unlimited "runaway" convention lose sight of the 
fact that one already exists. The Congress of the United 
States has the very powers which are supposedly 
unrestrainable . They can pass whatever amendments they wish, 
but they don ' t . 

In conclusion, I would like to recall the words of 
Thc;,· ,3. s J eff er son, who noted: "I wish it were possible to 
or: ~in a s i ng le amendment to our Constitution. I would be 
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willing to depend on that alone for the reduction of the 
administration of our government to the genuine principles of 
the Constitution. I mean an additional article, taking _ from 
the Federal government the power of borrowing." 

Our Constitution is celebrating its 200th birthday 
this year. I can think of no better way to celebrate its 
bicentennial than to take Thomas Jefferson's plea to heart. 

I would like to add one final point. In observing the 
testimony, the issue seems to boi 1 down to this: There is a 
chance, albeit it small, that a convention might run away. 
Compare this slim possibility to the real and present danger of 
fiscal irresponsibility. Nations have collapsed because no 
safeguards existed guarding against poor economic decisions. I 
understand the concern some of the opponents have; however, I 
believe their fears are much more likely to be realized if we 
fail to take action. Nazi Germany never would have come about 
if they did not have the economic collapse. You know, 
certainly there is a one in a 1000 chance, perhaps, that we 
would get bad things out of a constitutional convention. I 
don't even think it is that high. I think the chances are much 
higher that we will get terrible consequences if we do not put 
our fiscal house in order. 

Once again, I thank you for giving me the opportunity 
to testify on behalf of CSE. I will be happy to answer any 
questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much. I regret 
those on this Committee who would have learned the most from 
your testimony are not here, but I appreciate your 
contribution. Thank you. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank Y?U, 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Bill Cleary, State Director, New 

Jersey Chapter, National Federation of Independent Business. 
w I L LL If..;1 (•1M·~- ! C.lfI:,-V E.:.,A·.i:..R,;;;.Y;.i,~ . ..Thank,..:Y,OU,;1\..Mr-;:::o.Cha:i.nman . .-. .,.:::, .. In.-.:.thc1..- ,:,_ ·'-: ' ·.•'•., 
interest of time, the smal 1 business owners of New Jersey, as 
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well as nationally, see the ever-growing deficit at the Federal 
level as the number one concern of small business owners all 
across the country. They also see that your bill -- ACR-54 --
is not a first shot at addressing this problem. The 
Constitution is a great document. This is not an attempt to 
circumvent that document, but an opportunity to use Article V 
of this great document as a last resort. 

We have seen many, many attempts by our legislative 
leaders at the Federal level to rectify the problem of an 
ever-growing deficit. The capital needs of our Federal 
government compete with the needs of small entrepreneurs, and 
even medium and large companies. We compete with that growing 
debt. Someone said something before about raising taxes. Many 
people will support an effort to raise taxes to support new 
programs with bona fide social goals. Many people, however, 
object strenuously to raising taxes in order to pay the debts 
of moneys already spent. 

That is what we are looking to -- the future -- as our 
children come into their taxpaying years. The story a little 
while ago of the fisherman throwing dynamite overboard to catch 
fish reminded me of the similar way in which government taxes 
its business owners. Just throw the dynamite overboard and see 
what comes to the surface . Unfortunately, you kill many small 
businesses in that effort. That is what the deficit is doing 
to small firms today. 

We wholeheartedly support the State Chamber's 
position, that of Senator Byrd and Representative Halbrook and, 
of course, Lance Lamberton 

I submitted more 
for your review later on, 
the statements made by 
endorsed by us. 

Thank you. 

and his group. 
detailed testimony to Don Margeson 

but in the interest of time, most of 
my predecessors will certainly be 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you for attending. 
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I would like to ask Vera Roche, from the Eagle Forum, 
to speak now. Vera? (no response) Bernice MacDonald, 
American Association of University Women? 
B E R N I C E B. M A C D O N A L D: I am Bernice 
MacDonald, a member of the New Jersey Division Legislative 
Committee of the American Association of University Women, and 
I am sp_eaking for the 5500 members of the New Jersey Division 
of AAUW:. At this point, I wish to thank you for the privilege 
of '·$peaking before this Committee to give our position in 
opposition to ACR-54. I would also like to compliment you for 
holding this second hearing, but wish it could have been held 
at a better time. 

We are strongly opposed to ACR-54 which, in effect, 
cal ls for a constitutional convention. It is known that 32 of 
the 34 states required have been passed. It is also known that 
at least 16 states have done so without holding public 
hearings, debates, or taking a recorded vote. 

We are not opposed to a balanced budget, but however 
desirable a balanced budget may seem, calling a constitutional 
convention restricted to the consideration of a balanced budget 
amendment, where there are really no guidelines or guarantees, 
is like playing Russian roulette with our Constitution. 

Article V of the United States Constitution provides 
two methods of amending the Constitution. We are all aware of 
that, so I will not go into it. The first method which is 
the traditional method -- has worked. If, indeed, there was a 
public outcry for a balanced budget amendment, wouldn't 
Congress react and present such an amendment to the states? 
They have. But, in 1982, an amendment was presented to 
Congress. It passed in the ~enate, but was defeated in the 
House. This year the reverse occurred. 

Whatever the need for a balanced budget amendment, a 
Con St it uti.onal ·,\ •,~, <:OD.,v,en,t,.i:on,'.,:,. ,.t :pose.st~ ;,:;,,V-e.T0y ~:A.~s-i.gnJ·,f :i can .... , · 7,~}:clanqe-r:~1./ ':•· 

There is a question as to the constitutionality of calling a 
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convention for a single issue. Even the term, "balanced 
budget," carries with it a multiplicity of interpretations. It 
might include balancing budgets by restricting appropriations 
for a wide variety of purposes, including education. Let us 
c~nsider that the delegates chosen to the constitutional 
convention -- and, at this point, ther~ are no guidelines on 
how to choose these delegates -- decide, once convened, that 
they are going to ignore both Congress ~nd the court's efforts 
to 1imit its scope. Might not the constitutional convention do 

' what the Federal convention held in Philadelphia in 1787 did to 
the Articles of Confederation? 

Are you willing to risk 200 years of constitutional 
stability to risk a runaway convention a convention which 
might seek to impose its own agenda? In the case that this 
should occur, this country would be thrown into a great 
turmoil, but the ramifications would not stop there. The 
world, which has looked to the United States for stabi 1 i ty, 
would be thrown into confusion and turmoi 1 unequaled in the 
annals of history. 

What is certain is that the consequences of calling a 
convention will be far-reaching. We do not know what financial 
and political consequences will result, and we do not know how 
the delegates are to be chosen, who the delegates will be, who 
will control the convention, or even what special interest 
groups will influence the convention. 

We do know, though, that if there are 34 valid 
petitions presented to Congress for 
convention, Congress is obliged to call a 

a constitutional 
convention. There 

are no precedents for determining the validity of petitions, or 
if a state wishes to withdraw its petition, if it is valid. 

Arthur J. Goldberg, former Justice of the Supreme 
Court, said: "The Cons ti tut ion of the United States is a 
document of inspiration. It is our legend . and our hope, the 
opinion of our minds and spirit; it is our defense and 
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protection; our teacher and our continuous example in the quest 
for equality, dignity, and opportunity for all people of this 
nation. It is an instrument of practical and viable government 
and a declaration of faith faith in the spirit of liberty 
and freedom." 

Are you willing to put in jeopardy this document which 
embodies all that we are as Americans, to the chance that 
perhaps the constitutional convention will not occur and 
Con~~ess will send out a balanced budget amendment to the 
states? Or perhaps the worst might happen, and the system of 
government we value might be thrown out and a new Constitution 
put into place as it was in 1787, which totally changed our 
system of government. 

The New Jersey Di.vision of the American Association of 
University Women strongly urges this Committee not to vote 
ACR-54 out of Committee -- which you have already said you 
would do. Your constituents will be glad that you served their 
'best interests, and you wi 11 have served the people of New 
Jersey in a most positive way. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. Are there any 

questions? Joe? (no response) Jim Davidson, from the 
National Taxpayers Association, has returned. I wi 11 ask him 
to testify now, and will pose a question to him after his 
testimony, giving him an opportunity to answer Rabbi Gelfand ' s 
statement. 
J A M E S D A L E DAV IDS ON: Thank you very much. 
Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee: I appreciate very 
much the opportunity to bring you my views, and those of many 
thousands of New Jersey residents who are supporters and 
members of the National Taxpayers Union, about what I believe 
is truly the most important issue facing this country, and I 
think, b:y:;,ex.tetlS'i-on..,. :the:,,.mq&t "..• imppr-t;.an,t , .... i.s-sue,,~th.a.t: ·:,is, . .-.eoing:, . .to ... . , ... ~. 
be decided in terms of the direction that the leading country 
in the free world is going to take. 
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You heard Representative Halbrook raise two very 
important questions. One was, "Can you name a country which is 
great because it is deeply in debt?" and the other was, "Can 
you name a country which is in great trouble because it is 
deeply in debt?" I think those questions should bear on your 
mind, because we can all think of ~ountries which are in deep 
trouble, but very few of us can 1:hink of countries that have 
been successful because, indeed, none have. But I think beyond 
the .. question of the need for a balanced budget amendment --
which I would like to address in a moment -- there is a greater 
question, which has been raised here on the 200th anniversary 
of our Constitution, and practically corning down : 200 years 
almost to the week that the constitutional convention began, 
when the founding fathers put forth a document which I believe 
has served this country quite well. 

We have heard a number of people say that the 
constitutional convention which met in 1787 was a runaway 
convention. They don ' t say they regret that it did, but then 
they turn around and say they think we cannot allow the people 
of the United States to elect delegates to another 
constitutional convention. They pretend they are defenders of 
this Constitution, and yet if you read the Constitution, it is 
quite obvious that the founding fathers intended the states, 
and the people, through the state legislatures, to be able to 
propose amendments . They say, 
convention could be limited." 

"Well, we can't be sure that a 
The American Bar Association, 

the Dean of the Harvard Law School, and other reputable experts 
said it could be 1 irni ted, but let's suppose they are right. 
Let's suppose we cannot ensure that a convention will be 
limited . 

My question is: So what? So what? The Congress of 
the United States, which is an unlimited constitutional 
convention which sits day and night-- It cannot be limited in 
its deliberations. There is no way in the world we can stop 
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members of Congress or members of the United States Senate from 
proposing constitutional amendments that might, for example, 
impinge upon the Bill of Rights. Indeed, in the 99th Congress, 
more than 115 amendments were proposed on every subject under 
the sun. This didn't bother anybody, and it shouldn ' t bother 
anybody. Nobody today wou l d say, or believe, or provide any 

· credence at all, to someone who stood up and said, "I believe I 
am protecting this Constitution, and the way I am going to 
prot,ect it is, I am going to dissolve the Congress of the 
United States, and I am going to urge that no further elections 
for Congress be permitted for either the House of 
Representatives or the United States Senate. The reason I am 
doing this is because there is no way to limit the 
deliberations of the House and Senate when it comes to 
proposing amendments that might infringe on the Bill of Rights . " 

What would we th i nk of somebody who made such an 
argument? We would rightly say he was attacking the 
Constitution, not that he was defending it; that he did not 
believe in the basic principle which makes this great country 
what it is and, indeed, which every member of this Committee 
embodies by his being an elected official . That principle is , 
the people should have a decision about the direction of 
government. What those who say you cannot trust the people to 
elect a constitutional convention are saying is, a special 
election, in America, is a greater risk to our future than 
national bankruptcy. 

I put it to you as thinking people that that cannot be 
right. If this were Russia, or South Africa, or some other 
country which does not allow freedom for the people to speak, 
then somebody might say, yes, the established order would be 
threatened if we had an election. But, a special election to 
bring men and women to a constitutional convention to consider 
a ba 1 ano.ed: r. budg.et ., ... .ame.ndmen.t., .• d .. s, ,,.tl.a..t .... _go,ing~, ,.~to .. ,,,j .e.o.p ard iz.e.•,~,·thi.s . 
country's future. What is jeopardizing it now , and what will 
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bring, in my view, a depression that wi11 shake the world if we 
don't do something to head it off, it;; the continued pileup, 
willy-nilly, of debt, which has squandered, in one generation, 
the inheritance of centuries, which has made us no longer the 
world's richest creditor nation, but the biggest debtor, 
greater by far than the debts 
Argentina, the debts of Mexico, 

of Brazil,. the debts of 
the debts of al 1 of Africa 

combined, in only a few short years. 
This, it seems to me, is the danger. When we ask what 

the Constitution stands for, and who these people were -- these 
great people who started this country -- we ought to also 
remember that a lot of voices at that time said, "No, no, you 
can't trust the people. You can't trust the people. I dread 
the idea that the people are going to have their say." In 
fact, a long time ago, at the time of our Revolution, a 
newspaper called The Evening Post wrote a little story. It was 
a satire, but they were suggesting the things -- what they 
called, what patriots fear, the reasons why people did not want 
to join in, in supporting self-government, which is what we are 
talking about. These were the reasons: "I fear I shal 1 lose 
my office. I shall lose the rent of my house for two years or 
three . The common people wi 11 have too much power in their 
hands . I fear New Englanders will turn into Goths or Vandals 
and overrun this country." These are the things in quotes. 

A man named Edward Rutledge, who was a delegate to 
Congress from South Carolina, said, "I dread their overruling 
influence in councils. I dread their low cunning, those 
leveling principles which men without character and fortune in 
general possess, which are so captivating to the lower class of 
mankind ." So, there have always been voices weak-minded . 
people, and people of smal 1 spirit, who have said, "You cannot 
trust the American people." If we had listened to them in the 
very beginning-- If the great people, including Thomas 
Jefferson, whose 244th birthday is today, had listened to these 
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naysayers, we never would have embarked on the constitutional 
experiment as we did. 

These founding fathers gave us two methods for 
amending the Constitution with good reason because they 
understood that there can be a time when the self-interest of 
people stands in the way _-of their concern for the public good. 
They did not want the Co~gress itself to be the only judge of 
what should be done in t~rms of reforming the Congress . It is 
not •a mystery, and it is not a coincidence that of the 26 
amendments that have been passed to this Constitution, only one 
impinges upon the career interests of Congressmen, and that was 
the amendment for the direct election of s .enators. It ·.ras that 
amendment which was passed only under the bludgeon of the 
constitutional convention threat, when the states , in 1912, 

came within one state of convening a convention. It was then 
that the members of Congress -- the United States Senate in 
particular -- said, "Okay, folks, we have lost this battle. We 
are going to have direct election of Senators whether we like 
it as Senators or not. We better get busy and propose an 
amendment, and propose it in such a way that members of 
Congress, or Senators who are now sitting in office will not be 
obliged to seek election immediately, but will be able to fill 
out their terms of off ice," which is what they did. Only one 
of the 26 amendments passed to this Constitution impinges upon 
the career interests of those members of Congress who had to 
vote for it, and that was the one where the insistence of the 
states played the largest role . 

Now, a lot of people have said that the convention 
procedure under Article Vis somehow untrustworthy, or it isn't 
legitimate, or they want to ~ake it illegitimate. They are 
trying to turn it into a dead lette r . My point would be, you 
cannot name one part of the Constitution which has as many 
checks -and;,;.maJ..-mr0-es~11s..o·n,\.;,i't1ci--.a::s~:t,t-he ~ 11:,co.nve n t j:on -::.·'..p r,ocedure"' :, un-de-... · -·,;, ·, ·· 
Article V, because not only must hearings be held, and both 
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houses of 34 states pass convention calls, but then, as 
President Lincoln analyzed at great length, you have to have 
people elected to the constitutional convention. They will run 
on this issue. They will be asked what proposals to alter the 
Constitution they might favor. They will be asked if they wish 
to keep it to a single subject, as I believe almost everyone 
elected would. Then, through all this process, it comes back 
to the Congress of the United States, which alone :can determine 
the mode of ratification. 

After that, 38 states have to ratify it. Thirty-eight 
states would not ratify anything as innocuous as the ERA. How 
in the world can we anticipate, as logical people, that 38 
states are going to dissolve the country? The very fact that 
al 1 of these groups have been raised in opposition, spreading 
these fears of a convention, is itself proof that the fears are 
groundless, because there would be nobody, practically in the 
whole political landscape, left to do all of the horrible 
things and unmentionable things that they suggest would happen. 

I would love to know from some of these people, other 
than vague threats that we are going to repeal the Bi 11 of 
Rights -- which no one could possibly support -- what it is 
they are actually afraid is going to happen? The real danger, 
it seems to me, with Article V and the convention procedure 
providing states the method of proposing amendments, is exactly 
one which was addressed in the very beginning of this country, 
when , in 1787, The New York Journal wrote a story which said 
the problem was not that the conventions would happen all the 
time, that the conventions would run amuck, that they would 
change the Constitution, but rather that it would be very, very 
difficult, if not impossible: for a convention ever to be 
held. This editorial said: "The legislatures of two-thirds of 
the states must agree in desiring a convention to be called. 
This will probably never happen, but if it should happen, then 
the convention may agree to the amendments or not, as they 
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think right. And, after all, three-fourths of the states must 
ratify the amendments. Before all this labyrinth can be traced 
to a conclusion, ages will evolve. People once possessed of 
power are always loath to part with it. The greater the 
occasion there may be for a reformation, the less likelihood 
there will be of accomplishing it." 

I believe they hit it right on the beam when they said 
that. We have seen plenty of evidence that it is very, very 
difficult to get the Congress to reform itself. I don't say 
that to impugn the motives of members -of Congress, -but rather 
to face reality. As the years passed, the deficit has gotten 
bigger and bigger, and there is no hint at al 1 that it wi 11 
ever be brought under control. We are at the top of the 
business cycle. We have been five years on an up time . It is 
the second longest upturn in our economy since the Second Wo r ld 
War, and we are still running a deficit of $200 billion. 

There is absolutely no evidence that the Congress will 
bring this problem under control . There is only one way it can 
be done, and it can only be done by people like you taking the 
leadership role, the same kind of leadership role that was 
taken by the great founders of this country when they made the 
decision to trust the people. I think i t is strange, and it is 
somewhat sad, in our 200th anniversary of a Constitution that 
has worked so well, that I have to sit here, and others have 
had to sit here, and defend the Constitution, and defend the 
principle that the people are competent to give direction to 
this government. This, after al 1, as I was taught with pride 
when I was a child, is the government of the people, for the 
people, and by the people . I don't believe we should expect, 
or think, that the American pe~ple today are going to turn into 
Goths and Vandals any more than they did in the very beginning, 
when this Constitution was put into place and set in motion by 
those w~,se(;;pe.o.p.le ,:: wh.ooie4;:ge:t.iu~.-twas.i, :to :·\&eB,..,,t.oot. hs.the,y ,.,,e.o.u.l d-:.tr u s:: . · ., , . , 
the people. 
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A lot of other things have been said here, and I would 
like to address some of the particular comments that seem to me 
to be in need of answering. 

Somebody asked the question, or suggested that 
resolutions had to be identical in wording. Again, this seems 
to me to prove too much. If you read the ratification messages 
by which the Constitution was brought into being and, indeed, 
the amendments that were ratified by state legislatures over 
the ·' centuries, you find that the Constitution itself could not 
be held to the same tests which those objecting to the balanced 
budget calls would apply. For example, when the income tax 
amendment was ratified, many states put in a provision saying, 
"We ratify this on the proviso that the income tax not be 
higher than 7%," and other things which have certainly long 
since gone by the board. The common sense rule ought to be the 
one we follow. If you read the 32 state cal ls, these are the 
ones that are calls for a convention on the balanced budget 
issue. Other states have passed other resolutions that came 
close, but we never count them. Our opponents don't count them. 

The question has been asked, "How can you prove that a 
convention can be limited?" I think the answer -- as I have 
indicated -- is, what difference does it make? You cannot 
prove that the Congress of the United States should be 1 imi ted 
in its deliberations on the Constitution, because we know that 
it can ' t be, and yet that doesn't cause anybody in this country 
to lose a minute's sleep, because the basic good sense of the 
American people is the only guarantee that we really need that 
the Constitution is going to be preserved in its essentials. I 
know of no group, no person, no organized effort to 
fundamentally change the Const_i tut ion, except for the talking 
group that Mr. Cutler has put together, and these people are 
opposed to a constitutional convention themselves. They are 
expecting the Congress to put their Constitution into effect 
after the system collapses. Those people who are interested in 
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seeing a new Constitution will do their best work by stopping 
efforts to reform the system, rather than letting it go down 
the drain . . 

Somebody else questioned the whole idea of whether the 
Constitution should include limits on budget deficits. Well, I 
would point out that every locality in this country, with a few 
exceptions, 
spending. 
beginning. 
the United 
broke. It 

and practically every state, has~ limit on deficit 
Most of these limits did not exist in the 
In the 1830s and '40s, about half of the states in 
States at that time, or a third of them, went 
was at that time that we started putting these 

limits on states, because it was necessary to prevent· 
bankruptcy. The Swiss Constitution has such a limit in it; the 
German Constitution has such a limit. If you go right back to 
the Magna Charta, the greatest points of the Magna Charta were 
limits on the spending power of the King. So, the entire 
history of constitutions right back to the Magna Charta 
justifies putting in a limit on Federal deficits. 

Another group of people has argued that we can't trust 
the public..,;.- We can't trust the American Constitution as it 
now stands, because under the Articles of Confederation a 
convention met and produced the great Constitution that we all 
support today. Well, again, at the time of the Articles of 
Confederation, the American states were less bound together 
than the European Economic Community is today. We actually had 
internal terrorists. The laws that were passed were laws that 
more or less took effect with the agreement of the states, or, 
if they didn't agree, that was that. There is no more analogy 
between what went on under the Articles of Confederation than 
what happened to the last Bou~gogne King of France as compared 
to what might happen under today's French Constitution. 

Someone quoted James Madison as saying that he 
tremb 1 ed .:.}.atL i!.the,~,1l:thoug;ht..;,to£'-,.t .. a:,;.-:i!se:c'.anrl:::.,,,c·on'Me.nt.i.o.D.:.- '..,',and"'...he.r: .. did >. :· · 
But he was speaking then at a time before the government had 
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actually taken effect, before the Congress had met, before the 
President had been elected, before the new government of the 
United States had taken hold, because there was a plan to write 
the Bill of Rights in a second convention, before the 
Constitution was allowed to take effect. Obviously, today we 

:no longer have the worry that a convention could take charge of 
the whole Constitution, for the very good and simple reason 
that the convention has no power. Nobody has ever said that a 
convention has the power to write laws, to raise taxes -- it 
couldn't even pay its bills. It has no power. It cannot 
declare war. It can do only one thing: propose. As 
Representative Halbrook pointed out, that doesn't change the 
Cons ti tut ion; it only leaves it to the states to accept or 
reject the proposal. 

Those who have said that we cannot trust the American 
people are afraid of ideas. They are afraid that somebody is 
going to come up with an idea that some dumb American citizens 
-- in a majority -- are all going to jump up and support, and 
then they would presume equally stupid state legislators are 
going to announce their support for it. Three-quarters of them 
are going to ratify it. Mathematically, if even 4% of the 
American people are opposed to an amendment if they are the 
right 4% -- it is possible to prevent ratification, because 4% 
of this population in the United States today elects the 
majority in the 13 smallest legislatures in at least one house. 

Now, somebody else has said that there is a big flaw 
in the theory that we should not be running down our nation's 
inheritance, that we should not be going deeply into debt 
around the world, because inflation had come down, while the 
deficits continue to run. I want to say that the idea that we 
need to balance the budget is not a theory; that inflation is 
the only bad thing that can come from deficits, because in the 
history of the world, lots of times big debts have been run up 
and they have been repudiated by deflation, as well as by 
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inflation. I am afraid that one or the other of these two 
devils is going to overtake this country. 

Also, no one argues that there should never be a 
deficit. I think Lord Keynes made a strong case that there 
should be deficits at some times, and others have agreed with 
that case. But, Keynes himself would not have said tha~ there 
should be a deficit at all times, and that every yea!'.", good 
year or bad, lean year or boom, we should be borrowing : against 
the '.future, because some day or other, these debts have to be 
paid. The American people are going to pay them. The average 
high school student in New Jersey is going to have to pay an 
additional $7000 to $10,000 in taxes in his or her lifetime, 
just to pay the interest on the current year's deficit. 

There are many other fallacies and arguments which I 
think people may not seriously believe which have been raised 
here as confusions about the basic issue. Someone said, "No 
one can tell who the delegates to a convention will be. " Wel l , 
no one today can tell who the teams in the World Series will be 
in the fall, but that doesn ' t stop the World Series from coming 
off reasonably well. 

So, the point I make, I think, as we look at this 
basic issue, is that we have to decide, as an American people, 
whether we believe in America, whether we believe in the great 
principles this country was founded on, or whether we don ' t, 
and whether we think it is worth moving forward to try t o 
resolve and reform those problems which are clearly defects in 
our system today. I believe there is no possibility for the 
United States to avoid a precipitous f al 1 of 1 i ving standards 
that would imperil the middle class and also, not incidentally, 
put our freedoms in jeopardy, tf we continue to follow the same 
policies that have put Brazil and Argentina and Mexico and so 
many other countries into bankruptcy. We cannot have Lat in 
Amer i c ant,!fJ.1i :smal.~ 0l.i.cyh Wti:t:hoaJ.t,:.r:uJ: t ti mat e-1 Y"''•,havin.g·->:L,a t ?ih'• '-Arne·r- i 'C'ar(; '. · ,,. · 
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results. That doesn't mean the country would disappear. It 
doesn't mean it would blow up, or that it would go away. But 
it does mean that a lot of good people would have their hopes 
~or a better life destroyed, and a lot of the freedoms we take 
for granted would be put in jeopardy in the emotional aftermath 
of such a problem. 

In Japan today, there are 150 Jews, and there are two 
best-selling books at the top of the best-seller list in Japan 
that have sold 600,000 copies. These books ., blame the entire 
problems of Japan -- because they have had a fall in their 
economic progress; they have their worst year of the last 12--
These two books blame all of the problems of Japan on Jews. I 
think we are going to see a similar kind of irrationality, like 
the irrationality that surrounds the question of the 
convention, if we continue to see a fall of middle-class living 
standards in this country. 

So, I think the people who are really concerned about 
preserving our Constitution: a) believe in it as it is 
written; and b) will do the things necessary to keep the middle 
class whole to prevent an impoverishment of the great solid 
majority of people who pay the bills, and upon whose economic 
prosperity the foundations of this country rest. 

So, anyway, that is my view. I very much hope you 
will show the leadership that is necessary to add New Jersey to 
this list of states that have called for action. I am 
convinced that if New Jersey does act, this will be what is 
required to get the Congress off dead center to pass a balanced 
budget reform. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. While you were out of 
the room, Rabbi Gelfand read~ prepared statement, which said, 
in part, that many of those who are arguing that a 
constitutional convention can be limited, have themselves 
proposed other subjects which should be considered by a 
convention ostensibly called to consider a balanced budget 
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amendment. He mentioned you by name, and quoted from the Los 
Angeles Times an interview with you, where the inference was 
that, although you say you can have a limited constitutional 
convention, you, yourself, as a declared candidate for 
delegate, would support a broader agenda at that convention. 
Is that correct? 

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, let me put this in perspective. 
I think, again, that -- as I said -- the entire fascination on 
the ·; question of whether the convention can ,be limited or not 
limited, misses the basic point that it is always limited by 
the good sense of the American public, and by the good sense of 
the state legislators, who are the only real check on the 
Congress. I mean, the Congress is already, as it sits every 
day and every night, an unlimited convention. Now, if another 
group of people came together elected by the American people, I 
don ' t think it would make one dime ' s worth of difference 
whether they said they were limited or said they weren't 
limited, because ultimately what comes out of that convention 
is going to be what the American people want. If 
three-quarters of the state legislatures ratify it, I think 
that is democracy in action. 

What I said to The Los Angeles Times was something 
very different from what the good rabbi was quoting me as 
meaning. I don't wish to be understood as saying what he said 
I said. In fact, when I talked to The Los Angeles Time s 
reporter, he said, "How can you keep the delegates from talking 
about other issues?" My question is, why should we want to 
keep the delegates from talking about other issues? I think 
that a group that meets like that might very well talk about 
anything, but I think the amendment they would propose -- and I . 
would be opposed to anything other than this -- would be one 
that was addressed toward the issue of balancing the Federal 
budget. 
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I pointed out in that interview that there is no firm 
way of describing what should be in a balanced budget 
amendment. 
might be 
perfectly 

It was mentioned earlier that a line item veto 
part of a balanced budget amendment. That is 
legitimate. When the Congress of the United States 

considered the balanced budget proposals, which they have done 
several times, some ~f those proposals, including one authored 
by Senator Dixon of ~llinois, said we should -- said the line 
i tern veto should be part of it. If it is legitimate for the 
Congress to consider a line item veto, why isn't it legitimate 
for a convention? 

I also pointed out that th,ere are other ways of 
assuring that the budget could be balanced. I particularly 
said that one way of handling it would be to call for 
referendums among the public for times when a deficit should be 
necessary. With the electronic media we have today, it is very 
easy to have a referendum. I pointed that out not because I 
think that is likely to happen, but because it is a way of 
putting pressure under the Congress, because members of 
Congress have these concerns. Not only do they want an 
amendment in place that they can live with -- so they much 
rather write it themselves, I believe -- but they also do not 
want to have a situation where individuals are elected in their 
own congressional districts who might then later be candidates 
against them when they stand for reelection. 

So, I stand by what I said. I don't appreciate my 
words being carried out of context, but I think I understand 
why the people who are opposed to balancing the budget do that, 
because they haven't a very strong 
arguing against balancing the budget, 
deflect attention to red herrings and 
they, in turn, are analyzed carefully, 
a problem than anyone would think. 
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As I pointed out a few minutes ago, nobody would jump 
up and applaud if some self-styled protector of the 
Constitution came forward and said, "We can no longer afford to 
have elections, to have the Congress of the United States meet, 
because no one can prove, in advance, that some delegate with 
unlimited amendment proposal powers, might .-not decide to, in 
some way, alter some feature of the Constitution that the 
speaker 1 ikes." I think the good sense of ;the American people 
has ,.,always been that the American people themselves provide the 
direction to government, and I think this paranoia that has 
been stirred up by people like Phyllis Schlafly and others, is 
really a shame. I might also point out that the same sense of 
unreality that governs many of Phyllis Schlafly's other public 
statements, seems to be at work in her concern about a runaway 
convention. She is a woman who testified before the United 
States Senate not long ago, that no woman would be raped who is 
a decent woman. She has also said in public that she believes 
that more than a majority of brides in the United States are 
virgins on their wedding night, which strikes me as reflecting 
the same sort of unreality that her fears about a convention 
suggest. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : Just to clarify the point that I 
wanted to focus on: James Davidson, delegate for a 
constitutional convention -- should one occur -- would he run 
on a platform in opposition to a recommendation by that 
convention of any amendment that does not relate to a balanced 
budget? 

MR. DAVIDSON: Absolutely. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay. 
MR. DAVIDSON: I thin~ that almost everyone who would 

be elected to such a body would run on that same basis. You 
hear very few people . before you -- there have been some here 
today, btrt'·•:,veTY""~"f-e--..v•~~ .,---wnu,., ·ma'k-e·"·an::c'efflt>ti•omd1 "'·argcrment ... a-ga·ins·c·· 
balancing the budget, because I think that most of us, in our 
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hearts, know that reality comes back to play, and that you 
cannot go on year after year spending hundreds of billions out 
of an empty pocket. The great majority of all polls show that 
huge super majorities of Americans support balancing the 
budget. The great majority of labor families, minority groups, 
Republicans and Democrats, in almost the same proportion, all 
support a balanced budget amendment. So, the only technique 
that is left to those who are opposed to taking some decisive 
action, is to focus on the phony fear of an unlimited 
convention, when the same people have no problem at all with an 
unlimited Congress, which is an unlimited constitutional 
convention sitting year after year. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: So, in our search for those who 
want to use the convention for some other agenda, you are 
counting yourself out? 

MR . DAVIDSON: Well, if I were a candidate for a 
convention -- if I were ever so privileged as to be part of one 
- - I would be the firmest advocate of any that no amendment 
should be set forth except one on the topic of how to balance 
the Federal budget and reform this process which is so far out 
of hand . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: 
questions? 

Thank you . 

ASSEMBLYMAN BOCCHINI: Some 

Joe, do you have any 

of the statements 
attributable in the February 18, 1984 Los Angeles Times are 
inaccurate? 

MR . DAVIDSON: The statements in that article are 
taken out of context. They are designed to suggest something 
which is not true. Again, I quote exactly what was said. I 
said, "The convention could be a mechanism · -- could introduce 
other mechanisms for balancing budgets and for exceptions to 
balanced budgets," which I think, obviously, is true, But I 
was referring to what was then known as SJ Resolution 1~, which 
was a proposal for a canst i tutional amendment that was in the 
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United States Senate, at the time this article was written. I 
said there were other ways of ensuring a balanced budget. 

Some of the critics of the balanced budget proposals 
that have passed and have been considered in the Congress -- in 
the Senate -- said, "Well, the problem with these things is 
that _-they don't provide enough of a mechanism for exceptions, 
or ~hey don't provide an enforcement mechanism which is 
auto~atic." These were questions raised by opponents of the 
bal~nced budget amendment. I said some other mechanisms could 

' 
be included. They include:_ . A provision for vetoes -of parts of 
bills, which is a line item veto -- which you referred to 
before; a national r .eferendum on whether a specific budget 
should include a deficit, which is to say if you want to have a 
budget deficit just put it to the public. That is another 
possibility. I also said that I favor a return to the gold 
standard, but that, again, is a completely separate 
proposition. I favor a lot of things that are not going to be 
part of the Constitution of the United States. I don't think 
that my personal views on these things bear one iota. I mean, 
it is just like the question of whether I favor raising housing 
subsidies. I have an opinion, but it doesn't have any bearing 
on the way the world is going to turn out. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much. Linda 

Bowker from NOW? 
HAZEL STAATS WESTOVER (from audience): She 
had to leave, but I will present her statement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : Okay. We have the statement up 
here. Do you want to read it? 

MS. WESTOVER: Yes. I am representing Linda Bowker, . 
who is State President of the National Organization for Women. 
On behalf of the 7000 NOW members in New Jersey, we are 
testifying,,.,. i:n,~ .QP.iPO;s.:it.i..on_,_t,o.t.- :AClk-5.4.. ... ,, . ,.Our, .: c.once.i:n ., is .. no,t ... w.i,th_" -2 .... 
constitutional amendment requiring a balanced budget, but with 
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the dangers of forcing Congress to call a constitutional 
convention as the means of doing so. 

NOW is very familiar with the traditional, proven 
~ending method described in Article V of the · United States 
Constitution because of our work for the Equal Rights 
Amendment. We accept that this method was meant to be 
difficult, so that a new amendment to the United States 
Constitution will represent the will of a majority of the 
Congress and of the people of the stat~s. Despite our 
difficulty in ratifying the Equal Rights Amendment, we are not 
willing to risk threatening existing fundamental liberties by 
using the amending process of an unproven and volatile 
constitutional convention. We are distressed that others are 
willing to take that risk. We are alarmed that 32 states of 
the required 34 have passed legislation similar to ACR-54. 

As you know, constitutional experts do not agree on 
any of the questions raised about this alternative amending 
process . Assertions are made, assurances given, but we have no 
precedents . Would delegates to a constitutional convention be 
a law unto themselves, able to set their own agenda? How, by 
whom, and on what basis would delegates be selected or 
elected? What would be the role of Congress? Would there be 
any judicial review, any restraint on the power of the 
convention to change our basic law? 

Why do advocates of a balanced Federal budget feel the 
need to by-pass an amending process which has served that 
nation well for almost 200 years on many important issues? 
Budgetary reform is not a minority position seeking a vehicle 
to make law against the will of the people. 

NOW believes that thele is a minority in this country 
today with goals not supported by a majority of Arner icans. 
Most nationwide polls substantiate this. These goals could be 
more opportunely enacted into law under the uncertain 
circumstances surrounding an open constitutional convention, 
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because the chances of such a minority dominating that 
convention are greater than its ability to dominate established 
legislatures, the Congress, or the courts. Petitions for 
single issue constitutional conventions, such as the one at 
hand, could be vehicles to bring into being such an unlimited 
convention. 

At this time, this Committee is the only place ~here 
all testimony can be heard -- and they are almost absent~- and 
these serious considerations weighed. We recognize that you 
have a heavy responsibility. We urge you to defeat this bill 
in this Committee. Let us reaffirm our faith in the amending 
process which has served us well for so long. 

Thank you for the opportunity to address this issue. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : Thank you . I apologize for not 

listening to your oral statement, but I did read the prepared 
statement. I would like to know to whom you refer when you 
talk about the minority in the country with goals that would be 
promoted by the constitutional convention . 

MS. WESTOVER : The minority who are not heard by the 
majority of the--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: No, you sa i d, "NOW believes that 
. there is a minority in this country today with goals not 
supported by a majority of Americans . " And then you say these 
goals could be promoted through the mechanism of a 
constitutional convention. Who are you talking about? 

MS. WESTOVER: Well, we are talking about the 
difficulty we had with the ERA, for instance, to get an 
amendment in the past. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : But, who is going-- This is a 
minority, you say, who will a,ctually enact an amendment. Is 
that my understanding? 

MS. WESTOVER: No, I don't--
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MS. WESTOVER: "Could be more opportunely enacted into 
law under the uncertain circumstances surrounding an open 
constitutional convention--" Well, we are talking about coming 
in under an umbrella with other issues, and that the minorities 
really don't always get the principles or the issues through. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay. Thank you. 
I understand Vera Roche from the Eag~e Forum has 

returned and would like to speak. 
v E ,RA Ro CHE: I am Vera Roche from the Eagle Forum. 
Phyllis Schlafly is our National Chairman. Mr. Davidson made 
reference before of Mrs. Schlafly's name. 

Many of the reasons we object to the constitutional 
convention are the same ones which Governor-- Who was it, 
Governor Hughes? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Hughes, yes. 
MS . ROCHE: (continuing) --the ones which Governor 

Hughes mentioned before, so I won't go into those. But, I do 
have a copy of the Constitution here, and under Article V, it 
states, in two places, "The purpose of a constitutional 
convention-- " The agenda would have to include amendments. It 
is plural, so we feel it would be unconstitutional to limit the 
agenda of a convention to one amendment. 

Now, Mr . Davidson mentioned the fact that even if 
there were amendments, it would take 34 states to ratify them. 
It is obvious that Mr . Davidson has not been involved in either 
the pros or the cons of the Equal Rights Amendment for 10 
years, because there is no way that any legislator, or any 
citizen , would ever want to have to go through a 10-year 
battle , in order to fight off threats to our wonderful 
Constitution . It just doesn't make sense. It is like playing 
Russian roulette with the Constitution. 

The only precedent for a convention is the 
Constitutional Convention of 1787, which was a runaway 
convention . In the legal world, precedent is usually 

115 



persuasive and conclusive . The political pressures for a 
wide-open convention on many subjects would be compelling. For 
example, 20 states have passed a cal 1 for a convention for a 
Human Life Amendment. Public and media demands that a 
convention consider a multi-issue agenda would converge from 
all sides. Many convent~-0n advocates privately admit that, of 
course, they intend to ~onsider other constitutional changes. 
Furthermore, every issue : is 
example, abortion funding. 
would open wide the agenda. 

germane to a fiscal amendment; for 
Bargaining by blocks of delegates 

There is not a shred of evidence that a convention 
would produce a balanced budget amendment. It is far more 
likely that a convention would produce years of constitutional 
chaos, conflict, and court appeals. 

The American Bar Association Report was prepared by a 
handful of ABA lawyers, and was carefully worded so as to leave 
it open to varying interpretation . The ABA resolution said: 
"Congress has the power to establish procedures 1 imi ting a 
convention to the subject matter which is stated in the 
applications received from the state legislatures." But, the 
ABA did not say, "Congress has the right to 1 imi t a 
convention." There is a world of difference between those two 
statements. The ABA resolution very carefully refused to 
assure us that a con-con can be effectively limited . 

Con-con delegates would be less responsible than 
Congressmen. Most Congressmen devotedly want to be reelected, 
whereas convention delegates would be as free from 
responsibility to the voters as life-tenured Federal judges. 
The fact that Federal judges never have to face the voters 
again, is the prime reason w~y they have been able to get by 
with so many decisions which are offensive to the majority of 
Americans . . and ., indeed, , are . widely believed to be 
unconstitutional'. · · Tf' "Cbnqress .. pass·ea '· ·-rul""Bs· '"·regaTdtn'g' · ""the 
procedure for a convention, these laws would not be effective 
until reviewed by the Supreme Court. 
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The national tax groups that have been doing fund 
raising on the premise that they want a balanced budget, have 
raised a great deal of money. In all of their material, they 
talk only of a "balanced budget convention." None of their 
subscribers have any idea that it is a constitutional 
convention they are talking about. This deceit alone is enough 
to make you question their motives. Do they want a balanced 
budget, or do they want a constitutional convention? 

Warren Burger, former Chief Justice of the United 
States Supreme Court, has said that he cannot see how a 
constitutional convention can be limited to a single 
amendment. James Madison advised the American public in "The 
Madison Papers," that if they wanted to get rid of the 
Constitution, to call a convention. 

If these national tax groups truly want a balanced 
budget, we recomment that they use the mi 11 ions they have 
raised , and spend them in the congressional districts of those 
Congressmen who will not support a balanced budget. Certainly 
that would make more sense and would be easier, than to throw 
our country into constitutional upheaval, with uncertain 
results, when a modest investment in political strategy and 
resources could achieve a balanced budget amendment. 

The strategy, although laudable, behind ACR-54 must 
just backfire . We have never seen so many legislators support 
something that they really do not want. The big spenders from 
Washington might just decide to welcome a convention. It would 
certainly take the focus off the real issue, give them time to 
wiggle off the political hook, and allow spending to go on for 
years to 
wonderful 

come . Our United 
document written 

States 
bJ? man 

Constitution 
for the use 

is the most 
of mankind. 

Let ' s not take any chances of letting the socialists, 
internationalists , or foreign interests destroy our wonderful 
heritage left to us by our founding fathers. 

Thank you. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. You have based your 
view that the convention could not be limited on the fact that 
the word II amendments, 11 rather than the word II amendment," is 
used in Article V of the Constitution. Isn't the word 
"amendments" used also to describe the power of Congress to 
recommend amendments, . and hasn't Congress every time amendments 
have been proposed done them one by one? 

MS. ROCHE: Yes, but it would have to go to the United 
States Supreme Court, and they would have to decide whether the 
rules that Congress would write for a--

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: That is not my point. My point 
is-- Do you have a copy of Article V there? 

MS. ROCHE: Yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: If you will take a look at the 

use of the word, the word "amendments" applies -- is used to 
apply to the impact of a constitutional convention -- what a 
constitutional convention would, or could recommend 
amendments. It also says, "Both houses of Congress may 
recommend amendments" two-thirds of both houses of 
Congress. As you know, every amendment, but the original 10, 
were recommended one by one. 

So, in fact, Congress has acted in a limited way, 
recommending single amendments. 
convention, similarly, enact, or 

Could not a constitutional 
be limited to consider a 

single amendment? You are using a term that is used in two 
different applications in the Constitution. 

MS. ROCHE: Yeah. Al though I don ' t think it could 
be. We don't feel it could be, because it specifically states, 
"Congress, whenever two-thirds of both houses shal 1 deem it 
necessary, shall propose amend:11ents to this Constitution." 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Amendments, right. And they 
could ba,,ie. s.aid. "an. amendment." . •,; But, they said, . "amendments." 

MS. R"OCHE: '"Or, on ···-trre · · -~app l'rt"a:tion· · ·•·•of•· ,. ·the: 

legislatures of two-thirds of the several states, shal 1 cal 1 a 
convention for proposing amendments." 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Amendments, again. 
MS. ROCHE: Yes, again. Well, that is what we are 

saying. We feel it would be illegal and unconstitutional, 
because of this statement, to propose anything other than 
amendments. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Wel 1, I guess I can't convince 
you of my point. I hope I made it clear. 

MS. ROCHE: No, I guess maybe I don't quite understand. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: My point is, the Congress itself, 

although it is controlled by exactly the same word, has been 
limiting its consideration, and states have been limiting their 
ratification to single amendments -- single amendments -- not 
groups of amendments. 

MS. ROCHE: Do you mean regarding this convention? 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: No' I mean the amendments 

subsequent to the Bill of Rights. 
MS. ROCHE: Oh, I see; yeah. 
ASSEMBLYMA..."'J ZIMMER: You mentioned 

previous witnesses the advocates of 
again, as did 

a constitutional 
convention who want to do things other than balance the 
budget. In your final sentence, you refer to them as 
"socialists, internationalists, and foreign" 
other. 

MS. ROCHE: Foreign interests. 

something or 

ASSEMBLITi.Jl....~ ZIM?-:ER: Foreign interests. Who are they, 
specifically? 

MS. ROCHE: Well, I think for one thing, the Jefferson 
Foundation is one group that would like to do this. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIM?-lER: Who is that? 
MS. ROCHE: They bel,ieve in a one world government. 

There are also other-- Oh, I have all of the material on it, 
but I didn't bring it because I didn't think I would have time 
to go into a lot of detai 1 about the different organizations 
that have been having meetings, and are having them now, in 
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order to discuss the other amendments they would like to have. 
For example, they would like to have a parliamentary form of 
government, instead of having the kind of government we now 
have. There are other groups, as well. Russia, for example, 
has stated recently in the paper, that they changed their 
Con&titution within the last five years. They feel it is time 
for the United States to change our Constitution. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: So, the Soviet Union is one of 
the ·proponents of a balanced budget constitutional convention, 
that you refer to? 

MS. ROCHE: No, I don't think they are concerned at 
all about a balanced· budget, but I think they would use this 
opportunity to try to get the delegates who support their type 
of government, in order to be delegates to the constitutional 
convention. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Has the Soviet Union been very 
successful in electoral activities in the United States? 

MS. ROCHE: Wel 1, I think we are opening our 
Constitution up to an invasion by the Soviets, yes, I do, and 
by any other foreign interests . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: You feel that they could elect 
delegates -- that the Soviet Union could have its delegates 
elected to a constitutional convention? 

MS. ROCHE: Well, look what they did-- They have had 
spies in our country all of the time. We have had our 
embassies invaded by the Soviets. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: But, that is not the elect ion 
process. Do you believe the Soviet Union is having people 
elected to Congress, or to other elected--

MS. ROCHE: No, no, not to Congress at all, but I 
think they could get delegates. I don ' t feel that is the 
primary:. tbre.at ..,. but .I do .-think that if we have not ha.d a 
constitutfona·1 convention tn··2·0-o years·, ·'I"thi:hk everybbdy '· wiIT 
be trying to get their special interest groups to be delegates 
to the convention. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Well, if the Soviets are not the 
threat, who is? 

MS. ROCHE: Well, I think they are one of the threats, 
but I think there are a lot of other threats to our 
Constitution. As I said, I didn't bring all of the material, 
but there are many groups that would like to be able to 
attend. I think it is reasonable to say th~t if we haven't had 
a convention in all these years, that certainly there would be , -
all ··kinds of outside interests that would like to see a change 
.in our Constitution. I mean, don't forget, the original 
delegates to the Constitution were George Washington, Benjamin 
Frankl in, James Madison. We don't have men of that caliber 
around today. It would be an entirely different type of group 
that would be going there. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: What is the Jefferson 
Foundation? You mentioned that as the one organization which 
wanted to have the convention. 

MS. ROCHE: Well, what they favor is a one-world 
government. 
would like, 

Now, I could give you the material on it, if you 
and tell you who the delegates to the Jefferson 

Foundation are, and what they are doing. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Yes, I would like to have that. 
MS. ROCHE : All right. I have other material, as 

well, on people who would like to, you know, serve as delegates 
to push for their own form of government. 
on the liberal and on the conservative sides. 

I think it is both 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much. 
MS. ROCHE: Thank you . 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Gayle Sorkow? 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: She had to leave. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay. 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: She asked that I 

submit her testimony. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Sure. Thank you. Frank Askin? 
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P R O F E S S O R F R A N K A S K I N: Thank you, Mr . 
Chairman. I appreciate your patience today through this 
hearing. I certainly don't plan to test it too much further. 

I am Frank Askin, member of the faculty at Rutgers Law 
School in Newark. I have submitted two different statements 
.for the record. One of them is a statement signed by 23 
members of law school faculties in this State -- from the three 

_ law schools -- in opposition to ACR-54. The other is a copy of - , 
my own article, which appeared in February in The Morris County 
Daily Record. 

I won't repeat what is in those statements, but I 
would like to make a couple of comments on some of the things I 
have heard while sitting here today. 

Now, I note, with a few exceptions -- I think maybe 
Mr. Davidson and Mr. Dibof sky -- that most of the witnesses 
seem to be like a couple of ships, or maybe flotillas, passing 
in the night. The proponents of ACR-54 are arguing for a 
balanced budget amendment, and it is clear that the major 
opposition to a constitutional convention is really unrelated 
to the budget issue, and arises from concern that a runaway 
convention might do irreparable damage to the constitutional 
system under which this country has flourished for 200 years. 

Now, while it is true there are constitutional 
scholars on both sides of the issue of the possibility of a 
runaway convention, I mean, everyone would have to agree that, 
at this time, there is no definitive answer to the question of 
whether such a convention can be limited to a single issue, and 
Catch-23 (sic) is that there is probably no way to determine 
the answer until it is too late; that is, until after a 
possible runaway convention ha,s ignored its mandate . It seems 
that only at that point would the Supreme Court even have any 
possibility of intervening, or _be i~g able to decide whether any 
unauthorized actions adopted "by ·the ·convent r on, ;and ~ pos·-s·tbly 
approved by the states, and acknowledged by Congress, had, 
indeed, become the supreme law of the land. 
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The issue came up this morning, is there some way to 
get an advisory opinion, a declaratory judgment? As a teacher 
of Federal procedure and Federal courts, I just don't believe 
that is possible. There is probably no way in which that could 
happen. It would be an advisory op1n1on, and would be 
considered speculative, and I just don't think it could come 
about . 

One thing that sort of interested me was-- I think it 
was . Mr. Lamberton, this morning, who put forth what I guess you 
could only call "the hostage theory" of the constitutional 
convention; that is, it is really not going to be a convention 
where you are· going to hold the Constitution hostage for 
Congress to pass its own balanced budget; and then, that is, we 
will get the 34 states, Congress will have to act, and then we 
will release this threat of calling a constitutional 
convention. Now, it seems to me that there is nothing in 
Article V t o sugges t that that is a possibility. I mean, 
Artic l e V says, "Once 34 states have petitioned for a 
constitutional convention, Congress has an obligation to call a 
const i tution al convention." It does not have an escape hatch. 
It says, "Congress can obviate its responsibility by saying, 
' Wel l , we wi ll propose a constitutional amendment.'" Indeed, 
i t wou ld seem to me that if that were the case -- if Congress 
could obviate its responsibi 1 i ty that way -- then I suppose 
they could propos e a constitutional amendment, for example, 
that said, "The r e shall be a balanced Federal budget, unless a 
major i ty of Congress votes otherwise in any given year." 

Now , that might rhetorically seem to satisfy the 
proposal that there be a constitutional amendment for a 
balanced Federal budge t , but I think probably it would not meet 
the spir it of wh a t most of the balanced budget people are 
advocating. So , I just don't see how we could-- In other 
words , once 34 states have asked for a cons ti tut:ional 
convention to consider some particular -- all or part of the 
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Constitution -- it seems to me that Congress could not really 
obviate its res pons ibi 1 i ty by passing something that looked 
like what they might be calling for, but which really had no --
didn't really satisfy the demand. Otherwise, it would be too 
easy to avoid its responsibility. 

I think this- whole flawed process 
further by the fact th~t, at this moment, there 

is emphasized 
are absolutely 

no rules as to how a _constitutional convention would operate, 
or now the delegates would be chosen. There may be proposals 
in Congress. Nothing has ever been enacted into law. In fact, 
this whole process reminds me of-- There is a book I was 
always very fond of in my younger days, by Mark Harris, called 
"The Southpaw. " It is about a basebal 1 team. When they were 
on the road, a couple of the team players sort of were 
hustlers, and they used to hustle other players and fans into a 
card game cal led "tegwar." Tegwar represented the exciting 
game without any rules. They would make up the rules as they 
went along. They would deal a card and decide what the rules 
were to govern the next play of the hand. That sort of reminds 
me of what this whole con-con process is. It is sort of 
tegwar. It sounds like an exciting game without any rules, and 
we are going to have to make them up as we go along. It really 
seems to be not a good process by which to fiddle with our 
Constitution, under this kind of a procedure. 

Also, I know the Chairman has been seriously 
interested, and has questioned a number of the witnesses about 
who it is who might attempt to transform a constitutional 
convention for other purposes, purposes beyond a balanced 
budget. It seems to me it is clear that there is a very strong 
movement -- whether it is a majority or a minority movement in . 
this country; cal 1 it what you wi 11 -- a radical right, an 
evangelical Christian movement that has sprung up, largely in 
the Sooti':f~'l-•:and";",·~-n',.,.vt'rre'.,,,, ... SottthweS't:•;;\•.•' -'+b~ftt:': -a-er·O'S-s·-'·'·tm:w .. ·c-ou-nt:ry~ · .. , ·over ,··-

the past two decades, which does have an agenda to transform 

124 



our Constitution; which has an agenda to transfer the country 
into a Christian America. That agenda is pretty well-defined, 
and it seems to me inevitable that this movement would seize 
this opportunity of a constitutional convention, if it could, 
to put on the table the entire issue of the direction of this 
country and its constitutional underpinnings. Indeed, it seems 
to me the very battle for control of the convention itself 
might divide this nation in a way that has not been seen since 
the Civil War. 

Finally, even if it were ultimately decided that the 
convention could only propose amendments relating to Federal 
fiscal policy, there are probably very few issues, on the 
radical right agenda anyway, that could not be translated in 
monetary terms; for example, a prohibition on the appropriation 
of money for schools which do not require daily prayer, which 
do not teach Christian doctrine, or forbidding assistance to 
any state which does not make abortion a crime. There are many 
proposals on the agenda of some of these groups, which could be 
framed in terms of monetary and fiscal policy. 

So, this is the can of worms, it seems to me, that the 
constitutional convention threatens to open. I think its 
proponents might do well to reconsider whether they really want 
to travel that road. Our Constitution has stood the test of 
time for 200 years. On 26 occasions, we have amended it by the 
traditional process of congressional proposal and ratification 
by the states, and I really question whether we want to face a 
constitutional convention ogre at this late date. 

I thank you very much. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. I would just like to 

focus on the point you made abput Congress having no authority 
not to call a convention once 34 states have acted, prefacing 
my statement with the understanding that we have never done 
this before. I would like to point out to you that the 
resolution I am sponsoring, as well as many of the other 
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analogous resolutions, provide that they are of no force and 
effect if and when Congress submits a balanced budget 
amendment. In my resolution, it says, "such as," and then it 
refers to the kind of amendment that has been given the most 
serious consideration in Congress. 

PROFESSOR ASKIN: But-- Go ahead. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: There is also an amendment I have 

asked to be put in at the suggestion of some of those who have 
been working on this issue elsewhere in the country-- It is a 
so-called "time capsule provision," saying the convention must 
be cal led within six months after the 34th state acts. Now, 
assuming, as you do, that we are playing -- whatever that game 
is--

PROFESSOR ASKIN: Tegwar. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: --then no protections are 

adequate protections. But I would submit to you that these are 
reasonable means of communicating with Congress which, in 
itself, is the body -- I believe you would agree -- which has 
to call a convention. 

PROFESSOR ASKIN: That is correct. I am not even sure 
what would happen if Congress ignored the call from the 34 
states. Somebody could go to court and try to get a writ of 
mandamus, and the court might say it is a political question; 
the separation of powers forbids us from intervening because 
the Constitution specifically assigns that decision to 
Congress. And, we would have a constitutional crisis of sorts, 
I suppose, if Congress ignored it. 

But, let me ask you, Mr. Chairman, I assume that some 
of the 32 states have merely passed resolutions which say that 
Congress should convene a co?stitutional convention for the 
purpose of proposing a balanced budget amendment to the states. 

ASSEMBLYMAN _,ZIMMER: .. ,Correct . _. 
PROFESSO'R . ASK!N: Arid i'f that is sort of· the least 

common denominator of all of, say, the 34 resolutions, suppose 
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Congress passed -- proposed a balanced budget amendment that 
said, "There shall be a balanced Federal budget, except when a 
majority of both houses of Congress decides otherwise"? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Well, frankly, I think that would 
be a vast improvement over what we have. In fact, that is the 
kind of cap legislation that the State Senate passed a couple 
of years ago, in order to raise spending above the rate of 
inflation. It originally required a super majority vote, and 
ultimately our State Senate came away with , a simple majority 
vote . 

like 
My point is, 

to see, but, 
it is certainly a lot less that I would 
frankly, it would be a substantial 

improvement because nowhere now in our arcane budgetary process 
is there a requirement that you actually vote in favor of a 
deficit, other than to vote to raise the national debt, which 
everybody knows is a phony opportunity to grandstand which has 
no substance. 

PROFESSOR ASKIN: Well, they do it de facto every 
year; they just don't do it specifically. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: So, my answer to you is, it is 
not as nominal a change as you claim. 

PROFESSOR ASKIN: But, I assume a lot of the sponsors 
of these 34 resolutions would say, "Well, that is not what we 
meant. That doesn't satisfy our demand." I am not sure where 
we would be left. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: But the fact that that might 
happen at all would prove the point that this is an 
action-forcing mechanism that is a futility, when Congress has 
its own prerogatives threatened and won't act otherwise. 

I did want to point ~ut the efforts we have made to 
deal with that automatic convention process, which is something 
that those of us who are looking for an amendment, rather than 
a convention, are trying to focus on. If you can think - of a 
more artful way to deal with that issue, I would be glad to 
have your suggestions. 
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PROFESSOR ASKIN: Well, other than Congress voting out 
an amendment, I am not quite sure how to-- Again, this 
question -of holding the Constitution hostage until Congress 
acts, I am not sure is the soundest process, that's all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much. Martin Tanz? 
MA-RT IN TAN Z: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Good afternoon. 
MR. TANZ: My name is Martin Tanz. I do not represent 

any ' group. I am a student of American government and an 
Eagleton Institute intern. I £el t concerned enough to come 
down today to testify before this Committee. 

The bill before you is, according to its supporters, a 
limiting one. If I understand the issue correctly, Mr. 
Chairman, you believe that a blanced budget amendment is the 
only way to eliminate excesses in spending. You, the ref ore, 
support a convention for the purpose of balancing the budget. 
Beyond these actions lie what I see as four basic assumptions, 
which I believe are erroneous: One, that the states may cal 1 
for such a limited convention; two, that faced with such calls, 
Congress has the power to limit the agenda of the convention; 
three, that faced with these calls , Congress is obliged to heed 
the call for a limited convention; and four, that it is wise to 
write economic theory into our Constitution. 

I quote Alexander Hamilton in his "Federalist 85, " 

about the nature of Article V. I quote : "The words of this 
Article are preemptory. The Congress shall call a 
convention." Nothing is left to the discretion of that body . 
Indeed, the only historical precedent we have is the 
Philadelphia Convention. Based on that convention, you can 
only say that any convention would be highly autonomous, and . 
that the delegates would be free to address any issue. 

If this is so, it all but eliminates the use of 
Art i c 1 g ,: • ~ :.e..:m .;!:\i~r,es-p.GtllS-e1-~;,t;c.,..,l,,spec:i£.i:c<~-',;li m:i t erl:, ~·i s s.u es, .:0 , 1:<.Y ou ". . a·r•e:.r:, ,., ·.,, ... · · 
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creating a potential monster here. What if. £or example, the 
convention would alter the nature of · the 17th Amendment as a · 
matter of balancing the budget. extending the term for 
Senators. -for example? 'l'hereby there would be less pressure on 
the Senate to always be responding to these special interests. 

~robably more dangerous, though, i .s the attempt to 
embrace a substantive value; that is, a specific economic 
hearipg. An amendment must address a procedural flaw, rather 
than a specific policy. ACR-54., and .its various vexsions 
around the differ~mt states, embrace a theory. this is 
monetarism. The theory hypothesizes that deficit spending is 
the underlying cause o-f inflation and economic stagnation. · 'l'he 
current discourse among economists only proves the point that 
this is not an established fact, but an economic theory. 

The attempt to write economic theory into the 
Constitution is the now discredited Lockner (phonetic spelling) 
era, which was in the early 20th century. The Supreme Court 
attempted to write their version of Social Darwinism into the 
Constitution . This attempt led to a crisis in which the 
Supreme Court was almost brought down by the Executive Branch 
of government. 

I quote Justice Holmes, in saying: "A Constitution is 
not intended to embody a particular economic theory, whether of 
paternal.ism or -of laissez-faire." The danger is that the 
judiciary will increasingly be .:brought into the legislative 
process, thereby decreasing democratic participation. How 
would it be if every year the budget had to go to ·the Supreme 
Court, and nine nonelected, life-tenured justices would ae'cide 
our budget every year? The Congress has the authority to do 
this. and they l:l.re the .elected representatives of the people . . 

I just wish to urge you to consider these facts 
carefully in making your decision. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: - Thank you. In 
statements that a consti tutiona1 convention 
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appropriate place to enshrine an economic philosophy, and it is 
inappropriate to put a balanced budget requirement in one, how 
do you square that with the fact that most states have 
successfully lived with balanced budget requirements, and that 
their budgets don't go to the Supreme Court every year; their 
institutions aren't threatened; and they seem to work quite 
well? 

MR. TANZ: The nature of state governments, the way I 
see · it, is essentially different from that of the Federal 
government. The Federal government is certainly more 
heterogeneous than state governments in what makes it up. It 
also has less responsibility. The Federal government has the 
responsibility for the national defense, maintaining a standing 
Army, and maintaining a foreign policy; and these kinds of 
things cost a lot of money. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Now you are going on the grounds 
of pragmatic policy, when your statement was based on political 
theory. 

MR. TANZ: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : Could you tell me, on the grounds 

of political theory, why the states, which are microcosms of 
the Federal government with separate and equal branches of 
government and responsibilities both procedural and 
substantive -- why they can, and have, lived quite well with a 
balanced budget requirement? 

MR. TANZ: The states are al 1 different cases, so I 
can't speak for every state. For example, some states do not 
have the same system as we do in New Jersey, or that our 
Federal government has. The Federal government has a very 
delicate balance of power betv.:een the three branches which do 
not always exist. There have been examples of crises involving 
the judic.i,ar}r , .. ~n .. New , ,J.er.sey ,.on . .some .. cas,es., .. no.t , sp.~.c.i.t .i .cal_ly .on .,. 
budgetary issues. But, for instance, on questions of 
gerrymandering, there were times when the courts of this State 
came in direct conflict with the Legislature or the Governor. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Corne back on Thurl:;day, we are 
going to do gerrymandering. You may be in agreement on that 
one. Thank you very much. 

Eleanor Stone? 
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE.: She asked if she 

could submit her statement later. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Sure. Gardiner Ro9ers? 

GARD I N E R ROGERS: Mr. Chairman--
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: , Mr. Chairman, may 

I ask you why you are calling someone who is not on this list, 
when there are still people waiting? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Oh, wait a second. Who are you 
representing? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: There are two of 
us from the New Jersey Council of Churches, and there was one 
woman from the League of Women Voters. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay. The Counci 1 of Churches 
and the League of Women Voters testified in October. I want to 
call people who have not testified before, with the exception 
of Mr. Davidson, who I asked to respond to remarks made about 
him personally. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Okay. 1 just 
want to be sure you know we are here. I have not spoken before. 

ASSEMBLITlAN ZIMMER: Yes, ma'am? (in response to Ms. 
Westover speaking from audience) 

MS. WESTOVER: Mine is really the 
Christ. I just read the NOW statement as 
Linda Bowker. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Oh, all right. 

United Church of 
a substitute for 

MS. WESTOVER: I am Hazel Staats Westover. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay , I'm sorry. You' re Haze 1 

Westover? 
MS. WESTOVER: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay, you wi 11 be on next then . 
Yes, sir? 

MR. ROGERS: Thank you for the opportunity to ~estify 
before your Committee. I am Gardiner Rogers. I am a 
Pennsylvania resident; have been all of my life, except when I 
was in the military in Wor l d War II, and except for eight years 
in Missouri. 

I speak · on behal f of the 25,000 Board of Policy 
mem}jers of Liberty Lobby, the nation ' s oldest citizens' action 
institution which stands for American national independence, 
United States' interests f i rst, and constitutional principles. 
I urge you to oppose the call for a constitutional convention, 
which the proponents are advocating ostensibly to balance the 
budget. While we strongly support the end of Congress's 
criminal spending and borrowing practices, a con-con -- a short 
name for a constitutional convention -- is an ill-advised and 
potentially dangerous solution at this time . 

The intent of the Cons ti tut ion's framers was for a 
con-con to be an autonomous body, independent of Congress and 
the states . As to the assurance that Congress can approve or 
reject the product of a con-con, that may be the opinion of 
some members of Congress based on -- in the words of one 
scholar "institutional egomania, " but Article V of the 
Constitution gives no such power to Congress . In fact, the 
precedent for an unlimited convention has already been set. 
How? Back in 1787 -- as testified to earlier this afternoon --
when the last con-con met, the delegates violated their 
instructions from their electors. They did not revise the 
Articles of Confederation , as they were instructed to do. 
Instead, they wrote an entirely new Constitution which, . 
admittedly, has been a great blessing to us. 

Who the delegates would be at the con-con is anybody ' s 
guess. eonvmtftng-"'?n'tiB'rrc'Ef~t's•'' t:na-t'•'"a''"C'O'l1-"'C'O'n·•·-woutd~:<b e ·1:1,s:ec>'' ·· •;•--
to attack the basic tenet of our Constitution -- the doctrine 
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of separation of powers -- which provides the system of checks 
and balances between the government's branches. 
assume that the con-con is limited to balancing 
This can embrace a myriad of constitutional 
tremendous consequence to the American people 
policy, taxation, to mention but two. 

But, let's 
the budget. 
changes of 

monetary 

Are we supposed to believ~ that the powerful financial 
interests now profiting from the deficit and here you 

' alluded to this in your questions to some of the witnesses --
will not try to influence a con-con? The World Bank, which is 
growing in wealth and international power, is the largest 
purchaser of United States government securities sold by the 
Treasury Department when Congress borrows money. United States 
taxpayers pay the interest on these bonds and notes. They do 
it through the IRS, of course. Last year, the World Bank 
enjoyed $1.8 billion in profits, while the United States became 
the world's largest debtor nation. The Japanese had such a 
trade surplus last year that they bought $19 billion worth of 
United States government securities. Are we to believe that 
these and other powerful special interests would sit idly by 
while "the people" take charge of a con-con? 

A con-con may bring about the very economic 
catastrophe the con-con promoters tell us will occur if they 
don ' t get a con-con. The current climate of economic 
prosperity the United States enjoys is largely the result of 
foreign investments -- also referred to earlier this afternoon 
-- and lending to the United States. This has happened because 
the United States is regarded as a safe place in which to 
invest. But, isn't it possible that if a con-con were called 
and the law of our land were ~nder review and debate, that the 
United States may then be viewed as unstable, resulting in a 
withdrawal of foreign assets from the U.S.? If that happened, 
banks could collapse and the economic consequences could be 
devastating. 
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The American people have been given unconstitutional 
choices to solve our nation's deficit crisis. The balanced 
budget amendment before Congress is a complete hoax. The 
Senate committee report revealed its many loopholes. The 
amendment promoted in Congress has a section excluding 
borrowing from the definition of revenues very, very 
significant. How can you bala:1ce the budget if Congress is 
allowed to borrow? Interesti:q.gly, the chief sponsor in the 
House before Representative Larry Craig -- Republican of Idaho 

was Barber Conable, now President of the World Bank. 
Gramm-Rudman-Hollings was an unconstitutional fraud because it 
gave powers of the purse to unelected bureaucrats in the 
Executive Branch, although this is exclusively given to 
Congress under the Constitution. This may serve to wrongly 
convince the people that the only alternative way to balance 
the budget is to have a con-con. 

The major establishment po 1 it ical figures of our day 
increasingly use internationalistic language and pursue 
globalist policies. To name a few: Democratic presidential 
candidate, Richard Gephardt, says the U.S. must fit into the 
"new world economic order." Chief Justice William Rehnquist 
argues that the Constitution should not be regarded as 
"immutable," but can be strengthened through changing it. 
Warren Burger, head of the President's Bicentennial Commission 
on the Constitution, says he is not afraid of a con-con, and 
suggests that perhaps we ought to reexamine the concept of 
separation of powers. Senator Orrin Hatch's -- Republican from 
Utah -- bill sets procedures for a con-con. It is now before 
the Senate, and reveals the mentality of many of his colleagues 
when he says that he believe~ that constitutional principles 
can be changed not only through a con-con and constitutional 
amendments, but through laws passed by Congress. Of course, 
the Corrsrttu'trori ··-"cro·e'sn ''t''.~gi-ve-'·~power :, ·-except'·' ·''through·;· -amendment · 
procedures to change the Constitution. This is how a 
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parliamentary system works, like in Britain, which has no 
constitution to serve as a standard for the legislature's 
actions, but it is not how our constitutional republic is 
supposed to operate. The Iranian arms crisis is fitting 
perfectly into this scenario of the goal to persuade Americans 
that our structure of government does not work and .that 
institutional reforms are needed. 

Sadly, most Americans have a superficial underst~nding 
of the Constitution -- our birthright. It is poorly taught in 
school. A Hearst Corporation poll recently documented this. 
It comes as no surprise that few realize that the issue of 
balancing the budget was already debated by the delegates at 
the Convention of 1787. They came up with a solution that made 
Congress fiscally accountable to the states and to the people. 
The documentation for this can be found in the debates of the 
convention, the "Federalist Papers," and the states' 
ratifications of the Constitution. Its implementation was 
first used in 1798 to extinguish the Revolutionary War debt, 
and it was later used during the War of 1812, and again during 
the Civil War. This documentation has been hand-delivered to 
the offices of every member of Congress. It seems to me that 
if there were any sincere desire to return to constitutional 
principles and reject the internationalist policies promoted by 
Congress, at least one member of Congress would have the 
courage to publicly reveal these facts to the American people. 

Most of our nation's ills are a result of disobedience 
of our Constitution by our public servants, rather than a 
deficiency in the document itself. From a practical 
standpoint, a balanced budget amendment passed by Congress is 
the lesser of the two evils wh~n compared with the possibility 
of a con-con. For a more immediate solution to balancing the 
budget, we propose that . Congress cut spending from its massive 
$1 trillion proposed budget. For the long term, we advocate 
working toward returning to the constitutional method to 

135 



balance the budget, which is spelled out in the main body of 
the Constitution. 

If New Jersey stands proudly in defense of our 
Constitution by voting to reject the resolution for a 
constitutional convention, the American people will be indebted 
to your act of leadership in neutralizing those 
constitution-changers and Anglophiles who hope to get rid of 
our , separation of powers, which James Madison said was the only 
assurance against a tyrannical government. 

As some of you know, several Orwellian constitutions 
have already been written. One example is the "Newstates 
.Constitution," written by Rexford Tugwell, under the 
sponsorship of the Center for Democratic Institutions. Out of 
a total of 40 versions, I have several copies here. There are 
different things in different versions, which shows what might 
happen if we get into a convention. This Newstates, or a 
Constitution for United Republicans of America, is one of 
several constitutions, and there are 40 versions of this one 
that have been submitted by various think tanks in the 
country. But, this one, and the other version called the 
Newstates Constitution-- Its other title is, "A Constitution 
for the Newstates of America. " They even want to change the 
name of the country. It concentrates more power in the central 
government, so that the states become mere appendages -- the 
very concept the founding fathers feared. Two samples of the 
Newstates Cons ti tut ion are: 1) The practice of religion shal 1 
be a privilege, not a right; and 2), all firearms shall be in 
the hands of the military, the police, and only certain 
licensed individuals. Apparently, our God-given rights to 
worship and to keep and bear. arms are 
this step toward tyranny what you 
Americans? 

to be controlled. Is 
want to leave future 

We might · remind our friends · that A.doTf " "HTtler caTled 
for national firearms registration as he moved into power, so 
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he would know who had them. Only certain individuals were 
allowed to have them after that, and you see what tyranny there 
was there. 

The 32 states that have passed con-con calls did so 
with little public notice and few hearings. Over the last few 
years, information exposing the dangers of a con-con has been 
put . into the hands of the constituents of the legislators in 
states 1 ike Michigan and Montana, and they have overwhelmingly 
urged their state Representatives and Senators to oppose a 
con-con. A few weeks ago, Liberty Lobby's Legislative Director 
testified in Montana and witnessed how the people could rise 
up, make their voices heard, and be victorious. We killed the 
con-con drive there. We can roll back this push for a 
constitutional convention and save this "greatest document 
struck by the mind of man." You legislators in New Jersey can 
join the growing number of patriots throughout America by 
voting no to a convention. In the name of all you hold dear, 
including your f ami 1 ies and posterity, vote no -- please vote 
no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Hazel Staats Westover. 
MS. WESTOVER: I am really representing three 

different organizations 
work together, which have 
constitutional convention. 

three national organizations -- that 
strongly opposed the call for a 
They are the United Church of 

Christ, the YWCA, and the Religious Coalition for Abortion 
Rights. 

The UCC drafted a statement first at its national 
meeting in 1978. The National YWCA and the New Jersey State 
Council of the Y made their first statement on October 14, 
1978. They did it on the basis of these particular statements. 

There are no constitutional or legal guidelines for: 
1) Establishing a means of choosing delegates to such a 
convention; 2) setting the mode of its organization; 3) the 
time limits on its existence; 4) the scope of its activities; 

I 
\ 
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and 5) the rules under which it would operate. A 
constitutional convention might do irreparable damage to the 
fundamental structure of our society by eroding the . civil 
rights granted in our Bill of Rights, and might destroy many of 
the gains so painfully won in the long struggle of blacks and 
other minority citizens for full equality under the law, as 
guaranteed in the 14th Amendment. 

The 9:UOte from the YWCA ' s statement is: "Thus, while 
the '1YWCA of the United States and the New Jersey State Council 
of the 18 YWCAs support preservation of the legal option of 
abortion as a matter of freedom of choice of religion and 
conscience, our opposition to .the calling of a constitutional 
convention is grounded in our even more fundamental concern for 
the preservation of all of our civil liberties, and for the 
elimination of racism . We urge this Committee to reject this 
bill. II 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER : Thank you very much. 
Gonzalez? 
JOSEPH GONZALEZ: I am Joseph Gonzalez. 

Joseph 

I had 
intended to come here and just say a short prayer, but I bring 
a hat I won't wear because the fellow who owns it is a lot 
bigger than I. I could never hope to fill his shoes -- Ernest 
Lattieri (phonetic spelling), from Bayonne, New Jersey . 
also from Bayonne, New Jersey. 

I am 

I have a deep sense of what is going on here. I have 
a sense of feeling that history is being made here, but why 
aren't the TV cameras here? Why isn't this splashed all over 
the newspapers? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: I wish I knew. 
MR. GONZALEZ: Yeah. , I ref er to something that one 

gentleman said here . He said 4% of the people kind of did most 
of the .things -- who came out to do _al L the va.ting . So , .it; 
that i s·"' t:TU~ ... ' · "' r ·· ·;,e-1'1: eve·"' :rc. r-•-"-rs' ·; ·• 'tlet!a"l:r'Si?' :, ~:i. ~i..am "'cr' '·•·l'fftrcrsmf·• ''C'Ourrcy· 
Rep.iblican Committeeman in Bayonne, and I see that you can ' t 
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get people to come out and vote, on just about any issue. One 
time City Hall was filled at a council meeting because they 
were trying to pass a dog barking ordinance. They filled the 
hall with that. So, if you don't get the right issue, you 
can't get the people out. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: We filled a hall in Jersey City a 
while ago, as I recall, on an issue. 

MR. GONZALEZ: Yeah, on I&R; I was there. But, what I 
am trying to say is, I think there is enough evidence to show 
that there are things amiss, and we ought to-- You keep asking 
the question, "Who is it you think is behind this?" I believe 
there are enough-- Like, this fellow who just spoke talked 
about the internationalists. I have here a copy of the 
"Bicentennial Plot," and I'm sure you have it. If you don't 
have it, I have given a copy to Marion LaGrecka (phonetic 
spelling). I also gave her a copy of "The Impending 
Constitution," which this gentleman just before me referred to. 

So, what I am all about is, prudence dictates that we 
should at least go very cautiously. I am opposed to it. We 
should not go ahead with this. I think you ought to do an 
investigation, find out who these people 
if it is true. Then, if you think it 
airwaves, or, if you think it isn't true, 
news media, and report your findings. 
this thing. 

we 
is 
get 

But, 

fear are, and see 
true, go on the 
on TV, get in the 
don't rush into 

I would like to end with a prayer, if you would allow 
me: Heavenly Father, I am mindful today that all rights come 
from you, and all authority is ordained of you, and that this 
Committee is an ordained ministry of yours. As such, it will, 
in effect, do your bidding. 

You have given us leaders who understand that all 
rights come from you -- from George Washington, who prayed at 
Valley Forge, to Ronald Reagan, who also prays today. Father, 
I pray that this Committee will abide by your will, and that 
you will make it known. I ask that in Jesus' name. Amen. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. 
MR. GONZALEZ: I want to submit this "Bicentennial 

Plot" for the record. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Sure. David Coggins? 

JUDGE DAV ID B. COGGINS: Mr. Chairman and 
members of the Committee: I thank you very much for the 
opportunity to come to testify here today. I am not -- unlike 
preqecessors in this witness chair -- either a constitutional 
scholar, a legislative lobbyist, a politician, an economist, 
nor a spokesman for any large organized group. I do suggest 
that it is imperative that this Committee keep very separate 

,and distinct the two major issues which have been testified to 
here today. The first is the appropriateness of adopting a 
balanced budget amendment -- the merits of such an amendment --
and the other is the method by which such an amendment might 
possibly be achieved; that is, the constitutional convention, 
as opposed to the method which has been used pursuant to 
Article V of the United States Cons ti tut ion for the last 26 
amendments and, indeed, was the same method which was being 
used for the last attempted constitutional amendment. 

I am one of many small private citizens who are 
heavity indebted to the Federal Constitution for our freedoms. 
I have, on several occasions, taken a solemn oath -- as a 
soldier, later as a mi 1 i tary officer, later 
still later as a judge -- to defend our 
presence here today is pursuant to that oath. 

as a lawyer, 
Constitution. 

and 
My 

The remarks I prepared for this Committee I wil 1 not 
be delivering, because they would simply be a repetition of 
much of the materials which you have already heard articulated 
more vigorously, and perhaps _more articulately, than I might 
do. I do not purport to speak in Spenserian tones, nor in 
melliferous va.ice, nor with any special artifice. I am here 
solely a-s a private cit1zen arid ·, on'···r:;eh'aT'f'. ·o'f' · ·some· ··'fr'i'entls ··or · 
mine, who join me in an effort to learn more about the 
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processes of our government, to get ourselves informed on the 
issues, and then to make our voices known in the time-tested . 
modes available to citizens, by letting our elected 
representatives know what it is that we, as citizens, fear, 
what it is we seek to achieve, and that which we seek to avoid. 

It is no jingoism, nor is it rhetoric to express fear 
and concern that a constitutional convention, once called, with 
whatever restrictive wording may be added by manifestly 
nonuniform State resolutions, will be without any legally 
binding limitations on authority. It seems clear that there is 
no consensus that we as citizens of this nation can rely upon 
.anybody, whether it is the American Bar Association -- whose 
official statement you heard recited here-- It would have 
absolutely no binding effect whatsoever on any convention. 
Indeed, we cannot even be sure that under the political matters 
of policy of the Supreme Court of the United States, that the 
judicial body under Article III of the United States 
Constitution would not intrude into what is essentially an 
Article I matter. That is for the Legislature to determine. 

I have no confidence that the protections which we 
enjoy now as citizens of the United States would continue in 
the event of a mod i fication of our Constitution. 

With respect to the issue of the appropriateness of a 
balanced budget, I simply would comment, as a private citizen, 
that my family wou l d be in financial ruins if I were to operate 
my family finances in the manner that the United States 
Congress has ruled the finances of the United States of 
America. There is no question but that, inasmuch as bankruptcy 
is available to a citizen only once every seven years, we would 
be hounded day and night. Indeed, the major distinction, of . 
course, is tha t I and my family and my friends have no power to 
issue new Federal reserve notes to pay for our profligacy as a 
family . There is a major distinction. 
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I would suggest, gentlemen, that the intelligent 
citizen who seeks specif i c limited surgery, as with lazar 
microsurgery, will not willingly allow the surgeon to perform a 
general laparotomy, opening the entire abdomen and thoracic 
cavity to infection, slips of the knife, and radical excisions, 
with the rearrangement of parts which are working well. If any 
lady in this· hall desires to have the benefit of a tubal 
ligation, it is not necessary to make a 13-inch incision down 
the 'middle of the abdomen in order to open up all 26 feet of 
the intestines and allow them to come out onto a sterile tray, 
and then have the surgery done. It is done through the 
umbilicus 
effective 
gentlemen 
laparotomy. 

by precise techniques that 
for the purpose. I don't 
would want to undergo a 

have prover. 
believe any 

vasectomy by 

to be 
of you 
general 

I would suggest that the image, although perhaps gory, 
is not an inappropriate one. The body of the United States 
Constitution is such an important body and document, that for 
us to take any chances whatsoever with respect to a general 
rearrangement, and a rewriting of the parts of the 
Constitution, is very hazardous. I would suggest that Russian 
roulette offers each of us a five to one chance that nothing 
will happen except the d r opping of the hammer on an empty 
chamber. I don't believe there is anybody in this hall who 
would undertake to rely upon those odds. The reason is that 
the stakes are too high. We may 1 ike the odds; five to one 
sounds pretty good. In a horse race, we might want to rely 
upon that. But, in something where the stakes are far greater 
than losing $2, or $10, we don't take the chance. Indeed, I 
don't believe anybody in this. hal 1 would take on something in 
the nature of Russian roulette, even if the odds were 1000 to 
one. 

:i: .. ~at16--r<e'S•s:f1 +.:M-sof.l1 ·n'O't,,, •-.a,s;.~. :ec :o\s ta,td ,:s,t;i,ca 1 h, e.xenc-ise-~ h ...• b ut-· t r:: . ·. 

point out that those who would pooh-pooh, or denigrate the 
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voiced concerns that have been expressed here in this chamber 
today, over the prospects of what has been termed a runaway 
convention-- These are not insignificant concerns, not because 
of the odds, but because of the stakes involved. 

Last September, I wrote letters to 33 members of the 
Legislature of the State of New Jersey the first 11 
legislature districts -- and advised that the following year, 
which, of course, is this year, 1987, the Constitution would be 
200 years old. There has never, in , the history of 
civi 1 ization, been such an inspired, durable, inflexible 
document of secular government. The Ten Commandments are, of 
c·ourse, older, and a bit brief er, but they came from perfect 
God, and not imperfect man. The 26 amendments which have been 
adopted to date, gentlemen, have all been adopted by the major 
route, which is enunciated in Article V of the United States 
Constitution for amendments. 

I share the Chair's concern and frustration that 
Article V has not made absolutely clear that the people of the 
states can, without having to initiate an amendment to the 
Constitution, through the United States Congress-- They would 
like to be able to initiate it on their own. Unfortunately, 
however, the document has never been tried. In all the history 
of the last 199 and a half years, there has not been a single 
amendment attempted through that process that has gone to 
fruition. It has always been throug~ the route of the Congress 
first, and then ratification. 

The last time a constitutional convention was 
convened, in 1787, the entire existing document was discarded. 
That was the Articles of Confederation. A completely new 
document was drawn up from scratch . Happily, the members of . 
the 1787 convention were men of great wisdom, with enduring 
patience, without partisan axes to grind, and they drew their 
guidance, in large measure, from the spiritual, moral, ethical, 
and philosophical principles of accumulated wisdom over 50 
centuries of Judea-Christian civilization. 
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I have purchased for each of you a copy of a reprint, 
which I believe has already been referred to by the preceding 
witness; that. is, a reprint of an article entitled, 
"Bicentennial Plot." This · is not the workings of a feverish, 
underslept mind that is trying to conjure up sources of 
alarmism. It is an analytical approach, step by step, pointing 
out the history of the Constitution and what has happened with 
respect to it. May I suggest that each member of this 
Committee might find it very profitable to read Professor James 
MacGregor Burns' 1984 book entitled, "The Power to Lead," where 
he made an appraisal of our constitutional system, saying, "The 
framers of the Constitution have simply been too shrewd for 
us. They have outwitted us. They designed separated 
institutions that cannot be unified by mechanical linkages, 
frail bridges, tinkering. If we are to turn the founders 
upside down -- to put together what they put asunder -- we must 
directly confront the constitutional structure they erected. 11 

Burns is the Cochairman of Project '87, a private group. He is 
also a member of the Board of Directors of the Committee on the 
Constitutional System, whose power is not to be underrated. 

In 1985, a book was put together by editor Donald L. 
Robinson, entitled, "Reforming American Government: The 
Bicentennial Papers of the Committee on the Constitutional 
System. 11 In that book, there are 40 working papers set out 
verbatim, including such changes to our form of government as 
the team ticket -- which, by caption itself, sounds innocuous, 
but when you read the language in the two paragraphs on page 4 
of this reprint, you will see that the team ticket is a very, 
very radical change to our form of government; bonus seats; a 
one-house override; ratification by reduced majority; and, the . 
power to dissolve the government that is in off ice, in the 
manner of a parliamentary system. 

r want ··to·' 'poi:nt ·out·· to'· th'i s Cbmmi tt-ee that the Mbntarrn 
State Legislature -- the State Senate -- sent a very clear 
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message to the nation on March 19, when they voted, 45 to 4, 
rejecting a call for a constitutional convention. What is very 
interesting, gentlemen, with respect to this action by the 
Montana State Senate -- which is, of course, no way binding on 
this Committee or on the New Jersey General Assembly -- is the 
fact that only two weeks before the vote, an informal poll 

· showed only five senators opposing the convention call. When 
those Senators got the information which they had theretofore 
been denied with respect to the hazards of an open convention, 
the vote turned out 45 to 4 against the call for a 
constitutional convention. That is an increase, I submit, of 
3.9 . That is a very significant increase. Out of 49 people 
voting, only five had indicated earlier, only two weeks before 
the vote, that they were going to be opposed to the concurrent 
resolution, and it turned out 45 to 4 against. 

I suggest that the Senators in Montana are not all 
that different from the General Assembly persons in the State 
of New Jersey. They seek to do that which is right. They were 
clearly aware of the budgetary problems -- the out-of-control 
finances of the nation. There is no question about that . They 
are not ignorant people, any more than this Committee consists 
of ignorant people. 

So, I suggest that their concern was a very well-based 
concern , and the change in their attitudes and, indeed, as 
reflected in their voting, was the consequence of information. 

One other point with respect to the Montana matter is, 
in an article dated April 13 of this year, I note: "While the 
victory in Montana gives def enders of the Cons ti tut ion reason 
for encouragement, the battle moves on. Bills to withdraw 
their states' petitions for constitutional convention have 
been introduced in the following states : Maryland, AJR-9; 
Pennsylvania, HR-10; Texas, HCR-69; and, Nevada, AJR-25." This 
indicates that-- I believe it was Governor Hughes, in· his 
remarks as the first witness today, who pointed out that the 
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states are manifesting very great concern with respect to the 
impact of a constitutional convention. Indeed, a number of 
states are very profoundl y concerned, inasmuch as the first 17 

according to Governor Hughes that called for a 
constitutional convention -- fully one-half of the 34 necessary 
-- did so without even holding inquiries, as this Committee is 
holding today. 

As these state legislatures have been finding out more 
redmtly -- as the momentum has gained with respect to this 
issue -- more facts, they are now changing their minds . As we 
noted with respect to the proposed 27th Amendment -- the one 
tpat failed -- of ratification -- there was a great concern as 
to whether any state could withdraw ratification. You recall 
seeing the debate on that issue as to whether ratification 
could be withdrawn. By the same token, any attempt on the part 
of a state legislature, through a concurrent resolution, to 
limit the scope of the authority of a constitutional 
convention, would, I am afraid, be ineffectual. 

The certification by the Secretary of State of a state 
is indicated as a yea or nay, and whatever language may have 
been in the resolution goes in at the peril of those who wrote 
it, with no assurance whatsoever that the Federal government 
will limit the authority of an open convention. 

Rather than make any further remarks, I would like to 
invite the most attentive consideration by each member of this 
Committee to the reprint. I have an additional copy for each 
of you in another file folder, and I will leave the copies with 
Mr. Zimmer before I leave . I would 1 ike to leave it as an 
additional indication of the concern of small citizens 
individual people -- over what might happen . It is not just a 
conjured up specter; it is a very real probabil i ty that we will 
no longer have the Constitution that we have been enjoying the 
protecti~on-s•r,0~1·;•,ovet?' 0th'e'se ,... manyvye,a·r s •. · ,,. '· 
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With that ·1 will terminate my remarks, with the very 
urgent request that each member of this Committee give very · 
careful consideration to all of the issues, and defeat ACR-54 
in its entirety. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Sherry Warner? 
SHERRY L. WARN-ER: This is just my personal 

· statement. 
housewife. 

I do not speak fo_r anyone but me. I am an ordinary 
I don't have a lo~by, so here it goes. 

Honorable Assemblymen, New Jersey Legislature: Please 
stop the New Jersey Legislature from passing ACR-54, calling 
for a constitutional convention. We cannot afford to allow 
people of questionable character and motives to have easy 
access to rewriting our Constitution. Our society and 
republican form of government are already at risk. 

Convening a constitutional convention would be 
equivalent to calling for the murder or suicide of the United 
States. We would be destroying the basic foundation on which 
this country was built. We would be guilty of voluntarily 
surrendering to all the enemies and evil forces that would wish 
to destroy this country. Never in a thousand years could any 
group of people rewrite the Constitution to protect and defend 
the liberties which our Constitution now provides. 

We need a 11 branches of government to work harder at 
protecting and defending the Constitution, as they say they 
will when they take their oath of office. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIM?t'i.ER: Thank you. Thomas Warner? 

THOM AS M. WARNER: My name is Thomas Warner. I 
live in Salem, New Jersey. I am addressing these remarks to 
the honorable Assemblymen and ~he New Jersey Legislature. 

Dear Sirs: Please kill ACR-54, the resolution calling 
for a constitutional convention for a balanced budget amendment. 

A constitutional convention would not be bound by any 
restrictive language passed by a state legislature, such as: 
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"For the exclusive purpose of considering 
balance the Federal budget." The wording 
budget amendment has absolutely no legal 

an amendment to 
about a balanced 

standing at a 
constitutional convention to limit its activities. 

The first constitutional convention was called only to 
amend the Articles of Confederation. The convention ended up 
abolishing the Articles of Confederation. Another convention 
called to amend the Constitution could very well end up 
abo!ishing the United States Constitution. 

If we really want a constitutional amendment for a 
balanced budget, we can use the same process used in the past 
to produce our 26 other constitutional amendments. 

According to Article V of the United States 
Constitution, whenever two-thirds of both houses of Congress 
propose an amendment to the Constitution, and the legislatures 
of three-fourths of the states ratify the proposal, it becomes 
valid as part of the Constitution. 

In the American Revolutionary War, our freedom was 
won, in large measure, on the battlefields of New Jersey. Do 
not let our constitutional freedom be lost in New Jersey on the 
battlefield of ACR-54. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you, Mr . Warner. That 
concludes the list of people who did not testify at the initial 
hearing in October. 
B E T T Y A. L I T T L E: I did not testify . I was 
listening for the New Jersey Council of Churches, because I was 
an alternate for Reverend Sarfaty, but Carol Kasabach is he r e 
to do that. However, I do have a statement of my own. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: What I have left-- You ' re Carol 
Kasabach? 
CAROL KASA BACH: No, I am. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Okay. Well, we will have someone 
speak on ·1·b~ti-a'i"r " ''2''' Re'\"e--rentt ~D'ud'1·ey~~-~s~'t.'('f•aty ;/ "~'\and}?,-'YoU• ·,"ar€1·,··Bett:,< : ·. ·· · 
Little. 
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MS. LITTLE: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: And Ed McCool of Common Cause, 

and the League of Women Voters . Now, is there anyone who 
~asn't spoken at the October hearing? (inaudible reply) Okay, 
we will go back to the list. Oh, I'm sorry. Dick Kamin --
Assemblyman from the 23rd District -- is here. - Did you raise 
your hand? (Assemblyman Kamin responds from the audience, but 
his response is inaudible to transcriber since he is not near a 
microphone.) 

Some of these people have been waiting all day. Thank 
you. 

Yes, sir? (in response to a gentlemen in the audience) 
c H A R L E s K u s z M A U L: I signed up several months 
ago; I did not sign up today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Did you speak in October? 
MR. KUSZMAUL: I said I signed up several months ago, 

but I didn't sign up today. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: But, you didn't have the 

opportunity to address us in October? Are you on the record 
once? 

MR. KUS ZMAUL : No, I wasn't at the October hearing, 
but I did sign up after that, for this. 

ASSEMBL W.AN ZIMMER: Okay. And, ma ' am, you had your 
hand up? (in response to a lady in the audience) 
ESTHER C. ABRAMS (speaking from audience): Mr. 
Chairman, I am representing the AARP. My testimony was handed 
in earlier. I did not speak. (remainder of comments inaudible) 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMY~R: Okay . We have your testimony in 
the October transcript. We wi 11 put you on the second tier. 
Sir, since you have not yet spoken, either in October or this . 
afternoon, why don't you speak to us now? 

MR. KUSZMAUL: My name is Charles Kuszmaul. I am 
against the matter of having · a convention, but I am for a 
balanced budget. It is just that I feel we should not expose 
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our Constitution to a convention, because there seems to be a 
plot to use that to present proposals that would bring us into 
a par 1 iamentary type government, should enough people within 
that convention think like they think. 

Then, when it comes back to the State level, and we 
have a convention, we' 11 say, on the State level, if enough 
people in that level think like they think, we may find 
ourselves facing another type government. Then, should that 
happ'en, I don't know what might happen. It could bring about a 
lot of bloodshed in the nation. I don't know what would 
happen. None of us know. 

I have talked to hundreds of people, and I will simply 
say that they do not want to jeopardize our Constitution. They 
are for a balanced budget, but they do not want to do this. 

Now, I have heard a lot of different statements here, 
but no one has brought up the matter of why we are spending so 
much money. One thing I understand, through a book I have at 
home cal led, "Where the Money Went," by Louis Stone, who I have 
talked to personally-- It has been a number of years since I 
spoke to him, during the 1970s, I would say -- somewhere along 
there. This may be true. I have not counted -- if you al 1 
want to make a count -- but he has listed in his book 700 
private enterprises that our Federal government is involved in, 
where our tax money is keeping them afloat. He points out in 
his book that if our Federal government would get out of 
private enterprise -- which they do not belong in -- it would 
cut our budget down to 38%. Of all the taxes the Federal 
government collects, he said that only one-fourth of them comes 
from income tax. Therefore, we do not need the income tax. He 
is the one, 
Amendment." At 
'70s, I think 

of course 
the time I 
12 states 

the author of 
spoke to him, back 
had more or less 
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Another thing -- possibly you have seen the list; I 
don't have it with me to verify it -- there is quite a long 
list of nations which we are supporting where we are 
spending millions, and probably billions. Also, we spend 
millions of dollars I cannot give you the figure off the top 

. of my head -- on an average, per year, supporting communist 
nations. 

In other words, all I am saying is, if we really want 
to dig into it, there is a lot of our money going to things we 
really shouldn't be involved in as a nation. I think it would 
be very helpful if we could get our government less involved in 
things bf that nature. 

I may say that the head of Duke University Law School 
-- Dillinker (phonetic spelling) was head of it, and I think he 
still is -- when he testified before a committee in Congress, 
pointed out that of the 32 states that had called for a 
constitutional convention -- other than the balanced budget --
18 had stipulated certain things. Anyway, he said that 
regardless of what conditions they testified under when they 
were calling for a constitutional convention, they would be 
swept aside, and no attention would be given to them. The 
question would be, is this state calling, or is it not 
calling? So, evidently they have done that, because we have--
There are still 32 states. Delaware had at least six 
provisions. He pointed those out. The one he uses as an 
example-- He said, "Even in Delaware, those six items would be 
disregarded. Is Delaware calling or not calling?" 

These are some things we need to think about and 
consider. It seems to me there was something else I had, but I 
think maybe I have said enough here. Let's see-- Another . 
thing, too, I guess we are concerned about is, with a 
constitutional convention, who controls it? When it comes down 
to us, the people, our best chance in controlling anything is 
on the local level -- the county -- and working up through the 
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county. That is where we would have our best chance. In other 
words, the further away our government gets from us, the less 
control we have, and the weaker we are as a people, and the 
more the government controls us . I am afraid that if we have a 
constitutional convention, we may find ourselves faced with a 
constitution which -- like out in Montana--- They are faced 
with a constitution they didn ' t ask for, bu~ which was put on 
them by an edict, or whatever. They lost their rights out 
ther'e I was talking with a rancher -- their homestead 
rights, and so on. Whatever may happen on a national level, it 
is hard to say what we might lose. Certainly, if our 
Constitution is rewritten, we are certainly not going to have 
more, but less control as a people, and probably a weaker 
nation because of it. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much. I would 

like to now invite the representatives of the Council of 
Churches to speak. 

MS . KASABACH : My name is Carol Kasabach. I am the 
Director of the Office of Governmental Ministry in New Jersey. 
This Office is a ministry of advocacy through a partnership of 
the New Jersey components of the Lutheran Church in Arner ica, 
the American Lutheran Church, the Association of Evangelical 
Lutheran Churches, together with the New Jersey Council of 
Churches and Lutheran Social Services of New Jersey. 

Today, I speak for the New Jersey Council of Churches 
in place of the Reverend Dudley Sarfaty, who is the Associate 
Executive Director of the Council. 

In 1986, the New Jersey Council of Churches undertook 
an extensive developmental process in the formulation of . 
resolutions. Both member denominations and commissions of the 
New Jersey Council of Churches participated in this open 
procesy;-: ·· T ,.1'W'i-stl · 'tt>"-"'enrphca-s'iize1•¥thre,x"ext:ent:~·trf-'~memoe:-",.. derromi ·natior.. -, ... ~< 
participation, so that you will understand that the resolutions 
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presented and accepted 
religious community. 

Fourteen of 

have 

the 

substantial support in the 

17-member denominations were 
represented by 133 persons at the May 3, 1986 annual meeting of 
the New Jersey Council of Churches. On that day, the 
Commission on Government of the New Jersey Council of Churches 
held hearings on a Resolution on the Constitutional Rights. 
The same resolution was also considered by : the Commission on 
Research and Church Development. 

This resolution was reported favorably out of 
committee. It was explained at the time of presentation and, 
there being no further questions, the delegates adopted it 
without dissent. This makes it a powerful statement about our 
concern for the protection of human rights as expressed in the 
amendments to the Constitution of the United States, and as 
provided for in the New Jersey Constitution. Two issues were 
addressed in this particular resolution. 

"Resolution on Preservation of Constitutional Rights: 
"WHEREAS the New Jersey Council of Churches opposes 

the call for a Federal constitutional convention on the 
grounds, among others, that such a convention could conceivably 
threaten the religious and civil liberties embodied in the Bill 
of Rights; and 

"WHEREAS a proposed New Jersey constitutional 
amendment to establish a process for initiative and referendum 
at present provides no protection for the civil and religious 
rights contained in Article I of the State Constitution; 

"THEREFORE, the Annual Assembly of the New Jersey 
Council of Churches resolves to confirm opposition to the call 
for a constitutional conventiqn, to endorse the action of the 
Commission on Government, which seeks to exempt Article I of 
the New Jersey Constitution from the process of initiative and 
referendum, and, in the event of a proposed I&R amendment which 
does not include such exemptions, to refer the issue to the 
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Commission on Government and the Governing Board for further 
consideration." 

Attached are the delegates and their 
These people are highly respected within their 
and present a strong voice against the 
constitutional convention. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much. 

denominations. 
denominations, 
call for a 

MS. LITTLE: Assemblyman Zimmer, I am an adviser on 
the ' New Jersey Impact Board of the New Jersey Council of 
Churches. I am also an environmental adviser to the 
Legislative Cammi ttee of the National Office of the American 
Association of University Women. I am also a st~dent of 
citizen participation in an external degree program. I wanted 
to share some of my views with you at this time, because I will 
be in an advisory capacity to these two organizations, and 
because I do not think that simply turning down this resolution 
is a solution to the problems . In other words, I think that 
many of us have a long-term commitment to resolving the problem 
that has been raised by the fact that we have a government 
which financially seems to be out of control and, at the same 
time, which does a lot of things to people of every economic 
level. Also, at the same time, the question arises of whether 
or not the Constitution is the appropriate means to do that . 

The call for a constitutional convention should be 
made only if there are defects in the goals or structure of 
government of such magnitude that they cannot be remedied in 
any other way. There are two issues in ACR-54, one of which 
has been talked about a good bit today ; the other one really 
has not been discussed too much. 

The first is how to control the Federal budget; how to . 
keep the expenses of government within range . The answer 
provided by this resolution is either to pass a constitutional 
amendment:--, !(",JfOl.}~ -~a,~: '<?!al l :<':,f}c-:;·,,.,-z'u,!l;'..-m.m:s-:tsi-tut,i,onal, · •·!f.C10n.Vien.ti5on, '\, .an.~ ·,,, ,_,; < 
rewrite the Constitution. 
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The New Jersey tax hearings held during the 1970s, in 
which I participated and testified, amply demonstrated the 
interrelationship of government financing at all levels. In 
New Jersey, a simple cut in public financing -- in Federal 
financing -- would be very detrimental to our cities. We get a 
large amount for the cities. Things like the Superfund-~ We 
are getting a large amount of money coming from the Superfund. 
Those kinds of things could be really contrary to the goals of 
the ,people of the State of New Jersey. Our e?ucation system --
as has been said today already -- responds to the Federal 
level. There are also things that the Federal government does 

welfare things -- that the State government does not address 
at all. So, I think we have a very complex problem here. 

Taxes are used both to raise funds and to achieve 
societal objectives, which makes a further difficulty. That is 
particularly true in the field of environmental concerns. 
Those who feel that government spending is too large a part of 
our GNP may not understand that the strategy suggested here 
could reduce governmental spending on education, 
and support for the aged, which they support. 

heal th care, 
To call for 

control of the budget through the Cons ti tut ion sti 11 does not 
identify what will be in the budget, and is a dangerous 
procedure. 

The Congress and the President have been working for 
tax reform and control of inflation over the last several 
years. Those who have fol lowed these proceedings are aware of 
the difficulties and frustrations involved in this process, 
There is no simple answer. I think one of the problems that I 
have identified in my dissertation work, is the fact that 
economists themselves are not working together on this 
problem . They do not know how 'to participate in forums such as 
this. I did a survey a year ago which demonstrates that they 
expect to be called , as "experts," , so they would not 
automatically come into a forum such as this to discuss the 
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budget with you. You did have a student here today, and that 
is quite commendable. But, considering the list of people who 
are interested in this issue, all the way from Paul Samuelson 
to Kenneth Arrow, we have no definitive statement on that. One 
thing I would like to do, and plan to do, is to see if I can 
develop that as an economist. But, they do not understand that 
they need to be here at: these hearings, in order to affect 
society. That is pretty ~ell documented. 

An article in "Time," dated March 30, 1987 -- which I 
am including for the record -- entitled, "A Change in the 
Weather: As Reagan's Era Recedes, Compassion and Government 
Activism Regain Favor," includes a poll - taken for "Time." 
Sixty percent of those polled would, "Support increased 
spending for social programs, even if it would require an 
increase in taxes." Of those polled, 78% supported increased 
spending for heal th care for the elderly; 73% for environment; 
71% for aid to the homeless; and, 71% for health services for 
the poor. This suggests that even if a convention were called, 
it might seek a budget higher, and not lower, than the current 
one. That is contrary, I believe, to the desires of the 
authors of this legislation . 

So, we have the whole tax structure question -- what 
the tax will mean to us if we hold down taxing and government 
spending, and the whole interrelationship of governments -- the 
complexity here. That is one whole set of issues which I think 
needs to be addressed by the economic community, but it has not 
been done. 

United 
today. 

The second issue is, how to control bureaucracy in the 
States. That is an issue we really have j ust touched on 

In a book cal led, "A Machine That Could Go of Itself," . 
Michael Kammen concludes that the Constitution has been able to 
weather many crises in American history because there were 
a 1 ways pe,r,,.&OWSr•;,,"'Who .. ····,,.-a,e·te d<, ... "'ia•S1'.1•:··,gu1rTd5tan'S' •',.oi:arrd '"r 'CUSto·d i,ans--. •.• .,.- · Th , • .. · 
Constitution is not, afte r all, a machine that can go of 
itself, and Kammen concluded that . What, then, is needed? 
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Al though we have scholars in constitutional law - and 
you have heard some people making attempts at that -- I really 
have heard no one today who speaks in the same vein as Henry 
Steele Commager lectured in when I was at Columbia. He 
understood the entire scope of the Constitution and its fellow 
institutions. What we - have are people studying the 
Constitution and the laws that are affected by judicial 
decisions, and another grpup of people over here who deal with 
socfal issues and problems. We do not have anyone looking at 
the situation from a holistic point of view, excepting perhaps 
yourself and myself. 

A nation of farmers -- which is where we began with 
this Constitution -- saw a government with limited powers that 
provided for due process and division of powers as being very 
suitable . We are no longer a nation of farmers. The social 
upheavals of the 1960s suggested that this type of government 
was inadequate to address contemporary environmental and social 
problems. Bureaucracy was fostered as a response to industrial 
society and, supported and encouraged by a political system, 
had efficiency as its objective . That is exactly the opposite 
of what we have gotten. I was part of a study done by the New 
Jersey Division of the American -- the AAUW -- on water for the 
21 century, in which we decided that the seven laws governing 
water were, in effect, not giving us protection at all, because 
the bureaucracies were fighting over authority and laws. That 
state of affairs is even worse now than it was a year and a 
half ago when we did the study. 

The bureau then was considered nonpolitical, and could 
provide trained and knowledgeable experts to exercise law and 
policy- making authority indepepdent of the political branches. 
This power often interfered with individual and corporate 
liberty and property . I might say, it has grown almost 
unbelievably and almost out of hand. It is the budgets and 
missions of these bureaus that are largely responsible for us 
losing control of our budgets. 
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American political history might be viewed as a 
conflict between attempts to create an effective administrative 
structure ·and implement national policy and a deeply ingrained 
contemporary distrust, even hostility, towards the authority of 
government. 
through: 

Attempts have been made to control bureaucracy 

1) 

interested 
Judicial 

groups 
review and full 

and individuals 
participation by 

in administrative 
deci'~ion-making. 
effective tool, 
has been funded. 

There is some evidence that this has been an 
particularly on environmental issues, when it 

But right now that program is not funded; 
2) Congressionally imposed standards of 

accountability imposed on administrators at the time authority 
was delegated; 

3) Governmental reorganization that is very 
popular. The new President or the new Governor comes in and he 
starts at the beginning. There, the economists have made some 
recommendations in terms of zero-based budgeting; 

4) Deregulation, shrinking the staffs, funding and 
missions of bureaus, and relying on market mechanisms -- a sort 
of nee-laissez faire. This is the Reagan Administration 
philosophy; 

5) Finally, through the threat of a constitutional 
amendment or restructuring of the Constitution -- which is your 
proposal in ACR-54. 

I might also say it is not only the bureaucracy 
itself, but the almost complete inability of the public and the 
legislatures at every level to control the war effort. Defense 
seems to be immune from control and budgets . 

Benjamin Barber of Princeton University, in his book, . 
"Strong Democracy : Participatory Politics for a New Age, " 
suggests that it is time to revitalize the role of citizenship 
in our-' · "'SO'Ci!?t'y-'%,•,·a-rfd!!i•.,wo·,~ ,.,ttow-a-r ds'!-'. me~ ~:. f-0J:rtns .. :.,of.,'.;;"derno-cr,ac1~"••! · · T .• · •. ,, -. 

quote: "To call for a constitutional convention, " he states, 
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11 is to invite disaster. The American system, like entrenched 
democratic constitutions everywhere, survives by evolving, and · 
evolves by accrediting new institutional layers that conform to 
the contours of a historically tested practice, even as they 
alter the system' s dimensions and center of gravity. Strong 
democracy is a complementary strategy that adds without 
removing, and that reorients without distorting. There is no 
other way. 11 

A public hearing or series of public hearings which 
encourage both academic and nonacademic participation in a 
serious effort to rethink our Constitution, its goals, and the 
governmental structure which has preceded from it, is needed. 
That 16 of the states which support this proposal did not even 
hold hearings suggests that this resolution has not as yet had 
serious public review. The cal 1 for a constitutional 
convention was first proposed in 1975, and there is little or 
no record of the motives of those who have thus far given it 
support. 

I urge you to reject or table this resolution until 
this body, or some other, can organize a conference to explore 
alternatives in-depth. What was missing today was the 
economists. A constitutional convention without guidance for 
its membership, procedures, and agenda would be chaotic. It 
would stop government activity; it would disrupt government at 
all levels; it would set back programs and policies designed to 
meet public needs. If the individual good and the public good 
are out of harmony, let us seek less drastic ways to reconcile 
the differences . 

ASSEMBLYM.n.N ZIMMER: Thank you very much. Just on 
your assumption that if we got all of the economists together, 
they would be able to agree, I am not sure that experience 
bears that out. 

MS. LITTLE: No, but I think-- You know, as I 
listened today, I thought to myself that the implications of 
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this could have been -- should have been explored with -- if we 
could have gotten them-- Both sides here worked very hard to 
get expertise at this hearing. I want to compliment you on the 
handling of this hearing, excepting for myself, who should have 
simply registered as a citizen. 

You have listen~d very well to all the people who have 
spoken. You have paid ~ttention to their points . I think if 
public hearings could ~e run more often in this fashion, we 
woul.d advance the causes of good government. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you very much . Marie 
Curtis, League of Women Voters? 
MAR IE CURTIS: Good afternoon~ Mr. Chairman. I am 
Marie Curtis of the League of Women Voters of New Jersey. I am 
not going to take the time to read my testimony . I think we 
have al 1 been there before. I am sure you and the Cammi ttee 
members are well aware that the League opposes ACR-54 . We do 
this on both counts. 

The League conducted a study and consensus process 
nationwide between the years 1984 and 1986, so it is very 
current. That study was on financing the Federal government. 
The results of that study with more than 100,000 League 
members involved nationwide was that, while we strongly 
support a balanced budget in concept, we do not believe that 
mandating it is the way to go, because there are those 
extraordinary circumstances where deficit spending is 
warranted. One has only to look back to World Wars I and II to 
recognize that we could, indeed, be in a crisis situation if we 
didn't have that flexibility. 

We also, of course, are very concerned with the idea 
of a constitutional convention. You have heard all of this 
from us before. I am not going to go over it again. 

I have a couple of comments, though , that I noted 
after l:.i.swnLngt-~t o.-,1,-. t;:bet:· .,.p tl'eV,>;iou.s,,·. <;;S.peake.cs),,·.::t oday...,.,.,. The,~-:-~£·i:rs .. ,·;,·: 
comment is with regard to a question which I believe came from 
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you, Mr. Chairman, early this morning: "Why did they put this 
thing in Article V of the Constitution if it wasn't meant to be 
utilized?" I think if we look back to the time that our 
founding fathers were writing this Constitution, they had just 
come through a Revolution. I think they had just come to the 
conclusion that the Articles of Confederation had proved 
unsatisfactory. So, may~e they were having a little attack of 
humility. Perhaps they: felt they shouldn't insist that their 
document was the only way to go. They may have been saying, in 
essence, "If this Constitution, like the Articles, doesn't work 
out, then here is a way that you can change it and try again, 
because our way may not work either." 

I think you know that the League doesn't wish to 
change and try again. We think their way did work, and we 
would not like to jeopardize the remarkable foundation in 
government we have. 

Two other points: One, everybody has been talking 
about a balanced budget and runaway spending. Have we 
considered the cost of a constitutional convention and delegate 
elections? True, minimal in the overall concept of the overall 
debt, but, nevertheless, a rather major cost factor, especially 
when we have no limitation or time constraints on such a 
convention. 

My last point is: We heard from Mr. Davidson the 
phrase, "Trust the people. Trust the people." I think, Mr. 
Chairman, that you and the Cammi ttee know that the League of 
Women Voters does, indeed, trust the people, and have always 
stood for that. However, I don't think it is quite a carte 
blanche phrase that can be used in every situation. After all, 
back in 1787, trusting the people meant trusting the white male 
people in the populace. What ·happened was a Constitution that 
excluded women from the right to vote. We in New Jersey had 
that right -- we females here -- but our 1850 Constitution had 
to be brought in line with the Federal Constitution, or so it 
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was felt at that time, and we lost our right to vote because of 
those founding fathers in 1787. 

So, we, at least personally, the descendants of the 
women of New Jersey of that time, maybe should not have trusted 
the people at that point. 

tape. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Thank you. 
MS. CURTIS: 
ASSEMBLYMAN 

It will take 

Thank you. 
ZIMMER: Our reporter has run out of 

about two or three minutes to switch 
tapes. So, we will take a break, and then we have two more 
witnesses scheduled -- Ed McCool and Dick Kamin. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Ed has left . 
ASSEMBLYMAN ZIMMER: Oh, Ed has left, and Dick Kamin 

has left. Is Dick coming back? (negative response) 
All right, then I declare the hearing adjourned . 

Thank you very much . 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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BRADLEY 
'N JIIIHV 

Mr. Gregg Rackin 

tinittd ~tatts ~matt 
WASHINGTON, DC 20510 

Apr i 1 9, i 98 7 

Chapter and Field Coordinator 
American Jewish Congress-NJ 
44 Glenwood Avenue 
East Orange, New Jersey 07017 

Dear Mr. Rae)dn: 

Thank you for contacting me regarding the Federal Tax 
Limitation/Balanced Budget Amendment. 

C0MMITTU8: 
,1NANCE 

INE"GY AND 
NATUIIIAL RESOURCES 
8Ellc:T COMMITTEE 

ON INT£L.1..IGENCE 
6P£CIAL COMMITTEE ON 

AGING 

As you may know, this legislation requires that 
Congress adopt an annual budget statement that specifies the 
amount of expected revenue and expenditures, Expenditures 
and revenues must bal&nee, but specific excesses are allo~ed 
by a 3/5 vote of Congress. Congress may W8ive the 
application of this amendment in the event of war or 
national emergency. 

I opposed this amendment because I believed it would 
lead to higher taxes, would cause a greater government inter-
ference in business, and would reduce Congress's ability to 
deal effectively with future fiscal problems. I outlined 
the reasons for my conclusion in a statement I made before 
the Senate on March 25, i986, a copy of whieh I have 
enclosed for your review, The Balanced Budget Amendment was 
defeated in the Senate on March 25, 1986, by a vote of 
66-34, one vote short of the two-thirds necessary to approve 
an amendment to the Constitution, 

To effectively address the problem of the federal 
deficit, I believe we must take ~rgent action to adopt 
strong measures on many fronts. We must act to promote a 
healthy "athletic" economy invigorated by competition in 
every sector, eliminating inefficiencies, holding down 
prices and demanding innovation, We must address those 
areas of our economy which are hampering economic growth, 
such as our system of agrieultural price supports. rurther-
more, fed@ral spending must b@ reduced in those areas of the 
federal budget where taxp~yers are not receiving a proper 
return on their dollar, I a~ pleased that the 99th Congress 
enacted sever~l of the recom~endations made by the Grace Com-
mission, in whole or in part, and I will certainly be 
fighting for the edoption of their budget-cutting measures 

IX 
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in the next Congress, Finally, we must reconsider how our 
various governmental programs can be administered most 
efficiently. 

First, we must more vigorously attack wasteful and even 
counter~productive 9overnment spending programs. Two areas 
I believe deserve far greater attention are agricultural 
price supports and wasteful defense spending. 

Onder the present agricultural price support system, 
the federal government maintains a minimum support price for 
various commodities by purchasing and storing quantities 
when there is insufficient consumer demand. The cost of 
these programs has grown astronomically in recent years~ 
from $4 billion in 1981 to an estimated $30 billion in 1986. 
This is a 750% increase in just five years. These price 
supports, coupled with the strength of the dollar abroad, 
have made American farm ~roducts too expensive for foreign 
markets, causing a drastic decline in Ameriean food exports. 
Yet, with a guarantee of higher minimum priees next year, 
farmers have been encouraged to increase production, As a 
result, the federal government has had to buy and store 
larger shares of these bumper crops in order to maintain the 
mandated prices. 

In short, the program has been increasingly expensive 
for both the taxpayer and the consumer. Worse still, many 
family farms are deeply in debt end faee imminent 
bankruptcy. Clearly, our a9ricultural price support pro~ram 
needs to be changed. I bel1eve we need to bring production 
more in line with demand, ensure a stable and adequate 
supply of agricultural products for American consumers, and, 
most importantly, reduce the eost of this program to the 
federal government. 

Next, we have to stop throwing away money on wasteful 
defense spending. We simply cannot tolerate paying for new 
systems that don't work. And we can't tolerate the out• 
rageou! , ~J.c:e5.-~-~ t;M~.t,.,:ha• .. ·~ -•ri . ;ayi:.ng _ ,rd thout . , _ _ 
question. Moreover, we must care'fu'Ily '·-exa'ffltne'·'the "pr~ -- we::: 
pay for spare parts. It is outrageous tha; the Def~e · · 
Department paid $726.86 for a $7~99 electric plug and $'4 
fore $,17 light bulb. In addition, we should require 
competitive bidding on most defense contracts, Today only 
6\ of the defense budget is subject to the competition of 
the free enterprise system, Clearly, much more of the 
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. defense bl.ldge-t-.must be spent in a more competitive .setting .. , .. .• . 
If contractors competed to offer the lowest price, instead 
of the government asking a contractor how mueh money he 
wanted to be paid, we could save considerable amounts of 
money. 

' We should also seriously reevaluate which programs are 
best handled at the federal level, which at the state level, 
and which at the local level, We could then eliminate much 
of the bureaucracy and duplication. When programs are 
administered at every level, not only do we waste tax 
dollars in administering unnecessary programs, but also we 
create a bureaucratic maze which is a nightmare for the 
public. Government has important services to render, but we 
can no longer tolerate such waste and duplication. Pinally, 
I believe that the enactment of a ne~ lower-rate, 
broader-based tax system will stimulate the economy and help 
reduce the budget deficit over the long term. 

In summary, I believe we must have the courage and good 
sense to reduce the federal deficit through national 

-- -policies that promote a vibrant and truly competitive 
economy, These policies must challenge us as a nation to 
embrace strong measures to reduce inefficiencies and promote 
the general interest. That won't come from slogans like 
"balanced budget" amendments, It must come from decisive 
action by the President, by Congress, by states, localities 
and the American people. 

Thanks again for taking the time to contact me on this 
critical issue. Please keep in touch in the future on 
issues of mutual concern. 

BB/rtz 

Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

~-
Bill :Bradley 
United States Senator 

~-'-_ -~ -_ ~_ -_ -c_-_ -_ -_ -._~_ -_ -_-~~-~-~--~~--~_::~~=-=-=.::.~~~~============--~-~-~-J 
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NATIONAL DOMESTIC POLICY CONFERENCE 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

SUNDAY, MARCH 8, 1987 

THANK YOU, THANK YOU SO VERY, VERY MUCH FOR THOSE KIND 
WORDS OF INTRODUCTION. IT IS A PLEASURE AND AN HONOR FOR ME TO. 
PARTICIPATE IN THIS SESSION OF YOUR CONFERENCE. PARTICULARhY 
BECAUSE IT PROVIDES THE OPPORTUNITY TO SPEAK ABOUT SOME LONG 
RANGE ISSUES WHICH CONFRONT OUR NATION AND OUR PEOPLE. 

PERHAPS~ STORY MIGHT SET THE .STAGE FOR SUCH A DISCUSSION. 

A PHYSICIAN, AN ENGINEER AND A POLITICIAN WERE HAVING AN 
ARGUMENT. THEY WERE TRYING TO DETEF1·1INE WHICH OF THEM WAS THE 
OLDEST PROFESSION MENTIONED IN THE BIBLE. 

THE DOCTOR SAID, "GOD TOOK A RIB FROM ADAM'S SIDE TO MAKE 
EVE. THAT WAS A SURGICAL PROtEDURE. OBVIOUSLY, MEDICINE.IS THE 
FIRST PROFESSION MENTIONED IN THE BIBLE." 

THE ENGINEER DISAGREED. HE SAID, "GOD MADE HEAVEN AND 
Ell.RTH IN SIX DAYS. NOW, THAT \':AS A FEAT OF ENGINEERING. AFTER 
ALL, ENGINEERING IS NOTHING MORE THAN MAKING ORDER OUT OF 
CHAOS. GOD CREATED THE WORLD FR0:-1 CHAOS. CLEARLY, HE WAS AN 
F.NGINEER. II 

BOTH OF THE11 LOOK AT THE POLITICIAN. 

EE LOOKED BACK AT THEM AND SAID, "WHO DO THINK CREATED THE 
CHAOS?" 

NOW I DON'T MEAN TO SUGGEST THAT THINGS ARE PRESENTLY IN A 
S~ATE OF CHAOS. FAR FROM IT. BUT I THINK YOU'LL AGREE WITH ME 
THAT SmLSTHING IN OC'R GOVERNMENT'S SYSTE~1 OF OPERATION IS NOT 
QUITE RIGHT. 

M;>..NY 
DIRECTION. 
WOULD CALL 
CLARITY. 

IN OUR SOCIETY HAVE DOUBTS ABOUT OUR POLICY 
MANY ARE CONFUSED ABOUT OUR GOALS. THERE ' S WHAT I 

A CERTAIN SENSE OF DESTABILIZATION, A CERTAIN LACK OF 

I BE_LIEVE THAT THE COUNTRY WANTS SOHE STARILITY, IT WANTS 
TO ORDER ITS VALUES AND PRIORITIES. IN OTHER WORDS, THE COUNTRY 
WANTS SOME E~GINEERING. 

THERE .. , ''ARE' -~·•r•1~NY "'·-·xSStiES'·~ ,,-rn1iGH-· ·-WE,,, COULD . ,,D2,S_CUS.S lN THIS . 
CONTEXT. 

SOME ISSUES ARE GLOBAL LIKE SUPER POWER RELATIONS OR 
INTERNATIONAL TERRORISM. BUT AS I UNDERSTAND IT, THIS 
CONFERENCE DESIRES TO FOCUS ONLY ON Dm-,ESTIC ISSUES. AND TEAT 
IS ¼HAT I INTEND TO DO TONIGHT. 
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IN ONE SENSE THE DOMESTIC AGENDA IS A MILE LONG. WE COULD 
SPEND THE ENTIRE EVENING JUST NhllING ITS ELEMENTS. 

IN ANOTHER SENSE, THE LIST SORT OF SEPARATES INTO TWO 
COMPONENTS. THERE ARE THE HARD OR TECHNICAL ISSUES LIKE ROADS 
AND BRIDGES, THE ENVIRONMENT OR SPACE EXPLORATION. • 

AND THERE ARE THE PEOPLE ISSUES LIKE THE HOMELESS OR· 
EDUCATION OR DRUG ABUSE. AND, OF COURSE, THEY OVERLAP EACH 
OTHER. . EACH OF TEEM BY ITSELF IS CRITICAL AND- IMPORTANT AND -
EACH, IN ITS OWN WAY, LITERALLY CLAMORS FOR THE ATTENTION OF OUl'\ 
POLITICAL PROCESS. 

YET SOMETHING SEEMS WRONG WITH THE DELIVERY SYSTEM. IT IS 
AS IF !A KIND OF FEDERAL INSUFFICIENCY CANNOT BRING THESE THINGS 
TO RESOLUTION. ., 

I BELIEVE .THAT THE TENSION WHICH HAS FRUSTRATED THE 
FULFILLMENT OF POLICY GOALS CAN BE EXPLAINED. 

FOR 20 YEARS, OUR NATIONAL GOVERNMENT HAS BEEN RUNNING ON A 
GROWING FISCAL IMBALANCE. AND BY THAT I MEAN THE FEDERAL 
DEFICIT. AND THAT IMBALANCE IS THE ORIGIN OF THE CONFLICT 
BETWEEN THE AMOUNT AND TYPE OF GOVERNMENT WE WANT AND THE ME.~NS 
WE PUT IN PLACE TO PAY FOR IT. 

I AM NOT USING THE WORD CONFLICT LIGHTLY. THE CONTINUING 
DEFICIT HAS REALLY UNDEPJUNED WHAT IS NORMALLY THE MOST BASIC 
TASK OF GOVERNMENT. AND THAT TASr:: IS TO BUILD THE CONSENSUS 
WHICH WILL BAL~-NCE TH:S APPROPRIA~E SIZE AND FUNCTIONS O? 
GOVERNMENT ON ONE HAND AND THE FINANCING OF THAT GOVERNMENT ON 
THE OTHER HAND. 

NOW, IT rs TRUE, THAT THERE AR~ CERTAIN FUNCTIONS WHICH CAN 
AND SHOULD BE PERFOR1·1ED BY THE STJiTES. EDUCATION IS A PRIME 
EXAMPLE. PARTICULARLY SINCE FEDERAI., FUNDING H~.S BECOME SO VERY 
TIGHT. IN THE PAST FE1'7 YEARS IN NEW JERSEY WE HAVE BEEN 
REBUILDING OUR SCHOOLS FRO~ THE GROUND UP. 

WE ARE RAISING STANDARDS FOR STUDENTS AND TEACHERS. WE'RE 
PAYING TEACHERS A LIVING WAGE. AND WE' RE DOING SOMETHING -VERY 
IMPORTANT: WE ARE LETTING TALEN'I'ED PEOPLE FROM ALL DISCIPT..,INES 
INTO OUR CLASSROOM WITHOUT AN EDLlCA~ION DEGREE, AS LONG AS THEY 
PROVE THEY CAN TEACH. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERN IS ANOTHER AREA OF STATE ACTIVIVISM • . 
THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT wm1 'T ALLOW NEW CONSTRUCTION IN 1 O O 

NEW JERSEY TOw'"NS UNTIL THEY BUILD NEW SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANTS. 
THEY WON'T PROVIDE TEE MONEY -- THE CLEAN WATER ACT WON'T BEGIN 
TO MEET THE NEED. SO WE HAVE TO BUILD THEM OURSELVES. WE HAVE 
SET UP A STATE REVOLVING LOP..!~ FUl\D TO RECYCLE THE MONEY AND 
BUILD THEM CHEAPER. 

Sx 
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WE KNOW THERE ARE NO SPARE PEOPLF. IN NEW JERSEY. WE ARE 
REFORMING OUR WELFARE SYSTEM. WE REQUIRE RECIPIENTS TO WORK OR 
GO TO SCHOOL. WE PROVIDE HEALTH CARE, TRANSPORTATION AND DAY 
CARE IN RETURN. WE HAVE COt-'i.MITTED OURSELVES TO . BREAK THE 
GENERATION AFTER GENERP.TION CYCLE OF WELFARE IN AS MANY CASES AS 
POSSIBLE. \, 

THERE ARE MANY STATE RESPONSIBILITIES, BUT THAT DOES NOT 
EXCUSE THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT FROM ITS ROLE. PROBLEMS LIKE ACID 
RAIN OR AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL CROSS STATE BORDERS. 

AND THERE IS THE ISSUE OF EQUITY. NOT ALL STATES <;AN OR 
WILL INVEST IN EDUCATION OR WELFARE REFORM. CAN WE REALLY 
AFFORD TO HAVE OUR COUNTRY POCKMARKED WITH POVERTY AND IGNORANCE? 

THE POINT IS THAT STATES HAVE PHYSICAL LIMITS TO THEIR 
RESOURCES, PARTICULARLY SINCE WF-.SHINGTON COLLECTS 't'HE BULK OF 
THE TAXES. CLEARLY, THERE IS A FEDERAL ROLE. . 

BUT THE FEDERAL DOMESTIC AGENDA REQUIRES A NATIONAL 
ORDERING OF PRIORITIES. AND I'M AFRAID TO SAY, THAT PROCESS 
WILL NOT BE SUCCESSFUL AS LONG AS OUR NATION'S FINl-.NCES ARE A 
MESS. 

NO'd, I AM NOT ECONO~IS.T, BUT I RESPECT THOSF 
PP_i\CTITIONERS OF WHAT' THOr-L!l,S CARLYLE CALLED "THE DI·S!1AL 
SCIE:JCE". l>.ND I SUS:?ECT TEAT POLITICAL ECONO:M.ICS 1flLL BE TEE 
CENTER OF A'i:''.Y DEBATE ADDRESSING THE NATIONAL DOME.STIC AGENDA IN 
THE COMING YEARS. 

IN MY VIEW, WE ARE HEADED FOR A MAJOR CONFRONTATION WITH 
ECONOMIC FORCES THAT ARE ACTING TO OUR DETRIMENT. I'M 
SPECIFICALLY REFERRING TO THE Ml>.SSIVE ACCUMULATION OF DEB'I' I N 
OUR SOCIETY AND TO THE FISCAL IMBALANC E WHICH IS A DAILY 
OCCURRENCE WITH OUR FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. 

THE DEFICITS THAT WE RUN ARE UNACCEPTABLE. THEY HAVE 
BECO:V1E A RECURRING PATTERN FOR Ti·7ENTY YEl,RS. AKD THEY HAVE 
GR0\'·1N WORSE AND WORSE AND WORSE. 

TWO HUNDRED BILLION DOLLAR DEFICITS HAVE BECOME 
CO!-!MONPLACE. THE NUMBERS ARE SO LARGE AS TO BE 
INCQr,!PREHENSIBLE. THEY ONLY HA'i<E SEl'iSE IN A M.i\CRO-ECONOMIC 
FRI>J·1EWORK AND WE, THE NON-ECONOMISTS, HAVE BECOME COMPLACE".'JT 
ABOUT THE .. .WARNINGS WE ..AP.E . GETTING FROM THOSE FEW PROFESSIOl':.Z..L S 
WHO FATHOM'" THTS . 1'RO'CES'S •· 

OUR ECONOMY IS PRECARIOUSLY BALANC ED. LET T RY A~D 
DESCRIBE IT. 

IMAGINE A GIGANTIC SEE-SAW. AT ONE Erm IS THE FEDER.:..L 
DEFICIT OF ABOUT $175 BILLION FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR. AT THE 
OTHER END IS THE TRADE DEFICIT or ABOUT AN EQUAL ANOUNT. 
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THE FIRST OF THESE TWIN DEFICITS IS EXP ANS ION ARY. IT'S 
CLASSIC, KEYNESIAN, FISCAL STIMULATION AT WORK. 

THE OTHER DEFICIT, IN TRADE, IS CONTRACTIONARY •• THE TWO 
SEEM TO BE OFFSETTING EACH OTHER, BUT NOT IN A .DIRECT MP.NNER. 
THE FIRST ONE ST!MULATES CERTAIN SECTORS OF THE A.~ERICAN. 
ECONO:W, LIKE SERVICES. AND THEY RESPOND TO THAT STIMULUS AND 
GROW AS THEY HAVE IN THE LAST FOUR YEARS. 

\, 

THE TRADE DEFICIT IS A NEGATIVE. IT CAUSES CERTAIN SECTORS 
TO DECLINE. 1'Lll..~WFACTURING IS JUST SUCH AN EXAMPLE. 

THE A.'10UNTS BALANCING EACH. END OF TH,AT SEE-SAW HAVE 
BECOME ENORMOC'S. AND WHILE THE FULCRUM IS CURRENTLY IN THE 
MIDDLE, MY FEAR IS TP.AT ANY DISTURBANCE ON EITHER END, COULD 
BRING ABOUT A RESOUNDING CRASH. 

THE SEE-SAW IS REALLY MORE COMPLICATED BECAUSE, IN FACT, 
IT HAS NOT TWO ENDS, BUT FOUR. PICTURE, IF YOU WILL, A SECOND 
SEE-SAW ON TOP OF THE FIRST. ONE RUNS NORTH-SOUTH AND THE 
SECOND ONE EAST AND WEST. 

THE FIRST IS m:sTE;..DILY PERCHED WITH THE TWIN DEFICITS AT 
E!THER END. BUT TnE SECOND 01'7E ?-L;\KES THINGS MORE TJNSTABLE. 
LET'S LOOK AT IT. 

ON ONE END OF SEE-SAW NUMBER TWO IS THE ACTIVITY 
INVOLVING THE FEDER.:,..L I:tESE?,VE. h'E KNOW ABOUT TnE PROBLEMS IN 
OUR BANKS. THE ST.Z..TISTICS ARE FRIGETE!HNG. WE HAD MORE 'BANK 
FAILURES IN THE UNITED STATES L.i\S'.i:' YEAR THAN IN ANY YEAR SINCE 
THE GREAT DEPRESSION. 

THERE ARE REPEATED QUESTIONS A3 0 UT THE SOUNDNESS OF FEDERAL 
DEPOSIT INSURANCE. SOM~ EXPERTS SCGGEST THAT THE FED rs TRYING 
TO P.Z..PER OVER THE P?-OBLE1'1 WIT:-i EXCESSIVE MONEY CREATION. THE 
RECENT DECLINE OF TEE DOLLAR AGAIKST OTHER WORLD CURRENCIES 
SEEMS TO SUPPORT THAT VIE~. 

THE OTHER END OF THAT MONET.:..RY SEE-SAW IS OUR DEPENDENCY 
ON DEBT. THE 1W!\ST CULPRIT -- TP.E FEDER.l\L GOVERNMENT -- ADDS A 
HALF A BILLION A DAY TO ITS DEBT. 

BUT THE WE OLE COUNTRY IS F9LLO;-~ING THAT TREND. ALL TYPES 
OF DEBT ARE RISING, WHETHER THEY ARE BUSINESSES, INDIVIDUALS OR 
GOVERNMENT. 

IT WOULD BE ONE THING IF THAT DEST WERE INCURRED FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF PRODUCTIVE INVESTMENT. THEN, WE WOULD SEE A 
C0!'·11·1E~SURATE RISE Hi OUP. INCO'.-'.E AS A RESULT. BUT INSTEAD TEAT 
DEBT IS BEING PILED UP, AND T::: MO:;EY IS SPENT t1AINLY ON 
CONSUMPTION. 

7x 
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THE RESULT OF THIS ACTION IS CLEAR: THE RATIO OF DEBT TO 
THE INCOME WHICH MUST SERVICE IT, HAS REACHED THE HIGHEST LEVELS 
~INCE THE .GREAT DEPRESSION. 

ONE ADDITIONAL FACT. FOR . 70 YEARS THE UNITED STATES WAS A· 
. . . N5:'!' CREDITOR -IN THE WORLD. IN JUST TWO YEARS WE ElWE BECOME - TEE 

WORLD'S LARGEST NET DEBTOR, SURPASSING MEXICO, BRAZIL, OR ANY· 
OTHER COUNTRY. 

AT THE PRESENT TIME WE ARE BORROWING NEARLY $3 BILLION 
DOLLARS EACH WEEK FROM OVERSEAS INVESTORS IN ORDER TO FINANCE 
OUR INTERNATIONAL DEFICIT. BY THE END OF THIS DECADE, IT IS 
ESTH"iATED THAT Af!ERICA WILL HAVE A NET FOREIGN DEBT OF ABOUT $7 
HUNDRED BILLION DOLLARS. ' 

WE ARE MORTGAGING OUR CHILDREN'S FUTURE . TO SERVICE THAT 
DEBT. THEIR PRODUCTIVITY WILL HAVE TO PAY IT BACK, OR PAY THE 
INTEREST ON IT, BECAUSE WE DON'T OWE THAT PORTION OF THE DEBT TO 
OURSELVES. WE OWE IT ABROAD • . 

I'M WORRIED ABOUT THE ECONOMIC ISSUES. I'M WORRIED BECAUSE 
THEY ARE UNPRECEDENTED IN SIZE AND IN SCOPE. AND NONE OF US --

. NO ECONOMIST, NO POLITICAL FIGURE, NO GOVERNMENTAL LEADER CAN 
ACCURATELY PREDICT THE OUTCOME IF EXISTING TRENDS PERSIST. 

THE ISSUE OF THE 
DOMESTIC POLICY AGENDA •. 
WATCH HOW WE DO IT. 

FEDERAL DEFICIT INFLUENCES THE ENTIRE 
IT MUST GET RESOLVED, BUT WE HAV.E TO 

WE CANNOT JUST RESORT TO SOME ARBITRARY · AND MANDATORY 
SCHEME LIKE GF.J...l-1}1-RUDMAN . TEAT DOESN'T WORK, IT HASN'T WORKJ:;D 
AND IT WON'T WORK. 

SOME ARE SUGGESTING A CONSTITUTIONAL CONVENTION. I HAVE MY 
DOUBTS ABOUT THAT. I DO NOT BELIEVE THAT THE WAY TO SOLVE THE 
PROBLEM OF THE DEFICIT IS TO OPEN UP FOR AMENDMENT THE ENTIRE 
CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES. 

IF ANYTi-ill,G, WE MUST NOW BE ·MORE VIGILANT ABOUT THE 
CONSTITUTION THhN EVER BEFORE. BECAUSE THE PRESSURE FROM THE 
DEFICIT MAY LEAD TO THE LEGISLATION OF POLITICAL EXPEDIENCE 
WHICH MAY THREATEN OUR INDIVIDUAL FREEDOM AND I AM 
PARTICULA~LY CONCERNED ABOUT ANY POSSIBLE AMENDMENTS TO THE BILL 
OF RIGETS. 

THE . DO:•IBSTIC AGENDA IS ABOUT PROTECTING INDIVIDUAL FREEDOM. 
THE CONSTITUT!OR. 'R'E~!ArNS ''OuR ''ONI}Y '"DIT'ENSE : ,·· .. 

NO, WE Dml 'T SOLVE THIS PROBLE:-t WITH A CONSTITUTIO~AL 
CONVENTION. 
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- PAYING FOR GOVERNMENT SERVICES AND ESTABLISHING THE 
PRIORITIES OF THOSE SERVICES SHOULD BE DONE THROUGH THE GENUINE 
MECHANICS OF A RESPONSIBLE CONGRESS AND A RESPONSIBLE 
ADMINISTRATION WORKING TOGETHER TO SOLVE THE PROBLEM. 

. . 
THERE ARE SOME TOOLS WE COULD PUT IN PLACE TO ASSIST THIS. 

PROCESS. ONE IS A CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT, CALLING FOR A 
BALA~CED BUDGET,- WITH APPROPRIATE SAFEGUARDS TO PROVIDE-"FOR DEBT_ 
ISSUANCE IN NATIONAL EMERGENCIES. BUT SUCH AN AMENDMENT MUS,O:' 
COME THROUGH THE LEGISLATIVE PROCESS, JUST LIKE THOSE WHICH 
PRECEDED IT. 

I BELIEVE THAT THE PRESIDENT SHOULD HAVE A LINE ITEM VETO 
POWER " AND CONGRESS COULD HAVE THE. SAFETY MEASURE OF OVERRIDING 
WITH A SUPER-MAJORITY. IN THE PAST FIVE YEARS I' VE USED A 
LINE ITEM VETO TO REMOVE NEARLY TWO BILLION DOLLARS OF SPENDING 
THAT THE STATE SIMPLY COULD NOT AFFORD. 

THE PRESIDENT SHOULD ALSO HAVE A CONDITIONAL VETO. I USE 
IT TO STRIKE "PARTS OF LEGISLATION, OFTEN BECAUSE OF ~ISCAL 
IMPLICATIONS. 

THERE ARE OTHER OPTIONS. WE COULD RAISE TAXES, BUT THAT IS 
SOMETHING WE SHOULD DO ONLY AS A LAST RESORT AND WITH 
CONSIDERABLE CARE. WE MUST ENCOURAGE NOT JEOPARDIZE ECONOMIC 
GROWTH. IF THE UNEMPLOYMENT RATE IN THE WFOLE COUNTRY WERE TBE 
SAME AS IT IS IN NEW JERSEY RIGHT NOW -- 3. 6 PERCENT -- THE 
DEFICIT WOULD BE HALF WHAT IT IS. 

ENCOURAGING ECONO;-iIC GROWTn MUST BE A VITAL PART OF 
REDUCING THE DEFICIT. 

WE COULD INSTITUTE A REALISTIC FORM OF CAPITAL BUDGETING --
IN NEW JERSEY WE SEPARATE MOST CAPITAL EXPENDITURES FROH THE 
GENERAL BUDGET, JUST LIKE MOST BUSINESSES. _ THE FEDER~L 
GOVERNMENT COULD DO THE SAME. 

IF NECESSARY, WE COULD CONVENE A BI-PARTISAN ECONOMIC 
SUM1'1IT. SOME PEOPLE LAUGP. AT THAT IDEA. BUT WE DID IT WITH 
SOCIAL SECURITY AND IT WORKED. THE JS SUE IS NOT WHAT TO DO. 
INSTEAD IT IS THE MEANS TO IMPLEME~T THE SOLUTIONS. 

HOW ARE \~E GOING TO GET THESE NEEDED CHANGES INTO THE 
SYSTEM? AND HOW ARE WE GOING ·To ESTABLISE A DOMESTIC AGENDA 
WHICH REQUIRES FEDERAL FUNDING AND IN WHICH WE MUST REACH 
POLITICAL CONSENSUS TO ESTABLISH ~RIORITIES? 

THESE QUESTIONS ARE THE CUTTING EDGE OF PRESENT-DAY 
POLITICS. FEDERAL ECONO:UCS IS THE AREA WHERE BOTH POLITICAL 
PARTIES MUST CONFRONT THEIR FUTURE. GEORGE WILL IS RIGHT ,~HEN 
EE SAYS, "ONCE THE DEFICIT STARTS TO WREAK HAVOC, THERE WON'T BE 
AN INCUMBENT LEFT IN OFFICE." 
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THE POLITICAL PROCESS CANNOT CONTINUE TO APPEAL TO THE 
INSTINCTS OF . GREED AND INSTANT GRATIFICATION. POLITICAL LEADERS 
MUST BE WILLING TO PICK UP THEI~ HEADS AND LOOK BEYOND THE NEX~ 
DAY. IF I MAY BE BLUNT, IT REQUIRES POLITICIANS W.HO ARE WILLING 
TO LOOK BEYOND THE NEXT ELECTION • 

. PEOPLE ARE BEGINNING· TO REALIZE THAT THE DEFICIT IS 
DIRECTLY EFFECTING THE:-1. THEY ARE GRADUALLY GAINING ;.,.'t 
UNDERSTANDING OF THIS ISSUE. 

T,HAT MEANS POLITICAL St!CCESS WILL BE ACHIEVED BY THOSE WHO 
CAN CONVEY THE LIN!( BETWEEN FI.SCAL IMBALANCE AND DOMESTIC 
FAILURE. AND THAT SUCCESS WILL PROVIDE THE POLITICAL SUPPORT 
REQUIRED TO PUT THE CORRECTIVE TOOLS IN PLACE. , 

BUT .' THE POLITICS MUST BE PROACTIVE AND BASED ON 
PRINCIPLE, NOT REACTIVE TO THE CRISIS OF THE MOMENT. THEY MUST 
BE DERIVED FROM A SET OF ETHICS, NOT JUST A LEGISLATED A:.'1ALGAN 
OF POLITICAL EXPEDIENCE. 

THE REPUBLICAN PARTY HAS ITS ROOTS IN THE WISDOM OF A GREAT 
MIBRICAN. HIS WORDS ARE STILL APPLICABLE. WE ARE STILL A NEW 
NATION CONCEIVED IN LIBERTY. AND WE ARE STILL DEDICATED TO THE 
PROPOSITION THAT ALL MEN ARE CREATED EQUAL. I BELIEVE THAT THE 
POLITICS OF LINCOLN ARE STILL VALID AND SHOULD BE GUIDI~G 
PRINCIPLES FOR MY POLITICAL COL~EAGUES. 

YET I R~SPFC~ · As ~ETT Tc~ pnTRTn°cc OF TµF POLT~Tcnr I _, ... ...i 1 \.1 j._J.:..J r.__, ••- -••~ r1, _ ••- .1 .... -!'. _ _. __ .... 

PARTY. A(lD I WOULD HOPE TH?-.T Ol'R COUNTRY'S FUTURE LIES IN TEE 
BLENDING OF HIS WISDOM WITH LINCOLN'S. JEFFERSON su~~~RIZED THE 
ETHICS SO COLORFULLY WHEN HE SAID TE.u.T "THE CARE OF HUKZ\.N LIFE 
AND HAPPINESS AND NOT THEIR DESTRUCTION, IS THE FIRST AND ONLY 
LEGITIMATE OBJECT OF GOOD GOVERNMENT". 

THIS YEAR WE CELEBRi\TE OUR CONSTITUTION'S 200TH 
BIRTHDAY. AND, FOLLOWING THAT, WE WILL COMMENCE THE THIRD 
CENTURY OF MANKIND'S FIRST EXPERIMENT WITH A FEDERAL DEMOCRACY. 
JEFFERSON'S DEFINITION OF GOOD GO'.7ERN~!ENT MUST ALWAYS REMAIN 
CLEARLY IN FOCUS. 

I BELIEVE THAT WE CAN CURE OUR FISCAL MESS. IT HILL TAKE 
HARD WORK, BUT IT CAN BE DONE. f.1:D WHEN WE DO, 1i'iE CAN DELIVER A 
BETTER QUALITY OF LIFE FOR ALL OF OUR CITIZENS; THAT IS HOW I 
SEE THE DOMESTIC AGENDA FOR 1988•AND BEYOND. 

/Cx 



Table 1 

1983 1984 1985 1986 

Federal Deficit -176 -170 -198 -208 

State & Local Surplus 48 69 62 64 

Total Gov't Deficit -128 -101 -136 -144 

Foreign Investment 1n us 34 91 115 140 

Source: Federal Reserve Bulliten, February 1987, p. A52 
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Figure 1: Federal deficits since 1960. 
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Figure 2: Government spending and revenues since 1960. 
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Figure 3: Actual government spending compared to 
amount needed to keep pace with inflation. 
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Figure 4: Growth of government revenues compared to 
amount needed to keep pace with inflation. 
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The Guardian of Small Business® 

THE FACTS CN ACR-54 

THE FEDERAL BALANCED BUDGET AMENI:MEN'I' 
., 

1. WHAT IS THE ACR-54, AND WHY IS IT BEING ,OONSIDERED BY THE NEW JERSEY LEX;ISIA'IURE? 

Assembly Concurrent Resolution 54 is a petition to Congress telling them to draft ai 
arrendrrent to the United States Constitution requiring a balanced federal budget. 
Failing that, it requires the calling of a Constitutional Convention for the ,sole 
and express purpose of doing the same. 

' Article V of the U.S. Constitution provides for two methods for amending that 
document. The first, and most commonly used method, allows Congress, by a two-
thirds vote to submit amendments to ·the states for ratification. The second 
method allows states, through their legislatures, to petition Congress to call 
a Constitutional Convention for the purpose of drafting an amendment. Thirty-four 
(34) states must make this "call" before Congress is forced to act. 

The "call" method was used once in the early 1900's to force Congress to draft 
the 17th. amendment calling for the direct election of U.S. Senators. An actual 
convention was never called by Congress, however. Instead, Congress saw the 
handwriting on the wall when the effort by the states neared the required number, 
and decided to draft the necessary amendment by itself. 

2. WHAT ARE THE CHANCES OF A "RUNAWAY" CONVENTION? 

Slim to none! The threat of a runaway convention is more of hoax than a reality! 
To begin with, there probably won't be a convention. History has shown us that 
Congress, faced with an option of either drafting an amendment without a conventio n 
or calling a convention for the same purpose, would rather act on its own initiat i ve 
Congress would rather live with an amendment which its own members drew up rather 
than one that was drafted by others and forced upon them. 

Furthermore, if a convention were sutcessfully held, it would weaken the powers 
of Congress. This is something few members want. They also don't want to see 
convention delegates elected from their home districts ... delegates who might }ater 
dee i de to ··'Ch,aTleng,e, ·th°&':cOn'9r-essmar:i , :fort ·re--eJ ect:Lon.~ . ,'. 

NFIB/ l\TE\X' JERSEY 
Legislative Office 
407 W. State Street 
Trenton, New Jersev 08608 
609/ 989-8777 . 



l. A~E THtRE SAFEGUARDS TO PREVENT A RUNAWAY CONVENTION IF ONE IS CALLED? 

'.es! After a two-year study, a commission of the American Bar Association, which 
included the Dean of the Harvard Law School, concluded that a limited convention 
could be successfully held. A number of safeguards exist. 

· Fir.st, Congress can refuse to send any runaway amendment, (one which strays from 
the intent of the convention) to the states for ratification. 

Secondly, leaders in the state legislatures that successfully·petitioned Congress 
for a constitutional convention can institute court challenges to any proposals 
which go beyond the original limited convention call. · 

Thirdly, the greatest 11 check 11 against a runaway convention is the fact that nothing 
a convention proposed could become a part of the Constitution until it was ratified 
by 38 states. It is very unlikely that 38 states would ratify any controvers,a·r 
proposition. If there are even 13 state legislatures in the country that are not 
convinced that any amendment proposed by a convention represents an improvement 
of our Constitution, than the amendment would not be ratified. 

WHY rs IT IMPORTANT TO SUPPORT A BALANCED BUDGET AMENDMENT? 

Th~ government's checking account is awash in a tidal wave of red ink! Annual 
deficits for the past few years have been hovering close to $200 billion. The 
nati~nal debt - total annual deficits over the years - is approaching $2 trillion! 

The numbers are incomprehensible, but the problem ·is easy to understand. Massive 
government deficits lead to higher interest rates as the U.S. Treasury borrows 
to finance out-of-balance spending. Higher interest rates, which dampen the 
growth and health of the economy, can ultimately mean a return to a recession 
such as the one we just went through. Estimates made by some former members 
of the President's Council of Economic Advisors indicate that a $50 billion 
cut in the deficit would bring the prime lending rate down by two to four points. 

Lowering the interest rates encourages business investment, more construction 
and jobs, and a generally higher level of business activity . 

• CAN CCNGRE.SS ACT ON ITS OWN TO ADDRESS THIS ISSUE? 

They can, but they v.Dn' t ! Rather than hold a lid on spending, they have been 
noving in the opposite direction. In fact, the federal rudget has had deficits 
in 19 of the last 20 years. It took more than 50 years of deficit spending to 
reach the trillion dollar mark. In only.four years - fran 1980 to 1984-
we have added a.J..m:,st 50% to that total debt acCUITlLllated fran the founding of the 
United States. The national dept currently is approaching $2 Trillion. By 1986, 
interest payrrents alone on that national debt will be approximately $180 billion! 

Polling indicates that 71% of NFIB rnenbers in New Jersey feel Congress must act to 
balance its budget. Since Congress has refused to listen to the people, the only 
recourse is to use the tools provided for us by the founding fathers in Article 
V, and send a rressage to Washington. (16% opposed, 13% undecided) · 



NEW JERSEY GROUPS OPPOSED TO CONVENING OF NATIONAL CONSTITUTIONAL CONVENTIO 
SUITE 301~ 44 GLENWOOD AVENUE~ E. ORANGE~ N.J. 07017 - (201) 678-4275 

October 1986 

AN OPEN LETTER TO THE NEW JERSEY LEGISLATURE CONCERNING THE CALL FOR 
A FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL CONVENTION (ACR-54) 

FROM 23 NEW JERSEY LAW SCHOOL DEANS AND PROFESSORS 

As educators and members of a profession dedicated to a 
fair, open and deliberate process, we are pleased that the New Jersey 
Legislature, unlike 16 others that have voted on the matter, has held 
public hearings on the question of whether to call for a federal constitut 
convention to propose a balanced budget amendment. We write to urge 
defeat of any such resolution because a constitutional convention 
is both unnecessary and dangerous to the very fabric of our constitutiona l 
system. 

Article V of the United States Constitution provides two 
ways to amend the Constitution. Congress, by two-thirds vote of both 
houses, can propose an amendment, which becomes effective upon ratificat io 
by three-fourths of the states. All 26 amendments to our Constitution 
have been adopted by this method. Alternatively, Article V provides 
that when two-thirds of the states petition, Congress shall call a 
constitutional convention to propose amendments. Such amendments 
again are subject to ratification by three-fourths of the states. 
This method has never been used in our 200 year history. 

The first method works; we have made the most basic changes 
in our country through this means -- from protecting religion through 
banning slavery. Indeed, the balanced budget amendment now at issue 
was presented to the Congress in 1982, but narrowly defeated in the 
House after being passed in the Senate. This year it was defeated 
in the Senate. If there were a groundswell of public demand for it 
-- which there clearly isn't, as only two states have voted to call 
for a convention on this issue in this decade -- it would have long 
since passed. In any case, Congress is available should such a grounds wel 7 
develop. 

Whatever the need for, or value of, a balanced budget amendmen t, 
however, a constitutional convention poses very significant dangers. 
Scholars are far from sure whether the Constitution even contemplates 
the calling of a convention for a single amendment. In any case, 
there is no way to assure that a convention, once called, would limit 
itself to the balanced budget amendment. Even the subject of "balanced 
budgets" i.s. ,oo,t,, c.on.fining .. . When . the . Senate con.side.red this very 
constitutional amenament in 198"2, nuttrero·us arnendment·s ··invo l v·±·ng 'f-ed'era 1 · 
taxes, the national debt and the like were proposed. More tellingly, 
a constitutional amendment on balanced budgets might discuss ways 
of balancing budgets by restricting federal appropriations for a wide 
variety of purposes. All of our most cherished protections - freedom 
of expression, equality of treatment, personal privacy - could be 
in jeopardy. 



Frank Askin 
Professor of Law 
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-~-- POINT OF VIEW 

· t ·~ack Constitutional Convention ogre ;; 
i:M_'-'.±1':' ·~~-~-- _ . ·' Ooating around the country and on the GOP side of the legislative $200 billion budget deficits are adopted by the convention and probably few Issues on the rad~! 

,, because the leaders of at least one aisles.) unacceptable, see a balanced bud- approved by the Congress had in- right agenda that could not be : 
,.:.1_ house plus Gov. Thomas H. Kean II proponents should garner get amendment as potentially deed become the new supreme law translated in monetary terms, e;g~ 

lace:·· And.,-. wllo do have now 
U., attention to Nd Jer-

'Y u the ltate which can make 
elr dream come true. ;: 
TIMt Cell Cea adYocates, u they 

re knon ID legal and polltlcal 
lrcle., llave already conv~ S2 

te leplatures to adopt ~lu-
om calltn1 on Congress tq coo-

,e t11e•Uon'1 first Const,ltu-
onal~tlon In 200 yW'II. U 
t~ states join !,lie cho-

' ttit'fi. pGl'IWlnt to Artie!• V of 
:Collitltution, Congre!l!I ~Ill be 
pelted to act. ' 
e"li Jel'lley Is now in the Con 

Con spotlight because our Legisla-
ture has nt"vf!I' tackled the issue 
durin,i th<' 10 y<'Ars It has h,-,-n 

have Indicated their support. The tht'!ir 34 vol.es, then the "fun" really causing even more serious mis- of the land. a prohibition on the appropriation 
Assembly's State Government begins! chief. Indeed, even President Re- The flawed process Is empha- of money for schools which do not 
Committee held its first hearing on While the Con Con movement agan and his fiscal advisers seem sized by the fact that at this mo- require daily prayer or which do 
the issue in October. calls only for a convention for the to fluctuate between support for a ment there are absolutely no rules not teach Christian doctrine; or . 

During the past two years,~evcn single purpose of proposing a Bal- balanced budget and a position as to how a constitutional conven- forbidding assistance to any staai : 
states have rejected the Con Con a need Budget Amendment. there is that federal deficits do not matter. lion would operate or even how the which does not make abortion a: '· 
resolutions, but in two of them - · nothing in the present Constitution But the major opposition to Con delegates would be chosen. crime. -~ ''. 
Wuhington and Minnesota - the itself which provides for a limited Con is unrelated to the budget is- There Is little doubt that the rad- This Is the can of worms whlcl 
margin of defeat was a single vote. convention. Article V merely sue. It arises from a concern that a lcal-right movement which bas Con Con threatens to open. Its pro-
Should New Jersey make it 33 states that whenever two-thirds of runaway convention might do ir- grown up over the past two dee• ents might do well to recon-, · 
"ayes," supporters are confident the slates ask for a Constitutional reparable d,,ma~•· In fhc constitu- ades would see the convention as =r whether they really want to 
that with the aid ol one of their Convention, Congress shall ,·on- lional system under which this Its opportunity to transform the - try that road 
biggest boosters, President Re- vene one. country has flourished for 200 nation In Its own Image of a "Chris- · 

Our Constitution has stood the :' 
test of time for 200 years. On 26 j 
occasions we have amended It by:• : 
the traditional process of Congres- ' 
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CONSTITUTION FOR A UNITED REPUBLICS OF AMERICA 

A Model for discussion version XXXVII (1970) 

ADOPTION 

·It has been assumed in the course of this constitutional exercise that the 
time might come when the American people. exasperated by the oostructionism 

:of their Congress. the unwarranted assumption of legislative powers by their 
Supreme Court. or the unbearable load of duties undertaken by the President, 
might decide that new institutions are necessary to fulfill their reasonable 
expectations of progress. Conceivably. it could happen in this way: 

A President, approaching the end of his term. provoked by his inability 
tb move the Congress, determined to check the government's hardening into · 
bureaucratic stolidity. fearful of the accumulating consequences of obsol-
escence. and conscious of his inability to carry all his responsibilities, 
concludes that he must appeal for consent to a new constitution. 

He cannot proceed in the ways provided in the existing Constitution. 
The Congress could not be expected to agree, by a two-thirds majority of 
both houses, to such a proposal; and serious petition for a convention from 
the states is even more unlikely. Both the present Congress and the existing 
states will be adversely affected by what must be done. 

The President recalls that the framers in 1787 carried through s'omething 
of a tour de force. The calling of a convention had been regularly authorize d, 
it was true; but delegates, who had been directed simply to amend the Article s 
of Confederation, had gone much beyond their terms of reference and had framed 
a whole new governmental scheme. Moreover they had provided for its ratifi-
cation by the adherence of only nine out of thirteen states, a doubtful way 
of reducing expected opposition. 

It seems to the President that some new effort of this kind must be mad e. 
If it must be made in unorthodox fashion, it still could have the consent of 
the ultimate authority in ·a democracy - the people. If they demand a new 
constitution, who could say that the demand ought to be denied? He decides 
to give them that opportunity and he announces what he intends. 

There is the expected uproar from those who fear the loss of privileges . 
But there is louder commendation from those who agree with him, and he is 
able to persuade a hundred concerned citizens of acknowledged prominence to 
join in the reconsideration. They undertake to draft a new constitution. 
By the time he h4s to compaign for reelection something like the following 
document has been produced and agreed to by eighty of the hundred. The Pres-
ident makes it the single issue of his appeal. He is satisfied. he says, 
that the draft constitution incorporates the principles of freedom under law; 
that it would assist in adaptation to the circumstances imposed by nature and 
by the need for tolerance among nations; and that it would encourage initiative 
and productivity while offering economic security. 

The President assumes. he says, that since he is wholly identified with 
~t, his election by a considerable majority would signal approv~l of the new 
~onstitution. · They are engaged. he tells the voters. in a ref~r,endum of sover-
eign persons who stand above all the institutions of the government created 
by their ancestors and too little changed since that time. He puts the rat-
ifying majority at sixty per cent of those voting. 
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ADOPTION (Continued) 

_ He speaks of the moment as a solemn one in the nation's experience, a 
time when the past is being conditioned to the future, and when a law funda-
mental to all other laws is again being created as it had been by the founders 
in another time of national trial. 

He pledges that if his proposal is approved, he will proceed by interim 
arrangement until the new constitution can be implemented; then he will retire 
to become a member of the new Senate provided for in the constitution. 

Thus the issue is joined ••• 

PREAMBLE 

So that we may join in common endeavors, welcome the future in good order, 
and create an adequate and self-repairing government - we the people do esta-
blish the United Republics of America, herein provided to be ours., and do or-
dain this Constitution, whose law it shall be until the time provided for it 
shall have run. 

ARTICLE I 

THE REPUBLICS 

Section 1. There shall be Republics, each numbering no less than five per 
cent of the whole people, with such exceptions as the boundary commission 
shall make. They shall continue during the life of this Constitution, to-
gether forming the United Republics of America. 

Section 2. They shall have constitutions formulated and adopted by processes 
hereinafter prescribed, 

Section 3. They shall have Governors General; legislatures; and planning, 
administrative, and judicial systems. 

Section 4. Their political procedures shall be organized and supervised by 
their own electoral Overseers; but their election~ shall not be in years of 
Presidential election. 

Section 5. They may make use of the United Republics' electoral apparatus 
and may be allotted funds under rules agreed to by the national overseer; 
but, unless exceptions are approved by him, expenditures may not be made by 
or for any candidate; and residence requirements shall be no longer than 
thirty days. , _ 

Section 6, They may charter subsidiary gov~rnments, urban or rural, and may 
delegate to them powers appropriate to their responsibilities; and such 
aoverrmanb,,._aha.U.>i>,be_;,aut.QnQIDQl.l&,A n . .mat.t~r~ exclusive to their citizens, except 
that they shall conform to constitutions 'of ·-tne·' Urtite·ct 'Reptibli·c·s• ·of·, 'AJnerl·-ca :1· , , ·· • 

and of their Republics. 



Section 7. Republics may lay, or may delegate the laying of, taxes; but 
these shall conform to the rules and restraints stated herein for the United 
Republics; and those on land may be higher than those on its improvements. 

Section 8. They shall be responsible for the administration of public 
services not reserved to the government of the United Republics, such activities 
being concerted with those of corresponding national agencies, "where these 
exist, under arrangements common to all. · 

tection 9. The rights and duties prescribed in this Constitution shall be 
effective in the Republics and shall be suspended only in states of emergency 
~eclared by Governors General and not disapproved by the Senate of the United 
Republics. 

Section 10. Police powers of the Republics shall extend to all matters not 
reserved to the United Republics; but preempted powers shall not be impaired. 

Section 11. Republics may not enter into any treaty, alliance, or confederation 
not approved by the United Republics. They may not coin money, provide for 
the payment of debts in any but legal tender, nor make any charge for inter-
Republic services. They may not pass ex post facto laws or laws impairing 
the obligation of contract. 

Section 12. Republics may not tax exports, may not tax with intent to prevent 
imports, and may not impose any tax forbidden by United Republics law~ but 
the objects appropriate for taxation by Republics shall be clearly designated. 

Section 13. Republics may not impose quarantine against imports from other 
Republics or impose any hindrance to citizens' freedom of movement. 

Section 14. If governments of the Republics fail to carry out fully their 
constitutional duties, their officials shall be warned and may be required 
by the Senate, on the recommendation of the Watchkeeper, to conform or be 
subject to suspension from their duties. 

ARTICLE II 

THE ELECTORAL BRANCH 

Section 1. To arrange for participation by the electorate in the determinati on 
of policies and the selection of officials, there shall be an Electoral Branch 
of the United Republics. 

Section 2. An Overseer of electoral procedures shall be chosen by the Senate 
for one term of seven years. He shall see to the organizations of national an d 
district parties, ·arrange for ~iscussion among them, and provide for the nom-
ination and election of candidate~ for public office. During his service he 
shall belong to no political organization. 

Section 3. A national party shall be one having had at least • ··five-per-cent 
affiliation in the latest general election; but a new party shall be recognize d 
.when valid petitions have been signed by at least two per cent of the voters 
in each of thirty per cent of the districts drawn for the House of Representativ t s. 
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THE ELECTORAL BRANCH (Continued) 

Section 3. (Continued) . Recognition shall be suspended upon failure to gain 
five per cent of the votes at a second election, ten per cent at a third, or 
fifteen per cent at further elections. 

District parties shall be recognized when at least two per cent of the 
voters shall have signed petitions of affiliation; but recognition shall be 
withdrawn upon failure to attract the same percentages as are necessary for 
the continuance of national parties. 

Section 4. Recognition by the Overseer shall bring parties within established 
regulations and entitle them to common privileges. 

Section 5. The Overseer shall promutgate rules for party conduct and shalJ. 
see that fair practices are maintained. For this purpose he shall appoint 
deputies in each district and shall supervise the choice, in district and 
s~all supervise the choice, in district and national conventions, of party 
administrators. His regulations and appointments may be objected to by the 
Senate; and he may be removed by a majority vote. 

Section 6. The Overseer, with the administrators and other officials, shall: 

a. Provide the means for discussion, in each party, of public issues, 
. and, for this purpose, see that members have adequate facilities for parti-

cipation, 
b. Arrange for discussion, in annual district meetings, of the President's 

views, of the findings of the Planning Branch, and such other information as 
may be pertinent for enlightened political discussion. 

c. Arrange, on the first Saturday in each month, for enrollment, valid 
for one year, of voters at convenient places. 

Section 7. He shall also: 

a. Assist the parties in nominating candidates for district members of 
the House of Representatives each three years; and for this purpose designate 
one hundred districts, each with a similar number of eligible voters, redrawing 
districts after each election. In these there shall be party conventions 
having no more than three hundred delegates, so distributed that representation 
be approximately equal. 

Candidates for delegate may become eligible by presenting petitions signed 
by two hundred registered voters. They shall be elected by party members on 
the first Tuesday in March, those having the largest number of votes being 
chosen until the three hundred, together with ten alternates, be complete. 

District conventions shall be held on the first Tuesday in April. Dele-
gates shall choose three candidates for membership in the House of Represent-
atives, the three having the most votes becoming candidates. 

b. Arrange for the election each three years of three members of the 
House of Representatives in each district from among the candidates chosen in 
party conventions, the three having the most votes to be elected. 

Section 8. He shall also: 

a. Arrange for national conventions to meet nine years after the ' prevtous 
Presidential election, having an equal number of delegates from each district, 
the whole not to exceed one thousand. 

so~ cs/' 



Section 8. (Continued) a. Candidates for delegate shall be eligible when 
petitions signed by five hundred registered voters have been filed. Those 
with the most votes, together with two alternates, shall be chosen in each 
district. 

b. Approve procedures in these conventions for choosing one hundred 
candidates to be members-at-large of the House of Representatives, for this 
purpose causing delegates to file one choice with convention of£icials, 
voting on submissions to proceed until one hundred achieve ten:9er cent; 
~ut not more than three choices may be resident in any one distriCti if any 
~istrict have more than three, those with the fewest votes shall be eliminated, 
bthers being added from the districts having less than three, until equality 
·be reached. Of those added, those having the most votes shall be chosen 
first. 

c. Arrange procedures for consideration and approval of party objectives 
by the convention. 

d. Formulate rules for the nomination in these conventions of candidates 
for President and Vice Presidents when the offices are to fall vacant, candi-
dates for nomination to be recognized when petitions ·shall have been presented 
by one hundred or more delegates, pledged to continue support until candidates 
can no longer win or until they consent to withdraw. Presidents and Vice 
Presidents, after serving for three years, shall submit to referendum, and 
if rejected, new conventions shall be held within one month and candidates 
shall be chosen as for vacant offices. Candidates for President and Vice 
Presidents shall be nominated on attaining a majority. 

c. Arrange for the election on the first Tuesd~y in June, in appropri~te 
years, of new candidates for President and Vice Presidents, and for members-
at-large of the House of Representatives, all being presented to the nation's 
voters as a ticket; if no ticket achieve a majority, he shall arrange another 
election on the third Tuesday in June between the two having the most votes; 
and if referendum so determine he shall provide similar arrangements for 
the nomination and election of candidates. If there be no majority in this 
election, another shall be held on the first Tuesday in July following. 

Section 9. He shall also: 

a. Arrange for the convening of the legislative houses on the fourth 
of Tuesday of July. 

b. Arrange for inauguration of the President and Vice Presidents on 
the second Tuesday of August. 

Section 10. All costs of these procedures shall be paid from public funds 
and there shall be no private contributions to parties or candidates; no 
contributions or expenditures for meetings, conventions, or campaigns shall 
be made; and no candidate for office may make any personal expenditures unless 
authorized by the Overseer; and persons or groups making expenditures, 
directly or indirectly, in support of prospective candidates, shall report 
to the Overseer and shall conform to his regulations. 

Section 11. Expenses of the Electoral Branch shall be met by the addition 
of one per cent to their net annual taxable income returns by taxpayers, 
this sum to be held by the Chancellor of Financial Affairs for~:~isposition 
by the Overseer. 

Funds shall be distributed to parties in proportion to the respective 
number of votes cast for the President and Governors General at the last 
~lection, except that new parties, on beingrecognized, shall share in pro-
portion to their number. 

Yi 
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Section 11. (Continued) Party administrators shall make allocations to 
legislative candidates in amounts proportional to the party vote at the last 
election. Expenditures shall be audited by the Watchkeeper; and sums not 
expected within two years shall no longer be available. 

If shall be a condition of every communications franchise that facilities 
shall be available for allocation by the Electoral Overseer to candidates 
for office. 

Section 12. In all electoral decisions the vote of any citizen shall count 
equally with others; his eligibility to vote and his qualifications for 
office shall be determined as provided herein. 

ARTICLE III 

THE Pl.ANNING BRANCH 

Section 1. There shall be a Planning Branch to formulate and administer 
plans and to prepare budgets for the uses of expected income in pursuit 
of policies formulated by the processes provided herein. 

Section 2. There shall be a Planning Board of eleven members appointed 
by the President; the first members shall have terms of one to eleven years, 
the one having the longest term to be chairman; thereafter one shall be 
appointed each year. They shall be eligible for reappointment. 

Section 3. The chairman shall present to the Board six- and twelve-year 
development plans prepared by a planning department under his supervision, 
and they shall be revised after public hearings in the year before they 
are to take effect. These shall be submitted to the President on the fourth 
Tuesday in July for transmission to the Senate on September 1st with his 
comments. 

The chairman shall transmit the annual budget to the President on the 
fourth Tuesday in July. It shall be a revision, for the coming year, of 
the six-year plan, combining estimates for all departments and agencies. 

If a majority of the Board fail to approve the budget proposals by 
the forwarding date, the chairman shall nevertheless make submission to 
the President with notations of reservations by members. The President 
shall transmit the budget, with his comments, to the House of Representatives 
on September 1st. 

Section t... A planning administrator shall be appointed by the chairman, 
unless a majority of the Board object, from panels elected by national 
associations of professional planners recognized by him; and he shall 
appoint such deputies as may be agreed to by the chairman and the Board. 

Section 5. It shall be recognized that the six-and twelve-year development 
plans represent national intentions tempered by the appraisal of possibilities . 
The twelve-year plan shall be a general estimate of probable progress, 
both governmental and private; the six-year plan shall be more specific as 
to estimated income and expenditure. 

The purpose shall .be to advance, through every agency of government, 
the excellence •'of . n11tl0na'l' 'lff"e;'" tt· ~sh-atl'·;be~ tne '"f ·urthn'" p'orpose "to ··anti- · 
cipate innovations, to estimate their impact, to assimilate them into exist-
ing institutions, or to moderate deleterious effects on the environment and 
.on society. 

The six-and twelve-year plans shall be disseminated for discussion 
and the opinions expressed shall be considered in the formulation of plans 
for the succeeding year. 

(7) 
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Section 6. For both plans an extension of one year into the future shall 
be made each year and the estimates for all other years shall be revised 
accordingly . For non-governmental activities the estimate of developments 
shall be calculated to indicate the need for enlargement or restriction. 

Section 7. If there be objection by the President or the Senate to the 
six-or twelve -year plans, they shall be returned for restudy and resub-
mission. If there still be differences, and if the President and the 
$enate agree, they shall prevail. If they do not agree, the Senate shall 
-i)revail and the plan shall be revised accordingly. 

--Section 8. The Republics, on June 1st, shall submit proposals for devel-
opment to be considered for inclusion in those for the United Republics. 
Researches and ad~inistration shall be delegated, when convenient, to 
planning agencies of the Republics. 

S~ction 9. Submissions may be required from such private individuals or 
associations as are affected with a public interest, including those or-
ganized as Authorities. They shall report intentions to expand or contract, 
estimates of production and demand, probable uses of resources, numbers to 
be employed, and such other information as may be essential to comprehensive 
public planning; but there shall be regard for the convenience of those 
required to make reports. 

Section 10. The Planning Branch shall make and have custody of the official 
maps of the United Republics and these shall be documents of reference for 
future developments both public and private. The location of facilities, 
with extension indicated, and the intended use of all areas, shall be marked 
out on the official maps. 

Official maps shall also be maintained by the planning agencies of the 
Republics; and in matters not exclusively national the Board may rely on 
these. 

Developments in violation of official designation shall be at the 
risk of the venturer and there shall be no recourse; but losses from design-
ations preceding acquisition shall be recoverable in actions before the 
Court of Claims. 

Section 11. The Planning Branch shall have available to it funds equal to 
one-half of one per cent of the approved United Republics budget (not includ-
ing debt service or payments fonn trust funds). They shall be held by the 
Chancellor of Financial Affairs and expended according to rules approved 
by the Board. 

Section 12. Allocations may be made for the work of the planning agencies 
of the Republics; but their procedures shall conform to standards fonnulated 
by the Board, taking into account population, area, and such other criteria 
as may be relevant~ but only the United Republics map and plans or those 
approved by the Board shall have status at law. 

Section 13. Ip making plans. there shall be due regard to the interests 
of other nations and such co-operation with their intentions as ' may be con-
sistent with plans for the United Republics. 

Section 14. The Planning Branch may cooperate with international agencies, 
making such contributions to their work as are approved by the President. 
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THE PRESIDENCY 

S~ction 1. The President of the United Republics shall be responsible to all 
the people. He shall be the head of their government, shaper of its commit-
ments, expositor of its policies, and supreme commander of its protective 
forces. 

He shall have one term of nine years, unless rejected by sixty per cent 
of the electorate after three years. 

He shall take care that the nation's resources are estimated and are 
apportioned to its more exigent needs; and he shall recommend such plans, 
legislation, and action as he may find necessary. 

He shall address the legislators.each year on the state of the nation, 
calling upon them to do their part for the general good, and from time to 
time shall make report to the citizen. 

With the Vice Presidents and the Intendant, he shall see to it that 
the laws are faithfully executed and shall pay attention to recommendations 
of the Planning Board, the Watchkeeper, and the Regulator in formulating 
his strategies. 

Section 2. There shall be two Vice Presidents elected with the President; 
at the time of taking office the President shall designate one to supervise 
general affairs and the other to supervise internal affairs. He shall also 
designate one to be his successor if he shall be permanently incapaci~ated; 
the other shall be second in succession. If either Vice President shall die 
or be incapacitated, the President, with the consent of the Senate, shall 
appoint a successor. They shall serve with him if he shall have an extended 
term; but their assignments shall be at his convenience. 

If the Presidency shall fall vacant through the disability of both 
Vice Presidents, the Senate shall elect a successor from among its members 
to serve until the next general election. 

Section 3. Responsible to the Vice President for General Affairs there 
shall be Chancellors of Foreign, Financial, Military, and Legal Affairs. 

The Chancellor of Foreign Affairs shall assist the President in con-
duction relations with other nations . 

The Chancellor of Financial Affairs shall supervise the nation's monetary 
system and regulate its capital markets and credit-issuing institutions 
as they may be established by law; and this shall include lending insti-
tutions for operations in other nations or in cooperation with them, except 
that treaties may. determine their purposes and standards. 

The Chancellor of Legal Affairs shall advise governmental agencies 
and represent them before the courts. 

The Chancellor of Military Affairs shall act for the Presidency in 
disposing all armed forces except Republican Guards commanded by Governors 
General; but these shall be available for national service at the President's 
convenience. 

Except in declared emergency, the deployment of forces in far waters, 
or in other nations without their consent, shall be notified in advance to 
a national security committee of the Senate and if it object, and the Senate 
shall agree, it shall prevail. 

J» 
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Section 4. Responsible to the Vice President for Internal Affairs there shall 
be chancellors of such departments as the President may find necessary for 
performing the services of government and are not rejected by law when the 
succeeding budget is considered. 

Section 5. Candidates for the Presidency and the Vice Presidencies shall 
be natural born citizens. Their suitability may be questioned.iiy the Senate 
within ten days of their nomination, and if two-thirds of the whole agree, 
Jhey shall withdraw and a nominating convention shall be recony~ned. At 
the time of his nomination no candidate shall be a member of the Senate and 
none shall be on active service in the armed forces. 

Section 6. The President may take leave because of illness or for an interval 
of relief, and the Vice President in charge of General Affairs shall act in 
hi.s place; but the Senate shall be notified and a majority may object or may 
recall him to active duty. He may resign if the Senate agree; and if his 
term shall have more than two years to run, the Overseer shall arrange for 
a special election for President and Vice Presidents. 

Section 7. The Vice Presidents may be directed to perform such ministerial 
duties as the President may find convenient; but their instructions shall 
be of record, and their actions shall be taken as his deputy. 

Section 8, Incapacitation of the President may be established without his 
concurrence by a two-thirds vote of the Senate, whereupon his successor 
shall become acting President until the disability be declared, by a similar 
vote, to be ended or to have become permanent. Similarly the other Vice 
President shall succeed if his predecessor die or be disabled. Special 
elections, in these contingencies, may be required by the Senate, 

Acting Presidents may appoint deputies, unless the Senate object, to 
assume their supervisory duties until the next election. 

Section 9, The Vice Presidents, together with such other officials as 
the President may designate from time to time, may constitute his cabinet 
or council and shall serve as he may require, but this shall not include 
officials of other branches. 

Section 10. Treaties or agreements with other nations, negotiated under 
the President's direction, shall be in effect unless objected to by a 
majority of the Senate within ninety days. If objected to, the President 
may resubmit and ·the Senate reconsider. If a majority still object the 
Senate shall prevail. 

Section 11. The President may cause information to be withheld from dis-
closure if it be judged by him to be harmful to any individual or to the 
public interest; but it shall be his duty not to infringe the public's 
right to know for what reason decfsions are made. 

~~ction 12. All officers of the United Republics including rep~esentatives 
Jproad, except as provided herein, shall be appointed and may~ removed by 
the President. The Senate may object to appointments within siity days, 
and alternative candidates may be offered until it agree. 
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Section 11. The President may cause information to be withheld from dis-
closure if it be judged by him to be harmful to any individual or to the 
public interest; but it shall be his duty not to infringe the public's 
right to know for what reason decisions are made. 

~.ection 12. All officers of the United Republics including rep~esentatives 
Jproad, except · as provided herein, shall be appointed and may~ removed by 
the ·•P,r,e.sid:ent.,,., ,, ,.th.e. ~nat,e .may ,ob.j.e.ct t.o_ ap.-Pointments within . si&ty days, 
and alternative candidates may be offereo unt11 'it 'S!Te'e; 
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Section 4. The Senate shall convene each year on the second Tuesday in July 
and shall be in continuous session, but may adjourn to the call of the Provost, 
who may also excuse the absence of members. A quorum shall be more than three-
fifths of the whole membership. 

Section 5. The Senate shall consider, and return within thirty days, all 
measures approved by the House of Representatives except the aqpual budget; 
approval or disapproval shall be by a majority vote of those p~esent; objection 
shall stand unless the House of Representatives shall overcomcit by a two-
ihirds vote; if no return be made, approval by the House of Rejiresentatives 
:~hall be final. 
-. 
Section 6. The Senate may ask advice from the Principal Justice concerning 
the constitutionality of measures before it; and if this be done, the time 
for return to the House of Representatives may extend to sixty days. 

Section 7. If requested, the Senate may advise the President on matters of 
public interest; or, if not requested, by resolutio~ approved by two-
thirds of those present. There shall be a special duty to note the resolutions 
of party conventions and commitments made during campaigns; and, if these be 
ignored, to remind the President and the House of Representatives of these 
undertakings. 

Section 8. In time of clear and present danger caused by cataclysm, by attack, 
or by insurrection, the Senate may declare a national emergency and may in-
struct the President to act. If the Senate be dispersed, and no quorum 
available, the President may proclaim the emergency, and may terminate it 
unless the Senate shall have acted. If the President be not available, and 
the circumstances be extreme, the senior serving member of the Presidential 
succession may act until a quorum assemble. 

Section 9. The Senate may also define and declare a limited emergency in 
time of prospective danger, or of local or regional disaster; or if an 
extraordinary advantage be anticipated; it shall be considered by the House 
of Representatives within three days, and unless disapproved may extend for 
a designated period before renewal. 

During declared emergency all defined procedures shall be adhered to 
unless it transcend all definition. 

Section 10. The Senate shall elect a National Watchkeeper and shall supervis~, 
through a standing committee, a Watchkeeper service conducted according to 
rules formulated· by him for their approval. 

With the assistance of an appropriate staff he shall gather and organize 
information concerning the adequacy, competence, and integrity of governmental 
agencies and their personnel, as well as their continued usefulness; he shall 
also suggest the need for new or expanded services; and he shall also report, 
concerning any agency, the deleterious effect of its activities on citizens 
or on the environment. 

For these purposes, investigations may be made, witnesses examined, post-
...audits made, and information required. 0 _ . 

-~ The Provost shall present the Watchkeeper's findings to tl_\e ' Senate, and, 
:if it be judged to be in the public interest, they shall be made public, or, 
without being made public, be sent to the appropriate agency for its guidance 
and further action. On recommendation of the Watchkeeper the Senate may 
initiate measures to be voted on by the House of Representatives within thirty 
~ays. 
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Section 10 
President, 
of one per 
Chancellor 
year shall 

(Continued) When approved by a majority and not vetoed by the 
they shall become law. For the Watchkeeping service one-quarter 
cent of individual net taxable incomes shall be held by the 
of Financial Affairs ; but amounts not expended in any fiscal 
be available for general use. · 

B. THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

Section 1. The House of Representatives shall be constituted of members 
who have been freely elected by the citizens of the United Republics and 
shall be the original law-making body. 

Section 2. The House shall convene each year on the second Tuesday in July 
and shall remain in continuous session except that it may adjourn to the call 
of a Speaker, elected by majority vote, who shall be its presiding officer. 

Section 3. It shall be a first duty of the House to implement by ~egislation 
the provisions of this constitution. 

Section 4. Party leaders and their deputies shall be chosen by caucus at 
the beginning of each session. 

Section 5. Standing and temporary committees shall be selected as follows : 
Committees dealing with the calendaring and management of bills shall 

have a majority of members nominated to party caucuses by the Speaker; others 
shall be nominated by minority leaders. Membership shall correspond to the 
parties; proportions at the last election. If nominations be not approved 
by a majority of the caucus, the Speaker or the minority leaders shall nomina te 
others and these shall be seated. 

When committees are constituted, the Speaker shall nominate chairmen 
from among their members; but chairmen shall be at-large members. 

Members of other committees shall be chosen by party caucus in pro-
position to the results of the last election. Chairmen shall be chosen 
annually by the Speaker from among at-large members. 

Bills referred to committee shall be returned to the House with re~ 
commendations within thirty days unless the House shall permit extension 
by majority vote. 

All committee action shall be by majority vote and those voting for and 
against shall be recorded. 

No committee chairman shall serve longer than six years. 

Section 6. Approved legislation not objected to by the Senate within thirty 
days after submission shall be presented to the President for his approval 
or disapproval. If the President disapprove, and three-quarters of the 
membership still approve, it shall become law. The names of those voting 
for and against shall be recorded. Bills not returned within eleven days 
shall become law. 

Section 7. The President may have thirty days to consider measures approved 
by the House and n.ot presented. . to .~im. t .welve .Ji~ys .previous to,.adjouroroeot., 

· Section 8. The House shall consider the annual budget; if there be objection, 
it shall be notified to the Planning Board; but objection must be by whole 
title. The Board shall resubmit; but if there still be objection, the House 
shall prevail if there be a two-thirds majority . 

Titles not objected to shall be in effect and shall constitute appro-
priation. 3 tx 
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The budget for the fiscal year shall be in effect on January 1st. 
Titles not yet acted on shall be as in the former budget until action be 
completed . 

Section 9. It shall be the duty of the House to make laws: 

(1) For the laying and collecting of taxes: 

a) Collections to be uniform throughout the United Repubfics. 
_ b) Except such as may be authorized by law to be laid by.,-the Republics 
or other authorities, all collections to be made by the revenui department 
of the United Republics. This shall include collections for the trust funds 
hereinafter authorized. 

c) Except for corporate levies to be held in the National Sharing 
Fund, hereinafter authorized, revenues may be collected only from individuals 
and only from incomes; but there may be withholding from current incomes. 

d) Limits may be established for altering rates of taxation to assist 
in the maintenance of stable economic activity. Within those limits the 
President may act by executive order. 

e) Taxes shall not be retroactive. 
f) Enterprises owned or conducted by religious establishments or 

other non-profit organizations shall be taxed. 
g) There shall be no taxes on food, medicines, residential rentals, 

or on commodities or services designated by law as necessities; and there 
shall be no double taxation. 

(2) For expenditure from revenues: 

a) For the purposes detailed in the annual budget unless objection 
be made by the procedure prescribed herein. 

b) For such other purposes as it may indicate and may require the 
Planning Branch to include in revisions of the budget; but, except in de-
clared emergency, the total may not exceed the President's estimate of 
available funds . 

(3) For fixing the percentage of net corporate taxable incomes to be paid 
into a National Sharing Fund to be held in the custody of the Chancellor of 
Financial Affairs and to be expended for such welfare and environmental 
purposes as are determined by law; but expenditures for these purposes 
shall not exceed the amount held in the Fund. 

(4) To provide for the regulation of commerce with other nations and 
among the Republics, Possessions, Territories, or, as shall be mutually 
agreed, Affiliated Republics; but exports shall not be taxed; and imports 
shall not be taxed except on recommendation of the President at rates 
whose allowable variation shall have been fixed by law; there shall be 
no q~otas, and no nations favored by special rates, unless by special acts 
requiring two-thirds majorities. 

~5) To establish or provide for the establishment of institutions for 
~e safekeeping of savings, for the gathering and distribution :of capital, 
for the issuance of credit, for controlling the media of exchange, and for 
regulating the coinage of money; but such institutions, when not public or 
semi-public, shall be regarded as affected with the public interest and 
shall be supervised by appropriate agencies directed by the Chancellor of 
financial Affairs. 
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(6) To establish institutions for insurance against risks and liabilities, 
or to provide suitable agencies for their regulation. 

(7) To ensure the maintenance, by ownership or regulation, of facilities 
for communication, transportation, and others commonly used and necessary 
for public convenience. 

(8) To assist in the maintenance of world order, and, for this purpose, 
when the President shall recommend. to vest such jurisdiction in international 
legislative, judicial, or administrative organizations as shall be consistent 
with the national interest. 

(9} To develop with other peoples , and for the benefit of all, the resources 
of space, of other bodies in the universe, and of the seas beyond twelve 
miles from low-water shores unless treaties shall provide other limits. 

(10) , To assist other people who have not attained satisfactory levels of 
well-being; to delegate the administration of funds, whenever possible, to 
international agencies; and to invest in or contribute to the furthering 
of development in other parts of the world. 

(11) To assure, or to assist in assuring, equal access to faciliti~s for 
education; for training in occupations citizens may be fitted to pursue; and 
to reeducate or retrain those whose occupations may become obsolete. 

(12) To establish or to assist institutions devoted to higher education 
or to technical training, and to provide equal opportunities for all eligible 
students. 

(13) To establish or assist libraries, archives. monuments, and other plac es 
of historic interest. 

(14) To assist in the advancement of sciences and technologies; and to 
encourage cultural activities. 

(15) To conserve natural resources by purchase, by withdrawal from use 
or 'by regulation; to provide, or to assist the Republics or other governments 
in providing facilities for recreation; to establish and maintain parks, 
forests, wetlands, and prairies; to improve streams and other waters; to 
insure the purity of air and water; to control the erosion of soils, and to 
do all else necessary for the protection of the national heritage. 

(16) To acquire property and improvements whenever necessary for public use 
at costs to be fixed, if necessary, by the Court of Claims. 

(17) To prevent the stoppage or hindrance of governmental activities, or of 
others affected with a public interest, by reason of disputes between em-
ployers and employees, or for other reasons, and for this purpose to pro-
vide for conclusive arbitration if adequate provision for collective barg-
aining shall fail. From such findings there may be appeal to the Court of 
Arbitration Review; but such proceedings may not stay the acceptance of 
find ings,..,, , . ,,, 
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,(18) To establish and maintain armed forces for the security of the United 
Republics; but service in them shall be voluntary except in declared emer-
gency when uniform service may be required; but the Court of Rights and 
Duties may establish exceptions for reasons of conscience or religious 
belief. 

No officer of the armed forces may appear before a legislative 
committee; and no subordinate of any department may appear without the 
consent of the departmental chancellor. 

{19) To enact such measures as will assist families in making '~djustment 
to future resources, using estimates concerning population which have been 
·made by the Planning Board. 

(20) Such measures as the President may designate shall be voted on within 
ninety days. 

ARTICLE VI 

THE REGULATORY BRANCH 

Section 1. There shall be a Regulatory Branch and there shall be a National 
Regulator. With a National Regulatory Board, he shall make and administer 
rules for such enterprises as are determined by law to be affected with the 
public interest. 

The Regulatory Branch shall have such agencies as the Regulator may find 
necessary and are not disapproved by law. He shall appoint boards, not larger 
than seven members each, appropriate for supervising particulal kinds of 
enterprise; and he shall appoint one member as chairman. They may be objected 
to by the Senate. 

The chairmen of these boards shall constitute the National Regulatory 
Board, to serve with the National Regulator in making general rules for the 
conduct of regulated enterprises. These shall conform to the principles of 
fair practice, equality of service, honesty in representation, and mainten-
ance of efficiency; they shall provide for progress through research and for 
protection of public interests. Such enterprises may be investigated by the 
Watchkeeper; and appeal from rulings may be made to the Court of Administra-
tive Settlements. 

Section 2. The Regulator shall charter all corporations or other enterprises 
except those supervised by the Chancellor of Financial Affairs or the In-
tendant. The Republics may charter those for intra-Republic activities; 
but all charters shall describe proposed activities, and departures from 
these shall require amendment by the Regulator on penalty of revocation. 

Section 3. Chartered enterprises may organize joint Authorities, and these 
may formulate among themselves codes to ensure fair competition, meet ex-
ternal costs, set standards for service, expand trade, increase production, 
eliminate waste, assist in standardization, and maintain services of research, 
coU11I1unication,. and common use; but membership shall be open to &11, and 
nonmembers shall be required by license to maintain the standaias fixed in 
the codes on penalty of revocation by the Regulatory Board. 
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~ection 3. (Continued) All Authorities shall have governing committees of 
five, three being appointed by the Regulator to represent the public. They 
shall serve as he may determine; they shall be compensated; and he shall 
take care that there be no conflicts of interest. The National Regulatory 
Board shall approve or prescribe the distribution of profits to stockholders, 
allowable amounts of working capital, reserves and costs, and all other prac-
tices affecting the public interest. 

All codes shall be subject to review by the Regulator with his Board; 
and governing bodies may be dissolved and reconstituted with approved members. 

Section 4. Member enterprises of an Authority shall be exempt from other 
regulation. 

Section 5. The Regulator, with his Board, shall fix standards and procedures 
for the merger of enterprises or the acquisition of some by others; and these 
shall be in effect unless rejected by the Court of Administrative Settlements. 
The purpose shall be to encourage adaptation to change and to further approved 
in~entions for the nation. 

Section 6. Enterprises may be restrained by the Regulator when they restrict 
access to, or increase prices of, goods and services; or when their ecological 
effects are deleterious; and he shall see to it that external costs are assessed 
to their originators. 

Section 7. Operations extending abroad shall conform to policies notified 
to the Regulator by the President. 

Section 8. The Regulator shall charter non-profit corporations (or foundations) 
determined by him with the Board to be for useful public purposes; but this 
judgment may be reviewed by the Court of Rights and Duties. Contributions 
shall not be taxed. 

Section 9. He shall make rules for and shall supervise storehouses for 
products and marketplaces for goods and services; but this shall not include 
security exchanges regulated by the Chancellor of Financial Affairs. 

Section 10. Designation of enterprises affected with a public interest, 
rules for the conduct of enterprises and of their Authorities, and other 
actions of the Regulator or of the Boards, may be appealed to the Court of 
Administrative Settlements. 

Section 11. Responsible also to the Regulator, there shall be a commission 
appointed by the Regulator, unless the Senate object, for the supervision 
of public enterprises. The commission shall maintain the necessary surveill-
ance of enterprises wholly or partly O'Wned by the government. The coramission 
shall choose its chairman and he shall be the executive head of a supervisory 
staff. He may req·uire reports, conduct investigations, and make rules and 
recommendations concerning surpluses or deficits, the absorption of external 
costs, standards of service, and rates or prices charged for services or 
goods. The intention shall be that such enterprises shall be self-supporting, 
but exceptions may be made if the legislature agree. 

Each,~.ent&rp.r~ •. aball ,have .Ja .direc0tor • . chosen by and .removable by the 
commission; and he shall conduct ·its ·arfa1rs ·1n acc-oida:nc-e ~ith·'the s'tan'd·ards·· 
of public service fixed by the commission. 

The conduct of the commission and the activities of such corporations 
inay be reviewed by the Court of Administrative Settlements. 



ARTICLE VII 

THE JUDICIAL BRANCH 

Section 1. There shall be a Principal Justice of the United Republics; and 
there shall be a Judicial Council, a Judicial Assembly, a High Court of the 
Constitution, and a High Court of Appeals; also Courts of Claims; Rights and 
Duties; Administrative Settlements; Tax Appeals; and Arbitration Review. 

Also there shall be Circuit courts to be of first resort n suits 
_brought under national law and to hear appeals from courts of the Republics. 

Other courts may be established by law on recommendation of the Principal 
Justice with the Judicial Council. 

Section 2. The Principal Justice shall preside over the judicial system, 
shall appoint the members of all courts, and, with the Judicial Council, make 
its rules; also, through the administrator, he shall' supervise its operations. 

Section 3. There shall be a Judicial Assembly consisting of Circuit Court 
judges, together with those of the High Courts of the United Republics and 
those of the highest courts of the Republics. It shall meet annually, or 
at the call of the Principal Justice, to consider the state of the judiciary 
and such other matters as may be laid before it. 

It shall also m~et at the call of the Provost to nominate three candi-
dates for the Principal Justiceship of the United Republics whenever a 
vacancy shall occur. From these nominees the Senate shall choose the one 
having the most votes. 

Section 4. The Principal Justice, unless the Senate object to any, shall 
appoint a Judicial Council of five members to serve during his incumbency. 
He shall designate a senior member who shall preside in his absence. 

It shall be the duty of the Council, under the direction of the Prin-
cipal Justice, to study the courts in operation, to prepare codes of ethics 
to be observed by members, and ~o suggest changes in procedure. They may 
ask the advice of the Judicial Assembl y . 

It shall also be a dut y of the Council, as hereinafter provided, to 
suggest constitutional amendments when they appear to be necessary; and 
it shall also prepare the draft of revisions if they shall be required. 
Further, it shall examine, and from time to time cause to be revised, civil 
and criminal codes; these, when approve d by the Judicial Assembly, and if 
not rejected by the Senate, shall be in effect throughout the United Re-
publics. 

Section 5. The Principal Justice shall have a term of twelve years; but if 
at any time he be disabled from continuing in office, as may be determined 
by the Senate, or if he resign, he shall be replaced by the senior member 
of the Judicial Council until a new selection be made. After six years the 
Assembly may determine, by a two-thirds vote, that he may not continue in 
office. 

Section 6. The Principal Justice may suspend members of any court for in-
capacity or violation of rules; and the separation shall be fin~l if a ma-
jority of the Senate agree. 

For each court he shall appoint a senior member who shall preside. 
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Section 7. As a presiding judge may decide, with the concurrence of the 
senior judge of his court, criminal trials may be conducted either by in-
vestigatory or adversary proceedings, and whether there shall be a jury 
and what the number shall be; but investigatory proceedings shall require a 
bench of three. 

He may also provide for pre-trial proceedings. 
The rules shall preclude the putting twice in jeopardy of any accused 

for the same offense or punishment imposed if the accused be diseased or 
incompetent, They shall also preclude failure to inform the accused of 
charges, to allow confrontation of witnesses against him, or to call wit-
nesses in his favor; but they shall provide for the enforcement of decorum 
during proceedings, 

The accused shall have speedy trial and competent counsel, and the court 
shall consider his belief that the statute was invalid or unjust. 

He shall not be compelled to be a witness against himself. 

Section 8, In deciding on concordance with the Constitution, the High Court 
of the Constitution shall return to the House of Representatives statutes 
it cannot construe, and clarification shall be made within ninety days. If 
the House fail to make return the Court may interpret. 

Section 9. The Principal Justice, with the Judicial Council, or the Pres-
ident, may grant pardons or reprieves for offenses against the United Re-
publics. 

Section 10. The High Courts shall have thirteen members; but nine members, 
chosen by their senior justice from time to time, shall constitute a court. 
The justices on leave shall be subject to recall. 

Other courts shall have nine members; but seven, chosen by their senior, 
shall constitute a court. 

All shall be in continuous session except for recesses approved by the 
Principal Justice. 

Section 11. The Principal Justice, with the High Court of the Constitution, 
shall advise the Senate when requested concerning the constitutionality of 
measures approved by the House of Representatives; he may also advise the 
President, when requested, on matters involving constitutionality. Advisory 
opinions shall thereafter govern the Court's decision. 

Section 12. It shall be for other branches to accept and to enforce judicial 
decrees. 

Section 13. The High Court of Appeals may select applications for further 
consideration of decisions reached by other courts including those of the 
Republics. If it decide that there be a constitutional issue it shall assume 
jurisdiction. Its decisions may be reviewed, without hearing, and finally, 
by the High Court of the Constitution. 

Section 14. The High Court of the Constitution may decide: 



Section 14. (Continued) 
a) Whether constitutional powers delegated by the legislature to any 

agency are excessive or are less than necessary for its mission. 
b) Whether constitutional provisions have been violated in litigation 

coming to it on appeal. 
c) On the application of constitutional provisions to suiis involving 

the Republics. 
d) Suits involving international law as recognized in treaties, 

United Nations agreements, or any arrangements between members of the United 
Republics and other nations or their representatives. 

e) Other causes involving the interpretation of constitutional provi-
sions, except that in holding any branch of government to have exceeded its 
powers, the opinion shall be reviewed finally by the Senate. 

Section 15. The Courts of the Republics shall have initial jurisdiction in 
cases arising within their borders except those involving the Republic it-
self or those reserved for national courts by a rule of the Principal Justice 
with the Judicial Council. 

ARTICLE VI II 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 1. Qualifications for participation in democratic procedures as a 
citizen of the United Republics and eligibility for national offices shall 
be subject to repeated study and to redefinition by law; but any change in 
qualification shall become effective only if not disapproved by majority 
vote at a subsequent general election. 

For this purpose a permanent Citizenship and Qualifications Commission 
shall be constituted, four to be appointed by the President, three by the 
Provost, three by the Speaker, and three by the Principal Justice. Vacan-
cies shall be filed as they occur. They shall choose a chairman; they shall 
have suitable assistants and accommodations; and they may have other oc-
cupations. Recommendations of the commission shall be presented to the 
President and shall be transmitted to the House of Representatives by the 
President with his comments. They shall have a preferred place on the cal-
endar, and if approved they shall go to referendum. 

Section 2. Citizens' freedom of expression, of movement, or of communication 
shall not bt abridged except in emergency as defined in this Constitution; 
but the exercise of these rights may not diminish the rights of others or of 
the public; conflicts in the exercise of rights or questions concerning 
them and offenses against the public interest, adjudicated in courts of 
immediate jurisdiction, may be appealed to Courts of the Republics and to 
the Court of Rights and Duties. 

Section 3. Every citizen's right to practice religion &hall be guaranteed; 
but no religion shall be imposed by some on others; and no religion shall 
be encouraged by the government. 

Section 4. The writ of habeas corpus shall not be suspended except in 
declared emergency. 
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Section 5. The privacy of individuals shall be respected; searches and 
seizures shall be made only on judicial warrant; persons shall be pursued 
or questioned only for the prevention of crime and the apprehension of 
suspected criminals, and only according to rules of the Court of Rights 
and Duties. 

No property shall be taken except for a public purpose, by due process 
and with compensation. 

Section 6. It shall be public policy to promote discussion of public 
issues and to encourage peaceful public gatherings for this purpose; and 
permission to hold such gatherings shall not be denied, nor shall they 
be interrupted by public authorities except in declared emergency or on 
a showing of imminent danger to public order and on judicial warrant; 
but such gatherings shall be protected against disruption. 

Section 7. Individuals and enterprises holding themselves out to serve 
the public shall serve all equally and shall be held to fairness in their 
practices; citizens' complaints shall be attended to by the Watchkeeper, 
who may require compliance and compensation; but there may be appeal to 
the Court of Rights and Duties. 

Section 8. The use of public lands, the air, or waters shall be a privilege 
granted only in the national interest and with restrictions imposed by 
authorized agencies. 

Section 9. Any citizen may purchase, sell, lease, hold, convey, and i n-
herit real and personal property, and shall benefit equally from all laws 
for the security of person and property; but he shall be equally liable to 
penalty, any statute, ordinance, regulation, or custom to the contrary 
notwithstanding, except as may be determi ned by the Courts of Rights and 
Duties. 

Section 10. No person holding any office may accept any award or title 
from a foreign state or its representatives except it be authorized by 
law. 

Section 11. All those entering the service of the United Republics shall 
be chosen, under rules of service approved by law, for specific capability 
and without discrimination for any other reason. 

Section 12. No person shall bear arms or possess lethal weapons except 
police, members of the armed forces, or those licensed under law according 
to rules established by the Court of Rights and Duties. 

Section 13. Areas necessary for the uses of government may be acquired 
at its valuation and may be maintained as the public interest may require ; 
valuations may be appealed to the Court of Claims. Such areas may have 
self-government in matters of local concern. 

Sec t -icrn.,.,:1,4 .• ..;, .. -._l;be •<lb:;es.iden~.--~ Y.. ,lleg9.t.iat.e .~ f .or,. t.he . .ac.quisi.tion of areas 
outside the United Republics, and, H the ' Senate approve, may--·pTov i'd·e •fur 
their organization as Possessions or Territories. 
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Section 15. The President may make agreements with other organized peoples 
for a relation other than full membership in the United Republics. They 
may become citizens and may participate in the selection of officials. They 
may receive assistance for their development or from the National Sharing 
Fund if they conform to its requirements; and they may serve in_-civilian 
or military services, but only as volunteers. They shall be represented in 
the House of Representatives by members elected at large, their ·number pro-
~ortional to their constituencies; but each shall have at least one; and 
e~ch shall in the same way choose one permanent member of the Senate. 

Section 16. The President, the Vice Presidents, and members of the leg-
islative houses shall in all cases except treason, felony, and breach of 
the peace, be privileged from penalty for anything they may say while 
pursuing public duties; but the Judicial Council may make restraining 
rules. 

Section 17. Except as otherwise provided by this Constitution, each leg-
islative house shall establish its requirements for membership and procedures 
to insure against conflicts of interest. Each may make rules for the con-
duct of members, and provide its own disciplines for their infraction. 

Section 18. No Republic shall abridge any of the rights, immunities, or 
liberties granted in this Constitution to citizens of the United Republics 
or shall interfere with its officials in the performance of their duties 
and all shall give full faith and credit to the acts of other Republics 
and of the United Republics. 

Section 19. Public funds shall be expended only as authorized in this 
Constitution. 

ARTICLE IX 

GOVERNMENTAL ARRANGE~NTS 

Section 1. Officers of the United Republics shall be those named in this 
Constitution, including those of the legislative houses and others author-
ized by law to be appointed; they shall be compensated and none may have 
other paid occupation unless they be excepted by law; none shall occupy 
more than one position in government; and none shall accept any gift or 
favor. 

No income from former employments or associations shall be put aside 
for their benefit; but their properties may be put in trust and managed 
without their intervention during continuance in office; hardships under 
this rule may be considered by the Court of Rights and Duties and exceptions 
may be made with due regard to th~ general intention. 

Section 2. The President, the Vice Presidents and the Principal· Justice 
shall have households appropriate to their duties. The Vice Presidents, 
the Principal Justice, the Chairman of the Planning Board, the Regulator, 
the Watchkeeper, and the Overseer shall have salaries fixed by law and 
they shall continue for life; but if they become members of the Senate, 
they shall have senatorial compensation and shall confonn to its require-
ments, 
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Justices of the High Courts shall have no term; and their salaries 
shall be two-thirds that of the Principal Justice; they, and members of the 
Judicial Council, shall be permanent members of the judiciary and shall be 
available for the assignment to duty by the Principal Justice. 

Salaries for members of the Senate shall be the same as for Justices 
of the High Courts. 

Section 3. Officials designated by the head of a branch as sharers in 
policymaking may be appointed by him with the President's concurrence and 
unless the Senate shall object. 

Section 4. There shall be administrators: 
a) for the offices and official households, appointed by a standing 

corranittee of the Senate; 
b) for the national courts, appointed by the Chief Justice; 
c) for the Legislative Branch selected by a corranittee of members 

from each house (chosen by the Provost and the Speaker), three from the 
House of Representatives and four from the Senate. 

Appropriations shall be made to them; but those for the Presidency 
shall not be reduced during his term unless with his consent; and those 
for the Judicial Branch shall not be reduced during five years succeeding 
their determination, unless with the consent of the Chief Justice. 

Section 5. The fiscal year shall be the same as the calendar year, with 
new appropriations available at its beginning; but if any remain to be 
acted on, provisions for the year preceding shall be in effect until 
action shall have been taken. 

Section 6. There shall be an Officials' Protective Service to guard the 
President, the Vice Presidents, the Principal Justice, and other officials 
whose safety may be at hazard; and there shall be a Protector appointed 
by a standing committee of the Senate and he shall be responsible to it. 
Protected officials shall be guided ~y procedures approved by the committee. 

The service, at the request of the Political Overseer, may extend its 
protection to candidates for office; and they shall conform to uniform 
rules for public appearances. 

Section 7. A suitable contingency fund shall be made available to the 
President for purposes defined in resolutions of the House of Representatives. 

Section 8. The Senate shall try other officers of government than leg-
islators when impeached by a two-thirds vote of the House of Representatives 
for conduct prejudicial to the public interest. If Presidents or Vice 
Presidents are to be tried, the Senate, as constituted, shall conduct the 
trial. Judgments shall not extend beyond removal from office and dis-
qualification for .holding further office; but the convicted official shall 
be liable to trial according to law. 

Section 9. Members of legislative houses may be impeached by the Judicial 
Council; but for trial it shall be enlarged to seventeen by Justices of the 
High Courts appointed by the Principal Justice. If convicted, members shall 
be e,cpell:ed, :mh be·-.i1te-l'i-g,d.b.l,e- .£.o.n ,·,fu.tur.e , . .p.u.hlic_ ofi_ice; . they shall also be 
liable for trial as citizens. 
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ARTICLE X 

AMENDMENT 

"Section 1. It being the special duty of the Judicial Council to formulate 
and suggest amendments to this Constitution, it shall, from time to time, 
make proposals, through the Principal Justice, to the Senate. The Senate, 
if it approve, and if the President agree, shall instruct the Ov.erseer to 
arrange at the next national election for submission of the ame™1ment to 
the electorate. If not disapproved by a majority, it shall become part of 
this Constitution. If rejected, it may be restudied and resubmitted. 

Section 2. When this Constitution shall have been in effect for five 
Presidential terms the Overseer shall ask, by referendum at the succeeding 
election, whether a new Constitution shall be prepared. If a majority so 
decide, the Council shall prepare a new draft, approved by the Senate, for 
submission at the next election. If not disapproved by a majority it shall 
be in effect. If disapproved it shall be redrafted •nd resubmitted with 
such changes as may be appropriate to the then circumstances, and it shall 
be submitted to the electorate. 

If not disapproved by a majority it shall be in effect. If disapproved 
it shall be restudied and resubmitted. 

ARTICLE XI 

TRANSITION 

Section 1. The President is authorized to assume such powers, make such 
appointments and use such funds as are necessary to enable this Constitution 
to become effective as soon as possible after ratification. 

Section 2. Such members of the Senate as may be at once available shall con-
vene and, if at least half, shall constitute full membership while others 
are being added. They shall appoint an Overseer to arrange for electoral 
organization and elections for the offices of government; but the President 
and Vice Presidents shall serve out their terms and then become members of 
the Senate. At that time the Presidency shall be constituted as provided 
in this Constitution. 

Section 3. Until each indicated change in the govern.~ent shall have beer. 
completed the provisions of the existing Constitution and the organs of 
government shall .be in effect. 

Section 4. All functions of national government shall cease when and if 
they are replaced by others authorized under this Constitution as determined 
by the President. 

The President shall cause to be constituted a commission of appropriate 
size to designate existing laws inconsistent with this Constitution and the y 
shall be declared null and void by the President; also the commission shall 
assist the President and the legislative houses in the formulating of such 
laws as may be consistent with the Constitution and necessary to its im-
plementation. 
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Section 5. For the establishing of the Republics' boundaries a commissi~n 
bf thirteen, appointed by the Principal Justice of the United Republics, 
shall make recommendations within one year. For this purpose they may take 
advice and commission studies concerning resources, population, transporta-
tion, communication, economic and social arrangements, and such other con-
ditions as may be significant. The Principal Justice shall transmit the 
commission's report ~o the Senate after entertaining, if convenient, peti-
tions for revision. If not objected to by the Senate, his recommendations 
shall be in effect. 

Existing states shall not be divided unless metropolitan areas extending 
over more than one state are to be included in one Republic, or unless other 
compelling circumstances exist; and each Republic shall possess harmonious 
regional characteristics. ' 

Section 6. Constitutions of the Republics shall be established as shall be 
arr,anged by the Judicial Council and the Principal Justice. 

These procedures shall be as follows: Co~stitutions shall be drafted 
by an assembly of the highest courts of the states to be included in each 
Republic. There shall then be a convention of one hundred delegates chosen 
in special elections in a procedure approved by the Overseer. If the con-
vention shall not reject the Constitution it shall be in effect and the 
government shall be constituted. If it be rejected, the Principal Justice, 
advised by the Judicial Council, shall promulgate a Constitution and initiate 
revisions to be submitted for approval at a time he shall appoint. If it 
again be rejected he shall promulgate another, taking account of objections, 
and it shall be in effect. A Republican Constitution, once in effect, shall 
be valid for twenty-five years when revision prepared by its Judicial Council 
shall be referred to its electorate; if not approved it shall be revised 
again and submitted at a regular election. 

Section 7. Until Governors General and legislatures of the Republics are 
seated, state governments shall continue in their functions except that the 
President may appoint temporary Governors General to act as executives until 
succeeded by those regularly elected. These Governors General shall succeed 
to the executive functions of the states as they are merged in the Republics . 

Section 8. The indicated appointments, elections, and other arrangements 
shall be made with all deliberate speed. 

Section 9. The first Judicial Assembly for selecting a register of candidates 
for the Principal Justiceship of the United Republics shall be called by the 
incumbent Chief Justice immediately upon ratification. 

Section 10. When this Constitution has been implemented appropriate parts 
of this article shall be deleted. 
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Plan to 
IU:Nl~Tt:D nOM THE INJTUGHT, ll&Al' 19, nit 

By Loui~ Priv• trer 
Imagine this scenario: The U.S. 
,r,reme Court declares the Gramm-
JJman "balanced budget" law un-
ln~titutional. A Constitutional 
1~is' ensue!,. 
Public officials, including memben of 
ingress, the administration, ·•teamed" 
\ )er~ and "scholars .. from think tanks 
nclude 1ha1 the only way left to balance 
: budge1 and i3\ e our nation from 
1nom1c ruin is 10 ha\ea Cons1i1u11onal 
1,emion. 
fhr Es1ablishment media-which has 
1orted pre.:1ous lillle aboul the IO•:ear 
ort ro call a "Con con"-starts 
uing the drums by pronouncing the 
"s of all the "e>.pens'' v.ho ins1s11ha1 
on con is needed LO balance the budg-
ind rcsoh e this crisis. 
·he public is frigh1ened of America's 
unting deficit s and national debt and 
~adil~ persuaded a Con con is a mmt. 
arfetched? Not at all. Some people 
11 to utilize the celebration of the 
ntennial of our preseni Constitution 
981 to turn the ideas of our Found-
Fathers upside do'-'n. 
he Supreme Court has now heard 
arguments on the Constllutionaiil) 

Jramm-Rudman and is expected to 
: us ruling by the Founh of Jul) -
·pcndence Da) . Rep. Mike Syna r (D-
1.) and 11 other congressmen had 

a la"' sui1 charging that the auto-
c budge1 cuts mandated b) Gramm-
man ,1ola1e the rule of separanon of 
:rs outlined in the Con)111u11un. 

Com,tttuuon gives spendin£ and 
we collec11ng authority solel) to 
;ress.) 

gi,ing budget cuuing authority to 
jeneral Accounting Office (GAO) , 
:ongrernonal Budget Office and the 
:e of Management and Budget. 
!Tess 1s seeking to a,01d being held 
)flS1b!e for federal deficit s. 
Fehruaf) , a three-judge panel dc-
Gramm-Rudman was un-Com1i-

nal. Howe,er, It ga,e con,oluted 
ning for its ruling. In effect, 1he ra-
lc re,ersed our Founding father ~• 
:pl of the separation of po" ers. 
counts by those presen1 al the oral 
nents presented before the Supreme-
! indicate the jusuces seem to be 
1g toward the opinion that Gramm-
lan is un-ConMitut1onal. 
e attorney representing the case of 
·omptroller general (head of the 
) before the coun is Lloyd Cutk r, a 
poY.ered \\'ashinglon lawyer and 
!r counsel to President Jimmy Car-
:utler is a ke) member of the elne 
1 of inlernationahsu who want 10 
cture our republic into a parha-
lf) form of gm ernmen1. 
noted b) Rep . John LaFalce (D-
• Gramm-Rudman itself inslalls 
mcntary changes 1010 our govern-
11 system by gi, ing the cxecutiH 
h powers exclusively authorized to 

Congress under our Constitution. \\' hile 
il is therefore no surprise 1ha1 Cutkr 1s 
defending Gramm-Rudman. he and h1~ 
associa1es, ma~ win e11her wa). 

If the la" is declared un.Constitu• 
tional. the Committee on the Constitu-
11onal System (CCS) can then implement 
its structural changes to our Constitu-
tion at a Con con. 

Cutler and his colleagues in the 
Rockefeller-funded CCS wan! 10 make it 
easier to ratif) treaties by reducing the 
tY.o-thirds Senate requirement to a sim-
ple majority; to force citizens to vme a 
straigh1-part; line for presiden t, vice 

. ~he Stories ./n this -,,.eiaJ rq,rint Jiave appeared in 
The SPOTLIG/IT4,wm ·lfJU throuth the fust quarter 
of. ~?86. Dates J(hkh 11ppear:ln 6tories are in relation 

""to ,he first date ll/ pablication. :•. : 

prCsident, senators and congressman; to 
allow the president to appoint members 
of Congress in addiuon to those elec1ed; 
to eliminate th e 22nd Amendment, 
which hmi1s the president to 1wo terms 
in office, among man) other proposals 
that would erode the separation of 
po"ers. 

President Ronald Reagan has said he 
feel s so strongly about the need 10 bal-
ance the budget that he is " Y.ilhng 10 
risk what might happen" al a Con con -
this despue the fact that he has never 
submitted a balanced budge, 10 Con-
gress since he has been presi den t. Jn 

I 

j 

I 

j 
_j 

\ 

j 
fact, he has presided over the b1g~l..',t 
deficits in h1stor) . 

Perhap~ Reagan views the Con con a , 
a perlect oppor1uni1y to repeal 1he 22nd 
Amendment. which he repcatedl~ ha, 
said he would like to do, so he can re -
main in office. 

Ha,e 1he balanced budget amenJ1m.·n1 
in Congress and the Gramm-Rudman bil ! 
been used to set up a phon~ debate. 10 
comn,e a situation whereb) lh L' Ame,-
ican people will be convinced tha1 tnc 
structure of our goHrnment doe :- 0 \..11 

work and that a Con con is nceded lO 
remedy the situation? Time will tell . • 
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Agents of Chi:i11i;lff[hteatet 
..,...""Tm now TH£ SNJTUGHT, AINI: 11. ..,. 

By Trisha bison 
A powerful group of internation-

alists, financed in part by David 
Rockefeller and including on its 
board of directors Robert Strange 
McNamara, has unveiled plans to 
change the "political structure" of 
the United States and make parlia-
mentary-style amendments to the 
Constitution. 

The group, the Committee On the 
Constitutional System (CCSJ, revealed 
some of its proposals at a May 30 press 
conference in Washington. 

CCS is seriously studying proposals to: 
• Legally erode the separation of 

powers now existing in the Constitution 
between the cxecuti\'e and legislat ive 
branches of government; 

• Impose methods to remove the 
president from office short of impeach-
ment; 

• Permit the president to dissolve 
Congress and call for new congressional 
elections ; 

• Facilitate treaty ratification by re-
quiring a simple majority rather than 
t" o-thirds majority of the Senate; 

• Study possible Constitutional 
reforms in the area of federal and state 
powers and regional organization, keep-
ing in mind .. the need for regional forms 
of government in metropolitan areas 
that cros$ sta1c- Jines"; 

• Examine proposals to have U.S. 
taxpayers finance House and Senate 
elections; and 

• Delete the requirement in the Con-
stitution that revenue-raising bills origi-
nate in the House , "since in actual prac-
tice they also originate in the Senate.'' 

CCS 's plans for Constitutional re-
form are timely: 32 states have peti-
tione-d Congres~ for a Constitutional 
convention to ostensiblv balance the 
budget. Michigan may w~II soon become 
the 33rd state due to pressure from th e 
National Taxpayers Union, and Califor-

nia 's voters are cxpectal 10 approve such . 
a call on its November ballot. 

That means OD Election Day the 34th 
state could approve iu petition for a ~-
convention, fulfillina the Constitutional · 
requirement !hat once IWo-thinb of the 
states have so acted, Congress is forced 
to call the convention. · 

Well financed, well organized, and 
boasting a long list of &UppOrtcrs ·well 
lcoown in Establishment circles, CCS 
predicts i'ts recommen~tions .can 
",llimulate a·very active and constructive 
national dialog" ·duriq - the 1987 
bfftnteonial of the Coustitution. ·-
~:Among those listed OD CCS's board 

of directors arc: Robert McNamara, 
former secretary of defense; Lloyd 
Cutler , former counsel to President 
Ford and member of the Council on 
Foreign Relations and Trilateral Com-
mission; C. Douglas Dillon , former 
treasury sccrcwy under presidents Ken-
nedy and Johnson; and former con-
gressmen Jonathan Bingham, Richard 
Bolling , Robert McClory and Henry 
Reuss . 

Also: former senators Nicholas Brady 
and J. William Fulbright ; Sen . Nancy 
Kassebaum (R-Kan.); James Sundquist 
and Bruce Mac Laury, senior fellow and 
president, respectively, of the Brookings 
institution ; and James MacGregor 
Burns, author of 0 The Power to Lead : 
The Crisis of the American Presidencv'' 
and enthusiast of parliamentary so\·e~n -
ment. 

O thers, interested in attending CCS 's 
third meeting on September 9-10 but 
unable to do so, include: David Rocke-
fell er; Elliot Richardson, former secre-
tary of defense; Sens. Daniel Patrick 
Moynihan (D-N. Y .), Lloyd Bentsen (D-
Texas), Bob Dole (R-Kan .). Pete Do-
menici (R-N.M.), Carl Levin CD-Mich.) , 
Charles Mathias (R-Md.) and Claiborne 
Pell (D-R.l.). 

Also: Reps. Michael Barnes (D-Md .), 
Richard Cheney (R-Wyo .), John Dingell 
(D-Mich.) , Thomas Foley (D-Wash.), 

LI.OYD CUTLER 
... Be'aaCFRman . 

Lee Hamilton (D-lnd .), Barbara Mikui-
ski (D-Md .), Peter -Rodino (D-N.J.), 
Patricia Schroeder (D-Colo.) and Jim 
Wright (D-Texas). 
C~IJCI-.L ROLE 

Rod ino's interest in CCS 1s note-
worthy because of the crucial role he is 
now playing in Congress on the Con-
sti1utional convention / balanced budget 
issue . If Congress docs not pass a bal-
anced budget amendment before Its ex -
pected July adjournment , it seems in-
evitable-barrinF a serious drive by 
populists interested in preservin8 ou r 
Constitution to get states to repeal their 
calls to Congress-that a convent ion will 
be convened. 

"Conservatives" in Congress , par-
ticularly members of Congressional 
Leaders United for a Balanced Budget 
(CLUBB), have predicted that the 
Republican-controlled Senate would 
pass a balanced budget amendment with 
little resistance, but that Hou se 
"'liberals" would hold up action , as they 
did in 1982. 

pretation" by the Supreme Court. He 
refused IO blame the public servants no" 
ICrVing in government. Although he i 
OD record as supporting key aspects o 
parliamentary government in testimon i 
before former Rep. Henry Rcuss's Join< 
Economic Committee, according to a 
knowlcd1cable source, and as reported 
by "U.S. News & World Report ," no• 
lo mention in minutes from CCS ·. 
meetings, Cutler denied that he endorsed 
a parliamentary system of government 
and said that others had merely " mis-
interpreted" him. 

CCS's contention that inadequacie, 
and defects in our Constitution , rathe 
than tht un..Constitutional action s an j 
questionable motivations of our publh' 
servants, art responsible for the poli1 ica1 
crises facing our nation plays on the lad 
of understanding American~ ha, e re::• 
garding their own Constitution. 

"Our governmental problem ~ do n01 
lie with the quality or character of oui 
elected representatives," says Dillor1. 
"Rather they lie with a system y, hi.: /, 
promotes divisiveness and makes It dif-
ficult, if not impossible, to develor tru l_. 
national policies." He contends 1ha.1 th L 
division of power between the prr1.i.Jr.: .. 
and the Congress •·makes stalema1 e in -
evitable '' and ·•no one" can pla.:e thL 
blame. 
INTENT DISCOVERED 

When one studies James Mad! 5-0: ·, 
notes from the debates a1 the 1-;s- C 0: -
stitutional convtntion . the rat if1ca: 10n, 
of the states , and th e "Federa ·:, 
Papers, " a complete understand inf o~ 
the intent of our Founding Fa!her• ~a n 
be discon red . It become~ clear 1h r1· iL, 
Constitution mandates a separa11or. 01 
powers among the legislatiYe. e.\ ecuti,l 
and judicial branche5- of f O\ ernr.. e:::, 
and that our government is tod ay vi ola·• 
ing thi s command . 

For example , the Constitution t i\ r~ 
lawmaking authority only to the ( 1.11 . 

gre.ss. Jn flagrant \'iolati on of 1t·: 
authorization , the e"ecu1i,e brnn c! 
routinely makes law-the presiden, \\ l?: 
hi s issuance of e>..ecutiH ord t!"• a r.,"' 
agen cie .s like the IR S thro uf M ll 

Convention advocates ha\'e pred icted codemakmg as recorded in the .. FecL :.;. 
that Rodino, who typically votes in the Regi .s ter" -and the judicial b ra r :h. 
big spending , pro-social welfare, left- through the Supreme Courr-'s ba!in~ i:-
winf mode , would use his considerable decisions on public pol icy ra thl r in..;··. 
powers as chairffian of the House expound mg on the Foundinf Fa itlt' · -
Judiciary Committee to foil efforts of intent. 
·•conservatives" to force Congress to act Rather than trying to ge t our f C"', " ~: 
on the balanced budget amendment be- men t to practice 1his separa1io r. 0; 
cause he doesn ' t wam to balance the powers mandate, CCS want .s to let ail ,, 
budget. current practices and even exran~d 0 ·· 

What is more likely, however , i.s tha t such acth·ity, with propo.sal s th at ed1 
Rodino is bottling up the amendment in the practice.s in countries posse-ss111 f 
committtt to force the convening of a parliamentary form of governmerH . 
convention, .a pcrftct opportunity for Among such suggestiom : 
CCS and others to impose their Con- • Interlocking the e"ecutiH ar.C 
stitutional changes. legislative branches b, allo,,in~ th~ 

At the press conference, a represen• president to appoint m-em ber5- o( Cc, :-: . 
tative .of the Populist Party ' s national gress to some or all Cabinet pos1ti0n~. 
commmee asked Cutler to respond to The thinking is that this s,·stem m 11.:l1 : 
.the opinion of Americans that the prob- promote teamwork betv. ee·n th e pr~!:_ 

· lfflt.-ourna110n .faCCS',are·n01--a·result.t,f • deru ·.and Congrc,s,and !adtn·att ·pd,,·.:. 
an antiquated Constitution , but rather policy consensus; 

1n &hi,; 1!181 file photo, iDcoming World Bank Preoicle111 A.W. Cla118en (rightl-obkes 
band,; wilh hio predeceuor, Robert Strange McNamara. 

are a consequence of our government , • Creation of a joini ne-~~ui i \('-
particularly Congress, acting in nagrant legisla tive council to in vol\ e com:re~-
disobedience to the Cons1itution . sional leaders in policymaking ; -
SUPREME LAW 'VAGUE' e Linking more close!\' the elec1ora! 

Cutler answered that the Constitution fates of candidates for President and 
was "vague " and subject to "wide inter - Congress by eit her increasin£ H ouse 
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':i'abric of !J.!S. i:C<Jn_stf (ution 
erms to four years with elections in 
•residential election years or by linking 
. ith a single vote t he presidential and 
ice presidential candidates with HQUSe 
nd perhaps Senate candidates; 

• Giving Congress a grea ter role in 
1e presidential nominating process as 
:eU as allowing members of Congress to 
:n·e as presidentia l elect0rs; 

• A discussion of the German sys-
~m "'herein a significant number of 
~gislati\e seats are allocated on a pro-
ortional basis to the political parties 
1at receive more than S ~ rcent o f t he 
ote. CCS reasons that allocating H ouse 
!ats on a similar at-large basis would in• 
-ease the likelihood that the political 
arty of the president would also control 
1r House . 
ENIES CHARGE 
Along these lines, CCS denies that it is 

·ying to promote a parliamentary sys-
~m by explaining: "In a parhamentar~ 
:seem, the chief executive is selected 
·om the parliament (legislature). The 
.S. tradition of a chief execuii, e 
ected from the nation as a whole ha~ 
orked \\Cl! in general and has stronf: 
ublic support. It should be presened.' ' 
Contrar) to this statement, CCS is 

onetheless exploring such a reform . At 
CCS meeting , J. William Fulbrigh t, 

1ember of the board of director::.. , 
rongl~ supported the suggestion w 
rnngc th e Constitution to remove the 
·oh1bi1ion agains1 members of Con-
es:- sef\ ing as electors to enable Con• 
·ess to play a large role in electing the 
~esiden t. 
In response , Cutler said that he and 
any in CCS preferred LO enhance th o:: 
)~er of a pa;1y's congressional can • 
dates and the holdOH"r senators in 
·lecting the presidential candidate of 
1a! party. 
On the question of whether CCS 
ould try to implement Jt s proposals a t a 
Js.sibl" Constitutional comcnt1on, the 
oup s.ay ~: "'Jf a Constituuonal con,en-

on i!- called for a balanced budget 
:nendment and is opened up to broader 
iatter:, such carefully-researched 
ructural amendmen1 s a s. the committee 
1ay produce could contribut e to a con-
ructive convention ." 
CCS has held numerous national and 

:gional meetings and will conducl fur -
1er meetings in preparation for a tenta• 
ve September, J 985 unveiling of the ir 
nal plans. The committee says it wants 
> give Congress, the states and the na-
onal political parties enough time to 
udy CCS's recommendations in prep-
ration for the 1987 bicentennial. 
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ble basis through contributions to the 
left-wing Brookings Institution , which is 
tax exempt. Cutler says that once CCS is 
incorporated, it would apply for a ta> 
exemption under Section .SOl(c)(3) of the 
IRS code. It could then receive cont ribu-
tions and membership fees that would be 
tax deductible. 

Detailed planning for CCS began in 
1982 with contributions from the Dillo n 
fund . Since then grants have been mad e 
by the American Express a nd He" k11 
Foundations and by David Rockefeller. 

A final meeti ng o f CCS's re\le~ 
group is set to be held September. 1985. 
in its " ords, ''most appropriatd ~ a t I r•• 
dependence Hall 10 act on a n) regional 
group suggestions and agree on a fm:1i 
recommendati on., .. 

J. William Fulbright want< Cong,-ess to elect the president. 
This will be followed bi a fina l 

m eeting of t he full commiuee, '\\hi ...:h b 
to a ct on these recommendation:. and. 
"if appropria te," submit them to Con. 
gress. And if the! are a ppro\ ed. the~ 
wo uld be subm itted for ratifica tior. IC' 
state legislature:. or com entiOib . 

A fu ndam ental feature ~ f t he parlia-
mentary system is the d issolution o f the 
legislature, which CCS is seriously con-
sidering . This could be done b)" amend-
ing the Constitution to a llow the pre~i-
dent to dissoh e Congress and call for 
ne" congressional election:.. A president 
frustrated by an uncooperati\C Congress 
would find this a pol'erful weapon be-
ca use e,en if not used, the simple threat 
of congressional dis~olution "ould Leep 
man~ members m !me. Congress could 
also be gi,en ··compensating enhance-
ment !! .. a!0nf with four-year term ,. 

CCS is studyint; tht: possibih l) of 
rcmo,·ing the president from offi-:e for 
rea!ions of ineffectl\eness. The on!~ Yl3Y 
a president can no~ be forced from of· 
fice, aside from losin~ a re-e!ectio~ bid. 
is through 1mreachmt>nt IN com mitt in~ 
high crimes and miidemeanors. 

Professor Donald Robinson of Smith 
College, Y>h o 1s editing CCS 's "wor~-
boo k ,'' acknov. ledges that the Founding 
Father s restric1ed the removal 0 1 the 
president to impeachment because the~ 
\\anted to keep th~ presidcn: imm une 
from politics so la\\:., once mad e, could 
be administered in a non-political wa~. 
But Robinson sa~s th, ~ philosoph~ "has 
chaneed with ume ... the modern pre r.i• 
denc~· cannot be a non-political offi ce." 

CCS has also discussed the possibility 
o f a six-year presidential term , no"' 
practiced in Mexico, which has a one-
party system. Also under consideration 
is repeal of the Constitution's 22nd 
Amendment, which limits the presidency 
to two terms. 

One proposal t hat the CCS panel 
charged with d iscussing budget matters 
was in complete a greement on was that 
there was no need for a Constitutional 
a mendment requiring a balanced budget 
- which 1s the precise reason why "con-
servatives•· have been pushing for a 
Constitutional convention. The panel 
concluded that thi s ''does not have to be 
in the Constitution to be achie,ed." 

Robert McClory, form er congressman 
from Illinois, is on record as belie"ing 
that the framers of the C onstitution 
assumed that "'of course" we will "bal-
a nce the budget each year." 
UNAWAR E 

T he CCS panel, and particularly Mc-
Clory , either do not know or do not care 
that the Constitution a lready mandates a 
balanced budget. Our Founding Fathers 

wanted to extinguish the deb t each fisca l 
year by requiring Congress to, whene, er 
enough revenues had not been collected 
through imposts, excises, and duties to 
pay its expen dit ures, apportion a mong 
t he states accord ing to their congre.}-
sional represen tation the remainin~ 
needed ta\es . 

This requirement-A rticle I , Section 2 
of the Consrnut1on-has ne, er been re-
pealed and Congress is still required 10 
in\·oke it to balance the budgel. 

CCS is no~ financed on a ta>.. -deduct i-

C CS a nticipates that the "publ 1~ ..., ;:: 
need to understand ~h~" the C on~11:u-
tion is being amendc-d . I! p lan~ a r'.tl• 
g ram of general education includinf 
m edia coverage and actl\ llY b~ arr: .. 1 -

pria te o rganizatiom. A ma Jo: l obt-i:, !n_, 
effort would al~o be pursul."d w corn in~: 
Congre!i!i and the. slate!i IO adop: !iu .:-: 
Constit utional changes. • 

HONOR THE CONSTITUTION 
The year 1987 wil l mark the 200th anniversarv of the Cons:;;c-

t1on ol tne United States . Lioeny Liorary Joins the celebrat ion v. :ii 
this soec1al offer o! several Constitutional works no Ame·1c2n 
shoulc be without. 

55 Men: The Story of the Constitution is a splend1d1y read;;o ;e 
account of the Constitutiona l Convention of 1787 basec on tr,:; 
notes o'. James Madison Secret Proceedings and Debates of the 
Constitutional Convention 1s a fascinatina account froir, notes ta,.=·· 
by Robert Yates. chief 1ust1ce of New Yor~ .. and copied b\ Jonr 
Lansing Jr., chance l10· o: that stale . Both were memoe•s of m2: 
convention . 

No American should be without a copy of The Constitution of the 
United States . and The Newstates Constitution . a docume n1 
dreamed up by leftist intellectuals to destroy our republic. is a 
revealing essay that everyone should rea d. 

Order these publications by filling out the coupon be low . If you 
prefer to charge orders to your Visa or MasterCard. call tol l free 
(BOO) 528-6600 and place your order by phone. In Arizona , (800) 
352-0458. 

LIBERTY LIBRARY 
300 Independence Ave ., S.E. , Washington, D.C. 20003 

___ copy/cop,es of 55 Men ($12 each ) .... $ ___ _ 

___ copy/copies of Secret Proceedings ($12 .95 each ) . . . .. $ ___ _ 

___ copy/cop,es of The Conslitu t1on (75¢. 15 for S5 . 100 fo· $15. 
1000 for $100/. .$ ___ _ 

___ copy/cop,es ol The News!ates Constitution ($3, three tor $6 . 

NAME 

ADDRESS 

10 or more , $1.50 eachJ .... $ ___ _ 
Total enclosed $ ___ _ 

CITY, STATE, ZIP - - - - --- - -------::-:::== 
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Congress ·Lies rt(ti WOUi~bou 
auaJ,1£J) f1tOM THE SPOTUCtn , 4l!Gl'fl ... "'5 

By Trisha Katson 
Congress is "pulling a fast one on 

the American public" by leading 
people to believe it can limit the pro-
ceedings of a Constitutional conven-
tion specifically to a balanced budget 
amendment. 

1 That was the viewpoint of two Con-
stitutional cx~rts who testified before 
the House Judiciary Subcommittee on 
Civil and Constitutional Rights on July 
31. The two legal scholars were pro-
fessors Walter Dellinger (of Duke 
Uni--ersitv Law School in Durham, 
North C~rolina) and Gerald Gunther 
(Stanford Law School in Palo Alto, 
California). Gunther said the attitude by 
members of Congress that it could con-

George Wuhingloa ii, depicted preaidiDg ID Plilladelpllia ID 1787 Ill lhe tint (ud ..i,,) 
~----ID lbio 1856 paiDliDg by Jamee B. Slearns. 

trol and approve whatever comes out of Actual ly, Article V's wording says 
a Constitutional convention and dictate that amendments approved by a Con 
its agenda is due to Congress's "jnstitu- con nttd only be approved by three-
tional egomania.'' fourths of the state legislatures or state 

Arguing that a "Con con" could be conventions , and that Congress is only 
limited was Dean John Feerick (of Ford- empowered to select the mode of ratifi-
ham Law School in the Bronx , New cation: by state convention or state lcgis-
York ), basing his t~timony on a 1973 lature . It says nothing about Congress 
American Bar Association special com- giving its own stamp of approval or rc-
mittee report. jection notice during the ratification 

The testimon'" of both Gunther and process . 
Dellinger brought into serious question Other points brought out by Gunther : 
the validity of congressional legislation • An examination of the text, 
that purports to set guidelines for a Con- history and structure of Article V in-
stitutional convention . Such a bill. en- dicates that the Con con was to be a gen -
titled .. The Constitutional Convention uinely deliberative body with con-
lmplementat ion Act of 198S" (S . 40) , siderable autonomy, entitled to consider 
has been approved by the Senate Judi- all major Constitutional issues of con-
ciary Committee . The measure. in these cern to the nation at the time of delegate 
scholars' opinions, goes beyond the pur- selection , and not controllable by the ap-
\"iew of a single balanced budget amend- plying states or Congress; 
mcnt by making reference to any "sub- • Convention delegates will prob-
ject matter" discussed at a Con con . ably be chosen in popular elections out-

Referring to the wording of the 32 side of congressional control. Interest 
pet itions sent by the states to Congress groups would raise issues other than the 
call ing for a Con con, Sen . Orrin Hatch s~cified one. Delegates could plausibly 
(R-Utah) says: "To the extent that a argue that they were charged with con-
petition was required to be i,rccisc, sidcrini Constitutional issues perceived 
either with respect to the specific amend- as major concerns by the American peo-
ment sought. or the specific language pie who elected them . 
sought, there would be little use for the • Congress is given the rcspon -
convention itself. To limit the conven- sibilit ie~ to call a convent ion when 34 
tion to the consideration of a single , states have applied for one and to "set 
meticulouslv worded amendment is to up houseketping details regarding the 
ma ke the c0nvention a farce ." receipt of applications and the conven-

Gunther , who has spoken and written ing of the convention ," and to choose 
cxtensi\'ely on the uncertain cir- the mode of ratification. 
cumstances surrounding a Con con , Dellinger said: "Virtually everyone 
testified that there are no legitimate and (supporters as well as opponent s of 
effective means to limit a convention to holding a c.onvention) now concedes that 
a "single subject specified in advance." it would be either impractical or un-
Regardless of what state petitions list as Constitutional to limit the convention as 
the subject matter for a Con con and the state legislative ~titions specify ." 
what Congress directs, he said that ul- As examples he named the Senate Judi-
timately the conYention is empowered to ciary Committee and the National Tax.-
set its own agenda . ·payers Union, which for the last IO years 

" The convention delegates," he said . has publicly been the main force behind 
"will have a valid claim to consider and the Con-eon effort . 
propose amendments on any subject of Dellinger also noted : 
Constitutional dimension of concern to • The framers of Anicle V of the ex-
tli< decl01ilte -· wllo•ft05e ,fllffll.,""+k" islina.US...CoostiWtion clea,ly intended 
added that it would be "highly unlikely'' ' that ihc Con eon··.was to'bc ·"tfree o f the ' 
Congress would question any unauthor- c.ontrol of existing governmental institu-
ized changes made in our Constitution in tions, ., whether the state legislatures or 
the ratification process . Congress. 
'PRIMARY' ROLE? e All of the 32 state Con-eon calls 

Feerick, who participated in the 1971 would be invalid under S. 40 because the 
commission set up by the ABA, argued applications refer s~cifically to a 
that Article V of the Constitution dcle- balanced budget amendment , while the 
gates to Congress a "primary role" in Hatch bill refers to broader subject mat-
deciding whether or not to ratify what- ter . 
ever emerges from a Con con. • Six state applications say their 

sfx 

calls arc to be null and void if a Con con 
extends beyond the subject of a balanced 
budget amendment. 
CHANGING THEIR TUNE 

Dellinger said state legislatures that 
have passed Con-con petitions were 
assured by lobbying groups, including 
the National Taxpayers Union and the 
National Tax Limitation Committee, 
that a Con con could be limited to a 
balanced budget amendment. But now 
that the last two states arc withi n sight , 
he said, these groups "are changing 
their story. What happened to the 
assurances that were given to the state 
legislatures back in I 979 that a conven -
tion could con~der only the amendment 
contained in t.,hc state legislative pro-
posal?" 

Feerick argued that a Con con can be 
limited . However , the American Bar 
Association report states: .. V.'h ile we 
believe that Congress has the power to 
establish standards for making available 
to the states a limited convention v. hen 
they petition for that type of conven-
tion, we consider it essential that im-
plementing legislation not preclude the 
states from applying for a general con-
vention . 

"Legislation that did so would be of 
questionable valid ity since neither the 
language nor history of Article V reveals 
an intention to prohibit another general 
convention . '' 

A state appl ication would not be 
"proper," Feerick said, if it called for a 
Con con for the purposes of voting on a 
specific amendment since a Con con 
"should have latitude to amend , as Con-
gress does , by evaluating and dealing 
with a problem .'' 

Fccrick 's tcstimonv came from the 
1973 study and he s~med to lack any 
update on the issue . It has been since 
that time that all 32 state petitions have 
been filed with Congress. Feerick said he 
was not familia r with the wording of the 
petitions. 
SERIOUS SUBJECT 

Although Rep . Don Edwards (D-
,•eati!:)·in• subc:ommillee cl>aimlan, ht 

was only present fot a short ~riod~llep', ' 
Charles Schumer (D-N . Y .) sat in as ac-
ting chairman . Subcommittee members 
acknowledged the seriousness of the · 
subject. Rep . F . James Sensenbrenner 
Jr. (R-Wis.) called the Con con " the 
most important piece o f legislation this 
subcommittee and Congress will con-
front thi! year." 

Schumer said he "might sleep better 

•11iabt"~,he were as confident as some 
-dial~ IIOllld be limited to a 
---~:-llep. Robert Kastcnmcier 
{D.Wi•.} argued that "to empov. er • 
new arm of government (the Con ,con 
with unlimited power to rewrite the Con 

· aitution is a threatening matlcr. '· 
Ounther said he became interested it 

this issue when he heard former Cali f o r 
nia Go,·. Jerry Brown endorse a Con co1 
after passage of a tax limitation amend 
mcnt in his state. Ounthcr recalled th,, 
Brown gave assurances that he ha 
checked with '"every Consti1ur ion ..: 
scholar in California" and been rl 
pcatedly told that , without doubt, a C0• 
con could be limited to a single subj<, : 

But Gunther discovered Brov. n ha 
not been so thorough and that h 
gu'.'.l.rantce of a limited Con con " ... 
based on a single memo gi'"ing srl 
opinions on the question. 

On the issue of the time limitatio r. 0 
the validity of the state petiti on s. Gu· 
ther said seven years is a ••uni" ·r~.!! 
recognized principle " and chi d, 
Hatch 's bill for includini a "gra n 
father clause" allowing seven years frcv 
the date of passage of a state pern i( 
"'plus whatever it takes to get th e- i ... 
petitions passed ." He said m o5- t of 1 
states passing Con-con calls "acted i, 
norance. '' 

Schumer said the subcomm ittee ,, 
hold at least one more hear in~ on 11 

subject before it takes any action 
' NULL ANO VOID'? 

Dellinger said he asked J',;ation al Ta 
payer Union Chairman Jim Da, 1d,1• : 
a Con con would be limit ed 10 nne ih 
and he said no. The pet ition o f the ~t.:-
of Idah o, Dellinger noted. indicatl? \ 
was " not completel y assured t-~ : 
snake oil salesmen who lobbied thr:-
He c11ed the specific wording of ih, , 
to Congress that it wanted a Con ~~0r ! 

the "specific and exclusi, e purpmc r 
balanced budget amendmen;. " 

The petition sa~5- that the cali J( 1 

and void if the Con con ~or\ l:il.-
tha t. 

Six state5- ha ,c such "null anc' \, 
pro\'is1ons in them: Co\oraa(. n. 
ware. Louisiana, Idaho. North Ci!· , · 
and Utah . Hov.e\'e r. th is la r._p .. 

ROBERT,~IER . 
• • - Con eon a &brea&en.mg matter . 
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N'ho Will ControHa~ft,Con 

llM DAVIDSON 
... "'No limits" on Con con . 

ich Dellinger says is crystal clear, is 
coahtod by a libertarian-/aissez-Jair, 
nk tank, the Cato Institute , which 
ues that such language is "surpl us-
·" that "must be di sregarded." 
)avidson, in an imervie \l, with The 
OTLIGHT, revealed he was sympa-
1ic to the libertarian vic\lo, and 
nerous individuals associated wit h 

National Taxpayers Union have 
eed with Jibenarian and tor anar-
.:,c ideology (SPOTLIGHT , March 

·cerick said that manv state constitu-
1al con, entions have· been held and 
1 he y,.as "not av.are that they had 
problems.'' However. as revealed in 

: SPOTLIGHT (Aug . 6. 1984). Ne" 
mpshire held a con con last yea r 
!rein all the major committees and 
-con business were controlled b~ 
yers, judges and members of the 
e Legislature . 
·he American Bar Association argued 
. it would be desirable to include m 
llementin~ legislation a "limited 
ic ial re\iev. of congressional dete r-
1ation s made in the com•emion pro-
,. " Thi~ was criticized by Gunther, 
) argued that this judicial reviev. 
Jld be conducted by the Supreme 
Jrt, part of the national government. 
ch would be: contrary to the intent of 
framers of the U.S . Constitution : 
would be an example of another 

nch of government squelching ac-
lS of the states." 
>ellinger said the ABA report was in-
tsistent with Article V and tha t the 
a of Congress ' s passing judgment on 
product of a Con con "trivializes .. 
framers' intent and is "fundamental-
nconsistent with the purpose of ha- · 
a Constitutional convention.' ' 

>ellinger and Gunther basicall) con-
red with each other. But the) differed 
the validity of state applications to 
ngress for a Con con. While Delhnger 
j petitions that stated they would be 
I and void should a Con con go 
•ond a specific amendment would be 
alid , Gunther said th~• would still be 
id because the Con con itself would 
nnpawcred to do what it want s. 

Some of the stales that have passed 
Con-<:on calls never had any public hear-
ings on the matter. The National Tax-
payers Union claimed to '"ave' poor 
records, stating only that Jit least 20 
bearings" had b«n held . -. ~.· 

Dellinger said 1979 marked tile first 
public hearings on the issue.' 

Gunther estimated that more than 20 
of the 32 applications before Congress 
were adopted in I 978 or earlier. This 
means that at the. most I 2 of the 32 peti• 
lions to Congress were passed with an) 
public hearings. 

According to Gunther, no states pass-
ing petitions to Congress calling for a 
Con con prior to 1979 held any public 
hearings (SPOTLIGHT, June II , 1984). 
These states are: Alabama , Colorado. 
Delaware , Florida, Georgia . Kansas, 
Maryland , Mississippi. Nebraska , New 
Mexico, North Dakota , Oklaho ma , Ore-
gon, Pennsylvania , South Carolina , 
Tennessee, Texas, Virginia and \\'yo-
ming . 

Arizona , Louisiana and Nevada . ac-
cording to the NTL:, passed Con-con 
resolutions again in 1979 and it is possi-
ble no hearing s were held at tha t time 
ei ther. Arkansas, Idaho, Indiana, Iowa. 
New Hampshire . North Carolina, South 
Dakota and Utah are lis1ed a,. passing 
Con-con calls in 1979. Information on 
whether publ ic hearing s were held in 
those states is unavailable at thi s time 

Gunther called the Hatch bi ll a "badh· 
flawed product of 10 to 12 years' off. 
and-on atten tion ." In discussions durinf 
Scna1e Jud iciarv Committee meetini ::,, 
all committee ~embers ha, e acted and 
spoken as if the~ have unques1ioned 
authorit v to dicta te wha t a Con con ca n 
do and ·10 approH or reject proposah 
decided on b, a Con con. 

The- hearin"g te5.tim on) wil l. h0v. e,, c~ . 
apparent!~ nm affec1 Rep . Larr~ Cra1( s 
(R-ldahoJ efforts for a Constitutiona l 
convention on the issue of a balanced 
budget. Craig is the head of Congres-
sional Leaders United for a Balan ced 
Budget. Although Craig has been assur-
ing constituents critical of hi,. pr0-Co n-
con posiuon tha1 the fear o f a run aµ a~ 
convention is a "smokescreen ," the con -
gressman' s administrative assisiant says 
tht" tesumonv tha: a Con con cannot be 
limited is no; ne"" informat ion . 

•·1 don ' t want a convention ," the 
spokesman told The SPOTLIGHT. 
"and I don 't think we're ever going to 
have one. [Howe\ er ,) some1hing like 
'The Newstates Constitu11on of Am er-
ica' would ne\er mak e it through the 
ratification proces s, no r woul d a 
parliamentary form of government." " 

Does the congressman 's aide belie\ e , 
as does the ABA spokesman. that Arti· 
cle V says Congress has a primary role in 
decid ing whether to choose w rati fy 
whatever comes out of a Con con'? " In 
explicit terms, Article V doesn 't say 
that," said Craig's staff member . " Th at 
would depend on what the convening 
legislation (Hatch's implementation bill] 
says." 

The NTU, which was accused by Gun-

• " TH P.ewsut~ Coastit•Uon.'" an E.sl.lblish -
lH• I W9tprint for imposint • •tct11orsh1p on 
A11mica , is tTailabW from Ubt-r1, Ubrar) : ont 
for $3 , Uuw for $6 or JO or mort at SI .SO aplttt : 
380 IIIMpe-• df:-« Ave ., S£ , \\ultin11011 , O .C. 
3'003. 

.. 
. tber and Delluiler. 1.?{ jlciD& .')l!aq dud.a 111.fficient number of valid 

salesmen" dea:ivin&Mate lcpslaa~~-e· . .-tel .i,all a Con con have been 
to believi8' lllat. lllcr1 ii ilo danFr,of a by tbt ftates, Congress must pass a 
n11uaway Con con, - rciuc:l&DJ to CDIII- . t raolution calling for such a 

. man.on tll<,llearinJ, Adriame-Q,nlova, . -~~- This resolution will set the 
- NTU direstor'ilf--inhlil:.affairs. uicl no ~'1md pla~ of the meeting and in-

one from the poup aueadcJd die.bearing ·'41cue tlle "subject matter of the amend-
-aue to a schedule cooflict;this despite llieDt i>r amendments" for considera -
the fact that the NTU has publicly been · lion. 
the group in the forefront of pushing for • Delegates will be elected in the 
a Coo con .fur the last JO years. Miss manner of Congress 's representation : 
Cordova Aid she did not feel com_for- · two at large from each state and one 
table about responding to the ! from each congressional distr ict . 
against NTU until she reads the ·i- Members of Congress and those " hold-
mony herself. She acknowledged c is ing an office of trust or profit under the 
a conflict of opinion among lqal < ·1. United States" will not be permiued to 
ars on the issue of whether • ~n be delegates. Delegates will "in all cases, 
can be limited . ' . except treason, felony and breach of the 

However. the NTU has flatly stated in peace , be privilC!led from arrest " and 
its literature over the years that a Con "shall not be questioned in any other 
con can be limited and that any talk of a place" on anything said at the Con con . 
runaway convention is a smok.escrttn • The president of the Senate and 
used by those opposed to a balanced the speaker of the House (no" George 
budget. Bush :and Tip O'Neill , respecti,ely) " ill 

The NTU was not the only proponent convene the Con con and preside unll l 
of a Con con that missed the hearing . delegates elect an officer. 
No member from Craig's staff attended . • Delegates will take an oath to 
The \.Vashington " Times ," which has "comply with " the Constitution. 
editorialized extensivel y over the past • Delegates will get paid a salar~ 
few years in favor of a balanced budget equal to that of members of Congress , 
amendment and a Con con , had a re- as well as any travel expenses-from the 
porter at the hearing but failed 10 report U.S. treasury. If such sums are no , 
on it in the newspaper. available , the cost s will be " appor• 

According to " Times" reporter Tom tioned" among the states. 
Brand t: "'We didn't have time 10 pro• • Procedurally, each delegate ha .. 
du ce a story on the hearing. There was 3 one vote . Minutes will be kepi (ir. th e 
time and space crunch. fBcsides, J it was traditi on of James Madison's note<i on 
not a pivotal h~aring . " But the- "Timc-s" the 1787 convention). and the Con con 
d id run an article lhe next day about a will mec-1 for no Jont?cr than si>.. m om h -. 
seminar by the Cato Institute , support• unless Congress passes a reso lu u o n ~' • 

tending that time . 
ing 3 Con con . • No amendment(, ma~ be propo'-ed 

~pt ember, by all account s, will be the other than the " subject ma11er .. s1a1 ed 
crucial month on the issue of the bal - in Congress's concurrent resolution call -
anced budge< amendment and Con con . ing the Con con. 
Sc humer says there'5 a "good chance.. • Upon not ification of the C011 
M1ch1fan wi ll approve it s petiu on to con's actions, Congres5 must with in sh 
Congress, thus becoming the 33rd state months decide. as provided bi Art,clc \' 
to demand a Con con. The Senate is also what mode of ratification it prefer \, 0: 
expected to debate both the balanced reject the Con con's proposals . If Con-
budget amendments. Two such amend- gress refuses to facilitate th e ratificau c, r. 
ments (differing versions) passed the proce!-!- and the states beheH the C 01 ; 
Judician Cornmiuee , as well as Hatch's con's proposals are consistent with C01.-
Con co~ implementation act (S . 40). grcs5 •5 original orderi , the st ates can fi k 
BILL PFIOVISIONS a lawsuit . 

Hatch' s bill, cosponsored by Sens. • Proposed amendments become 
Dennis DeConcini (D-Atiz .) and Strom law upon ratification of th ree•fourthc.. of 
Thurmond (R -S.C .), provides: the states and any state can rescind it c.. 

• \\'ithin 45 days a fter Congress ratification up until that time . • 

States Calling for Balanced Budget Amendment 
.Uadrr Artkk- " ' ollbe t,..\. 
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By Triaa 'btlon 
There is inacasing evidence that 

the drive for a Constitutional con-
vention is not simply an effort by 
.. conservatives" who want to Hbal· 
ancc the budget" but is instead a 
covert attempt to destroy the U.S. 
.Constitution and replace it with a 
'Soviet or British parliamentary-style 
constitution. 

Thirty-two states have petitioned 
Congress to call for a Constitutional 
convention for the purpose of passing a 
balanced budget/tax limi1a1ion amend-
ment. Michigan's slate Senate has ap-
proved the petition to Congress and 
enough signatures have been collected to 
place the convention issue on the ballot 
in California in November. 

If Michigan, or any of the remaining 
17 states, passes its convention petition , 
thus becoming the 33rd slate to do so, 
and no other slate follows suit, then 
California will be the 34th slate to call 
for a convention . This would fulfill the 
Constitutional requirement Lhat two• 
thirds of the states must file petition, to 
force Congress to call the convention. 

If California voters OK the petition 
for a convention, the state Legislature 
must pass the measure or suffer loss in 
salary . This California referendum ini-
tiative will get a lot of publicity, but will 
misrepresent the actua1 grass-roots. sup-
port for a Constitutional con"ention . 

Some.' of state legislatures that 
have passed pet:il.ions 10 Congres~ for a 
convention did not n-cn hold public 
hearings. Exact figures are difficult to 
obtain. The National Taxpayers Union 
(NTU), the group spearheading the 
move for a Constitutional con\'enrion 
for the last nine years, claims to not have 
accurate records as to when states held 
bearings, debate and recorded votes on 
the issue. 

According to David Keating, who 
handles the balanced budget amendment 
for NTU, "at least 20 public hearings 
were held " and some slates passed the 
petitions by voice vote . 06 A voice vote 

just means it was passed unanimou.ly," 
be said . ' 

Since 32 states have petitioned Con-·. 
srcss, and only 20 public bcarin&s .were 
held, a minimum of 12 states have never 
even had hearings on tbe subject of a: 
Constitutional convention. That numbc, 
may be even higher since some states 
could have held more than one bearing, 
but an exact figure is not available, ac-
cording to the NTU, because "the states 
haven't kepi very good records." 
BRING INTO OPEN 

"Proponents of a Constitutional con-
vention, notably Rep. Larry Craig 
(R-ldaho), leader of Congressional 
Leaders United for a Balanced Budget 
(CLUBB), defend their position by 
pointing out hov.; polls indicate that 
70-80 percent of Americans want Con-
gress to balance the budget. But do these 
same Americans also want a Constitu• 
tional convention? 

Not only have American, not been so 
polled , but it is more than likely that 
70-80 percent of Americans are not even 
aware that within months Congress may 
be calling for the convening of a Con-
stitutional convention . 

If the move for a convention is a 
legi timate effort by uconscrvatives" to 
balance the budget , why doesn't Presi-
dent Ronald Reagan make a nationwide 
address to discuss the fact that a conven -
tion is imminent'? Why isn' t this issue 
being openly discussed and debated in 
the national media if there is no under-

·•handed motive? \\'hy d o so (e\/1 , aside 
from certain \\'ashinglon circles and na• 
tionwide patriotic groups, even kno"' 
about the convention? 

If there is nothint to hide, why did 
NTU Treasurer \\"illiam Bonner admit 
he wished former Cali fornia Go\·ernor 
Jerry Grown had not publicized his sup-
port for a convention? 

"'There is no point in heating things 
up,'' said Bonner. ''\Vhen Brown an• 
nounced, we had to go more public. h 
would have been better to let a sleeping 
dog lie." 

\\'hen NT U founde r Jim Da\'idson 
was asked whether a convention could 
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LARRY CRAIG 
••. Amendment sponsor. 

be restricted to just the balanced budget 
issue, he answered tha t it could but 
didn't want to explain how to end deficit 
spending: "Let's get the Constit utional 
restriction and then let's argue later 
about what programs get cut or what 
taxes get raised. '' 
REASON TO FEAR 

There is good reason for patri oH- to 
fe ar tha t the dr i, e for a Consti tu1 ional 
convention i!> a c tuall y a n atte-m pt to 
destroy our Consti tu tion by 1cg:a1izin£ 
wha t the ~overnment ha s. alread ~ done. 
First of all , the Constituti on alr ead, 
mandates tha t the budget be balanced.· 

Liberty Lobby, th e Washington-based 
populi st institu tion. learned of our 
Found in£ Fathers' fo rmula to balance 
the budget through Ed Ellison and Joh n 
Ku rowski, two patriotic Americans v.h o 
haH been stud\'inc the Constitution . 
They ha \C gi\'en· this form ula 1he name 
''the state rate tax." This documenta-
tion has been presented t0 members of 
Congre::is and their aides to demonstra1e 
th at the Consti tution alread, manda te:. a 
balanced budget. For man;• legislalOrs, 
in.:luding Rep . Larr:, Craif and Rep . 
Ron Paul (R-Texas), thi s was neY. in for -
mation that they did not kno'vl. 
'POLITICAL REALITIES· 

Although no legislator or staff mem -
ber has been able to refute am· of the 
facts presented them that the Con st itu-
tion alreadv mandates a balanced 
budget , not one will publicly support the 
state rate tax or con\'e)' to Americans 
this information. The most common ex-
cuse for remaining silent is that 
" political realities" are such that the 
formula could never be invoked , or tha t 
it would be "impractical' ' to do so. 

The aides to several members of 
CLUBB admitted that it was unlikely 
that thei r bosses could back away from 
supponing :the call for a Constitutional 
con\'ention to balance ' che budget be! 
cause "it wouldn't look good to admit 
he was wrong after all the time and 
energy he invested." 

A number of CLUBB members claim 
they really want Congress to pass its own 
amendment and that the idea of a Con -
stitutional convention frighten s them . 
Rep . Mickey Edwards (R-Okla.) said if 

tii\iie more state passes its petition to Con -
lSl'CS', ·• ,..,..Id personally try to get a 
.ttate to racind its c•ll. Ron Paul said he 
~t 1bc balanced budget amend-
lliacat was "worthless" but that he sup-

the convention call "for public 
~ons reason,." 

There is cause for concern even i : 
Congress passes its own balanced budge· 
amendment before its expected Jul i ac • 
journment date, thus avoiding a Con-
stitutional convention . The amendmen·. 
itself is not onl)' fraudulent , becau" i: 
does not require a balanced budg e: nc'· 
limit taxes, but it also contain~ wordi r. : 
that would be damaging if added to ou: 
Constitution. 
.a,o SCAM 

If Congress passes any amendm er, 
this year, it will be S.J.R . 5/ H .J.R. cJ:. 
identical measures, which both con t1 r.u:· 
to let Congress borrow. One of the b1f · 
ges t scams that the taxpayer ha ... h 
finance is the U.S. ~overnment se:u:-- it'.e 
and bonds issued when the go\'ern mer.: 
borrows money. These T•bil! s an d 
T-notes arc issued by and large to bant\ , 
and other wealth ~ group~ and ind . 
duals a t no risl to the in\'estor. 

These in\'estmcnts are en couraged r-: 
Reagan, who directs Amerkan\ to ··1a• .. 
stock in Ameri.:a . •· 

If he were trul y interested in Ame".· 
cans' taking stod, in Am eri.:a, hr\\ Li l::. 
encourag e ifl\estments in ou r fail 1:i~ :r,· 
dustrie~. \l,hich would bt' area! ri:..• l: • 
stead, the a vera~e Amt"ncan, "' tw ,.,,1 1 

not afford to in\'e si. him self, ha " to r ;. 
di,·idend s on these go,ernmen1 !--t ... ·ur i::~ 
to the ""eahh,. an d th eoreu.:ali \ , h<:. :, 
pay the prin~ipal when these t,~n d• 3 i. 
redeemed. 

The balanced budge1 amend mtr 
would, if add ed to ou r Con ,1;:u· 1,\· 

legalize thi s swindl e of taxpa ~ er~. T: . · 
are man ~ oth er negall\ e aspe..: b <' ' ; 
balanced bud11et amendment {S PO~ 
LIGHT, March 19). 
SOVIET LINKS 

In for mation li nking proponen :, o :'1h, 
balanced budge: amendmen: Co!".'- 1:. 
tiona! con\enuon lo Briti s.i. a:-: ..: 
So\·iet influence!> should br o : con~·c: :. 
to all Americans intcre~ted in p re '- e; \. 
our Constitution. 

The National Taxpa~er s L'nior1, 1' •• 
group mostly responsible for th e s.t ~ , .. 
petitionin,g Congress to call a Con .. 1 , 

tional con\'enuon , should be in , e , • 
gated more close!~ to revea! whet~;" · 
their push for a convention e.oes. be-\ ond 
a desire to "balance the budfet.' · · 

Se\'eral members o f NTU ·s ori,pn;:, 
board of advisers included l'\oam Cho r. • 
sk)' , a leader of the anti-Vietnam ,,·,. 
movement; Ernie Fitzgerald, a 196,• 
"whistle blower" on defcnsr °" as1e : an.3 
Karl Hess Ill. All three had close ti,· 
with the Insti tute for PoliC\· Stud 1l • 
(IPS), a liberal think tank . In ·19Sc . IP> 
hosted a gathering in Minneapoh , o· 
Soviet scientists and KGB agent 1,. A l"-
included on · th rs ad\'ison· 1oa':"c -,,:_ 
Murray Rothbard, a not~d liberta .. 1;,:. · 
economist. (!'\TU is generally thoughi 1 

espouse libertarian v\ewpoims.) 
NTU 's founde r, Jim Da\'idson, \\ h0" 

now canvassing the states 10 gei a ~3 i,: 
state to pet ition Congress, Y-a s educa rt•.: 
a t Oxford Universit\' and no ,, co -ed i;~ 
the newsletter HLondon v.·ashingron Rl·· 
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> Wreck the llJ.·s. . ...... ,r-:.. ..... t- ,i.,f'-

OOristitlition 
" with Sir William Rees-Mo&&. 
UCE AMERICA . 
i<re are those who believe that •ome 
sh have never given up on once 
n reducing America to one of their 
nies, strange as it may seem. Efforts 
old a convention to revise the Con• 
110n began as early as I 788-a year 

its ratification. The first attempt 
made by Albert Gallatin, best 

rn .as treasury secretary to Thomas 
-rson. Gallatin, an immigrant from 
cerland, came from an oligarchic 
y with ties to British intelligence. 
reason Gallatin wanted a conven• 
was the same those promoting a 
!ntion today gi\'C: that Congress 
,pending too much , resulting in a 
nal debt that must be reduced, and 
t netded restraints imposed to cut 
dget. 
, political theories of Gallatin, in-
1g • 'fiscal conservatism'' and the 
)f "cost~ffectheness'' are carried 
,day by such "conservafrt·es" as 
mist Milton Friedman, Federal 
, e Board Chairman Paul Volcker 
:ep . Jack Kemp (R-N.Y.). These 
foals , and in fact , most Republi-
nd "conservatives" today, are not 
,tng American economic principles 
e rather promoting British mone-

dman began pushing the concept 
•fla t rate tax " back in the early 

along with a Con stitutional 
ment to balance the budget. 
' ION 

endorsing the call for a Constitu-
convention to balance the budget 
1ard Viguerie 's Populist Conser• 
Ta '< Coal1t1on, which includes an 
la of about 75 other conservative 

includ ing H o\\ard Philli ps. 
''conservat i\"e " groups also pro• 
he Oat rate tax (un-Constitu tional 
c it alloY. s y,ages and salaries to 
d. and dangerous becau se it could 
ed up to whatever percentage is 
! very easily) and fraudulen t 
ed budget amendment s, and hase 
·cent !~ formed a pubilc alliance 
··con !lervath e·· party in Israel. 
·r groups interested in rewriting 
nst it ut ion incl ude the Committ ee 
Constitutional System , which in-

in its membership Robert 
nara, Lloyd Cutler and Douglas 

JERRY BROWJ'i 
ould former California governor 
pt his mouth shut about his sup· 
Con con? 

Dillon. They'd like t~ change our form 
of aovernment from a republic to a 
parliamentary democracy and .pw>"lO · 
unveil their proa,am by 1987+euctly 
200 years after our first and oolly Con-
stitutional convention . ..,. .. '"-~ · 
IN THE WINOS - > 

Rexford Guy Tugwell's "Newstates 
Constitution of America" is waiting in 
the wings should a convention be held. It 
was promoted by the tax-exempt foun-
dation l<oown as the Center for the 
Study of Democratic Institutions. A 
copy of that model constitution, which 
makes the practice of religion a privilege 
and certain freedoms usurped from the 
people at the whim of government, is 
available, along with a line-by-line 
analysis, from The SPOTLIGHT. 

The Center for the Study of Demo-
cratic Institutions has now changed its 
name to the Aspen Institute for Human-
istic Studies, but it has not changed its 
desire to scrap the U.S. Constitution. In 
a 1978 interviey,, the institutute's Presi-
dent Joseph Slater remarked that, "In 
the next decades, not just years, we will 
be concerned with a fundamental review 
of the U.S. 'Constitution'-with a small 
and big 'c'. " 

Questioned on Tugwell 's book "The 
Emerging Constitution," Slater replied: 
"I ha,·e read some of it. I d o not 
subscribe to some of the proposals. The 
fact that he has written it makes it in-
teresting material to reviey, a many of us 
go forward and look at that particular 
the!lis. '' 
INFLUENCE 

To those who would dismiss the 
Aspen Institute as a non-influential 
think tank , consider some of the 
members on it!- National Commission on 
Coping with Interdependence : Henry 
Kissinger, who recent I) led the Central 
American commission \\ hose report 
Sen . Jesse Helms (R-N.C.) has exposed 
as a blueprint for socialism financed by 
the U .S. ta,payer, and Daniel Boorstin, 
former member of the Communist Party 
who is noY. the librarian of Congress. 
Also friendly with the institu te is the ubi-
quitous Robert McNamara . 

Its chairman is Robert 0 . Anderson , 
who funded a group called Citizens for 
America . That group is led b: Ley, is 
Lehrman , a board member of the Heri-
tage Foundation . Lehrman cowrote the 
book "The Case for Gold" "ith Rep . 
Ron Paul. 
COMMISSIONERS RULE 

Helmet Kimpel, president of the 
World Service Authority, which ad-
vocates global JO\·ernment, said in a 
January imervie"' that he fa"ored a 
Constitutional con\"ention to rey, ri1e our 
Constitution. He said he was undecided 
as to what vehicle encompassing a global 
parhament that could pass laws super-
ceding those of other na tions. with 
"commissioners" administering world 
government . 

Economi sts pushing for a national in • 
dustrial policy have ad,ocated the use of 
such commissioners . Such an industrial 
policy , where the governmen1 v.ould 
join with leaders of industry and labor 
to dictate industrial policy, is gaining 
widespread support in Congress. 

Other groups ad\·ocating ne\lo consti-
tutions include the World Future Socie-

ty, which. is having a "ODC~oridcn"'. < 
conveoti\)11 in W ashiQstoa ill ,IUDC, ..S 
the Auociation 10 Unite' ._ .. Diao-
aacies, which la CDdancd l,y s..:•11rrr-
Goldwater (R-Ariz.). :· _ ··~···"'-"If~~ 
AIIOUIIIENTIIWIIONG -~"It!• ... -.. -~ 

Two points lhat Cca~'oio-
Yattion advocates mention to calm fan 
of a runaway convention are that what-
ever comes out of a convention would 
have to be approved by Cooaras and by 
three-fourths of the state lqislalur~r 
and that neither would likely appro~6 
anything that would usurp our ripts 
auarantecd by the Constitution. ns• 

But their arguments are incorrect: ~ ' 
ticle V of the Constitution, which pro- ' 
vides for the amending of the Constitu- · · 
tion, excludes Congress from ratifying 
anything emerging from a convention. 

But Congress does have the power to 
decide the mode of ratification, which 
means it can decide to have whatever 
document emerges from a convention to 
be ratified by state conventions rather 
than by state legislatures. 

The only precedent we have for what 
might happen at a Constitutional con-
vention is the 1787 convention. The 
delegates were instructed to amend the 
Articles of Confederation in specific 
ways, but once behind closed doors, 
they illegally exceeded the authority 
granted to them and ended up throwing 
away the Articles and writing an entirely 

JACK UMP ___ ..._Briliol, __ _ 

new document, our U .S. Constitution . 
The convention proceedings were held ,n 
secret, and Madison's notes, the most 
accurate record or the coovcntioo , were 
not released until 30 years later. 

And finally, would a Constitutional 
convention be an opportunity for "the 
people" to participate in the political 
process? • 
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Amendme~t to Bal~ri~~l 4t:~Bud~et 
Will Not· Do~What ·,Its .BacKers Claim 

IU::rtl!Vtl:D t1IOW 1'11£ IPOIUGIIT, .Allllt. ll. ._ -· 
By Louise Privalar . -:;/ ..;., 

Most of the groups and individuals 
who favor calling a Constitutional 
convention claim they take this posi-
tion to put pressure on Congress to 
pass a balanced budget amendment. 
Congress, they argue, will only act if 
one more state, the 33rd, passes a 
resolution demanding that a ""Con~ 
con" be called . , · : l 1 • • · 

Disregarding for ,the mommt the 
ominous potential consequences of a 
runaway convenlltm, let's cxaihine the 
so-called balanced budget amendment 
that these groups and legislators-who 
claim to be conservatives-are promot-
ing . 

Will it reallv balance the budget? Will 
it make Congress fiscally accountable? 
Will it end federal deficit spending? Will 
it work am of the wonders its pro-
ponents con-tend it will? 

The answer to all the above questions 
is "no. •· The balanced budget amend • 
ment is a complete fraud . And those 
groups and individuals pushing it-
including the National Taxpayers Union; 
Terry Dolan, chairman of Taxpayers for 
a Balanced Budget; Consen·ative Cau -
cus; Richard Viguerie; the National Tax 
Limitation Commiuee~ and Congrcs-
5ional Leaden, Uni1cd for a Balanced 
Bud1ct. kc by Rep . Larr) Cra.lc (R · 
ldaho)-a,c con,inuina 10 promote this 
fraud de~pi1e the fac-r thar lht-y have all 
be-en provided with lhc documenta tion 
outJininf our Founding Fathers' formula 
to balance the budget. 
CONSTITUTIONAL METHOD 

Thi s Constitutional method to bal-
ance the budget, which has been utilized 
successfully in our nation 's history , can 
be found in the deba1<s of the J 787 Con, 
stitutional convention. the "Federalist " 
papers and the states' ratifications of the 
Constitution and similar resources. 

The balanced budgeters have ignored 
thi s and continue to insist on promoting 
the fraudulent balanced budget amend -
ment and a Con con at which our Con-
stitution could be rewritten and our 
whole structure of government could be 
changed. 

There are two different versions of the 

RJCHARD VIGUERIE TERRY DOLAN 
... Big backer& of balanced budget ameodmeol . 

balanced budget amendment that ha\"e abl\· continue to allow defense contrac-
garnered the most support in Congress . tor; to rip off taxpayers with $7,000 co f-
in the Senate, the recen t l) defeated S.J . fee pot, and S600 toilet seats. Half of 
Res. 225, iniroduced b~ Sen . Strom our defense budget \>.Ould s[ill gc 10 
Thurmond (R-S .C. ). states that ou1lay~ defendint other nation ~. The public 
for an) fi!.ca\ year !>hall not exceed hou sing prog ram!,, which arc a scam fo r 
reccir,t ., unlc,, thrc-c- -fll th, o f b01h th t ba n\...t·r,. re-al e-.,tall" spc-c: ula10 '.-. an d 
House.- and Scna1 t· '-'Ole other"' 1i.c: . l h1 ~ buildtfl !! contrac1ors , would con11nuc. 
mandate would be waived if a war \A.ere lnacrest to the bankers-the th ird -
declared . la rgest ilem in our budge1-would still 

Jn rhe House, the balanced budge1 be paid. Foreign aid to governments op-
amendment w ith the mos! suppon ha s prcs~ing rheir people would go on. And 
not only not made ii 10 a \ Ole, bu1 hear- so forth. 
ings have not yet been held on il. Yef Nei1her the Senate nor the Ho use 
H.J. Res. 27. introduced by Craig, has amendment would preclude Congress 
220 co-sponsors. Craig's amendm eni is from authorizing agreements 1ha1 guar-
more blatantly fraudulen t. It states tha1 antee Joans . Such loan guaramees, along 
Congress will adopt a statemen1 of re- with the monetizing of foreign debt, ha \e 
ceipts and outlays in which both will be resulted in our actual national debt of 
equal , but that thi s can be overturned by SI3 trillion-far higher than the " $2-
approval Qf three-fifths of Congress. trillion" figure commonly recited . 

Jt attemp1s to limi1 t.axes bv a ra1e no1 If Congress di sobeyed the amendmen t 
greater than the ra1 e of incr.ease in na- and refused to balance 1he budge1, Ytha1 
tional income-whatever tha1 is-again recourse would .. Americans ha , e? Not 
unless three-fifths of Congress decides much, if any. The Senate Judiciar} 
differently. It proposes tha t the presi- Committee report on the amendmem 
dent submit a balanced budget to Con- states tha1 taking a senator or con-
gress-something Ronald Reagan has gressman, or the emire Congress, to 
nor done since he has bttn in office court would be exrremel y difficult 
-and waives all restrictions if a Yt ar is because there wou ld rarely, if e,er, be 

. More ~ding will be given o ff 
·budget status to circumvent the amena 
mcnt. As the 0MB puts it, "The cost 
don't disappear; they ' re just not a p,: 
of the official budget but show up i, 
prices instead .' ' 

Other-loopholes that enable Congrc , 
to avoid dealing with fiscal pol i. 
realities, as noted in a Senat e rep0n . i: , 
elude ··transferring iesponsibili t~ t c• 1 •· 
public sector through the gimn11~t-..~ l 1 

tax. credits [and loan guarantee~. \I. t11 ... · 
arc] serious distortions in econon 
policymaking , leading to mi sleadmr n 
formauon about actual budgi. i r~•1 .. 
and less accoun1abili1y 10 th C" pu b11 .... ·· 

Every ke; term in th e balanced buJ=-~ 
amendment is undefined. The c,~1. 
meaning of •·outlays," "nauonal :· 
come•· or " receip ts" is unk nm\ n, \~ 11 ~. 
could resuh in a nigh1mare in Ir~ tn,:- 1 

enforce it. Outla "s are oft~n bcb~d ~· 
decisions to appr.opria1e fund ~ 1h~! ... -
made vears before. 

The· balanced budget amendmc11 
quires Congress LO make an e!-11m ;.1~~- c 
outlays and receipts at the h:.·fmnin~ • 
each fiscal year, bu : in real n~. r r01~, 
tiom. of 1hese amount ~ ~ha rrl:- d 1 

from what happem b~ the end o' 1; 
year. In the \.\ord s of one cr11 1t, "I. 
impossible 10 guarantee congn:-1o1\, .,, 
budget deci s1om at the beg.1nn1n i; 11: • 

fi~cal vcar will lead 10 a balan cl·d t'oud c· 
a1 1ht.·-cnd of t h ~· ~car ." 

Suppo rting th e balanced budt 
amendment, parttt.:ularl) in th !, ele ... ·• i• • 

year, is a political!) exped1en1 100! 1v .. 
to get re-elected. Bu t rhe ques1io:i 10 r-
asked is : " \\'h) ha, e the bala n::rd b •. .: 
et amendment advoca1es refu:-.ed 1 , ~· 
public with the Constitutional me1hl,j :, 
balance the budget, which th t"~ -.i •. 
ever) member of Congre:,~ ar,G :I. 
\\'ashingt on ' P ost ' an d \\' a5.h 1n:· 
•Tim es· and others-hai.e bec-n p 1(,\ Jd · •• 
with? " 

As long as the fraudul en: ha l~r . 
budget amendment is promoted ac..: l'~· 

Consfllution is ignored. dc- f1i:il spenJ·: 
will continue and Congress v. ill r('n , ... · 
fiscall) irrespon sible. With th e ba!<ln.: 
budge! amendment and the Co n,;i: .. 
tional con\'cntion hoopla. 1he Am ... ·ri:.,· 
publi c is nol being gi ,-en 1he Con ~il!. 
1ional solution . • 

declared . " legal standing" in an y group or in-
One section excludes borrowing from dividual to challenge such viola1ions. ( 

the definition of •·receipts." Hoy, can Even if such standing were gramed , 
you balance the budge! if the go\"ern- the courts migh1 treal the issue as a 
ment is still allowed to borrow? Deficit pol itical question and refer i1 to other . .J-
spending is caused by borrowing by the branches of governmen1. Th e court s ·· "' 

\ 
fedTehreal gspoovnemmsor eonft. the same balanced woulbdl hkelyh not find such issue, jus• , '·,;. ii;J .,__ "') • . 

t1c1a e m l e sen se of presenting the 1 ' T · - ! t 
budget amendment now being promoted type of case to which judicial poy,.ers a1- · t , · ' I 

•·~ ,Crait. was ~-ll.~. Barl>cr-Con •. '- ,Jaoh·undrr 1hc·Constitution's..t.rticldll .. ,. ,-·, · (:_~-
able (R•N.Y .)-now the nominee for HIGHER TAXES '' · ' . .~ ·. ·:,_, ·. 
president of the World Bank . The staff of the Office of Manage, IIIJr.•: __ 
NO REAL CHANGE men t and Budget (0MB), which oper• 

8'11lOM fflURMOND 
... Seule biD delealed. 

Neither the Senate nor the House ates under President Reagan, released a A. 
> amendment would do anythin~ to make study criticizing the balanced budgr1 ~ 7• 

Congress fiscally accountable . It would amendmen t. The 0MB report said that ,..... 
not end the tremendous wasteful spend- the amendment is worded so as to pro- I 
ing-whether military or domest ic. ,1 ide a bias m favor of higher taxes, i 

t 

Congress is so completely controlled rather than -cutting spending, to balance 
by special interests that it would prob, the budget. BARBER CONABLE 

... On way lo World Bank . 

. ,,•, ·~ 

' . ,. 
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JOSEPH GONZALEZ 

Biceiii~frhial Plot 
A sche111e exists to "turn the founders upside dovvn" 

A merica is gearing up for the Bi- He is also a member of the board of 
centennial of the U.S. Constitu- directors of th{c~mmittee on the Con-
t ion. From May 25th until Sep- stitutional SysteTIJ another prestigiou~ 

tember 17th of 1987, appropriate private group. TheCCSwasestablished 
celebrations will mark the 200th anni- for what it calls "a candid assessment .. 
versary of the Constitutional Convention ofourconstitutional system. Unlike Pruj -
that met in Philadelphia. Then will come ect '87, however, this group is anxious to 
the bicentennial dates for each of the rat- offer specific changes . 
ifying state conventions. Other impor- Changes to the Constitution can be 
tant events to be commemorated include made two ways: by the amendment pro-
the election of George Washington as our cess used for the last 200 years, or by a 
first President, the convening of the first new constitutional comention . Undc·1 
Congress, and the ratification of the Bill Will we pass an undiluted U.S. the present drive for a balanced-budgl:l 
of Rights to the U.S. Constitution. The Constitution to our children? amendment , an unprecedented sPcond 
last of these commemorations will occur constitutional convention could be call ed 
on Dt•cember 15. 1991. making our con- their "tribute" to th t> Founders. will be during the bicentennial en Should th 1-
stitutional bicentennial a four-year trib- portrayed as reforms needed to modern- occur. the second com·ention could fart :-:-
ute . ize the Constitution and make govern- ceed what balanced-budgl't propont n,-

The tribute that is paid. however. may ment more efficient. intend. It could be us(•d. in fact, to \',Ti t(• 

consist of something other than to the ,. Fanta~tic? Not at all In his 1984 book a n~"._C,2'2~ion . which is exactly\\ hnt 

( 
principles embodied in the Constitution: ( Tht> Poll'cr To Lead, Professor James J happened at the original com·ent; ;n c/ 
it may instead be a repudiation. ·; MacGregor Burns made this appraisal of 1787. Only this time, instead of a dre,:!:; 

The founding principles of the Repub- our constitutional system: "Let us face coming true . the result could be a ni f;lil-
lic may be cast aside because there an· realit\·. The framers I of the Constitution!\ mare. 
powerful forces at work bent on changing ( ha\'e ~imply been too shrewd for us. They ) Without understanding our uni qul' 
our form of gowrnment. For many dee- have outwitted us. They designed sepa- · legacy of freedom. one cannot full>· gra, I, 
ades these same forces ha\'e helpt:•d to rated institutions that cannot be unified the extent to which seemingly rea sonal,]._ 
move America away from constitutional by mechanical linkage:3. frail bridges. "reforms" - proposed by tht· Comm ittf• 
limitations toward an all-powerful state. tinkering. If we are to 'turn the founders on the Constitutional S\·stem and bY ot i,-
They now hope to formalize radical upside do\rn· - to put together what ers - could repudiate the founding. prm-
changes that have already been taking they put asunder - we must directly ciples of our Republic. Nor can on,· 1,n,1 
place by rewriting the Constitution. confront the constitutional structure erly realize how a second constitut iun:d 

These entrenched powers are planning they erected." convention - portrayed as an in noel !:t 
to use the occasion of the Constitution ·s Burns is co-chairman of Project '87 re-enactment of the first - could be u,ed 
bicentennial for a "reappraisal" of our (read: 1987 J. According to its literature. for that end . 
nation's governmental system. And the this prestigious pri\'ate group is "dedi-
radical changes that they recommend. as cated to comml'morating the Bicenten-

Gary· Benoit earned a Bachelor of Sci-
ence magna cum laude from the Unit-er-
sity of Lou·ell fMassachust>ttsi. Slllce 
1977, he has sen•ed 011 the staff of The 
Joh11 Birch Society. At prese11t , he is the 
director both of the Society's TRIM Com-
mittees (Tax Reform Immedia tely! and of 
Birch Research Inc . 

THE NEW AMERICAN / FEBRGARY 10 J!Jl<G 

nial of the United States Constitution by 
promoting public understanding and ap-
praisal of this unique document." (Em-
phasis added. I Project '87 claims not to 
take positions on changing the Consti-
tution . But that disclaimer hardly allays 
concern over what direction the group's 
"appraisal" of the Constitution is likely 
to take with Burns as co-chairman . 

The Founding Era 
Adopted on July 4. 1776, the Declaratwn 

of Independence proclaimed: "\\'e hold 
these truths to be self-evident, that all 
men are created equal , that they an, U'· 

dowed by their Creator with cert ain un-
alienable Rights , that among the;:(• ar,· 
Life, Liberty, and the pur:>uit of Hapr,i -
ness. That to secure these right s. Go\ -
ernments are instituted among i1en. dt-
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riving their ju,-t powers from the consent 
of the go\'erned. That whenever any 
Form of Government becomes destruc-
tive of these ends, it is the Right of the 
People to alter or to abolish it, and to 
institute a new Government, laying its 
foundation on such principles .... " 

That foundation for that new govern-
ment based "on such Principles" was 
originally the Articles of Confederation. 
They were approved by the Congress 
after more than a year of debate. After 
ratification by every one of the newly in-
dependent thirteen United States, they 
became the supreme law of the land on 
March 1, 1,781. 

The Articles of Confederation created 
a "perpetual Union between the states" 
known as "The United States of Amer-
ica." Under this confederacy, each state 
retained "its sovereignty. freedom, and invite to the annual meetings delegates · still limited to proposing amendment ,; t 
independence. and every Power, Juris- from two other neighboring states, Del- the Articles of Confederation. 
diction and right, which is not by this aware and Pennsylvania. Virginia, how- The Philadelphia Convention open <:: 
confederation expressly delegated to the ever, recommended a meeting of all the on May 25, 1787, when a quorum of dl: 
United States .... " Also, "the Articles of states "to take into consideration the egates representing a majorit!· of th 
this confederation shall be inviolably ob- trade of the United States . . .. " This led states had arrived. Eventually, a total r, 
servedbyeverystate,andtheunionshall to the Annapolis Com-ention, which in 55 delegates representing all of th · 
be perpetual: nor shall any alteration at turn set the stage for the Philadelphia states except Rhode Island participated 
an!· time hereafter be made in any of Com-ention that drafted the Constitu- The convention met behind cl o~, 
them; unless such alteration be agreed tion . doors for some four months. Secrec_,· ,, ~, 
to in a congress of the united states, and Held in September of 1786. the An- employed to allow for candid di scus~iu· 
be afterwards confirmed by the legisla- napolis Convention was attended by de!- and to make it easier for delegates t< 
tures of ever~· state." egates representing only fi\'e of the change their positions based upon th, 

Although the basic principles em bod- states. Because of the poor representa- rightness and wrongness of each positir,i 
ied in the Declaration of Independence tion, the delegates decided not to proceed debated . not on political considerat ion.' 
ha,·e endured, that original constitution, on what they called '·the business of their On June 19th, after debating rnri nt: 
the Articles of Confederation did not. It mission." Instead, they suggested that proposals. the delegates decided not tr 
was short-li,·ed because it failed to create "the power of regulating trade is of such amend the Articles of Confederation . hu· 
sufficient order for the new union of comprehensive extent, and will enter so to de,·ise a new national go,·ernm, .,, 
states. The Articles were not inviolably far into the general System oft he federal From that point on. the assembly wm ke· 
observed by the states. nor was the union g0\'ernment. that to giw it efficacy. and in viol ation of its own mandate. On Sl·: · 
under their confederation perpetual. to ob\'iate questions and doubts concern- tember 17th. 39 of the 42 delegate~ ,,. t. 

When the states under this confeder- ing it,- pn•cise nat un:> and limit,:. may were pre,:ent. representing all \'.'. , '· , 
at ion began deliberations to remedv the require a correspondent adjustment of state delegations. signed the new Cr·· 
defects in the Articles. they were at first other parts of the Federal System." They stitutjon. After the Continental Cu: · 
primarily concerned with problems in therefore recommended a meeting of the gress recei\'ed the proposed Com ti tu-
the areas of trade and commerce. One stci.tes that could consider not only trade , tion , some representatives sou ght tr 
such problem was a dispute between but ··such further provisions as shall ap- censure the constitutional com-ention fo, 
Maryland and Virginia over navigation pear to them necessary to render the con- failing to abide by its mandate that ,ii 
rights on the Potomac River. In March stitution ade~uate to the exigencie,: of lowed merely for revisions of the Art icle· 
1785, George Washington, hoping that the Un ion .... " of Confederation. Those favoring cc · 
this dispute could be resolved through After evaluating the Annapolis Con- sure. however, were not in the majorit, 
discussion, hosted·a•meeting-of delegate"'·, ,,,vent.ion. -th{'>-Co.ntill€-ntal Congr,ess. pm- . On. Septemhe,r 28.th. Co~crr~ss. re_sohrd 
from Maryland and Virginia at his home. posed that "a Convention of delegat es to submit tht? Constitution to E=pec1J 
Gathering at this Mount Vernon Confer- who shall have been appointed by the state conventions for ratificati on. All 
ence. the delegates recommended that se\'eral states be held at Philadelphia for thirteen of the original states ratified it. 
the two states meet annually "for keep- the sole and express purpose of revising the last to do so being Rhode Islan d o; , 
ing up harmony in the commercial re- the Articles of Confederation .. .. " Al- Ma~· 29, 1790. But the Continental Con-
lations" between them. Maryland's de!- though the scope of this meeting was to gress. on September 13, 1788. had al -
egates in approving this also decided to be broader than that of Ann apoli s. it was ready proclaimed the Constitution rat i-
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fled by the required nine states and 
ordered the new government to convene 
on March 4, 1789. 

The Constitution, therefore, was the 
product of a runaway convention over-
stepping its authority. Nevertheless. the 
product was a blessing if not a miracle. 

George Washington said of the event 
that it was "in the hand of God." At a 
critical point during the convention de-
bate, when some nearly despaired of ever 
reaching any agreement, Benjamin 
Franklin, the oldest of the delegates, ob-
served , "In the beginning of the Contest 
with Great Britain when we were sen-
sible of the da·nger we had daily prayer 
in this room for the divine protection. -
Our prayers, Sir, were heard, and they 
were graciously answered .. .. And have 
we now forgotten that powerful friend? 
Or do we imagine that we no longer need 
his assistance? I have lived, Sir, a long 
time, and the longer I live, the more con-
vincing proofs I see of this truth - that 
God Guuerns in the affairs of men. And 
if a sparrow cannot fall to the ground 
without His notice, is it probable that 211 

empire can rise without His aid'.1" (Em-
phasis in the original. 1 

That America did rise from a backward 
wilderness nation to become the envy of 
the collectivist old world is now fact . That 
God shed his Grace on this de\'elopment 
is based on faith , but it is a faith held in 
common by all Americanists. 

The Founding Principles 
The Constitution provided for a 

stronger federal government than had 
existed under the Articles of Confeder-
ation . But under the Constitution. as un-
der the Articles, the fed eral government 
was still strictly limited to specified pow-
ers that were delegated to it . To assure 
that the federal government would not 
overstep carefully crafted boundaries. 
the Founders methodically interwo\'e 
into the Constitution a system of checks 
and balances that included : 

• Dividing governmental powers be-
tween the national government and the 
autonomous state governments. This ar-
rangement was unique in history and be-
came known as Federalism. 

• Granting only certain powers to the 
national gO\·ernment; while protecting 
the individual rights from infringement 
by any force , whether it be by govern-
ment - foreign or domestic - or by the 
people themselves using the dictates of 
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a collective majority. This system of gov-
ernment is known as a Constitutional 
Republic. It is not a democracy, a system 
in which majority rule is unrestrained. 

• And. separating the limited powers 
of the national government into three 
branches: Executive, Legislative, and 
Judicial. The Legislature was further di-
vided into two chambers, the Senate and 
the House of Representatives. 

By defining the specific powers of the 
new federal government, the Founders 
limited that body to its correct role of 
protecting God-given rights. By dividing 
those limited powers among the 
branches of government, the Founders 
denied to the national government a 
means to overstep its proper bounds and 
become tyrannical. 

The Constitution that the Founders so 
carefully crafted gave us something ex-
traordinary: a government of law and not 
of men. Under such law, the God-given 
rights of the individual are sovereign and 
immutable. They may not be violated by 
government, no matter how compelling 
the reasons to do so may seem. Neither 
may the majority do so. acting through 
their go\'ernment for some supposed 
"greater good ." The maj ority can con-
ceivably demand a new law that in-
fringes upon a God-gi\'en right. but Con-
gress may not properly enact such an un-
constitutional law. If Congress did ov-
erstep its authority. the Judicial Branch 
was empowered to null ify the act. to de-
clare an improper law "unconstitu-
tional. '' These limitations on the will of 
the people hold true no matter how large 
a majority moy want otherwi~e. 

For instance. the First Amendment of 
the Bill of Rights states: "Congress shall 
make no law respectm;:; an establish-
ment of religion , or prohibiting the free 
exercise thereof; or abridging the free-
dom of speech or of the press; or the right 
of the people peaceably to assemble. and 
to. petition the Government for a redress 
of grie\'ances." And the Tenth Amend-
ment states: "The powers not delegated 
to the United States by the Constitution , 
nor prohibited by it to the States. are 
reserved to the States respectively, or to 
the people .•· Under the Constitution, 
even a minority of one is protected from 
the desires of the majority acting 
through go\'ernment. 

Such principles were not embodied in 
the Declaration of Independence and 
Constitution by accident. But the out-

come could have been very different. The 
War for Independence could ha\'e ended 
in repudiation of rights, as was the case 
with the French Revolution. America's 
experience was different. however. be-
cause it was blessed with the rarest of 
leaders who had faith, wisdom and char-
acter: the faith to recognize that right~ 
come from God; the wisdom to under-
stand that the proper role of government 
is simply to protect God-given rights; and 
the character to fashion a government 
based upon such principles. 

But, the American people have grad-
ually lost sight of our nation's founding 
principles. Their collective blindness has 
ehabled a relative handful of individuals 
who seek an all-powerful st::ite to in-
crease the size of government in the 
name of the majority. Thus. the federal 
government has increasingly assumed 
vast powers beyond those specifically 
delegated to it by the Constitution. to thl' 
extent that it now claims the right and 
the responsibility to regulate the nation ·s 
economy and pro,·ide for the materi al 
welfare of the people. Gradually. Amer-
ica is becoming like the despotic Old 
World from which the Founders declarec 
their independence. Just as the found ing 
of the Republic did not happen by acci-
dent, neither has our continuing slide 
backward toward despotism. 

Declaration Challenged 
On July 4, 1976. our nation celebrated 

its first major bicentennial event. th t 
200th anniversary of the signing of the 
Declaration of Independence. Less th :,n 
a year before, on United l\'ation, DJ.' . 
October 24, 1975, the World Af! a ir, 
Council of Philadelphia S(-t its sub,·ers1,•l, 
sights on the approaching commemora -
tion by unveiling a mockery of this great 
American document : '·A Declaration of 
INTERdependence." 

Virtually calling for the repudiation of 
the Declaration of Independence . the 
"INTERdependence'' document pro-
claims, "Two centuries ago our forefa-
thers brought forth a new nation; n011 
we must join with others to bring forth 
a new world order." It claims that man-
kind must "free itself from the lim ita-
tions of national prejudice," and th:!! 
Americans ha1·e "a moral obligation tc1 

strive for a more prudent and more eq -
uitable sharing of the resources of the 
earth ... . " Simply stated. America's re-
sources should no longer be ours but the 
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property of all the peoples of the world. ~llllllti.-- Thus, the total membership of the 
"A Declaration of INTERdependence" House would be expanded from 43f) to 

call~ for "the immediate reduction and -.-..,;r..r- 522 members, and the Senate from 100 
eventual elimination" of nuclear, chem- ·•Ill to 150 members. One-sixth of all repre-
ical. and biological weapons "under in- sentatives and one-third of all senators 
ternational supervision'' and the place- ..... would not be chosen by the voters. ln-
ment of the "processes of production and • ~ flll stead, these additional legislators would 
monetary systems" under "regulation by be designated by the party whose can-
international authorities." So that these didate is elected President. This would 
goals may be reached, it supports the virtually destroy the vital separation of 
strengthening of "the United Nations ___ powers between the executive and leg-
and its specialized agencies, and other islative branches. At the same t ime. it 
institutions of world order . ... " would create a virtual oligarchy, since 

Any thinking American familiar with the political party whose candidate is 
this document would condemn it - or so elected president would be able to dom-
one would thirik. On January 30, 1976 inate both the executive and legislative 
(the bicentennial year of our nation's in- branches. 
dependence). a delegation of U.S. Con- One-House Override: "Two-thirds of ei-
gressmen, representing 124 senators and Professor James MacGregor Burns ther house of Congress shall have power 
representatives who had already for- to present any bill. previously passed by 
mally endorsed the document, journeyed guage." Taken as a whole, the conclu- that house and thereafter not passed by 
to Philadelphia. birthplace of our na- sions of the book's forty working papers. the other house within 120 days. to thr 
tion's independence , to publicize the together with the draft language of sev- president . . .. If the president sign° the 
"Declaration of INTERdependence." Re- enteen proposed reforms , stand in direct bill , it shall be a law." 
gardless of whether or not they under- opposition to the basic principles of the Thus, the ability for one house of Con-
stood the true significance of their action, Declaration of Independence and Con- gress to restrain the other, as can be done 
these Congressmen. in effect, endorsed stitution. . today. would be weakened . 
the abolition of the very Con::titution to/ In Reforming American Government\ Ratification by Reduced Majority : "The 
which they had sworn allegiance. <Alert/ !he Committee on th e Con stitutiona'. \ president shall have po\\'er to make trea-
citizens were able to make this document . System has boldly put on paper specific .,,1 ties, provided three-fifths [sixty percent J 
very controversial by publicizing its constitutional language for the whole- of the Senate .. . [or] a majority of each 
thrust. Several Congressional endorsers sale altering of our form of government. house of Congress concurs." 
eventually withdrew their support. ) If Americans ignore these bicentennial Currently, two-thirds (sixty-seven per-

The principles o( the Declaration of In- proposals, examples of which are given centl of the Senate must appro\·e before 
dependence and those of the "Declaration below, they do so at their own peril. a treaty is ratified . <The lower is com-
of INTERdependence" are totally incom- Th e Team Ticket: "In any election for pletel:v excluded from the process.) Th is 
patible. Yet, the bicentennial celebration electors of president and \'ice-president prudent constitutional provision - in-
of our independence was used by inter- and for senators and representati\'es. tended to insulate our nation ·s foreign 
dependence advocates to make their sub- candidates . . . shall be required to run affairs as much as possible from politi co.I 
versive philosophy seem more palatable. on a political party slate . ... Each \'Ot er pressures - had much to do with head-
And, in the same manner, those who seek may cast a ball ot fo r one such slo.te a~ ing off U.S. involvement in the Leagu e 
to formally restructure our form of gov- an entirety. and votes cast separately for of Nations, and ratification of the SAL 1 
ernment view the Constitution's bicen- individual candidat es sh a ll not be II and Genocide Treaties. By weakeni nf 
tennial era as a grand opportunity to counted.'' the check on the president's negot iation, 
carry out their plans. Under this proposal. the independent with foreign po~ffs. the possibility ofthE-

candidate would be eliminated. and the U.S. entering into unwise treaties th,l', 
Constitution Challenged party candidate who does not fit the mold compromise our sovereignty would be in· 

The 1985 book Reforming American of his party's chieftains would find it ex- creased . 
Government: The Bicentennial Papers of ceedingly more difficult to get elected . Disso lution of th e Got"ernm en/ in 
the Committee on the Constitutional Srs- This procedure ·,,ould be modeled after Pou·er: The "president shall have po\,·e: 
tern is described by its editor, Donald. L. the European parliament ary syst em to issue a proclamation of no confiden, C' 
Robinson, as a ''.hook of'working papers' " where voters cast ballot~ for the party. in the Congress, and the Congress shall · 
for the CCS. ln ' fha"t regard '.· Jam·es_ '•··not~the'tmmilda~ of.thei.r,choice .. have power to adopt a resolution of nn 

( MacGregorBurns'scallto "turnthefoun-~ Bonu s Seat s: ' 'The political party con'fidehce in Hie·presitlent. · .. :·• A prod a. 
ders upside down" is offered in its pages. whose candidate is el ected pres ident mation or resolution of no confidenct 
According to Robinson. the draft Ian- shall designate, as members of the House shall fix a date for the calling of special 
guage of proposed "reforms" in the book of Representatives, one person fo r e\'ery elections for the appointment of elect or~ 
"will enable citizens to begin the difficult five congressional di strict s ... I and l for president and vice-president. and fo r 
but essential task of refining ideas into shall designate as senators of the United the offices of senator and member of the 
specific statutory or constitutional Ian- State!', one person for each state." House of Representatives.'' 
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Should a president exercise his chrek 
on Congress or vice versa, the pro,·isions 
of this proposal would enable either 
branch to dissolve the government in 
power and replace it with a new one 
formed through the calling of special 
elections. This would put in place an in-
herent threat against either branch 
freely exercising its will. Thus, the vital 
separation of powers would be eroded 
further, and the nation would move away 
frorri a government of law under the Con-
stitution toward one in crisis similar to 
European parliamentary democracies. 

What the "Reforms" Mean 
The '·reforms" of the Committee on the 

Constitutional System would destroy the 
separation of powers built so skillfully 
into the Constitution , and they would 
move us toward the parliamentary sys-
tem. Under that system. the party in 
power would be inordinately dominant 
because of its greatly increased control 
over both the executive and legislative 
branches. Rule by a political party that 
supposedly represents a majority of th l' 
electorate would prernil. But even in th is 
regard . that all-important check of the 
people on their go\·erning official s - the 
popular Yote - would be dramaticall_r 
weakened. All of which would \·iolatl' our 
existing American system, under whi ch 
fixed limitations designed to cons\ rain 
dangerou s gor ernml'ntal power and pro-
tect the God-gi\·en right ,- of tht· ind1\·id-
ual now pre\·ail. 

To borr ow a phra se fr om J a me~ 
l\lacGrl'gor Burns. ad optin g till' CC S 
proposal;: would tu rn th e fou nder~ :,, ,., id(' 
do1l'n . It would fo rm alize radical changt• .0 

th at han · bl'en taking place . and it woul d 
change our Constitutional Republic I rulL· 
by law I into a represent at i\'e democrac_,· 
( rule by majority l. 

If the Committee on the Constitutional 
System were only a few aging radiculs 
from the campus disorders of the 1960:;. 
its plans would not merit serious re\'iew. 
But it should be taken seriously becau;;e 
it has sufficient prestigious clout to in-
fluence what we do as a nation. Refo rm · 
ing American Got"CTnment describes it as 
"a group of two hundred prominent ci t-
izens 1among them present and form er 
members of the Senate and House. Cab-
inet and White House staff. go\'ernors. 
party official s, members of academia. 
journalists. lawyers, and labor. business. 
and fin:rnci al )('adl' rs l." 
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Zbigniew Brzezinski 

The CCS is co-chaired by former pres-
idential counsel Lloyd N. Cutler, former 
Treasury Secretary C. Douglas Dillon. 
and Senator Nancy Landon Kassebaum 
1R-KS 1. Cutler and Dillon happen to be 
members of the powerful Council on For-
eign Relations. an elite pri\'at e organi-
zation whose admitted purpose is to 
"shape American foreign policy" and 
"brL"ak new ground in .. . international 
issues." It has been dubbed by critics "the 
im·isible go\·r rnment " of the United 
Statei'. Fifteen of the 41 members of the 
CCS board of directors are also members 
of the Council on Foreign Relations. Fi-
nancial ,;uppurt fur the CCS has come 
from the Ford Foundation . the Brookings 
Institution. and the Rockefeller Foun-
dation Tlic> Ford and Huckc>felkr Fuun-
dation;; ha\·e also made grant;; for pro-
grams of Project 'S'i . 

The CCS h.1s not yrt endor~rd any of 
the con,titutio11al amendments that it is 
now considering. Ne\·erthelei's . the di-
rection of its thinking is alien to the prin-
ciples embodied in our Declaration of In-
dependence and Constitution . 

A New Constitution? 
Article\' of the U.S. Constitution 

states. "The Congress, whenever two-
thirds of both Houses of Congress shall 
deem it necessary, shall propose amend-
ments to this Constitution. or. on the ap-
plication of the legislatures of two-thirds 
of the se\·eral States, shall call a com-en-
tion for proposing amendments . which . 
in either case. shall be \'alid to all intents 
and purposes. as part of thi;; Constitu-
tion . when ratified by the legislature~ of 

three-fourths of the se\'eral Statt•s. or b_,. 
conventions in three-fourths thereof. ac 
the one or the other mode of ratification 
may be proposed by Congress.'' All told . 
26 amendments have been added tfi thL· 
Constitution. Everyone one of these. in-
cluding the Bill of Rights. was propo;;;ecl 
by Congress and ratified by the statt·c 
With the exception of the original Con-
stitutional Convention held in 17t-i'i' . th l' 
convention method for amending th t· 
Constitution has never been used. 

In his 1970 book Between Tu u Ares 
Council on Foreign Relations nwmhu 
Zbigniew Brzezinski (National · Secu ri t) 
Advisor in the Carter Administration , 
discussed the potential for using a cun· 
vention to bring about change. "The ap· 
proaching two-hundredth anniversar_,. ol 
the Declaration of lndependencl' ... hr 
stated, "could justify the call for a na-
tional constitutional convention to retx-
amine the nation's formal instituti on:,1 

framework. Either 1976 or 1989 - tl1l' 
two-hundredth anniversary of th t Con· 
stitution - could serw a;: a suitable t:,· · 
get date .. . .'' Ironically .just as the "Dt·t· 
laration of I?\TERdependen cL, .. w., -
proposed for adoption in 19,6 1Brzvrn 
ski's first target date 1. \\'e now face tL,· 
possibility of a new constitution ba~l'd ,11, 

the CCS "reform~" in 1989 1his other tu r· 
get date ,. 

In 19,S. t\';o year,, foll o\\'ing the Ir,· 
dependence bicentennial. Supr, -~ 
Court Chief Justice Warren Burgt'l c u . 

gested a less formal reexamin ati on : "lt 
may seem premature to bt· thin k1r,0 

about the next significant bicent u,:, .: : 
celebration in our national li fl'. hu, c,t,· 
expC'rience with the bicenttc•nni al uf l (1~ 1 

demonstrates the dc,s irabilit:, uf lun 1-, .: ,1 

\'ance planning. It is not tuo suon tc, t L,I'! 

our minds to the t\\'o-hundredt h ann.· 
versary of the document signed in Pn!l -
adelphia almost exactly 191 year::c a;:c l 
submit that an appropriate \\'a_\' to du th 1-

will be to reexamine each of the th rd 
major articles of our organic law !fur ti·,, 
three federal branches! and comparC' t l. ,· 
functions as they haw been perfo rm, d 
in recent times with the function'" cv. 1· 
templated in 1787 by the men at Phi] ,,. 
delphia.'· 

Perhaps these sentiments expl ain,, h, 
Burger accepted the post of honur:1!·\ 
chairman of Projl'ct ''/37 . Thl'y may al- c. 
explain wh~· Burger maneU\·ered to gl' t 
the chairmanship of th l' go\·ernnH:ntal 
Commission on the Bicentennial of tht· 
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United States Constitution. On April 18, 
1985, more _than two months before the 
President appointed Chief Justice 
Burger to this position, a government of-
ficial who predicted this development 
told the press that Burger "wanted this 
commission to amount to something and 
become institutionally important, partic-
ularly at a time when it seems possible 
that we might have a new constitutional 
convention." 

A New Constitutional Convention? 
Since 1975, 32 states have petitioned 

Congress to c~ll a constitutional conven-
tion for the purpose of drafting a bal-
anced-budget amendment. If two more 
states submit petitions, the second con-
stitutional convention in our nation's his-
tory must be held. At best, such a con-
vention would result in a constitutional 
crisis followed by a proposed balanced-
budget amendment. At worst, the result 
would be constitutional crisis followed by 
a proposed new constitution, one possibly 
based on the CCS "reforms." 

I\fost advocating a constitutional con-
vention to mandate a balanced federal 
budget do not advocate a new constitu-
tion. Their good intentions, however. do 
not lessen the dangers of either an out-
of-control com·ention or one that is man-
aged to suit the purposes pursued by the 
CCS. Americans should oppose the con-
vention call for two main reasons. 

1. Runau•ay Conve11tio11: There is no 
constitutional provision that limits the 
scope of a convention. Should one be 
called , there is no telling what it could 
produce. It could write a new constitu-
tion instead of, or in addition to , writing 
a balanced-budget amendment. Indeed, 
fear of what a second convention might 
do is a major reaon why the convention 
route has never again been followed. 

The first Constitutional Convention 
established the precedent for a runaway 
convention. There is sharp disagreement 
among constitutional and legal scholars 
about whether Congress has the consti-
tutional authority to limit the scope of a 
convention. In.11, t,heA~~n1 .. 1that ... one. is 
called, this divergence of opinion would 
result in a divisive confrontation. 

Another debated question is whether 
states ha,·e the constitutional authority 
to limit the scope of a constitutional co~-
vention in their petitions calling for a 
convention . For instance. Duke Law 
School professor Walter Dellinger stated 
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Lloyd N. Cutler (Left) and C. Douglas Dillon are among the CFR members 

in his article "The Recurring Question of 
the 'Limited' Constitutional Conven-
tion." published by the Yale Laic Journal 
in 1979: "In order to satisfy the various 
objections of the [Constitution's] fra -
mers, a Convention must be free to define 
for itself the subject matter it will ad-
dress; the state legi slators may call for 
such a Convention , but they should not 
be permitted to control it. '' 

Last No,·ember. when the Michigan 
legislature rejected a constitutional con-
vention resolution that also contained a 
proposal to limit its scope, the argument 
that the safeguards could not be a guar-
antee against a runaway com·ention pre-
vailed over the claim that the convention 
could be limited. State Senator Jack 
Faxon summed it up well when he stated. 
"Constitutional conventions are , by their 
very self-definition , sovereign bodies." 
We know what such a body could do if it 
is com·ened, but nobody knows for sure 
what it 1could do. 

If a constitution al convention does sub-
mit "reforms" that would alter our form 
of goYernment , the state legislatures 
may not have the opportunity to reject 
them. Congress may decide instead to 
submit the "reforms" to special state con-
ventions for ratification , as was the case 
with the ratification of our present Con-
stitution. Also·:' the "delegate 'Sel~ction 
process for either the national constitu-
tional com·ention or the state conven-
tions has not been determined 

2. Balanced -budget Amendment : 
Even if a constitutional convention con-
cerned itself with nothing more than 
drafting a balanced-budget amendment , 

the adoption of this amendment would 
not end inflation or cut taxes . the two 
major reasons why strong support for 
such an amendment has dewloped. 

Inflation is an increase in the supply 
of money and credit. Balancing a year]\· 
federal budget would mean that the fe d-
eral go\·ernment would not produce any 
deficit for that particular year. But it st ill 
would have to contend with what e\·er 
yearly deficits arise from "off-budget·· 
programs. If the federal government fi. 
nances debt by increasing the supply of 
money and credi t, this of course wou ld 
be inflation. 

Nor would a balanced-budget amend-
ment necessarily cut taxes, since the 
budget could be balanced by raising taxe~ 
just as well as by cutting spending. In all 
probability. a balanced-budget amend-
ment would cause the politicians to do 
both. It could also cause them to move 
more spending items "off-budget'' in or-
der to circum\'en t the intent of th e 
amendment. The only solution to infl a-
tion is to end the practice of increasing 
the supply of money and credit. Likewise. 
the only solution to the high cost of go\·-
ernment is to cut its size. Admittedly. a 
balanced-budget amendment may in-
crease the pressure to implement these 
solutions, but it does not supply the so-
1lution itself 

A law was already passed, in 1979. re-
quiring a balanced federal budget a~ of 
fisca l vear 1981 1P.L 95-4351. But it has 
been ~ompletely ignored . More recently. 
as part of the bill to push the national 
debt limit over the $2 trillion plateau. 
Co ngress passed . and the President 
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signed, legislation to require a balanced 
ederal budget by fiscal 1991. Whether or 
not this law will also be ignored remains 
lo be seen. Even if our lawmakers do 
adopt a balanced budget required by law. 
lhis does not necessarily guarantee that 
lhe budget would be balanced. A budget 
is only a forecast! Because future spend-
ing and revenue cannot be predicted ex-
actly and future events cannot be fore -
seen, a budget that is balanced on paper 
at the beginning of the fiscal year may 
not be balanced at the end of that year. 

The growing deficit crisis exists be-
cause the Consti_tution is treated as if it 
does not exist. The solution to the crisis 
is to adhere to the Constitution . Until 
that is done, a constitutional amendment 
to balance the budget could be ignored 
just as easily as have been other consti-
tutional provisions. If the federal gov-
ernment had been operating within the 
limits of the Constitution, there would 
be no need even to contemplate a bal -
anced-bu dget amendment as th ere 
would be no serious deficit crisis to re-
solve. 

After the Bill of Rights. the large ma-
jority of amendments added to the Con-
stitution have not strengthened our Re-
public - they have weakened it. Except 
for stripping it of those damaging amend-
ments, our Constitution needs no repair. 
What is in need of repair is the lack of 
understanding of the principles embod-
ied in the Constitution and of the will to 
put those principles into practice. 

A constitutional amendment to bal-
ance the federal budget is a misguidt'd 
plan for two reasons: It may lead to far 
more than a balanced-budget amend-
ment; and if it does produce such an 
amendment. there is no assurance of an 
end to the deficit crisis. The real issue is 
the integrity of the Constitution. 

Political Alignment: On the "Right" 
There are many conservatives who ad-

vocate a constitutional convention in the 
sincere belief that it can be limited to 
proposing a balanced-budget amend-
ment and that this amendment would re-
store fiscal sanity in Washington . There 
are other so-called "conservatives." how-
ever, who would alter our form of gov-
ernment. One of these is Kevin Phi llips. 
president of the American Political Re-
search Corporation, who is also on the 
board of directors of the Committee on 
the Constitutional System. 
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In Reforming American Gouernm ent , 
Phillips is described as "a conservative 
commentator." His article, "An American 
Parliament,'' another of the book's work-
ing papers, states: 

The dubious doctrine of 'Ameri-
can exceptionalism' - based on the 
idea that this country is unique, or 
that God takes care of babies, 
drunks, and the United States of 
America - is a misconception that 
may soon prove fatal. The notion 
springs from many sources, among 
them the belief that we are blessed 
with a peerless Constitution and 
brilliantly structured political sys-
tem, designed for the ages in the 
candlelight ofl 787. Yet , the United 
States· success in coping with the 
1980s may depend on the speed 
and intelligence with which we can 
transform a number of obsolescent, 
even crippling. political institu-
tions, mechanism s, and relation-
ships. Conservatives, by tradition 
partisans of the status quo, may 
find themselves taking the refor-
mist lead .. .. 

Eff ectiw reform of the federal 
government would be best served 
by a quasi-parliamentary transi-
tion .... 

Implement Lloyd Cutler's idea of 
having national and congressional 
candidates run together on a quasi-
parliamentary ticket, and metro-
politan Houston . Dallas, Tulsa, 
Shreveport. Jack so nvill e. Palm 
Beach. Charleston, Win ston-
Salem. and a dozen other cities 
would immediately shift to a con-
se rvati\" e coal ition represe nta-
tion ... . 

The political irony ... is that ag-
ing liberal~ are no longer the in-
novators. but the Bourbons and 
Hapsburgs of contemporary insti-
tutional failure . Theirs are the pal-
aces under attack. "and the restless 
crowds beginning to throw rocks 
into the Tuileries are populist con-
servatiws of a sort. The challenge 
of the 1980s is that conserYatives 
may find themselves obliged to pre-
side, not over a traditional elec-
toral realignment , but over a crit-
ical restructuring of U.S. political 
institutions. 

Apparently , Phillips belieYes it is per-
fect ly acceptable to move away from a 

Constitutional Republic toward a parlia-
mentary democracy, as long as "conser-
vatives" and not "liberals" engineer the 
transition . The problem here is that the 
nature of man does not change, whether 
the opportunity for mischief is provided 
by those who call themselves "conser-
vative'' or by those who admit to being 
liberal. Also, it would be no less wrong 
to give power to a conservative majority 
(or their representatives) than it would 
be to give it to a liberal counterforce. 
Whether he describes himself as conser-
vative or liberal, the populist - one who 
believes in adherence to the popular will 
- does not understand this. But the 
Americanist - one who believes in 
America's founding principles - does 
understand. 

The populist supports democracy; the 
Americanist supports our Constitutional 
Republic. The populist preaches that he 
should be allowed to carry out the pop-
ular will without restraint; the Ameri-
canist recognizes that no one should be 
allowed the power to violate the God-
given rights of the individual. For he re-
alizes that it would be better to ha,·e 
scoundrels in Washington who are kt-pt 
away from mi schief by the limit ing fea-
tures of our Constitution than it would 
be to have well-intentioned men with the 
power to implement their agenda in the 
name of the majority . The populist want s 
to act in the name of the majority; the 
Americanist wants men to act for them-
selves. The populist tries to win elections 
so that he will acquire power; the Amer-
icanist who seeks election wants to pre-
serve our Constitutional Republic so that 
no man will ha,·e power over anot her. 

''Conservati ve" and liberal populists 
who seek to "reform" our system of gov-
ernment so that they can lead without 
restraint are supporting the same goal. 
Should they succeed, it will make no di f-
ference if the clique in power represent s 
a conservative or a liberal majority , or if 
the growing power of government swings 
back and forth between these two con-
stituencies as governments are disso)Yed 
and formed Our fate in either case would 
be the worst tyranny of all : the tyran ny 
of the majority. 

And on the Left 
Many liberals believe that a balanced-

budget amendment would curtail the 
spending programs they advocate, and 
that a constitutional convention would 
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result in a bat.meed-budget amendment. 
But others on the Left. would try to use 
a "balanced-budget" convention to alter 
our form of government. 

The preface to Reforming American 
Government states that, of the two meth-
ods available for amending the Consti-
tution, "most members of the Committee 
would far prefer to proceed by the tra-
ditional method." Perhaps. But in one of 
the book's working papers, CCS co-chair-
man Lloyd Cutler said, "if the pending 
call for a constitutional convention to 
propose a 'balance the budget' amend-
ment is joined by the two additional 
states needed to provide the triggering 
two-thirds . . . our committee may be 
ready with some better ideas." 

And CCS coordinator Peter Schauffler 
suggested at a Washington news confer-

If a constitutional 
con11ention is called, 
11e.ry' powerful forces 

H'ill use it for 
their OH'n purposes. 

I doubt that Americans under 
normal conditions could agree on 
the package of radical and 'alien' 
constitutional changes that would 
be required. They would do so, I 
think. only during and following a 
stupendous national crisis and po-
litical failure .... 

Major changes in process and 
structure will not be brought about 
by spontaneous action on the part 
of the mass public. . . . Changes 
will be brought about by leader-
ship, as in the drafting and adop-
tion of the Constitution of 1787. 
But today such changes will not be 
allowed to remain in the hands of 
a small set of elites, like the fifty-
five men who drew up the Consti-
tution. The second and third cadres 
of American leadership must be 
fully im·olved .... 

Do we have a third-cadre lead-
ership of similar intellectual power 
and creativity today? The answer 
can be found in the cil'ic and reli-
gious groups, in the local Leagues 
of \\'omen Voters and local bar as-
sociations. i 11 th e unions and 
Chambers of Commerce. in the 

ence last year that. should a convention professional organizations. in the 
be called, his group would bt• ready with schuuls and colleges and unil'ersi-
a "package of carefully structured tics of Am£'rica. rEmphasi s added .1 
amendments to put on the agenda of such Will the federal goHrnment's debt 
a convention." prow to be enough of a crisis to convince 

Thus, CCS members claim to oppose a Americans that major "reforms'' in their 
constitutional convention , but they are government are needed? Will these "re-
prepared to use it for their own purposes. forms" be sold to Americans on the prom-
At such a convention. the "reformers·· ise that they will make the government 
would enjoy the best of two worlds: they more "efficient." thereby alle\·iating the 
could blame the constitutional crisis debt crisis'.' \\'ill a constitutiondl conven-
caused by the convention on the "conser- tion for proposing a balanced-budget 
vatives" who called for it, and they then amendment be used for this broader pur-
could "rescue" the American people from pose? After all. the architects of a new 
this crisis by submitting their own constitution could argue that the budget 
agenda. Because of the benefits to their cannot be balanced. and fiscal sanity can-
cause, we cannot help wondering if some not be restored. unless the needed struc-
CCS "reformists'' claiming to oppose a tural changes are made. (When the An-
constitutional convention are actually napolis Con\'ention met in 1786 to 
harboring a hidden hope that one will reso!Ye the trade crisis. its delegates 
materialize. were of the opinion that the resolution of 

adjustment of the other parts of the Fed 
era! System") 

If a convention is used for the purpos 
of writing a new constitution based or 
CCS "reforms," will the new constitutio 
be submitted to special state convention· 
instead of the state legislatures for rat 
ification? (The original constitution wa. 

. submitted to conventions. l If the ne\1 
constitution is submitted to conventions 
will the ratification process of our origi 
nal Constitution be used as a precedent 
Also, will these special state convention. 
be filled with a cadre of leadership of th) 
type that James MacGregor Burns de 
scribed - one supportive of moves t 
turn the founders upside down? 

If a national constitutional convent io 
followed by state conventions were hel l 
during the constitutional bicentennia 
period of 1987 through 1991 , would th 
spirit of the bicentennial make the who I 
process of "reforming" American govern 
ment more palatable to American ( 
Would the windows of a new constit U· 

tional convention be boarded up in th l 
figurative sense? (Windows were lit ,: 
ally boarded up at the original con ,t i 
tutional convention. 1 And could it be th:,· 
Warren Burger's decision to hold met·t 
ings of the present bicentennial commi~ 
sion behind closed doors - citing th( 
precedent of the original constit ut ion,i 
conwntion - mean that he has a fut ur, 
constitutional convention in mind '7 ln 
deed, will history repeat itself durin r th : 
bicentennial era - only this time. takm: 
a turn for the worse? 

We do not know the answers to the~• 
questions . But we do know pol', erf'u 
forces are at work bent on de.~tro\·i;1,; c•u. 
form of government. Regardl es,: l 

whether these forces are actually wor;. 
ing to bring about a constitutional co; , 
vention. they will try to use such a con· 
vention for their own purposes. 

The solution is education. If enourl 
Americans understood Americanist pri n 
ciples, no force on earth would be abl t t 
trick them into surrendering their birtl. 
right. Not during the constitution ill I,: 
centennial - not ever. • How It Adds Up the crisis ''may require a correspondent 

Radical changes'·th-at · ·an,'\..,.oJititaHf '" -----------------~~----------: 
t' Reprints of the copyrighted at'ticle, "Bicentennia1"Pfof,~ are- a\·ailable·at ·unde'J · 

unattainable during normal times may 100 copies. 3 for $1.00; 100--499 copies, 30c each; 500-999 copies, 25c each ; 
be attainable during times of crisis. In a 1.000 or more copies. 20c each . Please include postage and handling charg~s 
Reforming American Government work- as follows: orders totaling less than $10.00, add $1.00; orders for more than 
ing paper, James MacGregor ("turn the $10.00, add 10 percent of the total order amount. Order from THr: N1::w A,1rn. 
founders upside down" ) Burns brazenly JC.>.K , 395 Concord Aw ., Belmont, MA 02178 2650 Mission St.. San Marino. 
admitted this, stating: CA 91108 
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A Change in the Weather 
-----------------------------

i As Reagans era recedes, conzpassion and Governnzent activisnz regain favor 

Time to look 
for new ideas, 
time to move 
beyond the 
era of self-
congratulation 
and beer-
commercial 
patriotism. 

1 It harrened "'ith surreal s"iftncs,. One mo-
ment. the rageant of Reagan ism \\JS rroceeJ-
1ng. "'ith hrill1ant fire\l.nrks o,e r the hartx1r . 
The ne,t moment. the Iranian scandal burst 

' ur thrnup.h the A,,,,rhoards StrangL' hlad; h1rds ,,f 
rnli,·:, AaJ'J><:d ,,ut ,,f the \\ "hit..: I l ,1 u~..: hascmcnt 
The R..:;1gan Administrau ,,n. thL· ph..:n,1111..:11,111 
that had d..:tined s,, much ,1f thc l'-0, . that h:1d g1,-
en the decade its agenda and st:, k . ,c:emeJ t,1 ..:,,1-
1:ip,e in a h1 l.:1rre shamhles. • 

If the U.S. were a parliamentar) dem,1'.·racy . 
, the Reagan Go,ernment might han: fallen As 1t 

is. Ronald Reagan "'ill remain in \\ 'ashi ngwn f,,r 
annther 22 m ,,nths H1, \\ hit..: H ,1usc is lah.,ring 
tn repair the damage . In time R..:agan m;I\ rca,-
s..:n his chJrm . E,..:n a, a lame du,·f-. hc "ill ha,..: 
hi, ,L1c·c..:"..:,. J"\\: r·hap, ..:,c n ;111 arm,-c,1ntr,1I 
agrccmcnt It r, p,,"1hk t h;11 l{ ,111:tl,1 Rcaii,111 h:1, 
lh' t :,..:t c:\h.1tht,,f 111 , itk"~ 

But the yuc,t1,,111s 1h11 "hcth,1 l{..:ap.;111 ,·an r·c·-
.:,1'..:r l h..: 11;1t1,111 r, h..:g 1n 11111!' l< ' 1,._,1-: t.e,,1nJ 
Reagan nn". ,.\n:, l'rcsid..:n t in the last halfnfh" 
seccmd term 1s alread) in the ,aled1.:tory m,1dc 
The Iran affoir s1mpl:, hastened the rr,,.:ess and 

Jhruptl:, concentrated the nati on·s min d 7 , 
1981:<ekctiL1n is coalescing The partiesare,,, r t.!,· 
nut candidates and issues . There are sign, ni a f,.·· -
damental change in the nati o n ·s pc1litical \\c,,::'L · 
a rhilosorhical mood shift like those th :it s..:..: n- t. 
,xcur 111 America ever:, generau,,n ,,rs,, 

E,en "'ithou t Iran . the em of Re;u:: ;1 n , ... ,. 
pa"1ng It hJs left it s inde lihk ma r k . :,ct ;!, 11 .111:,-
c·ry-that Go,·ernment is the rr,,hlcm. n,, ; ti;,•,.,_ 
lut1on-is los ing force . Presidcnt1JI .:and1J,,tc:, ,, 
ht1th panics are struggling to deti ne an..:._, r,, k 1-,-
Government in the post-Reagan era . \\ "hilt: ,L'L'-
ing the need to be frug:il. the:, arc ta lf-1ni: m,,,L 
and m o re about compass inn. m,•1<.: a..:1 1,L' :,;, 
proachc:, to deer-roc1t..:,: ,,,,-, a I p: ,,tiknis. a Ill'.• 
sens..: ,,f .:ommun i1~ ,:1 it1 c: ,. R..:.1g:rn h:,, tJ,,, _ 
"hat he h:.is d,1ne. an d he h." -:1c".: ,1m11i1,:it 
m11c"h lie rrc,iJ,·J ,1,c::r ,111..: ,,, the 1,,11~, ,-,; ;· 
(Id" l,f c"-·1..1n1..)n11 ... · rc1..·l"l'r-} 111 ·\nh:: 1 ... : .11 1 h1:•-:,,· • .. · 
111nL' ~lllt:rh.1~d h~ the.: L' l11..'. ,, 1· 1n1i .1 t11'1~ .1r1i..:· ,, 

th<.: "agc-pri,·..: ,p11:tl I k r,, 11,: J ti.i--~ t n..: ", .' 
L1f th..: Feder:.i l G,1,ernm,nt . hc: lp..:J t,' 11111. 
ate ta:-- ref,,rm . strengthened 1am1d "' lllL' ,L•i-
hacksl the American pc,sture in the " •' r id llu! 
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no"' one feels the ground shifting underfoot. a 
1 grinding oft he tectonic plates . 

··we·re at the end of an Eisenhower period:· 
says UCLA Political Sociologist Jeffrey Alexander. 
··and we·re moving into something not unlike the 
1960s. The ·era of good feeling· that Reagan pre-
sided over is ending. and people are ready for the 
next cycle of history. for a new period of activism 
and social change."' But as Alexander well knows. 
the future never merely recycles the past. The na-
tion cannot return to federal taxing and spending 
on a Great Society scale. Most candidates in 1988 
will focus wistfully on new ways to engage Gov-
ernment. business and labor in projects to solve 
problems and help people . It will never again be 
the all-daddy Government of the New Deal. they 
say. but neither will it be the shrunken Reagan 
version. "The swing is away from what you could 
call the laissez-faire approach of Ronald Reagan 
to one that takes a more active. compassionate 
approach to those in true need." says Republican 
Mayor William Hudnut of Indianapolis. ··1t is a 
ground swell gaining force:· 

Reagan has been a master of public symbols. 
He worked an alchemy of nostalgia and hope. vi-
sions of the past and the future collaborating. He 
gave the people reassuring images of a mythic 
American past-the Olympic torch. the tall ships. 
the Statue of Liberty. the heroes in the visitors· 
gallery on State of the Union nights. Tom Sawyer 
come back to life _as a yuppie-a sweet. virtuous 
America recrystallized by Reagan after the trau-
matic changes of the "60s and ·70s_ Reagan gave 
Americans the idea of a future as spacious as 
their past. 

Some of the new American imagery is very 
different. It suggests something closing down. a 
darkness crowding in at the margins. One sees not 
the sunshine of Reagan's American morning but 
touches of Thomas Hobbes . The gloom probably 
is just as exaggerated as the earlier optimism . But 
the encroaching new images are haunting: home-
less people on heating grates: the ominous nation-
al debt and the spectacle of Japanese managers 
moving into the American heartland to show 
Americans how to run things profitably: the AIDS 
epidemic, which is becoming an important and 
menacing presence in the 1988 campaign . 

Another powerful image: Wall Street million-
aires arrested for insider trading and taken off in 
handcuffs. Not long ago. the ··go for it" " mentality 
of untrammeled capitalism was a virtue in the 
culture of Reaganism . No"' that culture is being 
questioned. The Rambo story. which was a car-
toon of Reaganism·s individualist machismo. has 
been discredited by the escapades of Oliver 
North . The enduring ghost of Viet Nam returns 
not in the cretinous revenge fantasies of Sylvester . 
Stallone but in P/a10011. a movie that confronts 
the ambiguous mess and tragedy of America ·s 
mission in Viet Nam . The show that has captured 

Bfllad"'av is Le.1 M iservhles . with its themes of 
suffering· and redemrtion . and the injunction 
··L00k down'. ··-meaning look down upon the 
poor. the homeless. The injunction of the Reagan 
years has been ·· Look up•··-to success. to wealth . 

And of course there are the dark images of the 
Iranian fiasco : the President's men skulking 
around. with cake and Bible and guns. on ven-
tures so goofy as to seem unhinged : the tablets of 
Valium that Robert McFarlane swallo-wed . The 
Iran affair destroyed Reagan ·s nimbus of immu-
nity. subverted his magic. His political authority 
derived from the idea that Ronald Reagan be-
lieved certain simple things profoundly. with an 
incorruptible candor. He would bob his head. in 
the way he has. and smile and say. "Here I stand : 
I can do no other ... Martin Luther washed up on 
the beaches of Malibu . But the Iran affair carried 
Reagan over into a strange. other dimension 
where both his candor and his principles proved 
corruptible. where his powers seemed to fail. It is 
a powerful irony that for all the differences. the 
Iran affair smacks of Watergate. in the sense that 
the abuse of the highest power undoes the king 
Hhe highest power manipulated by little knights. 
stupid and zealous) . That one of the most beloved 
American Presidents should have found himself 
in danger of recapitulating the fates of Richard 
Nixon and Lyndon Johnson is American polit ical 
theater edging toward the Shakespearean . 

A n odd effec t : Reagan ·s powerful connec-
tion with the American psychology now 
takes on a negative charge . In a way that 
"' oul d ha , e seemed inconceivable not 

long ago . op-ed writers ventu re to speak well of 
Jimmy Carter. One senses uneasily a return of the 
world Americans th ought they had left behind 
when Caner went back to Plains. Ga. 

·•wise men ha ve rem arked on pallerns of al-
ternation . of eb b and fi o"' in human history : · 
writes Historian Arthur Schlesinger Jr. in The Cy-
cles of llisTOry. E merson obse rved that ··1he two 
parties which divid e the state . the pany of Con-
servatism and the pa rt y of Innovation. are very 
old. and have di sputed the possession of the world 
ever since it was made ... Innovation is the sa-
lient energy: Conservat is m the pause on the last 
movemen 1.·· Bu t th a t ca n be tr ick y Reagan in h is 
way was no conser,a tive a nd was somethi ng ofan 
innovator. wh o tr ied. "' ith limited success. to re-
verse deep-rooted G overnment traditions goi ng 
back to the Ne"' Dea I. In an y case . Emerson al so 
observed that ··ever) hero bec L1mes a bvre at last·· 1 

What is the essence of the change that is nlN 
occurring in A mer ica·' 

In pan it is a ret urn from the !,)ng vacati ~) n of 
the Reagan yea rs. Am er icans c,, m ing hack frl)m 
the picnic of rest ,)rcd nati,)Jla lism and mo ra le . a 
necessary Jilause. to d isco ,er that the old problems 
are still there . onl y in so me "'ays worse now. The 

AMERICAN~Y.Cl ES .. Hist<;>rian AilhurSchlesinger. Jr, 
· · ·suggests ttfat there are 30-year · ' "Private Interest ·-_: 

cycles of American history that swing between eras ofliberalism and 
conservativism- periods he calls Private Interest and Public Purpose . N>llcPIS1)05e.-r_ 

TIME. MARCH 30. 1987 TIME Chart by J0t- Lt-nola . Rt:~E>a rch b) Noel McCoy 

(og' 

"People are 
ready for 
the next cycle 
of history, for 
anew period 
of activism and 
social change." 

-Presldenf.a_party 
Repd>lican .__I --~ 
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Americans had 
a suspicion that 
Reaganism 
had gone too 
far in trying to 
rescind the 
compassionate 
functions of 
Government. 

Indian summer was lovely. but the weather 
turned cold : Provide. provide! That holiday was 
paid for by more than doubling the national debt . 
to $2 .2 trillion . Time to look for new ideas. time to 
move beyond the era of self-congratulation and 
beer-commercial patriotism. America cannot af-
ford stupidity. It costs too much in the world. 
Education therefore must have a priority. and not 
just through more money: it needs discipline and 
imagination. America can no longer afford rac-
ism and a neglect of the underclass. They also cost 
too much . These are problems that must be solved 
not only as a matter of social justice (which they 
are) but as a question of America ·s long-term eco-
nomic survival. 

The moral ecology of American politics is al-
tering . Issues that figured in the Reagan revolu-
tion-family values. school prayer. abortion . por-
nography-remain powerful. But some of them 
will be in collision with problems such as AIDS. 
homelessness. racism . toxic waste . business eth-
ics. nuclear disarmament and the national debt-
a more public agenda. one that veers somewhat 
away from religion . 

The change now occurr1ng is emphatically 
not a simple pendulum swing back from conser-
vatism to New Deal liberalism . The change is 
more complex. more interesting . By the end of the 
'70s . Americans understood that from the ·30s on. 
the welfare state had grown almost unrestrained . 
The left-leaning populism that bashed Big Busi-

ness gave way to a right-leaning populism . one 
that produced tax revolts like California ·s Propo-
sition 13. 

That anti-Government mood prepared the 1 

way for Reaganomics and drove a wedge between 
the poor and the middle class. Americans in the 
middle detected something askew in the Govern-
ment's social policies. Reagan played upon the 
middle-class intuition that some basic unfairn ess 
was loose in the garden of the dream . ( Reaga n 
was wise enough to kno" that the dream existed 
still and needed tending.) 

··welfare .. was at least one of the things 
wrong. It meant a morality of entitlements. peo-
ple getting something for nothing. It meant the. 
unfairness qf ordinary people paying the bill for 
the noblesse oblige ofan elite. The Great Society 
eventually became institutionalized . even when 
the nation's economic growth flauened out and 
the middle class began losing ground . That diss0-
nance helped to create Ronald Reagan . Amer i-
cans bought the Reagan solution : cut welfare 
programs. or at least slow their rate of increase. 
to strengthen defense and give people more tt' 
spend through tax cuts. Says Daniel Yanke lt)-
vich. the public opinion analyst: "They were un-
easy about doing so because they suspected th at 
millions of poor people would get hurt . but the> 
accepted the Reagan approach because the > 
agreed that something was badly amiss with th e 
liberal theory of Government-backed ent itle-
ments. But Reagan 's personal 'goodness· seemed 
to guarantee that it was not a Scrooge-like thin g 
to do. As long as Reagan was credible. his solu-
tions were acceptable ." 

Even before the lran-conrra affair . America ns 
had a suspicion that Reagan.ism had gone too far in 
trying to rescind the more generous work of G ov-
ernment: cutting Aid to Families with Dependent 
Children. for example. and federal funds for hous-
ing while running up the military budget from $ 13-1 
billion in I 980 to $266 billion in I 986. (Although as 
a percentage of the gross national product . nor1 -uc 
fense spending has declined very slightly and 1s ~ t1 1, 

more than double defense spending.) The dream of 
salvation-"Get the Government off the back s 0f 
the American people and release the energies of 
free enterprise"-may not have been given enough 
time to work. but. in truth. it was never an agenJ;; 
that took deep root anyway. Says Kevin Phi l11~ 
the Republican political analyst : " In the 1986 ele~ -
tion. you saw the desire around the country for ca n-
didates who could make Government work . for de-
fining some Government roles. It was flowing from 
pans of the country where people began think inf 
'Hey. we need something from Government afte r 
all .· It was coming primarily from areas depend ent 
on mining. timher. agriculture. energy. text iles. 
steel. They stopped thinking of Governmen t a~ 
something that Just took care of muggers and De-
troit welfare mothers. the whole conservative rh t-
torical syndrome." 

In a new poll for TIME by Yankelovich CJ., ,.,, 
Shulman . people were asked whether Governm en·t 
spending should be increased. decreased or kept 
the same for various public needs. More than 70' , 
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said that funds should be increased for health care 
to the poor and the elderly. for cleaning up the en-
vironment and f,,r aid t,, the homeless . Given a 
choice of spending more for the military or more 
f,1r s.x:ial pr,,grams. resp,indents preferred the s.>-
cial pn1grams. 69'; to 23'; . M,,re than three-
fourths of those surveyed said Government "should 
play a more active role·· in such areas as health 
care. poveny. housing and education. Most surpris-
ing of all. 60r,; said they would ··support increased 
spending for social programs even if it would re-
quire an increase in taxes'" <see box I. 

The results. though compelling. may also say 
something about the mood swings of the American 
public. Only two years ago. these same people 
might have said that you cannot solve rroblems by 
thnw,·ing money at them . '"Americans have always 
expressed ambivalent desires aht,ut the role of 
Government ... says, California Pollster Mervyn 
Field . ··we ask. Why doesn·t the Government just 
get off our backs·> And then we demand. Why 
doesn·t the Government do something about this•.> 
Today. in several ways. the Government is off the 
public·s back. Taxes are down. lnAation is down . 
Interest rates are down . But al the same lime. our 
polling ·data show growing public anxiety about 
both the national and the local economies. The lay-
offs are hitting close lo home. So are the growing 
numbers of the homeless. More people are now 
asking. Why doesn·t Government do something 
about this?·· 

T he Reagan revolution is not. of course. just 
going to evaporate . In pan. it arose out of 
inescapable forces : a sense that Govern-
ment had bloated out of control. that it 

was time for a period of unabashed good spirits 
and confidence after an era of gloom and self-
doubt. ""Reagan has significantly changed our at-
titude toward Government. away from looking 
toward Washington to solve our problems ... says 

1 Field . A new form of Reaganism . possibly even 
under Democratic auspices. will have to cope 
with that legacy after Reagan is gone Few Amer-
icans want to return lo the Great Society style of 
welfare The nation can no longer afford that 
kind of grand buffet. if it ever could . So the in-
stinct for a new compassion. a word that is often 
heard these days as a signal of recoil against the 
meannesses of Reaganism . comes abruptly up 
against hard realities. 

If Reaganism has now and then been per-
ceived as social Darwinism. the idea that the 
sleekest beast with the sharpest teeth is the fittest 
to survive (Ivan Boesky in the skin of a panther). 
the new emphasis. among Republicans as well as 
Democrats. is upon the practice of a kind of gov-
ernmental ··tough love:· an aggress ive compas-
sion designed to end dependencies and get people 
self-sufficient and back to work as quickly as pos-
sible . In the 1980s there is an acute awareness of 
the nation·s economic limits and of tht: intracta-
bility of many problems. 

The current push fm ... \i.1clfareTCl\.1rm':'' leJ ,. .:., 
tionally by New York Senator Danie l l\foynihan 
and Arkansas Guvernor Bill Clinton . is the best 

example of this approach . It is based on two 
truths : that unconditional aid leads to long-stand-
ing dependency and that the impoverished chil-
dren of th is nation cannot merel y be abandoned . 
The new approach-being tried with some suc-
cess in states such as Massachusetts . California . 
New Jersey an_d New York-is to require recipi-
ents to enter training and job-placement pro-
grams. In some uft he proposals. the Federal Gov-
ernment would become the employer of last 
resort . 

In Ch icago. Aleen Zimberoff Bayard is one of 
the growing number of people returning to social 
activism but demanding ··more hang for the 
buck ... As Bayard says firmly. ··People don "t toler-
ate giveaw.ays anymNe ... In I 985 Bayard and sev-
eral friends started the Entertainment Action 
Team . whose missi on is to ""end hunger in Chica-
go through self-sufficiency ... Says she: ··1t makes 
such a difference to me that I'm doing something. 
The team is one example of how young. socially 
minded people are rewriting the Reagan mes-
sage ... The team is auctioning off part-ownership 
of an Arabian horse to raise money for a cafe that 
will be a restaura11t-training program for home-
less teenagers . ··we want to teach them job skills ... 
says Bayard . "Our group believes people want to 
help themsel ves. we·re saying. ·Money doesn "t 

'St1IJ.'C"rhe'J)1\,1btcm .c' ·· ·· ·. , 
Such programs. which owe something to Rea -

gan·s long emphasis on volunteerism . usually 

In a nation 
proud of 
its economic 
comeback, 
the spectacle 
of people 
sleeping on 
grates frays 
the conscience. 
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More than 
three-fourths 
of those 
surveyed say 
Government 
"should play 
a more active 
role" in such 
areas as 
health care. 

stress the idea that compassion is best implement-
ed through cooperation of governments. business-
es and private citizens. ··we are really apolitical.'" 
says Bayard . '"Fat government is the problem .'" 

At the state level. social programs are being 
seen as an investment in the future . In Colorado. 
for example. a powerful issue in last November's 
gubernatorial race was how to handle an expect-
ed $434 million windfall in state tax revenues 
caused by federal tax reform. While the Republi-
can nominee promised to return the money to 
taxpayers, Democrat Roy Romer proposed to 
spend it on education. highways. water projects 
and industrial development. He won. Says he : "l 
asked people. 'What's more important to you. an-
other $ I 8 in your pocket right now or a job for 
your kid when he finishes schooP· The public 
support for state-government investment in the 
economy and education is rooted in fear about 
where the economy is going .·· 

In Kansas. a fortress of Reagan ism. the state 
legislature seems to be moving leftward as the 
farm crisis persists. Says Richard Larimore . re-
cently retired administrative assistant to the mi-
nority in the state senate: ··The pendulum is swing-
ing back and is already apprctaching the middle . 
In Kansas, this will probably be the last big legisla-
tive year for major economic-development pro-
grams because people are figuring out that that 
means giving money to the wealthy .'" 

For years. starting in the late '60s with Lyn-

don Johnson. successive American Presidents 
have used inflation. foreign borrowing and other 
devices to avoid corning to terms with some fun-
damental problems in the nation's economy. es-
pecially the runaway spending on middle-class 
entitlement programs (like Social Security). the 
falling productivity of some industries and the re-
sulting failure to compete in the international 
markets . Americans have indulged themselves in 
a cenain denial of reality. Increasingly. however. 
they suffer from what is called a "cognitive disso-
nance'" between the nominal economy and the 
real economy. In other words. they cannot figure 
out why so many are losing their jobs whilt: I I , 
million new jobs have been created since 1981 . 
why the stock market soars to record highs. and , 
thousands of new businesses are launched every 1 

year while thousands go bust. 
It would be ironic for Americans to lose their 

faith in a free-market economy at the very time 
that the rest of the world. including even socialist 
countries, is looking forward lo the forces of mar-
ket incentives and entrepreneurship. In many re-
spects the American economy is remarkably solid. 
with a respectable if not spectacular growth rate of 
around 3o/c. projected for 1987 and an unem plo) -
ment rate significantly lower than that in most oth-
er industrialized countries. But economic reality in 
America is complex and contradictory. Yester-
day·s boom regions. like the Southwest. are suffer-
ing while yesterday's depressed areas. like the 
Northeast. are booming Thirty-one states. most I) 
in the heartland of the nation . are in recession . 
Mothers and fathers know that the industries in 
which they have worked all their lives will not p:,1-
vide middle-income jobs to their daughters an d 
sons, who may of course make their fortunes as 
junk-bond traders or software geniuses. but are f?r 
more likely to find ··hamburger jobs·· and drop into 
the minimum-wage sector of an increasingly bot-
tom-heavy economy. 

If Big Government was the villain of the Rea- ' 
gan cycle of American history. the bete noire oft he 
new may be Big Business. ln I 979. according 10 the 
pollster Lou Harris, 69'7c of Americans gave corps.0 -

rate America a favorable rating . ln 1986 only 35'.- , 
rated corporate America favorably . "Clearly ... 
says Harris. "the mood about business has turned 
negative on a massive scale ·· 

T his swing has been spurred by the insider-
trading scandals . which find conside rable 
resonance with Americans . Says Pol l~t<:r 
Field : '"The public doesn·t distingui sh hi.' -

tween Wall Street and Big Business. I see Big 13u~i-
ness becoming a target in l98s .·· Deputy Treasur) 
Secretary Richard Darman . one of the intellect u;:i 
turbines of the Reagan revolution . masterm1ndt:J 
last year"s successful push for tax reform He ha~ 
attempted to formulate a conservati\·e p..1puli sn· 
that would save the Reagan Administration from 
being inextricably tied in the public mind v.ith Big 
Business and Wall Street. Darman has used the 
term corpocracy to describe the bloated manage-
ment of US. corporations that have resisted be-
coming more competitive ·•Big Government 1sn ·t 
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what is bugging everyone these days ... says Dar-
man . Instead . he sees the resentment as being di-
rected at stagnant industries and declining educa-
tion systems. Businesses that profited from tax 
breaks "'ith,iut making intelligent invi.:stments. 
c,imbint.:d "'ith the scandals and takeovers on 
\\'all Stri.:ct. have bolstered the perception of 
greed run wild . One result . Darman says. "is that 
latenc idealism is having a comeback ... 

These themes are being stressed by Demo-
cratic candidates. including Gary Han. Bruce 
Babbitt, Joseph Biden. Richard Gephardt and 
Jesse Jackson . "When Rhodes scholars are arrest-
ed for insider trading. that contributes to this pop-
ulist sentiment that a privileged class is getting 
rich at the expense of the rest of the economy." 
Babhitt says Like most Democratic candidates. 
Babbitt is careful to focus his attacks on Wall 
Street and Big Business. as opposed to entrepre-
neurial and family businesses. 

Gephardt often cites the successful Japanese 
management of American workers at the General 
Motors plant in Fremont, Calif. He wonders 
whether U.S industrial failures should not be at-
tributed to American managers rather than 
American workers (despite high U-5. wages com-
pared with some of America's competitors). Bab-
bitt adds that unlike Japanese managers. who of-
ten cut their own compensation before that of 
their workers. "American executives reward 
themselves with huge bonuses during the good 
times but console ·themselves with layoffs as soon 
as times turn bad_" 

Pierre Proudhon . the 19th century French uto-
pian. once wrote of"the fecundity oft he unexpect-
ed ." It is always somewhat dangerous to think that poured 1n from Southern and Eastern Europe. 
history can be foretold by studying the patterns of Then came "the war to end all wars." attended by 
the past. Still. the rhythms of change in the past Woodrow Wilson's millennial ambitions_ 
century have displayed uncanny regularicy . Schie- Even before the war ended . Americans began 
singer's theory. inherited in part from his father. is recoil ing from Wilson 's international activism. 
that people have absorbed their formative political Attorney General A . Mitchell Palmer went on 
values by the time they reach age 18 or so. Ronald witch-hunts for Bolsheviks_ The Senate rejected 
Reagan reached that age during the years of Cal- the Treaty of Versailles. America closed down El -
vin Coolidge. whose portrait now hangs in the Cab- lis Island and slammed the door against new im-
inet room in the White House . John Kennedy migration . What followed in the '20s was the "era 
came of age with the New Deal and World War 11. of good feeling ... a period with some resemblance 
Says Schlesinger: "In general. we have 30-year cy- to Reagan's '80s . 
cles based on generations. Just as the 1980s were a The next cycle turned on the Great Depres-
re-enactment of the 1950s. the Eisenho"'er time sion. th e New Deal and World War II. followed 
was a re-e nactment of the Harding-Coolidge time by the backlash of McCarthyism and the era of 
of the 1920s. 5<) at 30-year intervals-Theodore relative calm and prosperity during the 1950s and 
Roosevelt in 190 I. FD. R . in ·33_ Kennedy in '61- early '60s. Then the real '60s : turbulence . crisis. 
we have a swing from private interest. from self- war . the rhetoric of revolution . 
interest . to public purpose _" By Schlesinger's cal- Reagan's election m 1980 was less a new 
culatinn. the cyclical change now beginning should starting point than the cresting of a conservative-
reach full momentum around 1990. populist movement that began with Richard Nix-

American history in the past 100 years has ar- on·s election in 1968. That year. the M iddle 
ranged itself in the cycles with an odd neatness. A American constituency struck back against the 
period of economic depression, war. social change activist '60s-against antiwar protesters . against 
and activism has generally been followed by a the civil rights tnovement and the sexual revo lu-
spasm of reactionary backlash . folk1wed by a time ti on . against high taxes . Government regulation. 
of consolidation. relative calm and prosperity . the Washington elite . the Wo1.xlstock generation . 

The three decades. ,f.l:01n , lli.90. i1~ .. Lb.ec...ew..1 pf. _Ge,',Cge .\\lallac.e~~as in , full cry . .against--:: poim)';· 
World War I were turbulent with i ndust riali,.a - , headed intellectuals -· The Nixon-Agnew ticket 
tion . The first lab<.1r-union mcwement arose in i s"'ept into r,:1wer . Watergate brought Gerald 
idealism and turmoil and disruption Immigrancs : Ford 's brief period 0f consolidation and then the 

-------· -- ------ ----- '---------- -
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Big Business 
corpulence, 
combined with 
the scandals 
and takeovers 
on Wall Street, 
bolsters the 
perception of 
greed run wild. 
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The emphasis is 
on ''tough love," 
an aggressive 
compassion 
designed to end 
dependencies 
and get people 
self-sufficient. 

anomaly of Jimmy Carter. who came to Washing-
ton campaigning against Big Government.just as 
Reagan did four years later . 

What is the legacy that Ronald Reagan leaves? 
"The Reagan revolution." observes Political 

Analyst Richard Scammon. ··never moved as far 
as many on the left feared it would. or many on 
the right hoped it would." Just so . In American 
governance. the pendulum rarely makes radical 
swings . Change generally comes by evolution. not 
by sudden transformation . The only radi cal 
changes. the elections of Lincoln and F.D.R .. for 
example. occur at times of severe national stress. 

"The main achievement of the Reagan Ad-
ministration." argues Norman Podhoretz. the 
neoconservative editor of Commentary magazine . 
"has been to move the country in a different di-
rection. which was much more consistent with 
traditional American constitutiona l. legal and 
cultural values." Podhoretz distinguishes between 
the actual performance of the Administration 
and the general direction in v. hich Reagan tried 
to move the nation He has alv.ays approved of 
Reagan ·s intentions. but thinks he fell short in the 
performance . 

After a half-century. Reagan sought to steer 
America on a course away from the Nev. Deal. 
And yet. in doing so. he more than doubled the 
national debt. He was unable . or unwilling. in a 
term and a half to tackle middle-class entitle-
ments. such as Social Security. Medicare and 
wildly excessive farm-support programs Reagan 
bequeaths that burden l0 future Presidents . 

The legacy of Reagan the great American im-
agist lies as much in the realm of the symt.,,.1l ic as , 
in the area of hard accomplishment. One of his 
great achievements was to restore th e morale of 
the American people for a time . just as he re-
stored-for a time-a faith in the institution of 
the presidency and in the idea of presidential 

leadership. He persuaded the American people 
that their optimism was once again valid. 

The nation in the next few years will be grop-
ing toward a new definition of itself. Now a nev. 
generation comes to power. Those marked by the 
formative e:w.periences of the Depression and by 
World War II will leave the stage. The generation 
of the baby boom. which was formed by the Viet 
Nam era. will begin taking over. 

Each party is now struggling toward its candi-
date. its theme. The task is harder for Repuhli -
cans. who are reluctant to break abruptly with 
Reagan and Reaganism. Still. Congressman Jad, 
Kemp tries to stir a "sense of activism .. with ideas 
for a flat ta:w. with a low rate and "enterprise 
zones" to bring businesses to depressed areas . 
Vice President George Bush. who now must ease 
judiciously out of the Reagan shadow and estab-
lish himself as his own man, told TIME. "There 
will be a reordering of priorities. and it isn ·1 in-
conceivable. in the future. that there will be more 
emphasis Ion Government's role). I do think 
there is a certain feeling !concerning) tolerance. 
compassion . understanding . caring . I think 
there's a reawakening in those areas." Robert 
Dole . in his latest speeches. stresses the need to 
combine conservatism and compassion . 

Gary Han. the Democratic front runner. de-
clares. "For all practical purposes. we have en-
tered the post-Reagan years." But he knows that 
the Democrats "won 't win by default. or because 
of some historic trend or tide . We must offer some 
concrete alternatives to the laissez-faire phi!~1- , 
phy of this Administration and to its militaristi c 
foreign policy ." Most of the Democratic cand i-
dates are cautious about criticizing "militarism ." 
for fear of being tagged antidefense . an d eve n 
more cautious about advancing big-spender ideas. 1 
the national deficit is already ruinous . Han tal~s , 
about a "more important role for Government. 
not necessarily a larger one ... Joseph B1den is 
somewhat more inspirational. evoking genera-
tional memories of John Kenned y and Ma rtir: 
Luther King Jr. and constant ly quoting a hym n 
"And he will raise you up on eagle 's wings . ' and 
bear you on the breath of the dawn ... .. 

Only Jesse Jackson preaches the old-time re -
ligion . a classic populism of the left. Trying toe:,_ . , 
pand his coalition of the dispossessed. midd lc: -
class workers and distressed farmers . Jachs._,n 
calls unashamedly for large increases in progra m, 
for education. health and public housing 

S ome Democrats delude themse lves tha t 
they can ignore Reagan ·s legac y and re -
turn to the old Democratic practice of ta, 
and spend . as if it were still 1964 Al th e 

California Democratic Convention at the end ,,f 
January. the public address system blared JltJf'f'.l 
Days Are Here Again. and many delegates s.J nh 
into a liberal nostalgia . dreaming of a redistribut · 
ed American pie . Clinton Reill y. a mode rate 
Democrat and political consultant. listened to the 
rhetoric and shook his head . "One reason fo r 
Reagan's success ," he said . "is that he appea led t0 
the self-interest of the midd le class . If De mcx-rat , 
don't learn to make the same appeal. if the~ nn l) 
talk atxrnt the need s of the poc,r and don·t ini:ludc 
the middle class . they·re g,11ng tn k)se again .. 

The Demcx-rats last year rc~·aptun:,1 i:,m tr,>I 
of Congress he..:ausc the) flcldcJ netter ..:and 1-
dates. but also hei:ause the) v.ere more fine !~ 
tuned to people's thoughts about v.h;,it the G n,-
ernment ought to be doing The Democrats v.ere 
well in control on Capit0I Hill by Christmas 
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' With 1he Administration weakened. the party 
leaders swung into place the long-deferred Demo-
cratic agenda. items thwarted during the Reagan 
years: education. job training. increased research 
for AIDS and health care. Says Democratic Hope-
ful Gephardt : "I don't think people care about 
Government or no Government. They're willing 
to use Government ifit is part of the solution. Peo-
ple want things to be solved. They want the Gov-
ernment to .make airlines safe. to find a cure for 
AIDS, to prevent more Boeskys." 

the problem. But the symbolism was important. 
Jn a nation that prides itself on its economic 
comeback from recession . the spectacle of people 
huddling around trash-can fires is ethically em-
barrassing. One makes five or ten serious moral 
choices (give money. pass them by, what?) on the 
way to work. and as many coming home. and the 
conscience at last is frayed . Says Massachusetts 
Governor Michael Dukakis. another Democratic 
presidential aspirant: "The conscience of the na-
tion is beginning to be troubled. People in every 
city see the homeless lying around on grates. even 
a few blocks from the White House. And they 
wonder, Docs this have to be?" 

The generation 
of the baby 
boom,which 
was formed by 
the Viet Nam 
era·, will begin 
taking over. To be successful in the next phase of Ameri-

can politics. candidates and parties must come up 
with specific, tough-minded solutions to well-
perceived problems. It will take great sifting and 
discipline. The recent congressional override of 
Reagan's veto of the clean-water bill suggested 
hearts in the right place (the public considers 
clean wat~r a necessity, not a luxury. and is will-
ing to sactifice for it) but minds not yet tough 
enough to resist temptation (the bill was a nice 
display of logrolling) . 

A bill for emergency aid to the homeless was 
passed by Congress last month. That was not 
tough-minded either. since the $50 million to be 
spread around the entire country can hardly solve 

The ~blic's Agenda 

In the beginning, America was a blank page. 
in Tocqueville·s phrase: no history, all potential. 
Today America, the oldest continuous political 
system in the world, has a full page of history and 
heavy debts to pay. The campaign of 1988 could 
be one of the more interesting and ;mportant in 
recent history. There is no incumbent: neither 
party has an obvious heir apparent. The nation 
wiU perform the very American act of reimagin-
ing itself. -By Lance Mon-ow. 
Reported by Laurence I. Barrett/Washington and 
Lawrence MM/dn/Boston, wtth other bureaus 

Republicans arc more ambivalent, with 44% approving 
of the cuts and 44% disapproving. Large majorities now fa-
vor increased Government spending on health care for the 

Despite six years of effort by the Reagan Administration elderly, nutrition programs for mothers and infants, housing 
to reduce the Federal Government's role in American for people with low or moderate incomes, more loans and 

life, a large majority of people still insist that Washington grants to college students, cleaning up the environment and 
should be deeply involved in keeping the U.S. healthy, well reducing acid-rain pollution. At the same time, those sur-
housed and well educated. According to a poll taken for vcyed arc cool toward additional &pending on food stamps 
llME by Yankclovich Clancy Shulman,• 77% of the public and the space program, with only about a third favoring in-
feel that in the future the Federal Government should play a creases in these areas and about the same nwnbcr wanting to 
more active role in such areas as health. housini, oducation hold spending about where it is now. ' 

. . . '. and help for the poor. And 60% of those questioncd-includ- More than a third of thole surveyed want to cut spending 
.::. , , ing 49% of Rcpublican.s--uy they would support increased on the President's Strategic Defense Initiative, although 49% 
·:. · -tpendingforaocial programs even ifit meant paying more in want spending increased or kept the same. In October 1986,- · : 
... · · . tax~. Most critical, 56% of Americans now say they would at the time of the Reykjavik. swnmit, public approval for Star . 

. prefer having a President in 1988 who would spend more on Wars stood at 64%. · · ·· · · · 
social needs, while only 33% would like a President who Americans are still generally satisfied with the overall 

. . . . would keep such spending at current reduced levels. state of affairs in the country: 60% aay things arc aoin8 well, a 
•L Fewer than one-third of those surveyed (31 %) still support drop of only two points-&i.ncc last September. The percentage 

·.increuedGovernmcntspending of those citing the economy as a 
for the military,· and 69%-in- Should GcNeu•nent spending be major problem dropped d.ra.mat-
-cluding ,s% of Republicans- lncre sed,decreased, kept ically, from SO% of those polled 
say they would spend more on a or in September 1985 to 33% today, 
eocialprogramsthanonthemili- thesarne? Kept as inflation and interest rates 
tary if they had to choose be- ------------•-=ncrused==~-0ecru-=-::,..,.sec1-,...,"==me have withered and stock prices 
tween the two. Public opinion Health programs for the elderly 78% 2% 18% have leaped to record highs. Nor 
has changed on this issue as the The environment 73% 5% 19% is there widespread concern 
Reagan Administration has ful- Aid to the homeless 71% 5% 21% about the federal deficit: only 
filled its mandate: in the last year scv 22cv 12% of the people polled now 
of the Carter Administration: Heallh services fort he poor 71 % J'O J'O consider Government spending 
78% favored spending more for Nutrition programs for major problem, in contrast to 
national defense. mothers and infants ' 55% 6% 34% 22% -as recently as September 

. The ~blic is not ~n~ly Reducing acid-rain pollution 54% 11% 25% 1985.-Forall the public attention 
pleased wtth the Adrrurustra- . dnig abuse has received , only 
lion's tighten:apending).policies~''·"'Low-,andmodendc.mcome-v; ; . . -. , . . · • .. '9Cii,cite<it a:.-,puticular~.· 
The poll found that 62% of housing ·S4% 11%° 32% A great concern for Ameri-
Amcricans arc aware that there Loans and grants to college cans is the nation's schools: 
have been cutbacks in some so- students 52% 15% 29% 56% agree that U.S. education 
cial programs during the Rea- 33% 24% 36% is poor, and 49% say cduca-
gan years; 61 % of the public The food-Stamp program tional standards have become 
disapprove of them . The space program 33% 27% 34% worse . Fully 65 <.7c. meanwh ile. 

Th Tl 31% 25% 38% favor giv ing ··substantiall y 
"The survey of 1.014 adults was taken __ e_m_l_l_a-'rj'-' --------=,:;;::-::-:--==7----:.== high •· h l 
by telephone Feb. 17-18. The potential Star Wars 23% 35% 26% er pay to I.Cac crs 0 
um piing error is plus or minus 3% . improve the schools. 
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Freeman. William, M. 
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Mark•• Charle• 
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Oates, Caleb 
Strother•• Barbara. D. 
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Dahlquist. Arnold 
Havran, Doris 
Biahop Berluf Jen1en 
Kaaabach. Carol 
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Regan. Christine 
SchultE-Rotbermer, Michael 
Seavy. Marie 
Stewart. Peggy 
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Clark 1 Donald 
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Lealie 1 Chris 
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UNITED METHODIST CH. NJ. AREA 
Applegate. Lloyd 
Craaaey, Wayne, R. 
Emery, Edna 
B11ery 1 Ward 
Dexheimer, John 
Gough, Raymond 
Rolland, Bettilou 
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Jon••• Ralph 
Lehaan, Bruce 
Lytle, John, G. 
Moore, Robert 
Moaher, Bruce 
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Trainor, Thomas 
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Wake, Edward 
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Bearden, Jane 
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Bomboy, Charles, L. 
Bradman, Richard, I. 
Carnero••• Margaret 
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Davidaon, Loui•• 
DuVal, Henry 
DuVal, Virginia 
George, Karen 
Gillette, Bruce 
Hayn••• S. B. 
Jenkin•, !. 
Little, Betty 
Mitchell, Ida 
North, Barbara 
Olson, Alic• 
Phillipa, Baaa 
Reynold&, Lea 
Roan~ Jack 
Strock, Francia 
Schluter. Nancy 
Stout, Betty __ 
Turner, Eugene · 
Wais, Edith 
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Smith, Michael 
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NEW JERSEY STATE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

VICE CHAIRMAN 
Mrs. Marie Himes 
P.O. Box 1024 
Bricktown. NJ 08723 
(201) 477-9014 

SECRETARY 
Mr. George G Hooper 
324 Hig~. Street 
Nutley. NJ 07110 
(201) 667-4268 

Mr; Chairman, members of the State Government Committee, my name is 
Esther Abrams, I live in Princeton, NJ and I am Chairman of the New Jersey 
State Legislative Committee of the American Association of Retired Persons, 
or AARP. I am here representing the over 900,000 AARP members in New Jersey. 

The AARP nationally, as well as on the state level, is opposed to calling 
for a constitutional convention for the purpose of writing a balanced budget 
constitutional ammendment. Proponents of attempting this convention method for 
the first time in our history claim that it can be limited to one issue, a 
balanced budget. However, representatives of groups with many different 
political viewpoints, as well as legal scholars, have shown that in Article V 
there is no enforceable mechanism to prevent a convention from reporting out 
wholesale changes in our Constitution and Bill of Rights. 

The AARP has over 24 million members nationwide, and these members have many 
diverse viewpoints. Since Article V does not include any guidelines or 
procedure for the convening and functioning of a convention, and since there 
is no enforceable mechanism to ensure representative selection of delegates, 
there is also a clear danger that a runaway convention in the hands of single-
issue groups would take away our most precious freedom, the right to express 
these diverse viewpoints. 

AARP members have lived through severe challenges to our Constitution 
during the great depression and World War II; and we have fought in various 
ways to preserve the precious freedoms our Constitution provides for people of 
all ages and beliefs. We urge you to vote against ACR-54 and to place 
New Jersey in the forefront of those who are working to preserve our 
United States Constitution 

77~ 

Esther C. Abrams 
Chairman, N.J. SLC 

American As~oci:ition of Retired Per~,m, 1909 I..: Street. 1\ .W .. Wa~hington. DC. 2()(W CJ 12021 872-..170(1 
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LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS OF NEW JERSEY 
204 WEST STATE STREET, TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 08608 / TELEPHONE 1-800-792-VOTE / 609-394-3303 

Testimony on ACR.54 before 
Assembly State Government Committee 

April 13, 1987 

Good morning. I am Marie Curtis, Legislative Vice President of the 

League of Women Voters of New Jersey. We appreciate the opportunity to 

address the committee on ACR.54. The League of Women Voters of New Jersey 

opposes ACR.54 . We believe this measure, if passed, could threaten the 

democratic framework of our country. The League of Women Voters also opposes 

ACR.54 for fiscal reasons. 

All of us are concerned that the federal deficit has grown out of all 

proportions. The League of Women Voters believes that the current federal 

deficit, as projected to 1990, should, and must, be reduced . To accomplish 

this, the government should rely primarily on reductions in defense spending 

through selective cuts and the elimination of waste and duplication. The 

League opposes across-the-board federal spending cuts. 

We recognize that deficit spending is some times economically appropriat e 

and necessary. The League therefore opposes a constitutionally mandated 

balanced budget for the federal government. We could support deficit spend ing, 

if necessary, for stimulating the economy during recession to avoid depression, 
for meeting social needs in time s of high unemployment, or for meeting 

defense needs in time s of national s e cur ity crises . When surviva l is a t 
stake, as in WWII, for instance , gove rnmen t needs flexibilit y . 

ACR.54 also seeks a constitutional convention. This concept is dangerous 

to our way of life. The League of Women Voters believes in representative 

government, in the individual liberties established in the Constitution of the 

United States, and in the balance of powers set up by the Constitution. We 

believe that the system for amending uur Constitution, as se t up by our fore-

fathers, has functioned well for two centuries. If a constitutional conve ntion 

we re to be c'a J::led, obT guvl:!Ttrmen't a l ' sy st·em··c oul d'' be · i.'Ti ' j'eopc!rdy ; .• ' Although 

this resolution refers only to a balanced budget amendment, once the convention 

is called, anything could happen. We recognize tha t legal and government a l 

Continued 
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experts disagree on the _extent of the authority such a body would have. 

Professionals differ on the interpretation of the constitutional provisions 

for such a convention. We believe delegates to such a gathering could 
jeopardize our individual liberties. 

Our Constitution has functioned admirably for 200 years, through 

prosperity and adversity. In this bicentennial anniversary year we should 

not tamper with this most remarkable and successful document. 



' trongrtssional Rtcord 
nOC'IRID«!"Gt AND DDA'nS Ol' no 99• 001"GUSS, IICIOND SISSION 

.Senate 
BALANCED BUDGET , 

CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT'· . 
Mr. BRADLEY. Mr. Prealdent"; "the ·duce. the fiexlblllty whJch the Constl-

lasue .of balanced bu~eta h"'8 been tutlc,n now lives to the President and 
before this boOy many times. It eeems · Conareaa to pursue poUctes which pro-
that we spend inore and more of the mote economic growth and 1tablllt1. 
Senate's time deb&tlna Federal budget Mr. President, a study wu recently 
policy . .lust tut year, the Con,reas en• conducted b:v Data ·Resources, Inc. 
acted the Gramm-Rudman lesia].Atlon. ahnulatlng the eoonomtc Impact of a 
In 1982, the Senate adopted a constl, balanced budget ln filcal year rnc::i, 
tutlonal amendment to be.lance the when the economy had not yet recov-
bud&et. The constitutional amend- ered from the receseion. Accordlni' to 
ment now before the Senate Is very their proJections, the effects would 
stmnar to the measure adopted by the have been devastattnrc. In 1983, ren.1 
~riate 1n 1982, but rejected by the O:fl."'P would have decllned by 4 percent 
House. · n.tht!r than rrowtns by 8-' percent. By 

Mr. President, as with so nia.ny of the end of 1986, h.flA the budget Ileen 
the lssues debated 1n the U.S. Senate, required to be balanced 1n 1983, real 
Members &re deeply divided over this ONP would atlll be below its 19f.l 
issue. But we all agree that deflclt.s level. The unemployment rate in 1985 
must be reduced. We all agree that we would have been 12.4 percent. Now 
crumot afford to continue to accumu- mP.3'be these projections F.l'e too pessl-
ls.te the bluest budiet deficit& 1n our m.istlc. But I remu.ln convlnced that lt 
11lt!tory. . would not have been good economic 
· And we all &gree on the problem. policy to bais.nce the bud{:et ln 1933. 
The problem, as we all know, Is thet Mr. President, after ratlficntion of 
Conrre&l'J and the President-in our thl.s constltutlon:&1 amendment, whe.t 
desire to meet the many needs of the if we find out that we were \\TOng? It 
American people-find it ea.sler to takes yea.rs to a.mend the Corn;titution. 
expand pro:;ra,mB &nd to cut taxes And it can B.lso take yeB.?'B to repeal an 
than to eliminate programs a.nd to ln• amendment to the Com:.itutlon. 
creue te.xea. Whe.t we enact today in th.13 body by 

The consensus disappears, Mr. Pres!• statute can be removed tomorrow by 
dent. when we debate how to bring etatute. This is not the case for a. con-
down deflclt8. Althourh I do not atltutlonal amendment. If a mr.Jority 
concur, I recoi?llze that most members in thl.s body wants a br.la.nced budget, 
tn this body are convinced that we then let W! pa.ss statutes requiring it; 
need to be bound to a balMced but let u.s not tie the ha.nds of future 
budget. The longer we debate -these Congresses by including this travesty 
l!ssues the more I am convinced th.rt 1n the U.S. Constitution. 
we don't need procedural or constltu• Mr. President, l &I.so want to d.lscuss 
ttonal answers to the deficit problem. the Lmpn.ct of ln!latlon on real deficit 
The Senate has all the procedures it spending. Some economl.sts would sa~· 
needs to reduce deficits. It la.cks the the ln!lation premium bunt into gov-
v.rlll. emment payments on the public debt 

I believe that a constltutions.1 should not be matched by revenue . 
amendment 1a not the answer. Ena.ct, With lnterest rates at 8 percent and 

, •. ment ,.o! t.hlD legislation would be bad inflation at about 4 percent, the Gov-
econom1t 1>01iey;• ,._,ould~be~br.d0 ·isublitf "emm~rtt''P&YS•:about' ·$8.0 ' bllllon, a ,·y,es,r." 
policy and would be ba.d constitutional just to help Treo.sury blll holders keep 
policy. ·up with ln!latlo:1. But under a ba.1-

First e.nd foremoot, Mr. President, a· 1 anced budget &mendment, t..he Govern-
constitutton&l amendment requiring e. 1mcnt would ha.ve to l'?liBe that $CO bll· 
J)ahmcod budget 1a . nawed th1nkln& lion through a.dd!ticn~l t.P.xes. Thnt 
-P.bout economics. Indeed, r..rJoptton meo.ns that the public gets ta.xed 
could poo-e n very serloWI threr,t to the twice-once through &n inflation t~ 
economic health of the ntr.tlon. ~t:.'b- on the real value o! TreMury bllls, Md 
liBhlng . n constltutlonnl requfr("ment once through dir~t ta,:es. Yet the 
for a bale.need budget draatlc&lly re, public receives only enough to cover 

rox 



·the tnnation-tax. So und,er a balanced, Under the proppaed conatttutional 
budget regime, the oo, emment will amendment unless eo ·aenators 
a.ctually . dra.in re,ources from the · agreed these automatic atablllzers 
public as long as lnfiation ate.)·• abo\'e would 'have to be curtalled or oth 
zero. If this la so, then this Is so, the~ · prosrama would be u.crltlced to ke:~ 
this ls a good deal for the Oov~rn them rotng; Spendina automatically · 
ment. but a terrible o~e for constitu- lncreasea during ttmea of recession to 

. tents. . prola:t people 1n need: havlna' to b&l· 
Mr. President, there IS one last point! ance the budget durin& tlmea of recea-

1 wquld like to make on the economic J l!on hurta people 1n need. 
consequences of -the balanced budgetj PlnlJ.ly, Mr. President, what about 
proposal now before · us. This amend- defense spendlna? Bow would It fare if 
ment has a atrona. bias · toward In• . we enacted the balanced budget 
creased tax ea. Under the amenclm~t, amendment? Since def enae apendJ.ni is 
it takes eo votes for Oovemmertt to . the largest dlacretlonaey component of 
spend more than tt takes .ln. but only a 1·Pederal spending, lt la the area that 
constitutional maJorlty-51 votes-tc, would probably suffer the greatest dis-
raise Government'• revenues. Jmartne rupt1ons: Roy Aah, the OMB Director 
a rea.r at the. start of a r~esslQn when under President.a Nixon and Ford, re-
a deficit looma up after we are .already cently Polntecl out: · 

. tnto the ti.seal yea.r. The Constitution The provlalon ln the propoeed amendment 
requires a balanced budget and Con~ wa.tvtnr Its effect lf wu ta declared le too 
gre53 cannot ma.rshall 80 votes for def• blunt an lNtrument to deal with real de• 
1cit spendini, But only 51 Senators are fenae needa. It ii much more deatrable to 
needed to raise revenues. · · · manace defense PGlicr 10 a.a to avoid the 

What will happen, Mr. President? dec.Jaratlon Of war. That uaulilly Involve<! 
Taxes will be raised Is the.t good eco- · Ule build up or forcet to deter ot.ber& and. if 

• , · &beolu~lf necetwiry, to prepue tor v.•u. l t nomJc po.Icy, Mr. President? Of course 1a lronlc that the 1:1roPo&ed amendment 
not. Ralslng tues durinb a recession ta would require a eo-~rcent vat,, to override 
widely accepted by almost . all econo• budr,ct balance 10 as to ·avoid 'WM.r, 1et only 11 
mists a.s precisely the wrong thing to IO-pe~nt La required to declare w~. 
do-a .Prescription tor worsening ~o-' Fln&Jly, Mr. President, I object. to 
nomtc conditions. . thl8 amendment on constltutloru.l 

Mr. President, I also oppose the bal-· crounda. Since the adoption of our 
anced bud,..ct amendment because of Constitution In 1 '789, the &mendment 
the devastatlni effects it could ha\'e-' proceo., has been uaed very ep&.ritlffl:,,. 
pa..rticule.rly during a recession-on de• . Twelve of the 28 amendments to the 
tense a.nd nondetense Feder:al prior- Conatitutlon protect the rights of tncll-
it1e:i. vtduc.lt : The.ce include the BUI of. 

In January 1981, President Carter Rlght.s, the prohibition of slavery, aod 
projected that the 1982 budget deficit \ the IUEU'8.ll~ of due ProcesG and 
would be $28 billion; the actual 1982 equ~ · protectJon . . Pive or the 2G 
deficit WIUI $111 billion. In January , amendments extend the ri~t to vol:-€: 
1PB2, President Reagan proJectec that ! To all ~. to both s~;;e:1, t<> t.he Du:-
the 1983 deficit would. be $.92 billion: I trict of Columbtn, to all income class• 
the actual 1983 deficit wn.s $19!l bll- e&-t.hat la, prohibiting a poH ta.x-e.n ::7 
lion. A significant share of the dl.Gparl• to 18-year-olcl!l. Seven of the 2G 
ty in these projections was directly re- . amendment.& deal with how OW' 00\'• 
lated to a miacalculatlon or the ma.r.nl- erntnent should be structured: Judic.l.c.1 
tude of the · 1982 recession. · Whtlt Power, t.he electoral colleee, countint 
would have happened l! the balanced former alavea In &pJ>Ortlonment of the 
budget amendment had been the law BOWie of Re1>reaentatlves, the income 
of the land 1n 1983? We • would have tax, popular election · of Senators, 
· hs.d to drutlcally cut programs or fixing dates of conaremdonal le8lrtom 
raise taxes almost $100 bllllon more and Pres.l~nt.h:J 1naucurat.1on.,, 
than anticipated at the beginning or tenure, dis.'lbllity, &nd succession. 
the yee.r. Of the 26 amend.menu, enacted, e.U 

We currently have in piace many but two have been drafted t.o correct & 
progra.rn1; that operate e.s automatic Ol\w 1n the original structure or t h1,., 
str.bllizcrn. These programs-such as Constitution or to protect the fund n.-
uncmployment Insure.nee, food mcntnl rtgll.w of Amcrlc.m citl..z.cru;. 
str.mps, and AFDC-assbL those Ca.re hM been ta.ken to avoid endors• 
people who are most directly affected 1ne,: specific pror,ra.ms or to lml)C)G-e rt' · 
by a sr.gglng economy. While Congress 11trtJnt.-1 on the Govemm~nt's need t,t;, 
hM never been very good at fashion- act beyond the rn1nimum neeeasn.ry t.o 

eflcctive, recesslon•SPl-Cl!ic coun- · a,murc lndh. ldurJ llbertle-: c..nd 1>reservc 
tercycllcr.l spendtng r;,roir.nras, these a Fedeml system. The only two ex~.:->-
e.utomatic lltablllzers do provide tioru: r.re the amcndmento whlcl1 were 
needed'beneflts in time of need. PUied to esta.bl.i&h Prohibition s.nd then to rep£,al it. 
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Prohibition-establbhed by the 18th Inatea.d of mutn1 tough choices, we 
amendment &nd repealed by the · 21st are putting 1n place a lengthy process 
aniendrnent-was a scar on the face of to absorb the attention of Concre& 
our Constitution. Jta propc,nents and the States In an effort which at 
1ereamed, "Keep us from drinklng!". best will not be timely enou1h to solve 
only to find there wu not the will our current economic problems and at 
equal to the words, wonst wm create new ones. 

M.'r. President, I find a parallel be· 1 urse my colleaeuea to Join me ln 
tween the Prohibition amendment and 0 ppcslng t.he balanced. budget amend-
the bala.nced budget amendment. Pro- ment. 
ponents of the amendment acream, 
"Keep ua from apendiqt" only to find 
that there· must be the will to equal 

, the worda. . 
In aiy opinion, and in the Judgment 

of many noted legt.l IIChola.ra, the pro-
posed balanced bud&et amendment ii 
more Wte the prohibition amendments 
tha.n any of the 24 others dealing with 
Individual liberties or Government 
atructure. Like the prohibition &mend• 
menta, the balanced bud1et amend-
ment renects more transitory con-
cerns. Our experience 1n the case of 
prohibition ahoUld not be ignored now. 

The Co111Utut1on ls our most impor-
tant public docwnent, the founde.trion 
of our democracy. There Is no need to 
chanie It in any way tn order to 
achieve & b&lanced budset. Nothinf! in 
the Constitution stands 1n our way. 
We can have a balanced budget when-
ever enou~h Members of Congre!:..!; are 
ready to vote !or one, and it is either 
an illusion or a ael!-reveallne e.dmis-
alon to u.y the.t Senators have so little 
discipline that we need to change the 
fundamental lr.w o! the land to force 
us to do what we have the power to do 
now. 

In conclusion, Mr. Prea!dent, the br.1-
a.nced budget amendment mel:es no 
sense. In fa.ct, while I believe thll.t re-
ducinsr the deficit ls absolutely ~n-
tla.l, balanc1nit t.be bud~et 18 not. Con-
tr&ry to the sponsors' favorite analoQ', 
the national 1overnment ts not shntln.r 
to a houaehold. Nor ls it similar to a 
State government. The national gov• 
emment has national economic re-
aponslbilitles th&.t m.adate money be 
apent · under certain economic condi-
tions. That is the price of humane 1ov· 
emment ln the 20th century. 

Mr. President, slza.ble deficit reduc-
tion will not occur untii members hn.ve 
the will to m&ke the dUflcult polltlca.l 
choices that we c.ll know have to be 
made. And it ls those tough choices we 
&re elected to decide. Just a.a we exer-
cise our judrm~nt on other legislative 

.. -~ ;tne:public,:baa,a.=ahtr1o>expect · •.. .. ., . 
their elected oftlctala to exercise Jud~-
ment and D1oderation 1n respondl.nc to 
· our aerioua fiacal a.nd economic prob-
lems. 
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My name is Gayle Brody Sorkow. I am the Executive Director 

of the N.J. Area of The American Jewish Committee. Thank you 

very much for the opportunity to present testimony at this public 

hearing. Since its founding in 1906, The American Jewish 

Committee has been vitally concerned with the constitutional 

r i ghts , freedoms and responsibilities of all Americans. 

Article V of the Constituion, as we know, provides, in 

pertinent part: " Th e Co n g r e s s . . . o n th e a pp 1 i c at i o n o f t h e 

legislatures of two-thirds of the several States, shall call a 

convention for proposing amendments, which .•• shall be valid .•• 

when ratified by the legislatures of three-fourths of the 

several states ...• " But Article Vis silent concerning procedures 

and guidelines for the convening and functioning of a convention. 
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The only other constitutional convention America has ever 

had, of course, was in 1787. It was called to revise the 

Articles of Confederation, but it went betond its mandate, 

scrapped the old document, and drafted a whole new Constitution, 

the one we are 1 iv ing under today, as amended. Although the 

campaign for a new convention is focused on the balanced budget 

issue, once a constitutional convention is assembled there is 

really nothing to prevent "open season" on the rest of the 

Constitution, for example, the First Amendment, as wel 1 as on 

other provisons of the Bill of Rights which some disgruntled 

citizens may find objectionable. The actual language of Article 

V, it should be stressed , speaks of "a convention for proposing 

amendments" - plural. Specifically, there is little question 

that if a convention were to be held today, powerful drives 

would be mounted, among many other things, to nullify the 

Supreme Court decisions which prohibit organized prayer and 

religious instruction in public schools. 

be a "runaway" convention. 

In short, it could 

The drive for a national constitutional convention has bee n 

fueled by the determination, in many ways understandable, to bar 

deficit spending by the Federal government. But unless this 

campaign is blunted, our country may be moving into a major 

constiruct.-i-ona..L -c.ri,.si,,s ... ,.whi,cb .. coll.l.q , do .,.serious damage .to the bod y ,, .. 

politic. Legal scholars have expressed grave reservations abou t 

the convention route for amending the Constitution because it is 

untested, unclear, and would require legislative and/or judicial 

resolution of countless controversial questions before they could 
be implemented. 
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There are virtually no ground rules or precedents to follow. 

Here are just a few of the questions that could plague us: Must 

the state applications be on the same issue and contain identical 

language? What period of time is allowable for passage of appli-

cations? May a state legislature withdraw its application? Are 

iss~es arising during the convention process or procedures 

justifiable in courts of law? What is the proper manner of 

delegate selection? How are internal rules of the convention to 

be made, who presides, and what power does the presiding official 

possess? Does Congress even have the authority to provide 

answers to questions such as these, or does the convention 

itself? 

The first convention, of course, produced our venerable 

Constitution. But we may not be so lucky next time. If a 

convention meets and considers its agenda, the only restraint on 

it may well be whatever restraint it imposes on itself. If it 

does not practice self-restraint and goes beyond its mandate, it 

is quite likely that there will be no way to rein it in. It is 

entirely possible that the courts and Congress will be powerless 

to intervene. Congress may not be able to restrict the agenda 

of a modern day convention any more than the Continental Congress 

was able to restrict the origfnal convention of 1787. Even if 

Congress were to adopt convention procedures, once convened, 

there is nothing to prevent a convention from rejecting any 

or all Congressional restrictions on its activity. Such a 

convention might well deem itself, as did the 1787 assembly, as 

the supreme contitutional body and justified in enacting wholesale 
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constitutional change. If this is the case, the only restraint 

would come at the very end when the states would be called upon 

to approve or disapprove the convention's work. 

State ratification can be accomplished either by the state 

legislature or by a ratification convention. The convention 

process would set off a chain reaction of "delegate packing" 

campaigns by special interest groups. Either ratification 

method could take several years, throwing the nation into 

constitutional limbo and even creating international uncertainty 

about the stability of our government. None of this is ver y 

reassuring. As Charles Cotesworth Pinckney of South Carolina 

said at the cone 1 us ion of the 1787 convention, "Co nven ti ons are 

serious things, and they ought not to be repeated." 

Our government must, of course, find better answers to th e 

agonizing and persistent problem of deficit spending. But those 

answers will hardly be found in the straitjacket of a constitu-

tional amendment which could not possibly respond t o economic 

fluctuations. Morever, the worst possible forum for deliberatin g 

on critical economic policy issues would be the constitutional 

convention now being proposed, one which could well be uncontrol-

lable and subject to the most. emotional and demagogic appeals. 

The answers to our complex economic problems must be found, 

through more effective use of our existing political machinery, 

through courageous actions on both the executive and legislative 

levels. That's where the responsibility belongs: on the 

President and the Congress. 
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The threat to our basic liberties which a constitutional 

convention would entail is not trivial. One of the frightening 

things about these pressures for a convention that have been 

increasing for the past few years is that so few people know 

very much about them. On the whole, it has not been a subject 

of _serious public discussion. Surely all Americans who value . 

our hard-won basic freedoms, and recognize the difficult evolu-

tionary process through which they have developed, will not want 

to put them at the mercy of an uncharted and possibly free-

wheeling convention, no matter what their views on a balanced 

Federal budget may be. 

If we take such great care, as of course we do, when we 

consider a single amendment to the Constitution, how much more 

cautious ought we to be before endorsing a call for a constitu-

tional convention that might drastically revise the entire set 

of structures and relationships of our government and people. 

In the words of James Madison, "Having witnessed the dif-

ficulties and dangers experienced by the first Convention which 

assembled under very propitious circumstances, I should tremble 

for the result of a second." 

In view of the foregoing? it is without question that the 

risks posed by a constitutional convention far outweigh the 

possible benefits. If our citizenry truly believes that a 

balanced budget is essential to proper government, there is no 

reason that a balanced budget amendment cannot be proposed. 
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Simply put, it is out of proportion to seek a constitutional 

convention, with its unlimited dangers, in order to solve a 

problem that can be solved by a more direct approach. For all 

these reasons, we urge that the Committee defeat this resolution. 



I am Fr ank J . Coppa a priva t e ci ti zen . I welcome the opportunit y to 

exp re ss s ome t hought s on ACR 54 . I would like t o briefly outline some of 

the pr ov i sions of t he Cons titutiona l Convention Implementation Act of 1985. 

(U.S . Senat e Report 99-1 35 , 99th Congres s , 1st session). This act requires 

delega t e s support the Cons tit u t ion of th e United States as well as the 

provisions of t he Ac t . The Ac t re qu i re s t ha t the rules governing the,con-

vent i on be de t e r mine d by t hr ee - fif t hs of t re total number of sworn delegates. 

The conven t ion wil l be opened by t he Pre sicient of the Sena te and the Speaker 

of the House of Representatives acting jointly , t hey wi ll preside ove r t he 

convention un t il the conven t ion elects it s own of fic ers . Vo ting a t t he 

convention is not by unit vote i . e . , s t a t es, but by i nd i v i dual del egates. 

Each delegate is entitled to one vote . T~e actual leng t h o f t he c onve n tion 

is to be six oonths and the conve~tion is tc advise th e pu~lic in a ''t imely 

manner''. Moreover, th~ conventi on is limited by t he Act and may no t pr opos e 

an amendment or amend~e~ts outside the reasons for its call . The pr oduc t of 

the convention is subreitted to Con~ress to c~sure t he convention has not 

exceeded its authority . The Congress t hen selects the mode of rati fica t ion , 

i.e., state legislatures or smte conventicns and a time period for ra t ifica ti on, 

i.e. , not less than four years . lf t~e Ccngres~ abuses its autho r i t y a state 

may appeal to the Supreme Court for r el~ef T~e Act quo t es fro~ dis tinguished 

scholars pertaining t o the linitations of subject ma tt er a t a c ons t i tut iona l 

conven t ion. Among t hese l egal scholars are Pr ofessor Paul Kauper , [ n ive rsit y 

of Michigan Law School, r . s. Senator Sa~ Ervin, Prof e ssor ~allace Mend el son , 

[niversity of Texas , Professor Phillip Kurland, [nive r sity of Ch ic ago Law 

School, Professor John Xoonan, [niversit·· of Cali~o r ni2 Sch oo ~ o~ Law , Profes s or 

Thomas Cooley et . al . In the word~ of Pro~essor Henr~ C~mnbell Black, 
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"A Constitutional convention h as no authorit y to enact legislation of a 

general sort, and if the convention is called for the purpose of amending the 

Constitution in a specific part, the delegates have n o power to act upon and 

propose amendments in other parts of the constitution" (West Publishing 1927, 

p. 45 as quoted in U.S. Senate Report 99-135 p. 60, 99th Congress, 1st session 

p. 60). 

Or in the words of Professor Paul Bator, 

"On the strict legal question , the better view is that there is nothing 

in Article V to prevent the Congress fro~ limiting the constitutional convention 

to the subject that made the States call for it" (Professor Pau l Bator, Harvard 

Law School "A Constitutional Convention: How \,;ell Would It Work" (American 

Enterpris e Institute Forum, 1979 pg . 78 as quoted in U.S . Senate Report 99-13 5, 

99th Congress, 1st session p. 60). 

Yet despite the testimony of so many distinguished legal scholars ''few 

subjects, according t o Senator Mathias, have been debated with more fervor by 

constitional scholars in recent years. The results of t hat debate can only be 

characterize d as inconclusive ." (U.S. Senate Report 99-135, 99th Congress, 1st 

session p. 63). This is e choed by Senator Eiden, '' ... some of this nation's 

fore most constitutional scholars have expressed to the Com,~ittee their opinion 

that Congress cannot statutori ly limit a convention ... '' (t . S . Senate Report 

99-135, 99th Congress 1st se ssion p. 69). Professor Gerald Gunther in a letter 

to Senator Leahy writes '' ... I am persuaded by the t ext , history and structure 

of the Constitution that a constitutionql c onvention, once it is convened, is 

essentially on its own bottom: it was intende d to be and should be a separate, 

essentially autonomous forum of cons titutional decisionmaking.'' ([.S. Senate 

Report 99-135, 99th Congress , 1st session p. 70). 
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Several issues remnin, one is the age of the petitions. The American 

Bar Association Special Constitutional Convention Study Committee recommends 

seven years as did Senator Ervin's version of the constitutional convention 

act which passed the U.S. Senate in 1971 and 1973. In addition, in 1921 the 

U.S. Supreme Court in Dillon v. Gross established the principle of "contempor-

aneous consensus" for petitions - so that an amendment wou~d not " ••• arise from 

an alliance between one generation and other" (U.S. Senate Report 99-135, 99th 

Congress, 1st session p. 74). 

The delegates from each state would equal that states Congressional 

delegation. Two would be elected at large, the rest from congressional districts. 

Members of Congress and federal employees are excluded as delegates. The Act, 

according to Senator Mathias, does not address the question of age, qualifications 

or the need to be a citizen of the United States (U.S. Senate Report 99-135, 

99th Congress, 1st Session, p. 67). Moreover, according to Professor Black 

of Yale Law School, the Act does not follo~ the principle of ''one person - one 

vote". In earlier comrr.ents Senator Baucus of Nontana sees the method of 

allocating delegates as a'' ... potential threat to Western interests ... dominated 

by the powerful and populous Eastern anf }:idwestern states ... aLd '' ... without 

substantially diverging from their original purpose, the delegates ... might 

adopt ... the power to veto individual itens ... '' (r.s. SeLate Report 98-594, 

98 Congress, 2nd session p.76). 

In other developments, in 1983 the ~o~~ittee on the Constitutional 

System was incorporated - it included among its members Mr. Douglas Dillon, 

former secretary of the treasury in the Kennedy administratio~, Mr. Lloyd 

N. Cuthler, former cousel to President Carter and U.S. Senator Landen 

(Sundquist, 1986, p.8 ) . Professor Sundquist participated in the deliberations 

of the Committee on the Constitufional System - and in his Constitutional 
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Reform and Effective Government he lists priorities for government reformers. 

1. The team ticket. This would prevent the voter 

from ticket splitting by combining each party's 

candidates for president, vice-president, senate 

and house (Sundquist, 1986, p.240.) 

2. A four year term for House and eight for Senate. 

3. "A method for special elections to reconstitute 

a failed government." This is defined as a "special 

election ... callable at &ny time by the president or a 

majority of either house of Congress. All seats in 

both houses as ,,·ell as the presidency &,d v ice presidency 

should be fille ci 2t t he elec tion " (Sundquist, 19 86 , 

p. 240-241). 

4. "Remova l of prohibit ion against dual officeholding", 

i.e., permitting members of Congress t o serve in t he 

executive bran ch (Sundquist, 1986, p. 240) . 

5. A limited item vet o (Sundquist, 19 86 , p . 241) . 

6 . The return of t he l egislative ve t o (Sundquist 1986, 

p. 24l) . 

7 . Placin~ the terms of t he War Powers Resolution in the 

Constitution (Sundquist, 1986, p. 241). 

8 . Approval of tre a ties by a major it y of the membership of 

both houses (Sundqu ist, 1986, p.241). 

. ·.:. , 

19 86 p. 241). 
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In the last chapter, Professor Sundquist relates the above to the balanced 

budget amendment" ... Should the balanced budget movement succeed in compelling 

a convention, then, and that body decide to consider additional matters, 

critics of governmental structure would have an opportunity to advance any 

proposals that, because of their effect on the Congress itself, would not be 

likely to be initiated by the legislators in the normal manner" (Sundquist, 

1986, pp. 245-246). 

The federal budget deficit is a major threat to the quality of life . 

. Is there an acceptable course of action? Perhaps a suggestion is fouud 

buried in the call for the direct election of United States Senators. 

" ... It is sorr.etimes said that valid a?plications were received fron 

two-thirds of the States in 1912 for such a convention and that Congress, 

in order to avoid a c onven ti on , reporte d a direct election amendment to the 

States in lieu of calling a convention ... '' (U.S. Senate, Report 99-135, 99th 

Congress, 1st session, p.i2.) 

''A review of the texts of applications submitted by the State le g islatures 

that were printed in the Congre8sional Record shows that one of the resolutions 

often cited was not an application but merely a memorial from a State urging 

that the Congress propose an amend~ent on direct election .. '.' (U.S. Senate Report, 

99-135, 99th Congress, 1st session p. 12.) 

If the purpose is to balance the federal budget, careful examination 

should be given to the "memorial" i.e., legislative proclamations. Such 

"memorials" would not call for a constitutional convention, bi..;t would call 

to the Congress and the media the urgency of requiring a balanced federal 

budget. In my judgement these "memorials" could be approved by the thirty 

four or more state legislatures in less than one year. Such an action, so 

swiftly undertaken, might through the mobilization of public opinion, although 

not legally require, prompt Congress to adopt a balanced budget amendment. 

93x 
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Sources: 

Constitutional Convention Implementation Act of 1985. Report together with 

Supplemental and Additional Views of the Committee on the Judiciary, U.S. 

Senate on S. 40 as amended. Sept. 10, 1985. 99th Congress, 1st Session, 

Report 99-135. 

Constitutional Convention Implementation Act of 198 4 . Report together with 

Supplemental and Additional Views of the Com,uittee on the Judiciary , U.S. 

Senate on S. 119 as amended. August 10, 198 4 . 98t h Congres s , 2nd Ses s i on, 

Report 98-594. 

James L. Sundquist, Cons titutional Reforra and Effec t ive Gover nme~ t 

(Wash., D.C. The Brookings Ins titu t i on , 198 6) . 

9fx 
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American Civil Liberties Union of New Je:rse3 
38 Walnut Street . . . - . ·. ' · · · · 
Newark, New Jersey 07102 
(201) 642-2084 

Ed ward Martone 
Executive Director 

Hon. Richard A. ZiITrner 
Chair 
Assembly State Government Corrmittee 
State House Annex, CN-068 
Trenton 1 New Jersey 08625 

Dear Assemblyman Zirrmer, 

... .,:.-

Stephen Latimer 
.. President 

October 27,1986 

As I testified before your Corrrnittee on October 21. 
1986, the American Civil Liberties Union of New Jersey opposes 
ACR 54, which petitions Congress to call a constitutional 
convention to propose an amendment to the United States 
Constitution requiring a balanced budget. 

pie Neiss-:: 
!Agal Direcrc: 

The ACLU recognizes that Article V provides for a 
constitutional convention as one method of proposing 
amendments. However, we oppose use of that method in the 
absence of legislation or rules insuring in advance, at a 
mini 1num, that delegates to a convention would be fairly 
representative, that the rules for conduct of the convention 
will protect the civil liberties of the participants and the 
public, and that the convention will confine itself to the 
subject of the call. There is no existing federal legislation 
assuring the convention would be so constituted and conducted . 

. Moreover. neither ACR 54 nor any of the other state petitions 
for such a convention require such limitations. Under these 
circumstances, the ACLU of ~ew Jersey opposes this call for a 
convention as an alternative to having Congress propose the 
amendment, which is the method of amending the Constitution 
that has been used without exception since its adoption. 

Thank you for affording us the opportunity to corrment on 
ACR 54. Please let me know if you have any further questions 
about our pos ition. 

El\/rds 

95x 

( S~•:~1l1JJ1ti 
~isser 
Legal Director 
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YOUR OPINION COLUMN 
The Jersey Journal 
30 Journal ::;<1,wre 
Jersey City, Now J~rsey, 07002 

Deer Editor: 

.llpril 7th, 19~7 

I would like to point out thlllt the Wo~ld Congress of \torld Assoc 
tion o! World federalists have somehow wormed, (vnd I do me~n wo 

•'. their slimy wuys into the officicl itir.crury of the celebretj.on 
our Const'itution'~ BicP.ntennial. 

Representing 20 mitions Emd m3 king no bones cbout their pert in 
c~eetion of a Qnµ,-World-Govcrnrnent, ~hey intend to meet, on Augu 
6th - 9th, at · the University of Pennsyl Ytinia, - in suppoeed cele 
tion of the U. S. Con;;titution, ,-,hon, in fD ct th~y really hoi:e t 
scuttle it, at a future datt3, in favor of their World Constituti 
Cross hypocrisyJ 

The first quest ion thEi t com !1 to mind io - lfflT is the Bicentenni 
Committee elloning forP.ign end treacherous powers -to ~rticipEtto 
what is supposed to be An American Affair; - especially when tho1 
forces do not hold with tho idea of covereignty tar any n~tion, 
the \torlrl ovor ,1hich they ovontunlJ.y hope to ruie? WMI are the1 i 
neme:1 even listed on tho Bicantennial CEJlender or eTElnts, in the 
first ploce7 

At a time when borders to the North en:i South of the continenta l 
Unite.cl itates ore being undemined, by both ruses of Afree trade 
end · .. 1catchin8 drug-runners', respectively, - we do not need the 
likes or th4!! World Federalists undermining our ArnericElnist idfl -Rlt 
any further thsn thoy sl~e~dy are. (Border-busting is one of thE 
primary stepa toward bringing the U. ~. into a World Order.} 

lt anyone is as outre_g~_g e~ ! &rn over this unhappy turn of eve nt, 
I hope they lO uld Jake th~ir reel ings knQW11 to, not only the Uni 
sity of Penn5ylvaa, for their ~rt in catering to those who do 
not wish our Constitution, nor Country well, - but also their Re l 
resentetives end the President, in Washington,~. c. 

9~x 

Sincerely, 
co~~/) ,. 'fctc~zJtY~ii;pt.-· ·· · 

Ruth Glbscott 






